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PROTECTING

LIVES

WHO WE ARE

Our purpose is Protecting Lives. It's something
everyone in this business cares passionately about.

WHAT WE DO

Our mission is to provide unparalleled protection for
those who protect us, giving them the confidence to tackle
challenging situations and helping them get home safe.

HOW WE DO IT

Qur core beliefs are the things that are most important to
us as a business and as individuais: the behaviours we want
to encourage, the standards we hold ourselves to and the
characteristics we display when we're at our best.

F I E R C E

Fearlessness  Integrity Excellence Resilience Collaboration  Execution

Together, these core beliefs spell FIERCE - a mnemonic
that sums up how passionate we all feel about the
outcome of our work.

© FINANCIAL HEADLINES

$243.8m

Revenue

$21.2m

Adjusted operating profit

$(12.6)m

Operating loss from
continuing operations

(48.0)c

Basic loss per share

40.3¢c

Adjusted basic earnings per share

29.6C

Dividend per share

7.0%

Cash conversion

1.94X

Leverage

$135.8m

Closing order book
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© OUR STAR STRATEGY
WILL HELP US
REALISE OUR
POTENTIAL

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STRENGTHEN

Strengthen the fundamentals
to provide a stable platform
for transformation

Clair’s story

> Read more on page 24

TRANSFORM

Improve efficiency and
working capital turns

Raul's story

> Read more on page 26

ADVANCE

Organically grow the core
and scale up emerging
opportunities

Daron's story

¥ Read mere on page 28

REVOLUTIONISE

Leverage innovation to
drive further growth

Henry's story

> Readmore on page 30
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AT A GLANCE

OUR AIM IS FOR HEROES
TO SURVIVE AND THRIVE -
NO MATTER THE MISSION

OUR VISION IS UNDERPINNED BY OUR STAR STRATEGY...
REVOLUTIONISE

Leverage innovation to drive
further growth

ADVANCE

Organicaily grow the core and
scale up emerging opportunities

TRANSFORM

Imgrove efficiency and warking
capital turns

STRENGTHEN

Strengthen the fundarmentals
to provide a stable platform for
transformation

> Read mare on page 22

N

...AND OUR COMMITMENT TO ENSURING A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE...

Our planet

Thie climate impacts the life-
threatening situations inwhich
our products and services help

Our supply chain
Frisuring & continuous supply
of high quality, ethically sourced
3w maAarenals and romponents

Our customers

Our customers carry out vital
work in ife-threatering situat-ons
- often to protect the wider

Our people and
communities

Our mission is enly achievable as
a result of our exceptional, highly

community Tney can safely
perform with confidence knowing
trat we protect with our products
and services,

save lives. is cr tical for us as a trusted partner. engaged colleagues

> Read more on page 41

N

...WITH THE SUPPORT OF AN EFFECTIVE BUSINESS MODEL...

Effective governance
We are committed to high
standards of corporate
governance as sef outin the UK.
Lotparale Governance Code.

Responsible approach
to sustainability

We have a fundamental

role to play in minimising

our environmental impact

on Lhe world.

Robust risk management
We have an established process
for the ‘dentification and
management of risk.

Our people and culture
Our people are at the heart of
everything we o,

? Read more on page 16

N
...AND AN EMBEDDED CULTURE TO DRIVE STRATEGY DELIVERY

F | E R C E

Execution:
We have fun, are
high impact and
are empowered 1o
vigorously deliver
cur priorities.

Collaboration:
We believe in the
power of teams,
working acrass the
business and with
our customers to
became stronger.

Resilience:

No matter the
circumstancas, we
extubit a will towan.,

Excellence:

We passionately strive
o protect life through
irnovative solutions,
pecple and processes,

Fearlessness:

\We seize
opportunities and take
calculated risks,

Integrity:

We do what's

right, using good
,udgementto ensure
we 2lways do things
we are proud of.

2 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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OUR STRATEGIC
BUSINESS UNITS

° RESPIRATORY PROTECTION

We have an extensive history of prov ding respiratory protection and a

comprehensive knowledge of our customers’ re zuirements for respiators,

powered and supphied air systerrs, filters, spares and accessones,

$156.9m

Revenue

18.7%

Adjusted operating profit margin

01

Number of employees

3

Number of sites

> Read more on page 12

HEAD PROTECTION

We nave a deep understanding of traumatic brain irjury which enatlcs
us to design next ge~eration ballistic and bump pretection helmets, 25
well as helmet Iiner and retention systems

$86.9m

Revenue

(9.3)%

Adjusted operating profit margin

422

Number of employees

3

Number of sites

? Read more on page 14
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INVESTMENT CASE

WE HAVE STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

AND EXTRAORDINARY
POTENTIAL

1. ADDRESSING INCREASING GLOBAL 2.LEADING TECHNOLOGY
THREATS BY PROTECTING THE LIVES + Curnulative R&D of $34 million cver the last 3 years
OF THOSE WHO PROTECT US « World leading, mnovative protection provided by our helmets,

A major supplicr of integrated protective solutions to the US. respirators and rebreathers

Cepartr-ent of Defense and other NATO countries + Uniquely positioned to leas future technology programmes for

Supportive addressable mar<ets growing at 2-4% CAGR head and respiratory protection

Global instarility and current conflicts driving demand and

emphasising the impartance of scldier a~d first responder

protection - Nerades of excerience protecting the lives of NATO
militaries ana first responders

Deep matenal suence, product design and manufactunng
capability, aligned to custorner prioaties and futute threats

3. RESILIENT COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE

Platform lifecycles support deeo custnmer partnerships and long-
term evenus visibility

Recertification and ex ensive qualificatior regurements provide
strong barriers to entry

Brands represents trust and reliability - long-term reputation for
produc: excellence essential given high cost of failure

Cxzensive installed product base and broad accesszry oftering
provides stable after-market revenue

4 Avon Protection plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2023
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THROUGH OUR STAR STRATEGY, WE HAVE DEVELOPED
STRATEGIC INITIATIVES WITH A FOCUS ON PROTECTING
MORE LIVES THROUGH OUR INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS
AND DELIVERING IMPROVED MARGINS, CASH FLOW
AND RETURNS ON CAPITAL FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS.

4. WELL POSITIONED FOR 5. TRANSFORMATION DRIVING
ABOVE MARKET GROWTH ACCELERATED FINANCIAL
AND ESG PERFORMANCE

Organic revenue growth underpinned by strong positions on

mulli-ycar programmes - Robust plan to acliver mid-tcens marains, impraved ROIC and
Sole spurced or primary sourced on key prograrnmes of record strang cash conversion

Lang history of partnenng with customers on break-through < Aninnovative culture with o well invested asse: base and
technology engaged warkforce driving future growth

Strong channel to market dllows for rapid commeraahsation of - Disciphned aporoach to capital allocation

M Lechnology + Focused on delivenng responsibly for all stakehalders; new

transformation plan and five-year targets reducing scrap
and CO, ermissions

CAPITAL ALLOCATION POLICY FOCUSED ON EARNINGS RECOVER
AND DRIVING SUSTAINABLE TOP-LINE GROWTH

> Transformation initigtives and > Celiver strong margin pragression >
organic investment in R&D and revenue growth
Facus on disciplined I=crease balarce sheet flexibility
capital allocation > Reduce debt > andminimise interes: cost o >
in suppart cf growth allowe cornpounding of returms -
in core markets and ) _
maximisation > Sustaimable through-cycle dvinenc > 2 5-3.0¢ EPS cover through cycla >
of returns payout racio o i net dect ~ ESITDA
Fere value-cre "
> Inorganic nvesiment in boli-ons > Jnly whete value-creative a1d >

supportve el strstegy acceleration

S
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CHAIR’S STATEMENT

TOGETHER WE PUT
OUR PEOPLE FIRST

I WOULD LIKE TO START BY THANKING OUR PEOPLE WHO HAVE WORKED
HARDER THAN EVER THIS YEAR TO DELIVER SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS ACROSS

A NUMBER OF IMPORTANT AREAS.

it has been a busy year of change across a number of important areas
We have refreshed and strengthened the Executive management team,
led by Jos Sclater who jeined the Board as CEO n January 2023, working
alongside Rich Cashin, who joined as CFO in March 2022, Under their
leadership, the Group has been reorganised into two Sirategic Busingss
Units, Respiratory Protect on and Head Proteciion, with respective
business Presidents appointed to the Executive Committee, This approach
has led to increased accountability a~d cwnership of delivery in both
business unizs and has imoroved the ability of the Board to both oversee
and scrutinise performance. Following the reorganisation, the Beard has
been excited to oversee the development and launch of our new STAR
strategy, which is already delivering encouraging results, together with a
refreshed mission, vision and care beliefs for the Group.

Vision, mission and core beliefs

Avnin Protection is a world leader in respiratory and head proteciion
solutions. Ower the last six months, we have engaged our team to help os
refresh our vision, miss on and core beliefs, using feedback ard ideas from
overy part of the business to define the things tnat really matter to us all -
and the kind of business we want to be.

We are an organisation made up of over 900 people, in five main locations
argund the UK and Nortn Arrerica, coming from a wide vaniety of
backgrounds, The thing we all have in common - the goiden thread that
binds us together - is our shared purpase of Protecting Lives. We proviae
unparalleled protection lor those who protect us That 1s something
everyone in this business cares passionately about. 1L why we come to
wiork = and it is what motivales us, every day, to do the Dest workwe can.

Strategy and results

Qur new vision and mission are underpinnea by the STAR strategy which was
developed by a broad-based tearn of employees from across the Group. Qur
STAR strategy is designed to drive value creation and is made .p of the following
four key elements. Strengthen: Strengthen the fundamentals to provide a stable
platform for transformation; Transform: Imgrove efficiency and working capital
turns; Advance: Organically grow the core and scale up emerging cpportunities;
Revolutionise: Leverage nnovation to drive further growth.

The strateqy is designed to improve financial performance over the next
five-year period through growing reven.es, margin expansion, improved
return on imvested capital and strong cash conversion wrile advancing our
sustainability prierities of protecting lives and reducing scrao waste and
carbon ercissions. Mare information can be found on page 22

We've started tre process to reposition the business as a high performing
defence company focused on protecting the lives of those who protect
us. tam pleased with the rapid progress made in a limited time but it is
the start of & jJourney. Gur resulzs this year are in-ling with our expectations
with an order book to support growth in 2029, We saw strong reven e
growth in Head Protection fzllowing the commencement of deliveries

of the Next Generation Integrated Head Protection System (NG [HP3)
helrmets, which partially offset expected weaker demand 'n Respiratary
Protection. [t will fake some time to get us where we want to be but | am
increasingly confident in the medium-term cutlock

Dividend

The Board 1s recormimending ¢ linal div dend ot 15.3 cents per share which,
together wilh the 14,3 cents per share intenm dividend, gives 4 Lotal
dividend for the year of 2.6 cents. The Board has reviewed our dividend
pelicy in line with our capital allocation golicy. More information can

be found on page 158. From a dividend perspective we believe that an
appropr ate level of distribution s for dividend payments to be between
2.5 and 3x covered by EFS through the cycle.

>

6 Avon Protection plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2023
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

TOGETHER WE
STRENGTHEN

CREATION OF TWO STRATEGIC
BUSINESS UNITS

We have moved fast to develop our new STAR strategy and
took meaningful steps forward in 2023, focusing initially on
strengthening the fundamentals with quick wins to build
short-term momentum. This included implementing a new
operating model with two Strategic Business Units {SBUs)
called Respiratory Protection and Head Protection,

Each SBU has its own focused leadership team with the
responsibility and empowerment to deliver their own specific
strategic objectives to support our growth ambitions.

Development of improved perforrance management
processes is well underway, with objectives, key results,
and fult financial performance statements incorporated at
an SBU level.

NOT ONLY HAS THE
REORGANISATION ENABLED

US TO HAVE GREATER INSIGHT
INTO BUSINESS PERFORMANCE,
BUT IT HAS ALSO PROVIDED
EMPOWERMENT AND
ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE TEAMS.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur sustainability agenda

The Board has averall responsibitity for our sustainability agenda,
disclosure and reporting, with the Sustainability Steerng Committee
responsible for setting the Group's sustainability strategy ard oversceing
its implernentation. Tne Corrmittee is cha red by our CFQ, Rich Cashin, and
also attenden by our CEO, Jos Sclater, and the Presidents of each 530,

Dring the period, the Committee met an flve occasions to review
progress and agree sustainability-related targets as we continue to
develop our sustainability agenda, Our sustainability commitments and
progress are discussed in detail on pages 41 10 43 Underpinning our
mission, vision and values is a commitment to operate the Group in a
way that is sensitive 1o and protests the current and future needs o the
comenunities a~d custoTers that we serve, our colleagues, our susply
chain ang the planet.

Health, safety and wellbeing of our people

Pratecting the health, saely and wellbeing of our people remained a
key priority in 2023, In line with our goal of zero harm, we continued to
actively promaote a strong safety culture at all our sites and accident rates
remamed very low,

The Board uses a Global Employee Advizory Forum as its employee
engagement mechamism and this has generated a meaningiul dialogue
between the Board and tne Sroup's employees during the perod. This
year we have also increased the number of townhall meetings held across
Al sites and tolowing Jos  apportment as CEO ho visited all sites and et
with all employees face to fare

Governance and the Board

Good governance 1s an integral part of the Company's suecess and tho
Board bring: together a diverse range of relevant skills and expertise.

There has continued 10 be change 1n the membershup of the Board this
year When Paul MicDonald stepped down from tre Board as CtO on 30
Sepiernber 2022, Mook ovel as Execulive Chan for an intenm penod until
Jos Sclater joined ¢y CFD on 14 lanuary 2023, when Lreverted o Chair of

the Buard Jos has guickly established himself as a sueng addition to the
Boatd and | am pledsed with the progress he and Rich have made since his
appointment. The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, three
independent Nan-Execut've Directars and myself as Chair After seven years
on the Boara, Chloe Ponsonby hzs decided that she will step down during
2024 fallowing an increase in her executive responsibilities. The Bozrd
reqularly reviews its composition to ensure it has the necessary breadth and
depth of skills and experience to support the development of the Group
and we will replace Chloe with an inaiviaual wath the right set of skills and
expenence 10 bolster the sirength of the Board. Cnloe will step down when
her replacement is appo.nted and Victor Chavez will take over at that time
as C~air of the Remuneration Committee.

As Chair, I have engaged with our major shareholders at various points
during 207 3 to understand theis views ann have ensured that ~hese

are communicated to ke Soard. We conducted an internal Board
perfor~ance evalsation this year and remain confige~t that the Boad
continues 1o cperate effectively together at a high standard Full details
of this year's evaluation are centained in tre Covernance section of this
Anrual Repart

Looking ahead to a new chapter of growth

2023 has been an important yedr for the Group. The Execut ve
management team have dore a great job in organising and focusing
resowrces 1o aeliver our comzelling 5°AR strategy. | do not wncerestimate
the chalienges of exec .ing the new stratagy, bu 1 am confidert tha:
Avon Protection is now well pasitioned for a new chapter of growsh, whilst
coNtNUIng to pursue its purpase of protecting lives.

Bruce Thompson

Chair
21 November 2023 /

Annual Report and Accounts 2023 Avon Protectien plc 7
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2023 HAS BEEN A TRANSFORMATIVE

YEAR FOR THE GROUP. WE HAVE

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNDERTAKEN SIGNIFICANT CHANGES

THAT HAVE RESHAPED THE VERY

CORE OF OUR BUSINESS.

N
_/
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MARKET OVERVIEW

OURCO

Links
Strategy Risks
§ Strongthen 1 Bidsand contracts 4 Marufacturirg
_ 2 Recrutingand 5 Political and
T Transform . -
retainirg talen: econerne stability
A Advance 3 Strategy execution 6 Sirancial controls
and new product i
R Revol.tonise 7 Sustainabil'ty

© MACRO CHANGES

1. U.5. DEPARTMENT

OF DEFENSE

2. COMMERCIAL
AMERICAS

3. UK. &

INTERNATIONAL

developrnent

What we have seen

The U.S. DOD remains the largest
defence market in the world, with a
requested budget for the 2024 fiscal
year of $842 billion. As per the 2023
National Security Strategy, glebal
ptiorities consist of out-competing
China as assertiveness grows around the
Indo-Pacific region, and constraining
Russia amidst the continuation of the

invasion of Ukraine. Additionally, the U.S,
DOD released its Strategy for Countering

Weapons of Mass Destructien in 2023
and its first Biodefense Posture Review,
highlighting an increased focus en
defending against biclogical thrdats and
building a force that can fight and win in
a CBRN environment.

What we have seen

We continue to see increased risk
of CBRN and ballistic threats from
terrorist attacks, civil unrest and
organised crime.

First responders are ever expected
to react to these shifting threat
environments, and require increased
levels of protection often associated
with military applications.

What we have seen

Following the Russian invasion of
Ukraine last year, we continue to see
a greater focus from NATO ceuntrias
of defence, with added pressures for
spend to reach 2% of GDP or higher.

>

>

10

ARKETS

> Read more about our strategy on
page 22

Read mare about our risk
management on page 62

Security anc cyber

Comphance and 3
ternal cortols

Defence sector
concentration

How we are responding

Within Head Protection, we received the second delivery
arder warth $38 million from the U.S. Army under NG IHPS
helmet contract, and the second delivery order worth $6.7
millien from the U.5. Defense Logistics Agency under the
second-generation Advanced Combat Helmet [ACH GEN 1)
contract. The combination of these two will position us as the
leading supplier of ballistic helmets into the U.5. DOD.

In Respiratcry Protection, we continue to be the sole-saurce
supplier of M50, M53A1 and M69 masks into the U.5. DOD, and
have secured funding to develop the next generation of filters.
We have taken steps to right-size the Respiratory Protecticn
5BU in light of U.5. DOD forecasts.

Linktostrategy T A R

Linktorisk * 2 3 6 7 1

How we are responding

We launched our new line of EPIC Ballistic helmets intc the
Commercial Americas market earlier this year, showcasing
the combination of our joint world-leading technologies in
both ballistic shells and liner & retention systems.

We also made our FM50 and C50 respirators, ajong with a
curated selection of accessories, available to the U5, civilian
market fer the first time via the Team Wendy website, which
prevides a platform to expand into a new and growing
market with our existing pertfolic of products.

Linktostrategy A R

Linktorisk 1 2 & 7 m

How we are responding

We continue to supply NATG forces with our respiratory
portfolio via our sole-source framework contract with the
NATQ Support and Procurement Agency (NSPA), with an
eighth country joining since the start of the contract in 2021.
We also received an order for our EXOSKIN CBRN boots and
gloves under the three year framework contract we won this
year, showcasing the strength of the platform in providing
our entire range of CBRN protective capabilities.

Link to strategy A R

Linktorisk v 2 & 7 1
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2021-2030 REVENUE OPPORTUNITY CAGR*

RESPIRATORY PROTECTION

-1.9% -1.9% - 2.4%

U.s. 0oD Commercial Americas - UK. &International

Vv

2.8%

Total opportunity CAGR

HEAD PROTECTION

-8.59% 1.9% D udYe
n (o] » o n (o
u.s. DOD Commercial Americas U.K. & International

3ase2 o forecay’ outa sepoled ) RRalisseros SUateqic Anvitons 1 2021 Wk eNeet V1 Mals - 0 240283 These 9rawih [alas 1s we | Aereass sham wihin 2.7 margets
i g £l

us boo Respiratory Protection
S76./m $BO.YM
Commerdial Arencas Head Protection

U &Inter-ational

2023 Revenua by Market 2023 Revenue by SBU

51796m $TSAGmM

S545m

S
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

RESPIRATORY

PROTECTION

© Qur leading range of respiratory protection
includes respirators, powered and supplied
air systems, filters, spares and accessories,

- as well as underwater systems and CBRN
protective wear,

1 RESPIRATORS
2 POWERED & SUPPLIED AIR
3 SPARES & ACCESSORIES

4 CBRN PROTECTIVE WEAR

°© EXAMPLES OF OUR RESPIRATORY PORTFOLIO

RESPIRATORS

Qur 50 series respirators utilise shared key tecmnologies, offering maximum
protection against CBRN threats. With multiple tailored variants, we meet diverse
customer needs eftectively and comprehersively. The M30 and FMS0 masks are
the mast advanced military general service respiratory protection masks to date,
offering significant improvement in comfort, usability, operational effectiveness
and protection. The C50 mask is based on the M50 and is the leading mask used by
US. law enforcement agenc es, offering high protection, cutstanding field of vision
and superior corrfort. The PC50 was developed for budget challenged prisons,
correctional officers, border control and other rgn-CBRN requirements that require
protection in dangerous and contaminated environments, The FM53 and "M54
masks were developed specfically for specalist applications where the user necds
o respond to ever-changing operat onal conditions.

We manufacture the General Service Respirator {GSR) which is the standard
issue to all UK. service personnel across the Army, RAF and Navy; the GSR
twin-canister, single-wvisor design is to the LK. MCD's precise speafication and
{eatures high perfurmance fill-ation technology

SPARES AND
ACCESSORIES

We offer service support
o alobal cusiomers

through replacement filters,

spares, accessories and
communication systems,
providing through-Lte
support to our range of
respirators ard other Life
sUstaining cquipmcont.

ESCAPE HOODS

Qur NH15 escape hood
prowvides portable protect on.
The ulra-low profile makes

it more convenient to carry
and enhances the range

of resp ratory praiection
available to escape a

hostile situation.

12 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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PRODUCT IN ACTION

POWERED AND
SUPPLIED AIR

Designed for scedialist capatulities,
our complementary value-adde:
subsysterns extend operational
capability Gur ranqe of Powered
Air Purifying Respirators (PAPR).
Self-Contaned Brearhing
Apparatus (SCBA) or a combinarion
of the two [(C3-PAPR) can be
deployed with our resp rators o
provide clean, broathable air,

UNDERWATER
SYSTEMS

Qur MCIITD Is a fully closea

cirruit, electronically controlled,

mixed gas rebreather suitable
for a range of specizlist milizary
or tact cal diving disciglines,
sulh as mine dearance of
axplosives discosal,

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EUROPEAN MILITARY
CONTINUE TO SELECT
OUR MISSION-CRITICAL

PROTECTION

We have recently welcomed orders from a new
Eurcpean military for both FMS5Q respirators
and EXOSKIN CBRN boots and gloves under our

NSPA contracts.

This military joins several other NATO nations, induding
Belgiumn, Denmark, Finland, the Netherlands, Norway,
Latvia and Lithuania, in deploying our FMS0 respirators
to protect its armed forces. But most significantly, this

is the first NATO nation to place an order for our boots
and gloves under the recently awarded three-year

framework contract.

While these orders may be relatively small in scale,
they hald huge significance for us as they demonstrate
how aur NSPA framewaork contracts serve as a robust
platform for showcasing our extensive CBRN portfolio
to NATO nations and partners. They also reaffirm our
steadfast partnership with NATO in bolstering CBRN
protection capabilities across the alliance.

NATQO nations utilising our NSPA contracts

THERMAL
IMAGING
CAMERAS

Our #A-TIC range of Trermal
Imag ng Jameras inchides the
lightest and smallest thegmal
imagers available certifiea to
comply with NFPA 18072021,
alongsize a wider range of
cameras developed from the
sarne technology.

CBRN PROTECTIVE
WEAR

W th an extersive knowledge of
el tary and first responder ZBRAN
requirements, we developed

the EXOSKIN-81 CBRN boots

and EX2SKIN-GT CBRM gloves,
designed to meet the unique
requirerme=ts of the modern
warfighter and tactical cperator.

7
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO CONTINUED

HEAD

PROTECTION

© Qur head protection
portfolio is focused on next
generation ballistic and
bump protection helmets,
as well as helmet liner

and retention systems.

1 HELMETS

2 LINER & RETENTION

SYSTEMS

°© EXAMPLES OF OUR HEAD PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

HELMETS

ACH GEN I

The Advanced Combal
Helmet Generation Il (ACH
GEN (1} Is a new lighter
weight version of the U5,
mil'tary's general issue
ballist'c helmet, making it
mare com‘ortable for the
user 1o wear.

NG IHPS

The Next Generation
Integrated Head Protection
Systern (NG IH®S) 15 one of
four majer components

of the LLS, Army's Saldier
Protection System. The NG
IHPS prov.des hghtweight
and high perfzrmance
head protection to

U5, soldiers.

EPIC

“he ERIC range features
three models talored
o the needs of first
respenders, Leveraging
advanced balhstic helmet
tec~nology, the new
~elmet series features
lightweigh: high-
verformance material
aired witn our Team
Wendy liner systemns for
premium comfort,

EXFIL
BALLISTIC SL

The EXFIL Ballist ¢ is the
general issue ballistic
helmet for the Australian
Defence Farce, whilst
the EXFIL Ballistic SL s
used by elize teams and
agencies araund the
world including LAPD
and Brarzilian DPF.

EXFIL LTP

The EXFILLTP
{Lightweight, Tactical,
Polymer} bump helmet
provides imzact
protection and a stable,
corfortable platform for
mounting night vision and
other accessories,
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EXFIL LTP DELIVERY FOR U.S.

NAVAIR COMMUNITY

Our EXFILLTP bump helmet, which is ideal for maritime

environments, was chosen by the U.S. NAVAIR, which supports

the supply of equipment for the U.S. Navy, to protect share-based '
marine maintainers and the aviation maintenance crew. This crew

is responsible for the U.S. Navy's flight deck operations on aircraft

carriers and the maintenance and repair of aircraft on board.

WE'RE PROUD TO MEET CUSTOMER
NEEDS AND ENHANCE MAINTAINER
SAFETY AS OUR INNOVATIVE HELMET
PLATFORM GAINS GLOBAL INTEREST
FROM ALLIED NAVAL FLEETS.

10k

helmets delivered to U.S. Naval Air Systems Command

PRODUCT IN ACTION

© LINER AND RETENTION SYSTEMS

SAR CAMFIT ZORBIUM EPIC AIR LINER EXFIL
BACKCOUNTRY RETENTION ACTION PAD SYSTEM MARITIME

The SAR Backcountry is SYSTEM (ZAP) 7-PAD NSN Tng ZPIC Ar design wtihises LINER SYSTEM
the first purpose-built The CAMFIT Retentean LINER SYSTEM proven Zorbium faam The EXFIL Maritme

search and rescLe helmet
ta crovige accessary
maunting capabilities while
meeting key ndustrial

ard mourtanesring
performande standards.

System uses a micro-
adjustabie BCA Fit
Syste that stahil ses the
weight of the helmet by
distributing fight, gven

pressure around the head.

Since 2005, the ZAP 7-Pad
NS Ciner Systern is the
standard issue system
authorised for use in all US.
Arry LS Marine Corps
and US MNavy gro.na
cornbat helmets. Mare
than scven million pad
sers have bern supplied
since the programmes
Ineption

tecnnology, offering
leading-edge imnact
pratection without
adversely affecting weig-t
or heat dissipacion.

Liner System features
sealed pads optimised
o withstand routine
Cxposure o water. Tre
liner's quick-drying
capability relos redace
the added heime: system
werght and discomfart that
resales from waterlnnned
heimet pads.

i
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BUSINESS MODEL

AN EFFECTIVE
BUSINESS MODEL

Our products and services maximise the capabilities of our customers
and create value for all our key stakeholder groups.

° OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

. Market positions Our partnerships Our people

Our market-leading positions are protected We maintain strong relationships with a We have extensive in-house capabilities

" by our world-leading technalogies, high diverse customer base of global militaries across all of our functions, with empowerment
value brands, significant barriers to entry and first responders, where we work in and trust at the centre of what we do to get
and intellectual property rights. tandem to develop and deliver specific the best out of our people.

protective needs.

N
HOW WE CREATE VALUE

Reinvest Understand
for growth customer needs

Provide world-class PROTECTING Research and

service, training MORE LIVES development
and aftercare

Bid for and win
new programmes
and contracts

Design and
manufacture life-
saving products
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¢ THE VALUE WE CREATE

Employees

Our people are essential in enabling us to meet our customers'’
requirements, and we must provide a happy, healthy and
rewarding environment to allow our employees to thrive.
Initiatives include Balance@Avon, our employee resource
group which aims to help develop and promote our fernale
leaders of the future; LinkedIn Learning, our e-learning
platform; our network of Culture Champions who promote the
views and interests of our employees across our sites; and a
wide range of health awareness initiatives.

Customers

We understand the criticality of our preducts in enabling
our customers to perform life-endangering tasks in service
of protecting others. Our products are designed to meet
the specific demands of our users, and the highest quality
standards are upheld to ensure they work without fail when
they are needed most.

Suppliers

Qur supply chain is essential in the timely delivery of cur life-
saving products, and we maintain robust partnerships with our
extensive supplier network, whilst ensuring they abide by the
same ethical and moral standards that we do.

ADJUSTED PERFGRMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Communities

We acknowledge the responsibility we have to the local
communities our sites operate in and look to contribute in
more ways than just providing employment opportunities.

In this year alone we have made over $124k in donations

to local charities and organisatiens including hospices,
schools, emergency service providers and community
aroups, in addition to our partnerships with Team Forces and
Forces Wives Challenge, and our donaticn of 20% of sales
generated via the Team Wendy e-commerce site to The Honor
Foundation on Giving Tuesday.

Environment '

The climate impacts the life-threatening situations in which
our products and services help save lives. Working towards
our net zero goal, building in more circularity and the targeted
use of resources will help us mitigate and adapt to protect our
planet. This year we have established focused sustainability
targets for us to deliver against over the next five years.

Shareholders

Through successful management of the business and
execution of our 5TAR strategy, we return value to our
shareholders via dividends and reinvesting in the business to
drive future growth and margin expansion.

7
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CEQ’S REVIEW

TOGETHER WE REALISE
OUR POTENTIAL

AVON PROTECTION HAS EXTRAORDINARY POTENTIAL
AND CAN SIGNIFICANTLY IMPROVE GROWTH,

MARGINS AND ROIC.

Lots done. Lots to do.

2023 has been a transformative year for the Group. We have undertaken
significant changes tha: have reshaped the very core of our business.
This journey has seen us realign our structure into two Strategic Business
Units, a move designed to improve delivery, focus ana accountability.
We launched our new STAR sirategy to realise our potential and deliver
revenue growth, mid-teens operating margins and improved cash flow.
Furthermore, we have defined a combined purpose, mission, vision and
set of values that unite our entire business under a shared ethos with a
view to accelerating strategy execution,

We nave maintaired hign levels of energy through the continued
execution of our STAR strategy and we have made significant progress
in each of the <ey areas, which is a testament to the dedication and
determinatior of our team,

Strengthen

In the period, we have wound-down and subseguently exited the

Armeur business on-time and to plan, with the successful delivery of

all cutstanding cbligations. As well as g ving us an immediate finarcial
benefit, this alse enables us to fully focus on the opjectives and prioritics
within the contimuing business, whilst frecirg up space to eptimise helmet
manufacturing wathin our Irving facility.

The Group has diligently warked o implement the new cperating model
announced at the half year results, with the creation of two Strategic
Business Units (SBUS} for Respiratory rotection and Head Protection, each
with focused leadership learms who are ermpowered and gccountable

for delivering our S1AR strategy. Development of improved performance
mdnagerrent processes is well underway, with objectives, key resulls and
full financial per‘ormance reports incorperaled at an SBU Jevel.

We rave continued to strengthen our tears in many key areas including

finance, sales, programme management. engineenng, and HR. Impartantly,

we have strengthened the operational leadership teams at our Salern and
Irvine facilities, which is essential in ensuring the successful del'very of the
1.5 DOD cortracts which underpin the growth of the Head Protection
business ir the coming years.

Foliowing the lower than expected demand for our respiratery praductsin
the year, we tock decisive action to right-size the capacity of the business.
In Head Protection, we have improved productivity following tne exit from
the Armaour business. Altogether, we have reduced headcount by around
100 people through these initiatives,

During the second half, we have also developed a reinvigorated purpose,
mission, vision and values and are excited to start sharing this across the
Group. To create sorething that is reflective of our collective aspirations,
we initiated a comprehensive process that invited emplayees o provide
their feedback through surveys and focus groups. These insights were
invaluable and provided the foundat'ons upon which our shared values
were developed, aligning us as a company with a clear directicn and
shared ethos. G.r Group will be more al'gned than ever sefores, united in
our goal to protect lives and provide unparalleled support to those who
protect us, all of which is underpinned by our STAR strategy.
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

TOGETHER WE
TRANSFORM

INTRODUCING OUR
TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME

The Transform point of our STAR strategy focuses on five pillars:
footprint optimisation, operational excellence, commercial
optimisation, functional excellence and programme management
excellence. Each of these pillars presents opportunities to reduce
costs, realise efficiencies and improve working capital turns.

The chart below shows how our transformation initiatives are
progressing thraugh our transformation gates, with the degree
of shading in each star showing the assessment of progress so
far. Over the next three years we should expect to see all the stars
filled in.

We've made excellent progress validating the value of our footprint
optimisation, operaticnal excellence and functional excellence
programmes, but have some more work to do on validating
procurement opportunities. We have found some quick wins

in commercial optimisation but have not yet validated the full
opportunity.

Importantly, we have nearly finished planning the footprint
optimisation and functicnal excellence programmes and will move
firmly into execution this year. This is important because it means
we will see the full benefits of these initiatives in 2026 and some
earlier than that.

Appraise Plan Execute

Footprint o o o
Optimisation

Operational
Excellence

Commercial
Optimisation

Functional
Excellence

Programme
Management
Excellence

value estimated
Implementation

planned

Inihative
vahdated

Value

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transform

Whilst Lme rrajonty of the year has been focused on strengthenny

and stabihsing the busi~ess, attention has now turned to a number of
transformational imtatives wnich are at the core of ensunng we can
deliver mid-teens operating margins, and improved rezum on capital and
cash flow.

The transfarmation programrme has been split into five work streams

with dedicated teams, and most importantly defined casts and benefits,
Furthermore, we have aligned the incentives of the business to these
initiatives with a greater focus on profit and average warking capital turns
for our annual bonus scheme, and an emphasis on 2526 earmings and ROIC
for aur longer-term ince~tive plans.

Ihe first and single biggest lever wathin tra~sformation is footprint

opt misatior Within Head Protection initiatives include insourcing the
praduction of our EXFIl Ballistic S hetmets, the mavermnant of f nishing
for our new FPIC range of helmets to Cleveland, and the consolidation of
high-vclume ACH GEN It production intz Clevelana a~d Salem. All of these
initiatives deliver good margin improvements and support the future
growth of the Head Protection business. We ~ave further initiatives in aur
pipeline which will help us accelerate further.

Secondly cornes operational excellence. Laying the groundwark for a
culture of cantinuous improvemertwill be cssential in driving efficiency
ard grawing margins as we move forwird, and we took some Important
first steps in <he second half of the year Jegular Kaizers have been
implemented at all our sites, with a number of significant iImcrovernents
already realised, ncluding reducing the scrap rate for NG IHPS, as well

as the ¢ieat on of a funnel of Kaizers "or the new year To furteen drve
operationdl mmproverent we have devsioped a new set of cperatonal
el Cs wth consistency acioss the SBUs, these will be rolled out €2 2l sites
at a valde stream level alomg with a renyigoraled operational Legr system
inthe new year
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CEQ'S REVIEW CONTINUED

THE NEW EPIC RANGE OF BALLISTIC HELMETS THAT LAUNCHED EARLIER

IN THE YEAR DEMONSTRATES THE COLLABORATION ACROSS OUR HEAD
PROTECTION SITES, COMBINING THE BALLISTIC HELMET TECHNOLOGY
THAT WAS DEVELOPED FOR THE ACH GEN Il PROGRAMME, WITH THE

TEAM WENDY LINER SYSTEMS TO PROVIDE A LIGHTWEIGHT, HIGH-
PERFORMANCE HELMET WITH PREMIUM COMFORT, AND A BEST-IN-CLASS
PERFORMANCE TO WEIGHT RATIO TO THE FIRST RESPONDER MARKET.

Transform continued

Cormercial optimisation focuses on streamlining our product offerings
and routes to market, whilst ensuring we are fully leverag'ng our market
leacing positions. e intredaction of the good, better, best range of EPIC
helmets has been very successful, with tre majanty of customers choosing
the top end EPIC specialist vanant. Within Respiratory Protection we have
identified a numiber of pricing cptimisation opportunities on products
where we do not currently make acceptatile levels of margin.

The final two workstreams of functional excellence and programme
manageent excellence are at the carl er stages of their execution, but
important first steps have taken place with a number of opportunitics
identified to improve functional efficie~cy. reduce waste, and improve
preductivity, We will also be expanding the Kaizen methadology outside
of operations to drive similar levels of improvement in otaer arcas of the
business imcluding HR, finance and new productintroduction.

We estirmate that the total cash cost for these t-ansformation intiatives

will total between $10-12 million in 2024, incluzing $1-2 millior of capital
expenditure. The transformation expenses are expected to be recognised
as exceptional cost. Trere will be further transformation costs in 2025, with
a sharp decrease expected in 2026,

Advance - Respiratory Protection

Alot of the effort within Respiratory Protection this year has focused on
rebullaing te sales pipeline, either by innovation of new products or ncw
channels to market.

Farlisr in the year we announced that we hac been awarded a framework
contract by the NSPA, to supply our FXQOSKIN range of CBRN protective
boots ard gloves, and this was followed up later in the year by the first
order under the contract ‘rorm a NATO customer. Impartantly this serves
as the first country to have procured against coth the boots and gloves
contract and the existing framework contract for FM5C masks, evidencing
the robust platform the contracts provide for s~awcasing our extensive
CBRN partfolio to NATO natlons and partners.

We nave made good progress strengthening our relationship with the

U.S. DOD programme office and are seeing significantly higher levels of
collaboration en future product developments. We do not expect this 1o
translate into increasea U.S. DOD dernand this year, whicm will be impacted
by a gap i~ filter production. Going forwards, we will level load the filter
line to avoid this happening again.

We are continuing to focus en capturing the underwater marke” with our
warld-leading rebreather technology, and see a strong pipeline which
we expect to enable us to expand our customer base beyond the NATO
countries that we have alreacly won contracts with,

Laoking farward, we will focus on the launch of our revolutionary new
Maddlar Integrated Tactical Respirator (MITR) mask and goggle system

via our Quick Launch process, mcreasing sales o our complete CBRN
por:“olio including our new crotective suit developed in partnership with
OFEC CBRNe and impartantly start to see returns from sales of rebreathers
following many years of contnuous product develepment,

Advance - Head Protection

Within Head Protection, the focus bas been on ensurning we have the
capacity and capab Lty to fullil the demand against our U'S, DOD
contracis.

Theramp-up of NG THPS production hds made signficant progress,
and in total over 12,000 helmets were successfully produced, approved
and delivered within the year. We expect to deliver around 24,000 NG
[HPS helmets in 2024 This, in combination with the award of a five-
year extension to the J&A contract, undercins growth within the Head
Protection business,

Forrral FAT approval for ACH GEN |l has been received, which represents ar
important milestone in 2e-risking his programme. We will now maove into
the ramp-up phase of this programme, but with the fessens learmed from
the successful launches of both NG IHPS and EPIC this year, | am confident
that we will start production in H1

The new FPIC range of ballistic helmets that launched earlier in the

year demonstrates the collaboration across our Head Protection sites,
combining the ballistic haimet technology that was develaned for the
ACH GFN I programme with the Team Wendy liner systems to provide a
lightwe ght, high-performance helmet with premium comfart and a best-
in-class perforrmance to weight rabio. Inital interest and arders have been
very promising with around 10,000 ordered to date.

The focus for 2021 remains on improving productivity and scrap rates as
we ramp-up proauct on to drive margins up to an acceptatle level.
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

TOGETHER WE
ADVANCE

A NEW STANDARD OF SELF-
CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS

This year we saw our upgraded ST54 enhanced multi-
mission Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) receive
certification to the NFPA 1986 Standard on Respiratory
Protection Equipment for Tactical and Technical Operations,
including NIOSH CBRN certification.

Achieving this standard, together with the NIOSH CBRN
certified FM54 respirator, reinforces our product as the top
choice tactical SCBA solution for law enforcement, first
responder and Special Forces user groups operating in the
harshest respiratory threat environments.

The team made improvements to the system to achieve this
certification, including upgraded breathing performance
with reduced exhalation resistance, and the addition of a new
clear outsert with higher abrasion resistance. Comfart for the
user has also been improved, with enhanced stability and
weight distribution.

IT HAS BEEN A REAL HONOUR

TO WORK ON THIS STRATEGIC
PRIORITY WITH TALENTED PEOPLE
ACROSS THE BUSINESS, AND
PROVIDE OUR USERS WITH A
COMFORTABLE, CUSTOMISABLE
HIGH PERFORMANCE SYSTEM.

Colin Horne, Global Category Manager - Specialist Respiratory

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revolutionise
Revolutionise focuses on a longer-term horzon and we have made a
number of important first steps in the year.

Our Head Protection teamn has started work on the next generation of
burnpr helmets, as well as leveraging the Ceradyne technolagy imto new
high-perfarmance helmets for the commercial market,

We have also had success in securing a nurnber of funded research and
development programmes, which turther demonstrates the strang
partnerships we ncld with our customers in collagorating on the next
generation of protective technologios Within Respiratory Pratection we
received funding for the development of the next gencration of filters,

as welt as funding for the development of new diving masks and shailaw
water rebreathors to complement our underwater postfolia. In tlead
Protection we continue to be one of the leading experts in traumatic brain
injury mitigation and have received funding Lo contirue cur research in
this area.

Sustainability

We protect ives:it's ingrainec within our culture and 15 at the heart of
everything we do, which is why sustainability is so important to us. We
recognise we are at the srart of our sustainability journey so have been
focused on developing a high-level sustainability vsion inked to our
purpnse and strateqy.

Dunng the period, we evolved our sustairability agenda by redefining
a~d expanding the four distinct pillars which underpin cur sustainability
agenda to better reflect our key sta<eholaers, each of wham has an
important role to play in our journey. These are now known as our planet,
our supply chain, our customers and o.ur colleagues and communitics.

Wwithin each pillar, we have identified prict ty objectives which will be
closely monitored by tre Soard. Targets have been agreed against these
anbitions and will help drive pos tive momentum Each pillar also has a
number of other focus areas that support the prionty objectives and are
necessary for us to manage as part of our day-to-day stewardship

Capital allocation policy

We have completed a review of eur capital allacation policy and have
introauced a new framewark, First ard foremost, we want to focus our
attention and rescurces on capitalising on the growth opporturities ahead
of us, whilst Mmaximising the returns from trese growth opportunities
through the targeted transformation act vines detailed above Our secand
focus is to raduce debt to enable flexibility and m nimise our interest
costs. Trirdly, while we recogmise the importance of dividends to some

of our shareholders, we want to ensurc that these d'stributions are sized
aopropriately and, impariantly, set at a level frem whico they can grow

as business cerformarce starts to improve on z sustainable basis, With
thisin mind, we believe that ar approprizte love! of distribution is for
dividend payments (o be between 25 and 3x covered by adjusted basic
(PSthrough the cycle

Beyonz these three core princicles, in the medium term we will consiaer
norganic balt-en opcortunities with the express requirement that they
accelerate the delivery of our strategy. However, we da not anticipate
considenng no ganis Investments untibwe bave meaningfully irprovea
prafitabi Ly i the Head Protechion gasiness and reduced webt 1o s more
cornfortable level,

U fos S AL

Jos Sclater
CEO

21 November 2023
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CEO’S REVIEW CONTINUED

DEVELOPING
STAR STRATE

STRENGTHEN

Strengthen the fundamentals
to provide a stable platform
for transformation

¥ Read more on page 24

REVOLUTIONISE

Leverage innovation

to drive further growth Q*'

» Read maore on page 30

O Linking to our sustainability pillars

Our planet

Our colleagues and communities

Our customers

Qur supply chain

* Read more on page 42

o

TRANSFORM

Improve efficiency and
working capital turns

9«0 » Read more onpage 26
Gl
&
‘Vob
, ADVANCE
Ce

Organically grow the
core and scale up
emerging opportunities

» Read more on page 28

Developing our strategy

To develon our STAR strateqy, the Respiratory and Head Protection SBUs
united therr expertise, bringing tegether diverse teams in a series of
workshops.

An intense facas was placed on dotermining the levels of ambition for the
Respiratory and tlcad Protection product families, conducting a thorough
analysis of their strengths and weaknesses, and meticulously mapping out
the threats and epportun ties within existing, adjacent a~d new market
spaces. With a corrprehensive agenda, the teams actively engaged in
activities designed to explore these critical areas, pushing their boundaries
to think critically about the business’ strateqgy, available resources, methods
for measuring sJdceess and the evolving market landscape

Tris collect ve eflorl, diven biy the acive sarticipation of over
40 ermployees, played o piveialtole inthe strategic evolutior of the
business, cr.cially helping to improve buy in and recuce execution risk.

22 Avon Protection ple Annual Repaort and Accounts 2023



CGVERVIEW

STRATEGIC REFGRT

GOVERNANCE

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

OUTLINING OUR
JOURNEY

2023

STRENGTHEN

STABILISE

TRANSFORM

2024

2025

MID-TEENS OPERATING MARGINS

ADVANCE

REVOLUTIONISE

R&D

OUR PLAN IN DETAIL

Strengthen

The Strengthen element of cur
STAR strategy is focused on our
concerted ef‘orts to reinforce

the foundational aspects of our
opcerations, thereoy facilitating
significant cnhancements i our
ability to delver exceptional value
ta our customers with speed

ard prec sion.

GROWTH

Transform

The Transform element of our
STAR strategy embodies our
commitment ta achiev ng
substantial gains in cfficicncy
a~d working capital turnover

by concetrating on proven
transformatioral strazegics and
tactics. Thus includes streamiinirg
DrOCesses, ophmIsing 1esouUrces
ard evbracing Innovative
dpproaches to dnve positrse
chenge throughout the busness,
ult mately erhancing our overall
performance and sustalr ability.

2026

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2027 2028 2029
CONTINUOQUS
IMPROVEMENTS
SALES
Advance Revolutionise

The Advance element of our STAR
strategy represents our strategic
focus on Grganic graowth in our
core Business while simultzneausly
scaling up emerg ng busimess
madels. We achicve this by
tailorng sirateg ¢ init atives for
each SBLL This element emphasises
our cormitment to AUrtunng and
expand ng our existing sirensths
while mnovating and diversifying
te adapt t evolmg rarket
dynamics, ensuting long-term
SUCCess and susta natity.

The Revolutienise element of

our STAR strateqy underscores
our pursuit of trrilling, long-term
oppart.nitics by narnessing our
care competenc os to fuel growts
through innovative approaches
a~d mar<et expansion This
strategic element emphas ses

our dedication to explonng new
hanzons and e~bracing disruptive
ngyatians w dive sustdindbile,
transformative hange while

ver Ui inlo news markels,
making us a frantrunner n our
industry’s evolut on

S
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

STRENGTHENING
TOGETHER

STRENGTHENING TOGETHER

CLAIR’S STORY

This year we embarked on a transformative
journey to define a new vision, mission and
values, and provide a renewed sense of purpose
and direction.

Throughout this process we have engaged with
our employees through surveys, workshops and
focus groups. Their insights and candid feedback
were invaluable in guiding our effarts and
ensuring alignment with their perspectives to
shape the new vision, mission and values.

| am incredibly proud of the work that has been
accomplished this year and to have been a part of
it, seeing the collaboration between teams and
the generation of a diverse range of ideas. Cur
new vision, mission and values are not just words
on a wall; they are the foundation of a renewed
commitment to our customers, our employees
and the communities we serve,

Clair Randall
Director of Corporate Communications
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© ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 Effective operating model

2 Clear strategy with resources aligned
to strategic initiatives

3 Strong management team

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Initial right sizing complete
5 High impact performance
management implemented

6 Successfully exited the
Armour business
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

TRANSFORMING
TOGETHER

TRANSFORMING TOGETHER

RAUL’S STORY

We're focused on growing and formalising our continuous
improvement culture to continue to explore new ways to improve
processes, stay competitive, increase quality and output and improve
the work environment.

| am proud to have been part of a cross-functional team that has
undertaken six months of projects across our facility in Salem, looking
to improve efticiencies and maximise our available Mluur space.
Several pieces of equipment and tools have been repurposed at our
aother facilities, actiens have been taken to enhance the sustainability
of our processes and there has been a focus on improving 55.

The team has risen to the challenge and these projects and Kaizens
have reinvigorated a sense of continuous improvement culture and
unity, while providing development appertunities for our teams.

Kaizens are continuing across the sites, looking to observe, analyse,
plan and aclion changes to enhance our manufacturing performance
and reduce non-vajue-added activities. This is supported by training
across all functions by our continuous improvement teams.

Raul Vargas
Salem Helmet Value Stream Manager
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© ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Footprint optimisation

EPIC finishing and assembly moved
to Cleveland

ACH GEN I capacity ramp up tG move
to Cleveland, in addition to Salem

Operational excellence

Continuous improvement culture
and capability

Standard operating metrics implemented
Commercial optimisation

EPIC good, better, best strategy
implemented

Identified pricing optirmisation
cpportunities
Functional excellence

Detailed plan created for
finance excellence

°© FUTURE OBJECTIVES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Footprint optimisation

Further steps to improve gross margin

2 Operational excellence

Implement funnel of improverment
initiatives targeting scrap reduction
and praoductivity improvermnent

3 Commercial optimisation

Improved pricing on priority low-margin
SKUs and optimised route to market

4 Functional excellence

Implement identified opportunities

5 Programme management excellence

Transformation governance and
control embedded
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

ADVANCING
TOGETHER

ADVANCING TOGETHER

DARON’S
STORY

This year we launched the EPIC line of ballistic helmets. This
was the first collaboration across the three Head Protection
sites and is the result of the innovative synergies between
Avon Protection, Tearn Wendy and Avon Protection Ceradyne
coming talife The FPIC helmet range leverages the latest
LS. DOD ballistic protection technology pedigree from
Avon Protection Ceradyne, with exceptional head protection
from Team Wendy liner and retenticn systems, and seamless
integration with Avon Protection respirators. The new line
offers our law enforcement officers scalable options for
exceptional protection at an economical price.

It was a proud moment to see the output of work from
extraordinary individuals in cross-functional teams

bringing this EPIC range to life and delivering innovation

to our customers. From initial validation and prototypes,

to manufacturing process set-up and marketing collateral
completion, our teams displayed dedication and unique
collaboration throughout the process to bring this product to
the market.

Currently available to the Americas first responder market,
we're looking forward to expanding the offering to our
e-commerce website and building a strong pipeline of
oppertunities with militaries across the globe as we expand
into EMEA regions.

Daron Shank
Product Category Manager
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"HEAD
PROTECTION

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 NGIHPS

Signed five-year IDIQ with contract celling
of $676 millian

FAT approval recelved ahead of the competition
2 ACHGENI

IDIQ with 5 years remaining and a contract
ceiling of $204 rnillion

FAT approval, ahead of competition
3 EPIC

Strong demand for new EPIC helmet with ACH
GEN !l technology

Successful production ramp-up

FUTURE OBJECTIVES

1 NGIHPS
Productivity and scrap improvements
2 ACHGENII

Ramp up production to meet
custorner demand

3 EPIC/EXFIL

Increase production further with lower
cycle time

Refresh EXFIL range and embed
Ceradyne shell technology

4 Pads

Increase production to meet
higher demand

Improve productivity and reduce scrap

1 Boots and Gloves

Waon the NSPA contract and received first major

order from a NATO customer

2 U.5.DOD

High levels of collaboration on future
product development

3 Rebreathers
Strong pipeline

FUTURE OBJECTIVES

1 Launch MiTR

Use our Quick Launch process to launch
revolutionary new respiratory and eye
protection system

2 Rebreathers

Convert pipeline into profitable growth
3 Complete CBRN solution

Sell ensemble through existing channel

S
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

REVOLUTIONISING

REVOLUTIONISING TOGETHER

HENRY’S STORY

Our journey with the MiTR project has been nothing short of
transformative, From its inception, when our engineering team’s
ingenuity met the U.S. DOD's needs to receiving very pesitive customer
feedback from customer trials and DSEI 2023,

The most rewarding aspect has been the opportunity to develop
semething revolutionary from the ground up, MiTR is about
understanding the nuanced needs of our end users and we recognise
that unparalleled protection isn't solely about intensity; it's also about
reducing burden. MiTR, with its innovative integration of respiratory
and ocular protection, lightens the load for our soldiers, enabling
them to execute their crucial roles with heightened confidence

and efficiency.

TOGETHER

The efforts of the design engineering team haven't just expanded
Avon Protection’s product portfolio; they've created a new category
in respiratory protection. I'm proud to be part of a team that not only
envisions unparalleled protection but actively pioneers it. Together,
we're not just developing gear; we're shaping the future by protecting
those whao protect us.

Henry Chadwick
Senior Design Engineer
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o ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 Rebreathers
Secured UK MOD funding for new
underwater masks
Secured UK. MCD funding tc develop
shallow water rebreather

2 Next Generation Helmet Technology

NG Bump helmet developed and in
evaluation

Increasing customer funaing for next
generation traumatic brain injury
mitigation technology

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCPAL STATEMENTS

% FUTURE OBJECTIVES

1 Next Generation Helmet Technology
Funding to further advance baihstic
protection and prevent traumatic
brain injury

2 Non-Ballistic Offerings
Introduce Next Generation Bump Helmet
Broaden SAR helmet into adjacent markets

3 High Performance Rifle Rated Helmets

Gain momentum with portfolio expansion

Annual Report and Accourits 2023 Avon Protaction plc
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KPI15

HOW WE MEASURE
FINANCIAL KPis

Our strategy is underpinned by a variety of KPIs, enabling us to monitor

its implementation, as well as overall business performance.

CLOSING ORDER BOOK

$135.8m

+12.3%

FY?23 $135.8m
FY22 §120.9m
Fy21 5116.5m

Reason for choice
Provides a level of confidence of revenue
to be recognises in the next financial vear,

How we calculate
This is rmeasured as the value of future
revenue attached to orders not yet fulfilled.

ORGANIC CONSTANT CURRENCY REVENUE GROWTH

(7.5)%

FY23 {7.5)%
FY22 8.6%

Reason for choice
Indicates the rate a7 which the Group's
business activity is changing over tirne

How we calculate
Growth in revenue companing current period
revenue with prior peried revenue franslated
at 2023 excharge rates.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

8.7%

-20bps

FY23 8.7%

FYZ2Z 8.9%

FY21 13.4%

Reason for choice

Provides a measure of t~e underlying
prafitability of the continuing activities of
the busness.

How we calculate

The ratio of adjusted oparating profit to
revenue, Adjusted operating profitis defined
as operating profit excluging exceptional
items and discontinued operations.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT % OF REVENUE

4£.2%

+10bps

FY23 4.2%

Fy22 41%

Fy21 5.5%

Reason for choice

Provides a measure of t~e Graup’s investrment
in new products ana processes, which
provides the foundation fur the Group's
futute growth,

How we calculate

Tatal expenditure on B&D expressed as a
percentage of revenue. R&D expendit.re
includes amounts funded by customers,
capitalised expenaiture and amaunts
expended directly to the incocme statement,

Comments on results

We have seen strong growth in our Head
Protection order book, which includes
Ss9 il an of arders for NG HPS and

£20 million Tor ACH GENILL

Link to STAR
A R

Comments on results

Revenue was down 75%, with a decline in
Respiratory Protection following a very strong
peior year from the NSPA Lontract, padially
offset by growth im Head Prolection.

Link to STAR
5 T A R

Comments on results

Qur margins are cown slightly on the pricr
year, with lower revenue in the h'gher
margin Respiratary Protection busiress
and manufactunng ramp-up costs ir Head
Protection, offset by favourable Respiratory
Pratection product mix, lower freight costs
and lower central cverheads,

Link to STAR
S T A R

Comments on results

We continue to invest In the next generatior
of technologles, with a small decline

i experditure ollsel by the reduction
inrevenue,

Link to STAR
A R
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Links
Strategy

5 T A R

Strengthen  lransform  Advance  Revoluicnise

CASH CONVERSION

() Reason for choice
o Provides a measure of the management of
L workimg capital and the ability to convert

profits to cash,

-14,430bps
How we calculate
FY23 7% The ratio of cash gene-ated from aperat ons
€27 151.3% belore the effect of exceptional items, as a
percentage of adjusted EBITDA.
Y21 83.2%

AVERAGE WORKING CAPITAL TURNS

Reason for choice
3 7 Provides a measure of the managermen: ol
L} working cep el for the Group,
-1.8 turns How we calculate
Average Working Capital Turn (AWC 1T
FY23 3.7 18 the ratio of the 12 maonth average
22 5.5 manth-end working capital (defined as the

total of nventory, recefvables and payables
excluding lease liabilities) to revenue,

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Reason for choice
c Measures the ability to generate a retum
u to shareholders,
-14.4c How we calculate
Adjusted profit for the year div ded by the

FY23 40.3c werghted average number of shares in issuc.

FY77 54.7c Ad,usted profit excludes exzeptional items

and discontinued operations
Fy¥21 88.3c

RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL

° Reason for choice
o Measures the orofitabiity and efficiency
u of invested capital

-30bps How we calculate

Relurn or investad capral (RO 1
Fy23 8.7% cilculaten as adjusted cperzt ng crofit
£y32 9.0% over average invested <apital

Comments on results

Cash conversion was poor in the period,

primanly driven by increased receivables

foliowing high levels of sales n the !
ltnal quarter.

Link to STAR
S T R

Comments on results

The decedse in working capitsl turns was
Caused by ncreased inventory ir Head
Protection relsting to ramp up of US.
DOO helmet programmes, along with
delays i~ shipping a significant Respiratary
Protection order,

Link to STAR
5T ]

Comments on results

With a cansistent nurmnber of shares,

the decline in earnings per share follows
the dechne in profits.

Link to STAR
S T A R ,

Comments on results

ROIC was corsistent year on year, with the
reduztion in operating profit offset by a
lower Capital base fullowing animpanmen,
L2 goodwall.

Link to STAR
§ T A R

Financial Kels relate to the continuing operations of t~e Groug, and exclude :ny impact of disconbinued eperations. More detail on <he adjusted Measures

czn pe found in Adjustes Performmance Measures (APMS) secticn.

Prior year figures have been restated to reflect the discontinuation of the Arrnaur business.

e
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KPIS CONTINUED

HOW WE MEASURE
OPERATIONAL KPIs

Non-financial metrics are just as important in ensuring
the effective delivery of our strategy.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

67%

+1,200bps

FY23 67%
FY2z 55%

FY21 68%

GENDER DIVERSITY

19%

-200bps

FY23
Fy22
Fy2l

HEALTH AND SAFETY

14

19%
21%
29%

Reason for choice

Our people are cruc'al to delivering the
fut.re success of the Group. This provides an
objective way to assess how engaged our
employees are with tne business,

How we calculate

Employee engagemert is measured through
reqular surveys which ask employees to
respond to five statements an a scale from
strongly disagree to strongly agree.

Reason for choice

A diverse and Inclusive workforge s antical

10 ensure innovative thinking and business
griowlh. Gender diversity at senion levels ensures
our people are led by a leadership tearn that is
representative of our gender-diverse workloree
and the communit:es in which we operate.

How we calculate
This is measured as the number of females in
leadership positions, expresses as a percentage.

Reason for choice

We want to keep everyone safe and well
with the support of a strong health and
safety culture.

Comments on results

Since 2022 wher the business experienced

a high level of change, reorganisation, and
reduced performarce, we ~ave seen pos tive
momentum with employee engagement. The
2023 survey highlighted employee’s anticication
with a new CEC joining and a refreshed vision,
rmission and values. We look forwardd to seeing
the impact or employee engagement in FY74.

Link to STAR
S T A

Comments on results

Due to botr the rearganisation and leavers
during the period, we did not see an
increase ir gender diversity at sentor levels,
Qun Balance@Avon initiative conlinues to
drive pragrarmmes thal aim to develop and
encourage ‘emale talent and the Board
rernains committed to championing more
females into leadership roles.

Link to STAR
S T A

Comments on results

We have seen anincrease in the number of
lost tirre incidents this year, but we continue
to actively pramate a sirong safety culture

0,

+180% at all of our sites. Buring the period we have
How we calculate rolled out our safety hub training to all UK
Fy23 14 W track this Using a Lost Time Incident Rate, Qmploye(}g and have piloted a cloud-bascd
FY22 [ which measures the number of lost time onvironmental health and safety and quality
o1 16 incidents per 1,000 employees rnanagement solution n the LS.
Link to STAR
5 T A R
=
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Links
Strategy
] T A R

Strengthen Transform Advance  Revoluticnise

ON-TIME DELIVERY

95%

+1300bps
FY23 95%
FY22 82%

SUPPLIER QUALITY

1,242

+40.7%

FY23 1,242
Fy22 883
k21 1,041

ENVIRONMENT

28.7

+17.1%

FY23 28.7
Fy22 24,5
Y21 26.4

GOVERMANCE

Reason for choice

Ensuring we are meeting tne delivery
expectations of our customers is a core
componént of maintaining h gh levels of
customer satisfaction.

How we calculate

We calculate this based on the percentage
of orders which are delivered on tima to our
customers’ expectations.,

Reason for choice

Partnenng with our supphiers 1o ensure

the brest guality rmatenials are used v ou
products underpins value for our customers

How we calculate

We measure this using defective carts per
million, which is calculated by taking the
number of defective units in a sample size,
dividing that by tne total sample size, a~d
multiply ng by 1 million,

Reason for choice

Cur miss on (o be a grawing business with
a shrinking environmental mpact, targeting
net zero Dy 2045 and reducing our absolute
scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas {GHG)
emissions.

How we calculate

‘We measure the surcess of this with ar

intensity ratic calculated usirg the amount
of scape | and 2 GHG ermissions per $m
of revenue.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Comments on results

We are pleased to see strong progress on

improving our rate of on-time deliveries,

which is essential given the criticality of the

products that we supply. .

Link to STAR
S T A

Comments on results

We have seen an nergase in defective parls
pet rtlan as we work thoaugh the ramg-up
in production with Head Protection, but we
continue to rmake good progress improving
our partnership with our suppliers to meet
our goals of reduding this iigure.

Link to STAR
8§ T A

Comments on results

This year we restated the KP 1o account tor
the closure of our Armour business. This saw
our intensity ratio drop from 399 tg 24.510n
P22, We have uiifised the restated data 1o set
our emission reduction targets against.

Link to STAR
S T A R
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

ENGAGING WITH

OUR STAKEH

OLDERS

The Board acknowledges positive interaction with all stakeholders 15 + need to foster the Company's business relatio~ships with suppliers,

key 1o underpinning posit ve engagement and fully informed decisior

customers and others;

rmaking on material issues. As part of ensunng t~e requirements of section . impact of the Company’s operations on the community and

172 are met and the interests of all stakeholders have been considered,
stakeholder engagement by the Board and the wider business takes place
across the Group at all levels. The Board recognises that to ensure the

cont nued success of the Group, all decisions must De taken with regard

to the long-term autcome of any course of action and its impact on all
stakeholders, including tne Group's emplayees, shareholders, customers
and suppliers, and the communities within which we operate, Throughout
the year, our Directors have had regard, amongst other rmatters, to the:

likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

+interests of the Compary's employees,

Strategy

S T A R

Strengthen  Transform  Advance  Revolutianisc

> Read more on page 22

1 OURPEOPLE

Our people drive our culture and
continuous engagement with
them is fundamental to ensure
an engaged employee base that
supports how we do business,
and which is at the heart of our
ability to drive value creation.

the envirgnment,

« desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards
of business conduct; and

« need to act fairly as cetween members of the Company.
Further information on how the Board has d'scharged its duties a~d

cons dered the factors relating to section 172 are found throughout
our Annual Report, with specific detalls included in the Sustainability

and Governance sect ons of this renaort,

We raold an 2nnual engagement survey

for employees to share thenr feedback ard
identify the areas for improvement, Focus
areas in 7023 highlighted the need for mare
empowerment within aur teams and greater
visibility from leadership.

« From this feedback, the Group has
been split into SBUS to help increase
empowermenl and responsibility at the
business uni: fevel. SBU leadership holds
manthly briefings with employees to
provide them with progress on strategic
priorities, and the Executive Committee's
quarterly meetings are held at different
sites throughout the year to provde our
teams with the chance to interact directly
and openly ask questions.

» We have a network of Culture Champiens
across our sites promoting the vicws and
interests of cur employees and menitaring
the impact of actions from the Emplayee
Opinian Survey

Strategy
s T

+ Quremployees have played a central role in
developing our new STAR strategy. Over 40
employees were involved threughout the
development process, and all employees
were invited to share feediack via surveys or
workshops. Their feedback has shaped our
strategic prionties.

In developing cur new Lompany values, our
crmployees have been at the forefront of the
process and our long-term decision making,
They have had the opportunity to contribute
and shape our new values and we look
forward to movirg forward and embedding
these within our business.

3 Read mare about our employee engagement
an page 46
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2 CUSTOMERS

Qur customers are at the forefront
of our employees’ minds, and

we are proud of the products we
create for the end users. We partner
closely with our customers and gain

feedback from multiple levels within

the user base to design products
which enhance their performance,
efficiency and capability.

3 COMMUNITIES

We have an established community
initiative focused on economic,
social and environmental
sustainability in our local
communities. We continually work
with and for the communities in
which we operate, recognising our
role as a major local employer and
our responsibilities with regard to
any impact we have on them and
the environment.

GOVERNANCE

Throughout our development pipcline, via
dedicated channals, Lser Advisory Councils
and atte~dance at industry cvents, we
engage with our custemers and end-users to
cnsure we are responding te ther developing
needs and are quick ta identify future
opportunities. Engagement or product
development this year hay ncluded the MITR,
out new range of EPIC helmels and rew
underwater military diving technologies

This year we launched a customer survey to
ask for feedhack on haw Avon Prorecmion
ranks in the areas of praduct quality and
training, tech support and serv’ee centres, as
well as custormer service ana sales support.
Feedback from this survey has diven
enhanced traning and technical service
capability, in addition to closer collaboration
with customers on product design and
oxsting limg mprovement,

In addition to our chantable giving
prograrnme which aims to support the
organisations and causes cluse Lo our
employees, we have also partnered with
Forces Wives Challerge, 2 soual enterprise
that unites wornen who have parinersin
the Armed Forces through adventure and
challerge, ard Team Forces, which helps
to fund spert, challenge and adventure n
the armed farces commurity 'n order to
imprave health, wellbeing and recovery.
During the period we conated $124,/05
to chantable causes.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Strategy
T A R

we engaged wth a number of key customers
during the development of our STAR strategy
to ensure we caplured our position in the
market, our strengths and opportunities

in the eyes of our customers and their

future expectations and requirements fram
the industy.

Strategy
S T

We s gned the Women in Deferce UK.
Charter, which 15 our official pledge to
committing to build and sustaim a gender-
balanced environment for our people

> Read more on page 47
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Strategy
S T A R
Strenglhen  rarsform  Advance  Sevolutiornse

4L sSuPPLIERS

We strive to build long-term
relationships with our suppliers,
and ensure they adhere to our

supplier code of conduct and quality

expectations. We continuously
engage with our suppliers to
develop our knowledge and
product range.

5 SHAREHOLDERS

The Group regards regular
communications with shareholders
as extremely important to
understand their views and
concerns and ensure their ongoing
investment and support.

Through site visits ard supplier audits, we
retain key engagement with our suppliers
and our supplier code of conduct ensutes
they adhere 1o our sta~dards,

During 2023 we have engaged with suppliers
an our environmental targets, including
working with waste companies to improve
recovery and recycling rates and workirg
with our transportation netwacrk to

calculate emissions.

We believe in fuslenmg sustainable
partnerships and diiving econemic growth
walhin our communities and we aim to
provide the maxirrum spportunifies to
weork wath small businesses within our
pracurement processes, Qur small business

Reqular dialogue takes place through open
and frequent conversations, The AGM and
hzlf year and full year results provide a chance
for a senes of direct meetirgs to take place.

There has been positive interaction from
shareholders on the new STAR strategy,
with the focus on delivery and operational
performance. Other arcas of conversation
focused on the wind-dewn of the Armour
business, details an the ramp-up of helmet
programmes, and new product sales.

This year we have also consulted with our
mgjor shareholders and invited leedback on
the Lirectors’ Remuneratien Policy. We have
received favourable responses and have
held foliow-up reetings with a number

of shareholders to discuss the new palicy

Strategy
T A

tearn works hard to dently and maximise
the use of srmall business concerns, including
siall disadvantaged, wormen-owned,
service-disabled, and veteran-owned
businesses. Through this dedicated team, we
engage with small businesses to continuously
improve this programme

3 Read mere on the work we have undertaken
with suppliers in the Sustainability Report
on page 42

Strategy
s T A R

This direct engagement with shareholders
representing .45% of our issued share capital
helped shape the Committee’s thinking and
development of the new policy, which was
recommended to the Board for approval and
will be sugject to a binding shareholder vote
at the 2024 Annual General Meeting (AGM),
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Non-financial and sustainability information statement
The table below llustrates where stakeholders can find information in respect of non-financial and suszainabibty matrers, as required by the Cempanies
Act 2006 We d sclose non-finanaal information in the Sustainability section and tnroughcur the Strategic Report as well as other referenced pages.

We have a1ange of policies and gu'ding prindples, seme of which are puclished on our website, www avon-protection-plc.com, of summanised within

our Code of Conduct.

Topic

QOur policies and guiding principles

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where to read mare

Environmental matters and climate-
related disclosures

sustainabibty agenda
Health and Safety Policy*

Pagc 41 Intreduction to sustainability
Page 44 Enviranrment
Page 50 TCFD disclosure

Employees

Code of Conduct**

Careers policy**

Gender pay gap reporting**
Employee engagement
Respectful Workplace Policy*
Speak Up*

rcalth and Safety Policy*

Page 36 Stakeholder engaygerrent
Page 46 Social
Page 48 Governance

Respect for human rights

CZode of Canduct**
Maodern Slavery Statement**

Page 46 Social
Fage 48 Covernance

Anti-corruption and bribery matters

Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy*
Gifts ard Hospitahty Policy®
Cade of Conduct™*

Page 48 Governance

Social matters

Chantable Giving Policy*
Codo of Conduct**

Fage 46 Social

Business model

Page 10 Business model

KPls

Principal risks

Page 37 Financial and non-financial KPIs

Fage 62 Principal risks and nsx management

b pvalazle vz e~ ployess via Avian Protecticnrares but net cuslisiec extzr-ally

Y Publishies 07 Avgn Frotechion wessie &¢ ava lable ‘o emaloyees
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SUSTAINABILITY

WE PROTECT-:

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OUR SUSTAINABILIT

AGENDA

Protecting runs through our culture and is at the heart of everything
we do to help protect lives. This extends to ensuring a sustainable
future for us all through our approach to sustainability.

Highlights

+ Undertook extensive ermployee engagement to reaffirm our overall
directio™ and identify opportunit es to strearmline intiatives within aur
sustainability agyenda.

- Sustainability Steering Committee meetings dedicated to developing
our sustainability agenda.

The Board agroed on our sustainability objectives and targe:s,

« Weintegrated and ahared our approace to sustainability through our
STAR strategy,

Cur approach to sustainability

We recegrise our operations around the world impact 3 broad range

of sustainability areas. We understand we must make progress in each

of them to ensure we protect society. [dentifying material issues and
reflecting them in our sustainabil ty agenda ensure we are progressing in
the areas that matter most to cur key stakehalders and addressing areas of
potential risks and opportunities,

We yndertook our first materiality assessment in FY22 to identify material
environmenta, social and governance (F5G) issues, wh ch means they have
the potential to substantively affect our abulity to create value in (e short,
medium a~d long term, and are of importance to out stakeholders We
received feedback from employees, customers and sharehoiders during
this process through surveys, peer reviews and one-to-ane interviews
whch was presented in the 2022 Arnual Report and Accounts.

We launched our sustainability agenda last year which was based around
four pillars which considered the five most matenal sustainability areas
presented dunng this work,

> Read more ebout our materiality assessment on our website

Progress

This year we have been focises on del vering the detall cebind cur four
pillars We are taking a pragmatic approach by set ng targets aver the
next f ve years to align with our business planning process.

Duricg FY23 we evolved our sustainability agenda by undertaking
strategy conselidation; the pillars have been redefined a~d expanced to
petter reflect our key stake~alders, each of weom has an importart role
Lt olay I our sustainability journey. We also identfied innatives already
underway or planned -hat could be strearlined and managed through
our sustainability agenda

Governance

The Sustainability Steering Comrmiltee took part in three dedicated
sessions. ~hese sessions enabled us to determine our level of ambition,
agiee priomy objectives which share synergies with our STAR stiategy ard
agree targels Lo be delvered thiough our suslainability agendd which runs
through to 2028,

Quersight from the Sustainability Sleenng Commuittee and membets of the
Executive Committee, as well as extensive emplayee engagement, ensu-es
we facus onmitiatives across the business that will delver successful
results, Our plan 1s to continuously assess, caliorate and build on this
agenca s we become more knowledgeable about sustainab | ty.

Our sustainability agenda

Our sustainability agenda is underpinned by four distinct pillars: our planet,
our supply chain, our custarmers and our colleagues and communities.
Withir each pillar, we have identified prionity objectives, which will require
initiatives ro be establisked and will be closaly monitared by the Board
Targets nave been agreed against these ambitions and will help drive
farward cnqagement. Facn pillar also has a number of other focus areas
that support the prionty cbjectives and are mecessary for us to manage as
part of our day-to-day stewardship

Alignment to United Nations SDGs

The United Nations Sustainable Beveloprrent Goals (50Gs) are a collect on
of 17 global ob ectives adopted by the United Nations in 2015 to cradicate
paverty, protect the pianet and build 8 peaceful and prosperous world, We
continue to contribute to the SOGs througn our sustainanility agenda and
have 1dentified five SDGs which our four pillars align to Throughout the year
we undertake projects that contribute to other aspects of sustainabilty as
part of our everyday stewdidship and may also influence other SUGs

An example of owr contnbution to SDG 12 (esponsible consumption and
production] was our work o improve opriaiondl efifoencies and reduce
the amount of non-recyclatle matenial used in our packagi-g of the
FMBIEU  [ters, which are deployed by NATG nat ons. Whilst reducing the
arrount of non-recyclable materials, we also improved the durability of the
packaging to avoid the bag being punctured a~d losing its vacuum seal,
rendering the filters u~usable and supporting our custemers 1o reduce
waste fram carsumables,

Alignment with our STAR strategy

The develapment of our STAR strategy has been an opportunity to
align oue sustzinability agenrda with o Graug stiatecic priodries, The
sustainability Steenng Committee was informed by tnis process wher
determining our priority obectives an- focus arsas,

> Read more on page 72

S
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SUSTAINABILITY CUNIINUED

OUR PILLARS

We are proud to introduce our sustainability targets which cover each of our four pillars.
During the period we have been focused on collecting baseline data and establishing
targets aligned with our STAR strategy to enable us to report on progress against our
objectives in FY24. We have continued to drive sustainability with our focus areas in

mind and can report on highlights from the year.

OUR PLANET

Strategy
S T R

The climate impacts the life-
threatening stuations in which our
products and services help save
lves, Waorking towards our climate
goal, buiiding In mote circulanty
and the targeted use of resources
will help us mitigate znd adapt to
protect our planst

Our 2028 targets
5% reduction per annum scope 1 ana
2 GFG errissions as a perceniage of
revenue (2021 base year)
5% reduction per annum scrap
(percentage of scrap)
59 incroase in reven.e per square
foot annually

UN SDGs

OUR SUPPLY CHAIN

Highlights
We wiund down the Armour business during the pernod:
eminsions associated with this busiress are no longer part
of the Group's continuing carbon foolpnnt. This resulted
i us restating animproved baseline and intensity target
against which we have set our % reduction target.

Net 7ero teams were established during the period to
idenufy and implement opnartunities to reduce energy
use and GHG emissions A plan is n place 1o meet our GHG
reductions nex: year; see page 45,

Purchase ol low emission electngiry has been rev ewed
and mplemented where viable, We have reviewed
oppottunities fur sn-site renewable energy generation
which we will conlinue to monitor,

Arequirement for each site to undertake Kaizens quarterly
has been established 1o drive efficiency and develop
emplayee lean thinking, with these starting n FY23.

Strategy
T A

Ensuring a cantinuous supply of
high quality, ethically sourced
raw materials and components is
critical for us as a trusted partner.
Supporting our value chain
partners on ther sustainability
journey will ensure a resilient
supply chain that protects the
needs of our plaret, customers
and s.ppliers.

Our 2025 target

« BD% of our supply cham is revicwed
against enharced criteria (by spend)

UN SDGs

Highlights
We worked with waste suppliers to drive improvements in
data cellection and improve opportunities to reduce waste
to landfill,

We have used Environmentally £xtended Input-Output
{EEIO) modelling to estimate carbon emissions from
purchascd goods which has identified materials and
supplicrs to “ocus our offarts on.

We workea with our largest transport suppliers to increase
data collection associated with calculating our scope 3
em’ssions from category 4 {upstream transportation).

We have retained our Joint Supply Chain Accreditation
Register (JOSCAR) accreditaticn.

42 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2623



OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMAMNCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Links
Strategy
S T A R
Strengthen  Transform Adwvdnice Revolulion se
Strategy
OUR CUSTOMERS T A R
OUr Customers carry out vizal Our 2028 targets Highlights

work in life-threatening situations
- ofzenin support o protecting
the community. Tey can safely
perform with confidence knowing
that we protect at cvery interface + Support our Custamers
with our prozucts and servicos,

[rom innovative design, to use,

aftercare ard data protection,

we meet the changing needs of

our Customers.

Revenue increase revenue from new
proaducts (5 vears)

4-/% R&D expenditure as 2 % of revenue

UN SDGs

QUR COLLEAGUES AND COMMUNITIES

We intreduced our M58 and C50 resprrators to the

Us civilian market, providimyg wider aceess to our hie-
saving products.

Cur upgraded 5T54 SCBA received certification to the
NFPA 1988 Standad on Respiratory Protection Equioment
for Tactical and Technical Operations, including NIOSH-
CBRN cert.fication, demaonstrating t6 our customers thal
our products meet the most demanding standards

We achieved 4. 2% R&D expenditure as a pereentage

of revenue dunng FY2 3 with R&D expenditure m
Respiratorny Protecuon incuding the deveiopmen: of

the next yenerstiun of filters and diving masks. In Head
Fratection, we stand at the forefiont of traumadatic brain
injusy rmitGation, harmessing funding to continue our vital
research in this critical area. Working hand-in-hand with
our customers on research and development program—mes
will continue to be an area of importance for us as we
ensure our products align with theirunique reguirerments.

Strategy

5 T

Cur mission 15 only achievable as Qur 2028 targets
a result of our exceptional, hignly
engagea colleagues As a major
employer in the areas we cperite
in, COMIMUNILy engagement 1s

2.5% annual mprovement ir employee
engagement

- Support local communities

important (o us, ensuring we - Support diversity, equity, and indusion
contribute an irclusive wor<place, + Fill mare vacancies vath internal hires
with strong values and new and promations

apportunities for curen and
future colleagues.

UN SDGs

H

ighlights

40+ employees were actively engaged in developing our
STAR strategy, Everyone within the business also had the
apportunity to contritbate via surveys a~d focus groups,
we launched a mentorng programme which is accessible
to all employecs.

In Jctober 2022 we aporoved a significant annual pay

ad, ustme~t which reflectad the impacl -ising costs are
naving on our emplayces,

We rontnbured $124,706 to char ties ana good

causes through our charitable giving programme and
cortaued o suppart the Teams Forces Foundaticn asa
Bronze memizer.

We cantinued o cezte an envtonmment where all fernales
in the business can thrive by celebrating International
Waomen s Day conducti~g aut Develop x Balance

training workshop and becoming committad to being a
rmennpause-friencly workolace
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

ENVIRONMENT

HIGHLIGHTS

« Cadillac facility certified to 1SO 14001
+ Net zero teams established at each site
« Irvine site switched to low emissions electricity

« Waste and water reporting centralised

Site management

We strive to operate to high standards and we operate an environmental
management syslerm In addilion lo maintaining cur existing 150 14001
accreditation at two sites, we have achieved further cerlfication al our site in
Cadillac bringing *his to three out af five manufactunng iles,

Net zero journey

Last year we identified seven action areas for the business to focus on and
verify over the coming years, to reduce our scope 1 and 2 emissions, and in
parallel begin assessment of scope 3 emissions. These actions include

1. embed a net zero mindset and assign accountability;
. assess energy efficiency options;

assess renewdbile electricity oplions;

= e b

. reduce natural gas consumption;

. reduce other scope 1 impacts;

W

6. consider residual 2missions; and

7. assess scooe 3 emissians.

[uring FY23, cross-functional net zero tearns were established at sach site
ta encourage collaboration and increase engagement in support of net zero
action 1.Lach team reviewed the net zero actions with a focus on actions

2 and 3 where there were possible win-wins, The cutputs were used to set
targets for next year.

We plan to achieve our emission reductions next year, largely supported by
actions 2 to 4 and underpinned by employes engagement (action 1) Next
year we will review this exercise and intend to expand the scope to align it
with our five year business planning process.

Energy consumption

Our energy Consumption in FY23 was 2/058 MWh; of this, the UK
accounted for 45% of global energy use, we continue Lo see d teduction in
energy use across our UK. sites. Following the exit of the Arnour business
and resulting restatement we can see an improved trend for our U3, sites.
This year we are reparting 6.5% ircrease in the Group's energy use

While verifying net zero actions, our net zero teams identified opportunities
to reduce energy consumption which were actioned this year:

+ An air lass survey carried out in Cadillac identified 47 air lezks which ~ave
been resolved.
Two sites have been switching to LED lighting and where suitable
aJtomat’na lighting systems,
One site has undertaken window t nting and docr wpagrades to ‘mprove
ternperature regulation and reduce loss of heat and air.
A process for press temperature reductions has been established for
periods of inact vity and encouraged through operatar engagerment and
improved sigrage.

Kaizens have continuea at all sites throughout the year whicn have identified
opportunities to mprove processes and are likely to have resulted in additional
energy consumption IMprovemants,

Carbon disclosures

Arepresentative at each of our sites has responsibility for the reporting of
energy use throughout the year The collected data allows us to calculate and
manitor carbon emissions

This year we restated cur baseline scope 1 and 7 emissions to acco.nt for
our exit of the Arrnour busimess. This significantly lowered our scope 1 27d 2
emissions and inensity metnc, This ad ustrent hay been factored into arget
setting and means we have sel our targels against a much lower and more
challenging baseline for rext year.

In FY23, we reported our carbon emissions amount to 6,986 (00, ¢ location
based, of this, the UK. accaunted for 32%. U K ernissions have increased despite
reduced energy use due in cart to the conversion factors applied. Our market
based scope 2 emissions reflect the sourcirg dedisicns during the pericd which
will be fully realised in FY24, dernonstrating 2 1.4% reduction in scope 1 and

2 globally. With a reverue of 5243 .8 million this g'ves us an intensity figure of
2B710 0 per Smof revenue. The exit of our Armour business was a significant
project and this vear we restated our intensity fgure to reflect this, resulting in a
9% improvernent for FY2? (restated from 3991702 e per smillion revenue)

Scope 3 emissions

In F¥23, we assessed the most relevant and influenceable elemen:s of owr
scope 3 emissions. We conducted a saeening exercise to determine this.,
consider'ng factors such as ability to influence, anticipated s ze, sector guidance
and data accessibility, whic idenzified several exclusions not relevant to our
business modcl, category 14 franchises and category 15 investment, We
identified categones wich were not expected to significantly contribute to
total scope 3 ermissions, whare recorting waould be impractical and d fficult

to calculate; categary 10 processing of sold products, category 11 use of sald
products and category 12 end of Ife treatment of sold products.

Based on this work and the use of EEIO modelling, purchased goods are
understood to be the largest contubutor 1o our footprirt, We w ll work lowards
improvng our disclosure of material scope 3 categones and will disclose this n
full by 2025, We intend to build & more precise knowleuge of emissians from
purchased goods and plan to do this through the collection of scope t and 2
data frarm our supply chain which will be includesin an enhanced survey.

Water usage

we centralised the reporting of water usage from alt manufacturing sites with
tre exception of one facility tat does not receive water bills. Water usage is
limited to mainly domestic use, for drinking, sanitary disposal and landscaping
and this year we can report that across two sites we used 15046m’ of water.
Where water discharges do occur due 1o product testing, they are disposed of
in fine with local gover-ment procedures

Waste

We established centralised tracking and rronitorng of dif'erent waste streams
by destination for all manufactuning sites which will enable us to repor: waste
figures for all manufacturing sites in FY27. This year we can report across two
sites that we disposed 567 tonnes of waste.

We have worked with our waste carriers to ungerstand out waste ciscosal
opportunities and started to assess tre associated carbon enrissions, On¢
site installed a waste compactor ta generate waste handling efficicncies and
requce the number of waste colloction trips.

We carmed out an awareness campaign and and provided information on

the waste hierarchy to help employees make better waste disposal chaices.
Alongside this we updated waste signage for certain waste streams (o
improve visibility of opportunities to recyde and discourage the use of general
waste bins,

Any hazatdous waste generated, as defined by te control ol Sunstances
Hazardous 1o Health and US. Environmental Protection Agency, is disposed of
in ine with local guidelines
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Net zero milestones

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 and beyond
- Baseline. + Data collection + Sel targets over the next five years - Integration of carbor ermissicn target
and reporting aligned to pusiness planning process, into FY24 five-year busness planning

- Committed 1o achieving

net zero by 2045 at the metrodology improved. - Exit of A'mour business resuled in a process (o sUppert net zerd action 1.
latest by reducing aur -« Wosdentified seven restaterrent of our carbon ernissions. - This years ermission red..ctions
absoluze scope 1 .and 2 net zero actions for the + Established netzero teams at sach site to be achieved through net zero
GHG emissions. pusiness to focus on to verify net zero actions, actons 2tz 4.

and ver.fy . Net zero teams to revievy and expand

- Assessed low emission electricity
amid purchased whiere viable.

Carricd out a screening of cur
SLope 3 ermissions

net zero site plans beyond one year

{0 enable us o report an g Group net
zero plan and align this to our business
planning process

Environmental incidents

There have been no environmental incidents as defined by the UK. or US.
Environment Agencies at any of our sites or in relaticn ta our supply chain
througrout the 2023 financial year.

Greenhouse gas emission data (tonnes CO,e)’
FY23 FY22? Fy2124

Scope 1
UK 942 905 H?
”Outmde UK? . 1418 1,120 809
Total 2,360 2,325 1993
Scope 2 {location)
W 7 1,280 7 1,294 W-A?
_6Litside e ) 3,34?- 3129 ) 2930
Total 4,627 1473 4,391
Scope 2 {market)®
UK. 7 1365 1265 1399
7@U[Sidc LK - 3173 3139 2578
Tetal 4,539 4,604 A377

Total gross scope 1 and 2 (location)

UK. 2,21 2,199 2645
Qutside UK. 4,765 4,249 3739
Total 6,986 6,448 6,384

Intensity measure

Tonnes COe {scope 1 and 2) per Sm

Data has been compiled according Lo the ‘operational control’ approach
in the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting a~d Reporting
Standard ard aligns ta Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reparting Data
covers a 12-month periad in hne with our financial reporting penod.

Owerall consumption has been calculated using invoiced data for the
reporting pencd Cstimated data 1s used where invoice data s not available
within the timeling for consolization of year end data. Two small offices
use estirrated emissions based on Carbon Risk Real Estate Monitor data for
heating and electricity consumption per square foot.

Emissions factors for most of scope 1, 2 (UK. only) and 3 have been

caleulated using 2020, 2027 and 2022 UK Government GHG Conversion

Faclors, and methodologies publshed by the Lepariment fur Business,

Energy and Industigl Strategy The mosl up-te-ddte EPA eGRID

conversions are used for US, electncity. bor 2023 reparting the most recent

electricity US factars are 2021 .

We have appled the GHG Protocol data hicraschy to the market-hased
method We have obtained emissions factors for the relevant tari‘f and/
or supplicr for the applicable year If sites cons.ame carban-free electricity
this has been applied to the calculations, Where these are rot available
inthe S, we use the U.S. Green-e Energy Residual Mix Ermissions Rate or
location-based emission faczors in the absence of contractual information.

The carbon-frec generated energy 15 venfied via emission-free energy
certificates. The certif cates are managed and cleared by thiud party PIM
Environmental Information Services’ Generauon Attribute Tracking System.
They ensure veracity by creating standards which veniy no double selling
af the same certificare. Avnn Prorection has carchased certificares 1o caver i
100% Inaa at one lacation starting 'n 1.ne 2023,

Scope 1 and 2 sources (location based) have been divided by the annual
reve~ue to provide the intensicy ratio (tCO e per Smi.

of revenue® 87 245 64
Business travel data (air only) s taken fromn our travel management companies.
Scope 3 2975 2048 1997 Ll ataronly) ! geEment Lampanies
Business travel 1,207 382 80 > For more infom_)ation please see the accompanyihg document document
that will be available early next year on our website
Fueland enerqy related 1.768 1,756 1317
Energy consumption scope 1 and 2 {MWh) Environmental data’?
UK. 11,393 11,648 13,356 FY23 FY22 I
Qutside UK 15,665 13,764 13,456 Waler usage (9 15,046 13,521
Total 27,058 25,417 20817 Wasle {tlannes) 567 494
Azlzva-t renmit g perod T Ooteer o 30 Taptembe 1 2zlsvactesarting per od * Octoner to 20 Septamoer
I ICZ arg 2022oatatapeer tad o ancuntfortre cat ot s Apoar bus teis Iondazz afg C ~ar LSt s Th 2 setw |l oe excar ded o all
40D sepi st . Jtue Qo e e macufact 7Y 34 whers daras ava lanle
dd oseamayor sstdank 3 Exchugesthe weg-torimndzardcus wa ciposal aur DK faodity

o : : - i nedatabortog loaola cliv oy
s haenyny

3 Markessaten amass A tactan saly acl oo 70

& TP rroas sy ag e sTased g cRR 3T e mmiss s PasohinE 300 e 3T St g ver g

whIck S urhyeten e Areno, frgnine gy

/ |
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

SOCIAL

HIGHLIGHTS

« 74% participation in our annual Employee
Opinion Survey

» 40+ Employees involved in developing our
STAR strategy

« Introduced our Mental Health Allies network
for peer to peer support

» Launched a mentoring programme which is
accessible to all employees

+ $124k has been donated to charitable giving
causesin FY23

Employee engagement
We are committed to improving ergagerment across all sites and providing
an envirgnment where all employees can fulfil their potential,

faintaining high {evels of communication with all employees is a focus
across the Group When Jos Sdater joined the bus'ness, he visited cach
site witnin his first six weeks to introduce himself to all ermployecs, set
out his vision and invite all guestions Throughout the year our Exccutive
Committes has regularly visited all sites and hosted events to provide an
update on performance, strategy and future focus areas.

We greatly value employee “eedpack and have continued our initiative to
celebrate anz enhance the culture 2t Avon Protection. Culture champions
have been selected from each level of the organisation with the intention
of playing a aucial role in rraintaining an spen commumication culure
within the Group. Their reles Include speaking to out employees on
matters such as leadership, learning and develooment, and sacial
connectian. This year we expanded our network 1o ensure our remote
workers were represented, recognising the unigue challenges this

Group may face,

74% of empioyees taok part in our annual Emplovee Opinion Survey
which provides t~em with further cpportunity ta provide feedback ard
suggest improvements on aspects such as leadership, communication,
employee engagement, team culture and the work environment, Results
fram these surveys are presented to the Board of Directars, the Execut ve
Corrmittee and wider leadership teams with areas of improvernent. Cur
Culture Champions support the implementation of these changes and
give feedback to employees.

We undertook & series of engagerent activities duning the developmens:
of our new STAR strategy recognising that our people and culture are
paramount 1o our success. We invited 40+ employees representing a
cross-section of functions and experience levels to be actively involved
in the process which included participation in a series of workshops. We
also appointed Strategy Champions and provided opportunitics for all
employees to offer feedback via surveys. We were pleased with the level
of engagernent this process received and intend to utilise our Strategy
Champ ons to review the strategy process more frequently to ensure it
remgins relevart and fit for our changing ousiness

Health, safety and wellbeing

Cur gaal is zero harm and we actively promote a safety culture. We have
mandatory training and palicies in place for all production employees on
warkplace safety and practices.

Demonstrating cur commitment to safety, we target an incident rate of
zero, this year across all sizes, we recorded a total of 15 workplace lest ime
cases. We have successfully rolled out train'ng to all UK. employees using
an onlire ~ub and we piloted and ralled out 2 cloud-based ervironmental
health a~d safety and qual'ty management sclution at a US, site. This
automates safety, risk and compliance processes.

The health and wellbeing of our employees is important to us and
throughout the year we share resources with them on how to loak after
their mental and physical wellbeing. We hold a multitude of wellbeing
webnars based on key topics throughout the year, such as work-life
balance, exercise and seasonal nutrition.

Ta reintorce the importance we place an providing more support, we
partnered with Mental Healtr at Work toimplement a Mental Health
Allies network across the business. Mental Hezlth Allies are a network of
trainec employces who have volunteered to be available to anyone in
the organisazion who would like a confdential one-to-one conversat'on
and are familiar wit~ policics and procedures ard can signpast to further
resources within and cutside our business if needed. By providirg this
network of skilled listeners, an informal ard trusted netwaork of mental
health support is created
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Diversity, equity and inclusion
We are committed (o the far trealment and tull partiupation of all people
and recognise diversity provides a belter culture for gll.

Female representaticn agross ou Execulive Commitlee and direct reports
is 159% and we arc committed to improving this in the future. Across all
ermnployees, we have achieved a atio of 44.8% {416 our of 928) fermale and
55.2% {52 out of 928) male).

We continue 1o suoport our pledge to improve the balance of female to
male ernplayees acrass our sites and as part of this we have signed the
Women in De‘ence UK. charter for the second year. The ¢rarter reflects
our aspirations to see women represented and empowered across the
defence sector and our intentior to work with “eliow industry leaders to
enhance the gender balance

Qur well estabiished Balanco@Avon initiative contirues to motivate,
empower and support all emplayees, particularly thase who may feel

that they are in the minority, The Balance@Avon team has alsa ralled out a
mentoring programme whicn was made available ta all employees across
oursizes As part of this, mentors and mentees received “ormalised rra ning
from a professional tutor, We aiso continued ta create an environment
where all feraales in the business can thrive by celebrating Interaational
Wornen's Day, conducting our first Develop x Balance training workshop
and becoming cormitted o being 2 rmenopause-fricndly workplace

Our U.S. sites report cqual employment opportunitics data annually
ta the US. Government and to the State of Califermnia under nay equey
requirerrents Affirmative action plans are also in place which outline
goals for women and mimonities, veterans and people with disabilities
by establ shment.

Our average UK gender pay gap for FY22 (reported in April 2023} 15 36.4%
The pay ydp 1s due to the Company having rmore waimen im operations
and assernbly roles in the lowest guartile (57 1%) compated 1o more men
in the top quartile {80%) and does not stem trom paying men and wormen
differently for the same or equivalent wark. While the percertage of

men in the upper quartile pay has reduced since FY20, our existing focus
to address the gender balance at owr Company leadership teamn levels
continucs through in tiatives such as Balence@hvan, wrich will help to
close the overall pay gap with more female representation at this level.

> Read more about our gender pay gap data on our website

Personal development

We strive to provide an environment that offers training and developrment
opport..rities for all. We have continued with our Professional
Development Pragramme. a year-long talent development pragramme,
with the am to .dentify, encourage and suoport the next generation

of internal talent to contribute 20 the business beyona the scope o°

thar current roles. Participants set personal developmert targets whick
ar¢ worked 2n for the year wita intenal mentor suppart. Mentors are
Executrve Committee members whao prov de a source of advice and
support for the participants i acditicn ta their ine manager

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cur talent management process, which we call the Globa! Performance
Managerment Process (GPMP, s a aritical tool that enables the Group to
ensure all employees are working towards goals aligned with business
objectives, and their carcer aspirations and developrent needs are being
discussed and reviewed. We also continue 1o facus on early careers,
giving those at the ceginnirg of their carecr journey help and support
that they need to establish a successful and fulfilling career trroug-

wark exgerience, internsheps, placement years, apprenticeships and
graduate programmes,

We believe our employees thrive the maost when they can improve and
enhance their skill sets and work on therr personal development. We
provide our emiployees with access to tools, such as Linkedin | earning, to
help with their career pragression and personal development in whichever
way wor<s best for them. With aver 1,000 Fours of LinkedIn | carning
viewen over the past year, it has proven 1o be an invaluable tood far our
employees to complete orlne courses in any dreas of interest to progress
their career paths and expand knowledge.

Pay and benefits
In Octoser 2022 we approved a significant annual pay adjustment which
reflected the impact rising costs afe having on our ernployees

We have continued to seek guidance from an HR consultant to help us
define our remuncration philosophy and review pay and benefits in order
to retain and atract talented individuals

Community engagement

We continually wor< with and for the communities in wihich we operate,
recognising our role as a major local employer. We sponsored two
programmes in partnership with Bath Rughy: Attacking Maths and Girls'
Participation Hubs, with the aim of creating a positive social impact in odr
local regicn These sessions promate health and wellbeing and develop
numeracy sk lls.

We have recently expanded our support to the Team Forces Foundation,

a charity that provides financial grants to help make spor: and advent.re
maore accessible 1o those whe serve in the British Armed Farces, Through
this, we sponsored the Forces Wives Challenge o~ its Ride to Freedom

in June 2023 The ream of right military wives completed iss horse rde
arross fre wsting terrain of the Pyrenees to demonstrare the power that
advan:ure can have on those living with physical disabilities mental health
a~d chronicillresses.

In addition to partner.ng with net-for-prof.t and charitable organisations,
we continue t¢ encourage our emaloyecs t2 use the charitable giving
programme treugs which emoloyees €in request donanons f mater
funding for causes close to there, This year our incredible ernployees
acrass our sites have participated ie fire walks, hikes, abseiling and
marathons in support of ther local communitics. Over $12 1< has been
donated to chartable causes duning the pencd.

s
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

GOVERNANCE

HIGHLIGHTS

» Launched our annual Code of Cenduct training

» Mandatory cybersecurity training
campaign launched

48
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

Code of Conduct

Our Code of Conduct {'the Code’} is a Company-wide policy that defines
the standards of behavicur “or everyone who acts for or on beohalf of Avon
Protection. The Code requires all our representat ves to comply with the
lawes ang cegulations in the countries in which we ooerate. We undarsiand
that implementing the Cade across all the markets we do business in can
be challenging given the petentially comolex differences. We therefore
assess and manage any risks and the processes behind these to ensure
we maintain the highest ethical standards. To support employees, we
have launched annual Code of Conduct traning to «aise awareness and
cover key areas of the Code such as orotecting and handhing Company
resedrces, conflicts of interest and bribery, diversity and mdusior and
being alert 1o unsafe scenarios. We encourage everyone to repart any
behaviour, which may be a bréach of the Code, o1 15 unethucal or rllegal,
thiough our confidential ‘Spesk Up' system.

» Read more about our Code of Conduct on our website

Bribery and corruption

We have implemented systens to advocate our zero-tolerance approach
to Bribery and corruptic™ to ensure the highest stancards of governance
and ethics. Employees can give honest teedback or express concerns if
there are any practices that they feel uncamfortable with, allowang us to
take corrective actions when mistakes happen. Qur approac” to bribery
ard corruption outlined in the Code commits us te conducting business
farly. impartially and in compl ance with lacal laws and requulations and
to act with ntegnty and ~onesty in our business relationships, In the
next year, we plan to conduct training an anti-bribery and corruption
dernonstrating the importance we place on this

To ensure we only work weith third parties whose standards are consistent
with our own, all agents and distributors are obliged by written agreement
to comply with the standards sct out in the Code

Modern slavery

We are fully committed to respecting the human rights of all those
workirg with ar for us. We da not accept any form of chitd or forced
labour and we will not do bus ness with any party who fails to uphold
these standards. We have a zero-lolerdance approach to modem slavery
and are cornmitted Lo acting with integrity m all business dealings and
retationshipy and o Trplemien Ung an erfore ng effecive medgsunes
to ansure madern slavery is not taking place in the bus ness or .ts
supply chains.

> find our Modern Slavery Act Statement on our website

Respectful Workplace Policy

Qur success depends on our people. Avon Pratection values its employees
and is committed to equality o opporturity in afl employment practices,
policies and procedures. We are committed to providing a werkplace
culture that is free of harassment, intimidation, bias and discriminaticn

and a working environment where every emuloyee is freated with dignity
and respect.

Speak Up

The ‘Speak Up' platform is designed for all employees to anonyrmously
report any behaviour which rmay e a breach of the Code or Respectful
Waorkplace Poiicy, oris uncth cal or illegal. The Board retains oversight of
alt matters raised througn Speak Up, wth reguiar reports submitted to the
Audrt Comrittee

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Supply chain

We have an cstablished supplier Code of Conduct in place and uncertake
supplier audits to ensure supphers adhere to our standards, This sets

a minimum set of requirements for our suppliers to adhere to and
encourages suppliers to implement their own Code of Conduct far their
employecs and to cascade this thioughout their supply chain. If suppl ers
have concerns regarding any matters covered in the Code, we expect
them to bring these to our attention,

We have retained our JOSCAR merbershio wich ensures companies
only use products and solutions of the nighest quality and comply with
best practices which helps the supplier and buyer. This membership 15 2
collaborative ool used by the aerospace, defence and secunity industry to
4ct as a single repository Tor pre-gualfication and compliance information,
Using JOSCAR Can determine il a supplier s it “or businesy”

Data and cybersecurity

As a contrac:or to militaries, we handle defence related data. Through our
work with the US, BOD we are subject to the International Traffic in Arms
Regulations (ITAR) wh'ch mandate that access to data related to defence
and military technologies is restricted to U.S. citizens only, A violation

of ITAR could result in fines and/or loss of expar: licences, As with many
organisations, we face risks tfrorn external threats that could cause sensitive
data to be lost, corrupted or accessed by unauthorised users, leading to
firancial or reputational loss.

Cybersecurity training and audit nq s a key | ne of defence for the
Group anc continaes to support us as we work towards meetiig the
requirements of the Cybersecurity Matuiity Model Certification (CMMC
2.0), CMMC 2.0s a requirernent for all contractors and subcontractors
of the LS. DO, as te nodel brings together many cybersecurity
requirernents 1o better protect Cortrolled Unclassified Infarmation

Welaunched a mandatory cybersecurity taining campaign to help
foster our secunty culture and covered modules on physical security and
cybersecunty as well as how to report suspicious emails, and we are or
track to be cornphant with CMMC 2 0 requirements,

Product development

Froduct safety a=d quality 15 at the core of all our business practices

and we place high value on the busmess assurance Uial cotnes with our
150 8001-2015 cerufied quality management system. We are certified to this
at alt five manufactuning sites. The majority of our products are approved
to custorner industry safety standards which involves rigorous testing such
as NICSH and CE. Qur production employees receive mangatory product
safety training, a~d all sur products undergo internal safety and quality
testing pregrammes, Where standards require, external safety audits are
conducted on aur products.

We recognise it is essential to develzp products that generate long-term
value for the business and do not compromise the environment and
community nwhich we operate orirfluence through: the preducts hife
cycle. As we wark towards cur net zero comm tment, we el be reviewing
aur praduct’s scope 3 emissions which wall i~form our transition over time
to rerfuce GHG em ssions generated through the life cyele of our products,

e
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TCFD

UR APPROACH
TO TCFD

TCFD COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

In accordanze with the Listing Rule 98 6 R(8), we confirm Aven Protection has made chmate-related financial disclosures cansistent with the four Task
Force on Chmate-ielated Financial Disclosure (1CHD) recormnmendations and 11 recommended d sclosuies, This includes comsideration of seciion C of the
[CHD Annex entitled ‘Guizance ‘or all sectors” excluding full scope 3 disclosure and limited cross-industry climate-related metncs' due to lirnilations in our
data; in 2024 we will focus on developing capabilities, identitying matenal cross-mdustry cimate-relsled metiics and dala collectior o enable disclosure
of tull scope 3 emissions and additional cross-industry dirate-related metnes, inour annual teport{or the penod enaing 30 September 2025,

GOVERNANCE
a. Describe the Board’s oversight of climate-related risks  b. Describe management’s role in assessing and

and opportunities managing climate-related risks and opportunities
The Board oversees and has overall responsibility for our Group nisk Managerment is responsible for assessing and managing climate-related
framewzrk including the management of chimate-related nisks and rsks and cpportunities at an operational level. To ensure a centralised
opportunit es and delivery of our sustainabiiity agenda. Cur four approach the Steening Cormrmittee was established in 2022, chaired by
Board Committees act on behalf of the Board and each have distimct our CFC. The Steenng Cormmittes hases with management tearms on
responsitilities relating to sustainability and climate matters. sustainability and climate matters and the cutcomes of these discussions

) are repuited at the bi-monthly meetimgs.
Our CRQ, Rich Cashing s the Executive Director with responsibility for

overseeing our sustainability agenca ecross the business, which includes Management highlights

climate-related risks and opporturities, and chairs cur Sustainability - The Steering Commit:ee dedicated three sessions during the period
Steering Commuttee (Steering Commuttee’). The Steering Committee to review and vahdate the sustainaoility agenda, one of which was led
meets bi-monthly and is responsible for ensunrg the Board and its by our external sustainagility consultant. During these mestings the
Committees are updated on all key climate-related marters, Steering Comimiztee set ambitions for delivering progress thraugh our

sustainability agenda and established formal olbjectives and targets.
Targets were selecter that had synergies between climate, sustainability
and our Group strategy.

In FY22 we developed our first set of non-financial KPls including a metrnic
related to climate change which are presented to the Board arnually.

Board highlights - We recognise the importance of ensuring our management has the

+ Sustainability and climate matters have been discussed as an agenda necessary knowledge and sk lls to understand and manage cimate-
itern at Beard meenings on two accasions this year, This included related risks a~d opportunities In December 2022, our sustainability
reviewing and approving our climate-related objectives and targels, team delvered sessions to the Executive Committee and site
which are delivered through our sustainability agenda, management to introduce them to our sustainability agenda and

. . climate-related risks and opportunities
« Akey deliverable fur Lhe year was Lhe establishrment of our new Group > pporh

strategy This milestone deliverable will improve the Board's visibility of » Cross-functional working groups were established during the peried
anumber of key metrics and targels including those relatea to climale to identify opportunities 1o reduce energy use and caroon emissions.
and sustainability which will be induded in the Guarterly reporting These net zero teams encouraged collaboration between depariments

and identified additional opportunizies to reduce our impact that would

starting in Q1 FY24, this will replace existing processes,
not have been achieved without this broad engagement.

« The Audit Committee reviews climate-relatec risks and opportun ties
alongside other risks on a quarterly basis as part of the Group risk framewaork; + The Steering Committee utilised employee engagement forums
in addition it reviews the updated climate register annually. This year extensively to provide feedback on the sustanability agenda and the
the Roard specifically considered our revised and expanded climate proposed set of objectives and targets
disclosures in context of the changing regulatory environment. - The updated strategy process will improve the management of risk

- InJuly, the Executive Commitlee discussed the sustainability objectives including climate-related risk by integrating ris< management into

and targets with regard to strategy; this included a scope 1 and 2 strategic prior ties.
emissian target.

Furrhe- as,essment of matenzty 1= rezuired 1o determing the “elevance of reparting the
following cross-indusiry el —ate-rzlated metnc categones, irznstior « sks, shysical naks,

o mate-related cpooriunities, —aoial ceoloymenrt a~d internal carbor onces “ollow ng ts
awsismees Twe waill gstalzl <n data collectar prozesses anc: plan o diszlose these metzs r
full in our Arngal Reogn & Alcourts for the penco snging 30 Sepiebar 2025

Read more about:
> Qurgovernance structure on page 76
> OurBoard of Directors on page 74

> Qur Pillars on page 42
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our Board Committees’ oversight of sustainability and climate-related risks and opportunities

Board of Directors Audit Committee > seepages?
The Board oversees and has  {Meets quarterly)

overall rtesponsibility forour - Princ pally responsiole for overseeing our Graup risk framewark including the effectiveness of the management of

Group risk framework chmate-related risks and opportunities.

including the management
of climate-related risks and

- i Meets quarterl
opportunit'es and delivery { qu ¥

Nomination Committee » Seepagesd

Respansible “or ensuring tre membership of the Board and the pizeline for succession planning purposes reflect diversity.
o gtheme n ple 9

of our sustainability agenda, — 77" 7 7 7 27

Remuneration Committee > Seepagess

(Meets quarterly)

Responsible for remuneration policies and packages, induding considenng the suitabilizy of establishing climate and
sustainability targets i the execufive remuneration structure,

Executive Committee
(Meets monthly)

Responsible for overseeing the delivery of our sustainability agenda through strategic prionties including decarbonising
our operations and value cha'n 1o meet our emissions reduction target.

Our management teams

Steering Committee — The Steering Committee is comprised of
leaders from across the business, including memizers of the Executive
Committee, the Ris< Cemmittee and the sustainability team, ana has
oversight of all sustainability activities including managing and accessing
¢ mate-related risks and opportunities. Tae Steenng Committes s
responsible for overseeing the delivery of a sustainability agenda,
making recommendations to the Board and Board Committecs, and
communicating with the business and management teams.

SBU management teams - The SBU managem™ent teams oversee
divisionalintegration of nisk rmanagement into each strategic pricrity
Iincluding the consideration of climate-related nsk

Risk Committee — The Comrmittee provides aninternal reviewe of the Group
tisk lramework and makes recommendations to the Audit Committee

STRATEGY

a. Describe the climate-related risks and opportunities
the organisation has identified over the short,
medium and long term

This year we reviewed our climate-related risks and opoortunities and

refimed those we deemen material. We also enbanced our qualitative

u~derstanding of these material climate-related risks and oppuortunities
via the use of two scenarios

Through this we identified the pr.mary scenario with the grearesr impact
tor each nsk, and cateqorised their financial impact in the short, medium
ard lang term. The results of this assessmert are presented on the
following page. Against each material climate-related r sk and epportunity
we have develoged our strateq ¢ response

We determined apgropriate time horizons for consigering the impact of
climate change on the Group based on finzancial and planning periods.

Short term - 2024 to 2028
Aligns L2 our flve-yea- business planning process and sustainabily targets

Medium term - 2028 to 2038
Aligns toomulti-year contracts and market

Long term - 2038 to 2045
Aligns tz Avon Sratection’s comm™utment to being net zers by 204° at the
latest by reducing absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions

Sustainability team - The sustainability tear manages the agenda and
pravides updates to the Steening Committee at every meeting. It ~as day-
to-cay oversigh: of chmate mat:ers and is responsible for ensuring dats
such as our greenhouse gas emissions is collected and reporied.

Net zero team - The site-based working groups are made up of
snvironmental specialists and functional representatives The teams were
established to identify and co-ordirate opportunities to reduce encrgy
usdge and ermiss.ons at cach site and report to the sustainability tear

on progress

Employee engagement forum - Feecback s sought directly from a
cross-section of employees or pusingss fu-ctions on sustainabibity ana
chimate matters through surveys and focus groups ta soundboard ideas.

Process for identifying material risks

An extensive st of chimate-related risks and oppartunities relevant to Aven
Protection has been identified usmy data sources such as dimate change
and relevan: sector fteraiure, peer review and 1CHD guidance

tach division identifies ts own dimate-related nsks and opportunities and
assesses therr alongside the wider nsk landscape for likelihoed and impact
using bespoke f nandial and non-financial impact measures as outhned on
page 62. This 15 a measurement of ret tisk and considers the effectiveness
of existing mitigations. The Group uses divisional scorng and relevance to
strategic priorities to determine climate-related risks and opportunities to
andergo further analysis.

This final fist of risks and opportunities is selected for climate scenario analysis,
undergong expanded analysis by SBU. This ensures Aven Protection priornt ses
resources nmanaging the mast mater al cimate-related impacts.

> Read more on page 62

Physical risks

We have considered the suscept bility of all of our operations 1o physical risks
arising from climate chanage focusing our aralysis on our five manufactusing
sites located in the U K ana U.S. Sites are routinely audited against five
naturzl hazards which identi‘icd low flooding exposure, and ne significant
wnd, hailstorm or fire expasures across all our sites (though waldfire
mapping is currently mited) We have supelemented this aralysis with
wzter stross analyses (based on the Agueduct Water Risk Atlasy covering all
our manufacturng sites which align w th our climate scenarios,
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TCFD CONTINUED

Category

TRANSITIONAL RISKS

Policy and legal

Description

Primary potential
financial impact

Carbon pricing
and taxation

The imtroduction of Laxes or other costs associated with CHG emitting
fuels and operations may result in increased cost of products and services
both purchased and sold by Avon Protection,

Increase in operating costs via
Laxes and levies for energy and
fuel use.

Regulation and policy
burden and exposure
to litigation

Technology

Failure to manage stakeholder expectations relating o climate-related
issues ray result in fines and reputational damage and lirmit our access
to investment.

Greater regulatory requirements
result n additional operating costs.

Shift tolow carbon
technologies

Market

Diecarbonisaticn of our operations may require additional investment to
transition equipment and irfrastructure to lower emission techrnologies.

Capital expenditure recuired to
reduce emissions and switching
ENergy saurces.

Changing customer
requirements

PHYSICAL RISKS

Changing customer preferences and sensitivity to environmental factors

Could mean cur existing technology 1S unable 1o mee: requirements setin

now bids or contracts.

Acute and chronic - changing weather patterns and extreme weather events

Shift in customer requirements
results in loss of revenue and carly
retirerent of products.

Disruption to operations

Operatioral exposure to extreme weather events such as heatwaves, fires,

h gh winds and flocding vanies depending on the particular hazard and
site. Overall, such events may reduce productivity and/cr result in costs to
repait damage.

L oss of revenue whilst sites are not
fully operationzl, higherinsurarce
prerniums to mitigate potential
loss of profit or tepdir costs.

Disruption to supply chain
and access to materials

OPPORTUNITIES

Cur supely chain could become susceptiole to dimadte-related disruption
which ray Impact our aceess to raw materials and ability to deliver
against orders.

Luss of revenue through delsys Lo
production, incredsed costs when
obtaining alternative supplies

of material.

Physical - increased
demand

Increased accurrence and severity of natural hazards associated with

climate change may impact the global security environment and dermand

for our range of protective equipmens: within existing and new markets.

Increased sales opportunities for
our existing products with new
and existing customers.

Transitional - resource
efficiency

Facus on energy efficiency and reduction of waste to reduce emissions
may generate savngs in raw materials and energy use.

Reduced reliance on fossil fuels
and material consumption
efficiencies result in reduced
materials and production costs.
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Potential annual financial impact Scenario

with greatest
Short Medium Long financial
2024-2028 2028-2023 2033-2045 impact Strategic response
Irsignificant Low/ Medium/ <2’ We are reducing exposure o GHG through our sustainability targets to 2028 which are aligned
medium high o our S1AR strategy. This includes a scope 1 and 2 GHG ermission terget as well a5 a target o

enhanced supphier engagement 10 allow us Lo mptove v sibility of value chain GHG ernissions,
To negate nsk fror cost changes we negotiate fixed price protection and price escalation clauses
to ensure we remain profitable over the duration of contracts. We also operate in a special st
market where there are only 2 few manufacturers that curren:ly meet the stringent reguirements
of our custorners and who will be subject to similar cost challenges.

Insigrificant Low | ow <2°C Emerging policy and regulations are moniterea and escatated through aur governance structure
a5 appropriate. Where additional support is required, the busness utilises external experts in
sustainability and climate matters to sdvise our teams

Low Law/ Low/ <2 We have established cross-functional net zero tearrs at each of our marufacturing sites to

redium mediunm identify, monitor and action in tiatives to reduce energy and GHG emissions, Irital focus for
these tearns has been an energy efficiencies a~d invesrments that can be quickly implerrented
such as | FD lighting retrofits, Purchase of low emission electricity has also been reviewed and
implermented where viable,
Ne: zero teams will continue to develop further iniuatives and track emerging technelogies and
related investment cases for renewable alternat ves

nsignifcant |ow Medimim <Z'C We maintain close relationsh ps with customers, working collaboratively to understand
their future requirements and ensunng these are factored inta product development at the
carliest stage

Lo Lo L/ »27C All sites comply wit~ and adhere to lacal climate-refated public instruction and guidanice,

medium mediurm and have suitable insurance cover, We will continue t0 monitor the sites’ expesure to extreme
weather events and update business conticuity planning,

Irsigrificant Low Low =2 We have alter-ative sources for raw matenals used n <ey products te mitigate risk from the loss
ol critical supplers and look tu identily duat suurces as part of new product approvals. ‘Where
this isn't possible, sole source dependencies are subject to enhanced monitoring

Low Medium Medurn/ >2°C We believe there are cpportunities for increasea demand within both climare scenarios and

hah continue 1o invest in research and development so we are well placed to deliver innovative
solutions that rmeet customer requirements,
As an example, we see an opportunity within helmets for our enhanced protection solutions as
aresuit of a skift to mare levels of pecple working in dangerous emargnments s..ch as search
and rescue,

Low Low Medium <2 We plan to wnaertake quarterly Kaizen activities at each of cur sites and educate employees

on fean thinking to identify oprortusities to be mare efficiont with resources The frst of these
Kalzen activities has taken place in 2073,

Overzll the Gra.p has assessed the potential impact o chimate change to be low in the short term (to 2028) Beyond 2028 although snere are potential
costs associated with climate charge, these are bala~ced with significant apportunity for ‘nereased zemand far aur protective products i a cmanging
global security env ronment.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023 Avon Protection plc 53



TCFD CONTINUED

STRATEGY CONTINUED

a. Describe the climate-related risks and opportunities
the organisation has identified over the short,
medium and long term continued

One of our sites has been identified as being located in an area of very

high water stress which was present under both clirrate scenarias. This site

is also susceptible to earthquakes which is factored into its insurance and
business continuity planning

Our scenarios anticipate the occurrence of extrerme weather events will
change cver time and we will continue to monitor sites’ susceptibility and
update methodologies for assessing resilience,

High risk exposure to natural hazards and weather events by site.

Country  Site Water Stress Earthquake
UK. Melksham, Wiltshire

Cadillac, Michigan

Irvine, California X X

Cleveland, Chio

us. Salem, New Harrpshire

b. Describe the impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities on the organisation’s businesses,
strategy and financial planning

Products and services

Government policies and climate change awareness a'e beginning

to aiter the bid and tender processes in countries with strong chimate

commitments. As our praducts are cntical te protecting users in

life-threatening situations we do net see sustainability and climate
performance taking precedence over user safety, There 1s, however, an
cpportunity to lead innovation through the developmen: of lower .mpact
products, where these do not compromise on performance or capability.

We partner dlosely with our custormers and ebtain continuous feedback
from the wser base to design products which meet their developing
sustainabulity needs This makes customers a key stakeholder in our
sustainabilily journey, and we have recognised Lhis through the
establishment of our customer Gillar

» Seemore on pages 37 and 43

Operations and supply chain

Qur operational footprint covers five manufacturing stes across two
developed markets which are expected o have increasing levels of
climate scrutiny. The potential cost associated with GHG emitting fuels
and shift to decarbonise our operations may increase cost to make or
purchase products. There is also a low risk that climate change could
disrupt our abil'ty to operate in certain locations or disrupt our ability to
source praducts,

We have committed to reducing absolute scope 1 and 2 emissions to zero
by 2045 at the latest {our 'net zers commitment’).

Th's year we have established targets which form part of our sustainabil ty
agenda and align to our STAR strategy including an emissions target ana
a plan to urdertake enhanced supply chain screening which will help to
inform us of emissions hotspets in our supply chain.

During Y23 we established nct zero teams at cach site to identify and
implement casy wins that will help us to ac-ieve our ermissions reduchions.
They alsodentf.ed ermerging technologies and assessed the long-term
feasibility of purchasing renewables or low emissior electricity.

Afongs de this we have been focused on foutprint oplimisation and each
sile has undertaken a series of Kaizens to drive efliciency and develop
employee lean thimking. s will continue Lo be a focus of ou1 S1AR
strategy and will support our ret zero efforts.

> Read more on pages 26 and 42

Strategy
Capital improvements needed ta decarbonise our operat’'ons to meet our
net zefc commitment may compete for our capex and interral resources.

The launcn of our STAR strategy was a major business deliverable this year
and sets a solid foundation for assessing and mitigating the impact of
climate-related risks and opportunities going forward During tae period,
risks and oppartunities associated with climate change alongside other
Group risks were considersd as part of the process to prioritise strategies.
Next year we plan to further embed climate risk management inta our
STAR strategy and identify further options to mitigate or reauce the
potential negative impacts.

> Read mare on page 22

Investment in research and development
We may have to invest in new and alternative technologies to meet our
own net zerg commitment and meet custermer requirerents

We have set a target for research and development investment within our
sustainabality agenda to 2028, This is the first step in aligning irvestment in
new producls with our sustamability goals.

> Read more on page 20 and 21

Access to capital
Poor ESG performance could reduce our access to investmert overtime if
we do not deliver against our commitments.

Over the medium to long term, we consider continued Drogress towards
our net zerg commitrment and wider climate objectives will prevent any
negative iImpact on access to debt or equity funding.

Acquisition or divestment
Climate-related metrics for future acquisition targets would be assessed
dur'ng due diligence where material and releva=t information is available.

During the pernod, the Group divested its Arnour manufacturing
operations in Lexington. Emissions associated with this site are therefore
no longer part of the Group's continuing carbon footprint which resulted
in us restating cur baseline,

Financial planning process

We recognise that climate-related risks and opportunities can have
financizl impact on revenues, costs and expenditures; see table on
pages 52 and 53. The related 'mpact on financial reportirg estimates and
Jjudgements is summarised on page 137,

Fhis 1s the Hist year we have ncluded an emission-based target in our
Ludget, supportee by planned FY24 initiatives, We recognise this is

the first step in matuning cur finandial planning process and ensuring
delivery ol emissions reduction targels. A similar process is plarned to be
incorporated into next year's updated five-year plan,

We cared out an impact assessment for chimate risks and opoortunit’es
on the overall Group a~d SBU operations. This identified the related
primary financial metric and impact therecr, as summarised in the table
on page 57,
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STRATEGY CONTINUED

c. Describe the resilience of the organisation’s strategy,
taking into consideration different climate-related
scenarios, including a 2°C or lawer scenario

Approach to scenario analysis

TCID recommends the use of climate scenarios to assess the resilience of

businesses to climate change. This is the second year Avon Frotecticn has

used scenano analysis to assess potential risks and oppartunities related to
chmate change, and their resulting impact on Group strategy.

In 2077, we receved technical advice to help select appmprianﬂ
climate scenanas,

This year we built upan previous qualitative analysis by applying scenarios
ta climate-related risks and opportunities and assessing their impact on
key financial metrics.

Our climate scenarios

Our two clirmate scenarios align with TCFD guidance, and use econamic
constraints assoctated w th the International Panel on Clirate Change's
{IPCCY Shared Socineconomic Pathway 2 middle of the ‘oad scenario:

>4*C informed by RCP" 8.5 15 an extiermne physical risk scenarno.
Under this scenario there 1s ne add Lonal action policy oniegalatory
interventions which leads to global temperatures nsing between
41-4.8°Cby 2100

- <2*Cinformed by RCP' 2.5 is an extieme transitional risk scenario. Under
this scenar o, early action is taken 1o rapidiy reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and imiz global warming to 2°C ar loveer by 2100

1 The 1222 aderted the Representatiye Lomce~trel op Fazwizy (37F) to prov de glaus bly
descr stion: of nowe e lature may evolve with respe. to 3 «anae of var ables rolud ng sorio-
nrlog cal change, eoengy and e use, o cmisions of grecpbouse

gasesIrzarpolataty

RISK MANAGEMENT

a. Describe the organisation’s processes for identifying
and assessing climate-related risks

In 2021, sustainability (including clmate-related risks and opportunities;

was ident fied as ernerging risk and was added to our Group egister as a

principal niskin 2022.

In 2022, we worked with a sustainability consultant to initially support usin
identifying chmate-related risks and opportunitios. The dentificaton and
assessment of climate-related nisks and opgortunies has now been fully
integrated into the Group nsk managemesnt process.

This year we reviewed and assessed our matenal chimate-related risks and
opportanities {see process of dentifying marerial risk outlined in Strategy
sect on part a).

See how weidenitily end manage nzk on page 6.2 far details on our
auproach to celermining relevance ol cimate-relaied nsks agamst other
risks Using Lespoke impact assessment megsures.,

> Read more on page 62

b. Describe the organisation’s processes for managing
climate-related risks

The SEU management team is responsible ‘or the idertification,

assessment, management and reporiing of climate-related risks specific

to zeliver ng their divisions’ strateqy in accordance with tne Graup

risk frarmewnrk,

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have made the following assumptions:

Avon Protect.on’s business activities will be static aver tme, This means
impacts have been considered for the existng operating model, current
locations and product portfolio.

Mutual exclusivity has been assumed for cach risk ang scenario when i»
reality they may occur in parallel (agaregated) or offset cach other.

+ Mo action has been taken by Avon Protection to mitigate or hm't the
impacts of each risk.

Resilience statement

The ousput of scenario analysis indicated that transitional risks could have
a greater impact in a <2°C or lower scenario. The developrnent of our
sustainability agenda focuses our effarts on matenal themes which will
help the business build resilience to the effects of policy, legal, technology
a~d market risk acrass its strategic priarities. The inclusion of targets

to reduce emissions and encourage resaurce efficiency provide Avon
Protection the apportunity to maximise potential cast savings,

The potential impact of physical nsks could be mare pertinentin the >4°C
seenario. Fach site i sufficiently insured for the nnysical risks they are
exposed to.

We have strong relationships with custorrers and are well pos tioned 1o
maxirrise opportunities in increased demand offered by both scenarios.

The impact of chmate change on cests s not expected to be material,
after considering the strategic response we have in place anc the potential
opportunities which manifest under both scenarios.

We rezogrise thar scenano aralysis will be developed over time, As
we |aunch our new STAR strategy we will loo< at further opportunities
te build climate change consideration into our strategic priornties

ard review resilence.

The Risk Committee reviews the divis onal tis< reqisters, providing a
second level of assurance, confirming wh.ch nisks are considered high for
reporting to the Audiz Commitlee.

The Audit Committee reviews high Groop climate risks. This year we
intraduced risk appetite into the discussion which was st by the Board
and established a desed approach to nsk mitigation, a process we hoge
to adva~ce and erbed into the STAR strazegy

We review our ¢l mate register annually, an exercise supported by
members of the Executive Committee and SBU management, assessing
fmancial Impacts over different tire honzons for our cimate scenarnos
{sce summary table provided in Strateqy section).

This was the first Lirme our climate re gister was reviewed by the
Audit commitlee,

Ihe overall process ensures atetial 1aks gie covered by an appropriate
exsting o1 planned strategic response

¢. Describe how processes for identifying, assessing and
managing climate-related risks are integrated into the
organisation’s overall risk management

» See Risk Management section parts aand b

S
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TCFD CONTINUED

METRICS AND TARGETS

a.fc. Metrics used to assess climate-related risks and
opportunities and the targets we use to manage
the risks and opportunities and performance
against targets

The table on page 57 illustrates the key metrics we use to assess and

manage our climate-related risks ana opportunities. We have selected

these as the data s readily ava’lable and comparable. Progress nas been

made to expand yearly reporting to include water usage and waste in line

with stakeholder expectations,

Targets and progress

During the penod we have evolved our sustainability agenda, the pillars
have been redef ned and expanded to ensure we consider sustainability
matters relevant to all key stakeholders, Targets for each pillar were
selected based on ambition of the business, aignment to Group
strategy, consideration of climate-related risks and opportunities and
regulatory reguirements,

Within cur sustainability agenda, we have cormmitted 1o reducing our
scope 1 and 2 ermiss ons by 5% relative to revenue Der annum (Intensity)
whiICn suppoTts Us In starting our journey to ach eving net zero by 2045
at the latest by reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 emissions {2021
baseling). We plzn to meet our interim target and net zero commitment
through seven actions which are described on page 44. Meeting this
interim target over the next five years will reduce our exposure to
increased pricing of GrG emissions or costs of carban offset, encourage
efficiencies and reduce lkelihood of ~egat-ve stakehclder ‘eecback. We
still consider tonnes of CO e per $m of revenue as the most appropriate
operational key performance indicator to manage climate-related risks and
opportunities facing the business.

We nave alsa established targets which indirectly support the reduction
of scope 1. 2 and 3 emissions. Trese metnes are considered relevant to
our climate-related risks and opoortunities, in particular, cartan price and
taxation, transitional resource efficiency and regulation and policy burden,
exposure to litigation.

+ We ~ave set an annual scrap reduction target of 5% per year as a
percentage of scrap, to 2028

+ We bave set an annual targes to increase revenue per square foot Dy 5%
per year, to 2028.

- We have set 3 target to screen 80% of our supply chain by 2025
(per spend), against enhanced sustainability criteria.

The launch of our STAR strategy was a key deliverable for the business
and as such chmate-related objectives did not feature as part of the
bonus scheme this year for the Executive Committee. The STAR strategy
establishes a platform for assigning accountability to our Executive
Committee and 1ts management team znd the Remuneration Committee
will be developing new policies to reflect these changes. it's not
anticipated that sustainability abjectives will feature; rather they are
embedded across the delivery of strategic priorities. Noting a portion

of Executive Director bonus this year 1s attributed to the delivery of ESG
targets as set cut on page 93.

b. Disclose scope 1, scope 2, and scope 3 greenhouse gas
{(GHG) emissions and the related risks

We report our scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions, in compliance with Streamlined

Fnergy and Carbon Reporting.

During the period and in line with expectation we assessed the most
relevant and influenceahle elements of our scope 3 emissions. We
conducted a screening cxercise to determine this, considering factors
such as ability to influence, anticipated size, sector guidance and data
accessibility which identiffed several exclusions and areas of data
shortcomings detailed on page 44. Based on this work and the use of EEIO
modcliing, purchased goods s understood to be the largest contributor
to our footprint; as we mature our scope 3 calculations we will disclose
additional categonics and aim for full d sclosure by 2025
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SIGNIFICANT ‘
GROWTH
OPPORTUNITY '

FULL YEAR RESULTS UNDERPINNED BY A SIGNIFICANT
STEP UP IN H2 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.

Revenue declined within Respiratery Protection this year following a year, bur a shitin revenue from the higher margin Respiratory Protection
record prior year supporled by tre initial deployment of masks into kurope to lower margin Head Protection led to margin erosian at a group

under the NSPA framework contract, in addit'on to support for Ukraine, level, resulting in adjusted operating profit margin at 8,79 (2022: 8 9%),
This has been partially offset by revenue growth within Head Protection Following the completion of our contractual otligations, the Armour
with the commencement of shipments against the NG IHPS contract, business has moved into discontinued operations, and we have restated
which resulted in total revenue far tme Croup declining by 7.59 to $243.8 the 2022 financials to compare on a like-for-like bas's.

million (2022: $263.5 million;. Margins in both businesses improved year on

Organic
30 change
September 1 Qctober (constant
2023 2022 Change currency)®
Continuing operations’
Orders receved ' §2587m  56/9m (341 (291%
Closing order book 5135.8m  $1209m 123%  109%
Reverue $2438m  57035m (753% (7.55%
Adjusted: LBITDA $35.7m  S386m BO% (36
Adjusted EBITOA margin ' ' 14.6% 1a7%  (I%bps) (i0bps)
E._Tusted’ operating p}ofst- h $21.2m_ $234m (3 1)% (18.5)% i
Adjusted operating profit margin . 8.7% B9% (20hos) (120b;§5)
Adjusted net finance costs. i ' ' DM SEIm 04 6% 100.0%
Ad,usted” profit before tax §140m  S15/m  @89%  (37.5)%
Adjusted” taxation 7 $(1.8)m $EIm
Adusted: profit/ioss) afrer tax i $120m  $166m
Adjusted basic carnings per share 40.3¢ 54 7¢ (26.3)% [35.2)%
Eal dividend per share 29.6¢ 419¢ {31 % |
Net debt excluding lease akblities ) $64.5m 544.7m 455% - !
@h CONVErsIon ) ) i 70% 15T,3‘};] ‘
Return on invested capizal’ 8.7% 0%
S_Iatutory results
aeramg {osshprafit from conmzmg operations’ ’ $012.6/m $110m
Nt finance costs 7 $(7.6)m $(5.9m a
(Tdss))prof:t before tax from cantinuing operations ' ${20.2m $6.0m
Taxation ) ' ' $38m  503m
(L_Os_s)-fproft after tax from colnrlnumg operations ) ) ${16.4)m ' 55.7m
F;}ofit_/(loss) from discontinued operations” ' o 52.0m -$(13.3)m )
L5 for the period ' S(d4m  S(75m T
E:c lass per share 7 {48.0)c {25Mc
Net dabl ' - $854m  $68.0m
! rase lly Closes Armour-aschecefore Seer class fesa- s discsrtr wax cneranar, ralading restatarent of e Lr der 26 ZorpsTalves
z orspeheve r atac usted mzas ey ooy € 3 usetll ¢ "o cus Cess tre cesulrs przluzz axoapt oAl e ard 2o NIrUED J22EIrs Tre eem

roszro ceforrarie &g osies

4, Us"y nom e’ nag ., le s~ arly tleg

iF5%5 and ~ 3y ~ot be “omparag

I Agportes ooeratngloss o 36 3 ilhon amor sat or of aco. <=d ivtan jioles, sest srectorre T -canent 5sers 2 goosvll of 3235 mill o ard Tarsnen
costs 2t 1S mllor sen Azjusted Perforeance Measargs sectior for I brez<coan o7 ag) CLITIEAT LA
U Copstars cyrransy ~easdmes e osvzed i tne Azjosted Performa ce Meaiures sell on
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Head Protection
Revenue by market

Respiratory Protection
Revenue by market

$156.9m

{(FY2022: 5193.0m)

$86.9m

{FY2022 570.5mm)

Us DO Comrnercial Americas UK. & International

Order intake for the Group of $258.7 million {2022: 52679 million} was
down 3.4% (2.9% constant currency}. Head Protection orders grew strongly
with $38 million of orders for NG [-PS, a~d 514 millior of orders zgainst the
ACH CEN Il contract received in the year. Respiratory orders were down in
the year, with weak demand fram the L5, DOD as expected.

The clasing order bock of $135.8 million reflects an increase of 12.3%
{(10:9% constant currency} over the prior year, with an ncrease of 64.5%
64.5% constant currency) in the Head Protect on order book more

than offsetting a decrease of 404% (£2 0% constant currency) within
Qespiratory Protection. Notably the Head Protection order book consists of
559 m llion of orders for NG IHPS and aver $20 mullion for ACH GEN |, both
fully covering expected sales for these products in the next financial year.

Revenue for the Group tetalled 5243 8 million, a decline of 75% (7.5%
constant currency) compared to a pror year of $263.5 million.

Respiratory Protection rovenue totalled $156 9 milhon, a declire of 18 7%
(18 7% constant currency} compared to 5193.0 mill onin 2022, with the
largest decrease witnin the U K & Internationat marke: as a result of the
large sales into Europe last year under the NSPA framework contract.
Respiratory Protection sales into the US DOD grew modestly, albeit with
4 significant mix shift away frorm rmask systerns Lo aftermarket products as
sales of M53AT1 and MEY masks in the prior year were replaced wilh sales
cf filters and other spares and accessories. Notably, we delivered over

S17 million of Ma1 filters into the U.S. DOD which represented 24 moenths'
worth of demand, and although we expect to recenve similar orders in the
future, there will be a significant decline of U.S DOD filters revenue in 2024
3% 2 cansequerce. Commercial Americas reverue drooped sign ficantly;
however, th's was driven by one-off deliveries in the prior year in support
of Ukraine,

Head Protectior revenue totalled $86.9 million, an increase of 23.3% (23.3%
constant currency) aver the prior year of $70.5 million. U.S. DOD revenue
arew by 19.7% with strong sales of EXFIL ballistic helmets and a successful
ramp-up of the NG IHPS programme  Commercizl Americas revenue grew
modestly at 7.:% with encouraginn initial sales of the new FPIC commercial
Pelmet range following a successful launch in the secord half of the year.

L astly, we had a strong year for Head Protection in the LLK. &Interratianal
rrarket with revenue growth of 77.6%, driven by deliveries of EXFIL helmets
nto the Australian Defence Forze.

Group adjusted EBITDA of $35.7 million (2022: $38.8 million} is down

8.0% (13.6% constancy currency) compared to the pricr period. Lower
revenue in high margin Respiratory Protection, higk levels of scrap from
production ramp-up of NG IFIPS, and increased levels of expensed RE&D
were headwinds in the year, partially offset by favourable product mix
with n Respiratory Protection, reduced freig-t costs, and savings in central
overheads. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 14 6% was down 10bps (down
10bps constant currency) on the prior year.

Adjusted operating profit of $21.2 milhon (2022: $23.4 mullion) is after
adjusted deprediation, amort-salion and impairment of $14.5 million
{2022: 5154 million}, resulting in an adjusted operating profit margin of
8.7% (2022 89%) down 20bps (down 120bps constant currency} on the
prion year

Statutory operating loss from continuing operations of $12.6 million (2022:
profit of $11.0 million) reflected exceptional items in the period which are
summarised below.

Impairments include a $23.4 million charge to goodwill (2022: Snil}, arising
as the new tead Protection cash-generating unit (CGU) was subject to
impairment testing for the first time. Based on the Group's Baard approved
five-year financial plan, adjusted to exclude cash flows considered
expansianary, the valug in use of the Head Protection CGU was less thar
the carrying amount.

The Head Protection CGU includes all goodwill assaciated with the 2020
Ceradyne acquisition of $28.0 million and 2021 Team Wendy acquistiaon
of $58.3 million. In 2021, gocdwill related to the Ceradyne acquisition was
alfocated in full to the scle Respiratory and Head protection operating
segment, and as such was unaffected by the 2021 armour-elated
impairments. In 2022, the decision to present Armour as a separate
operating segraent was taken, with nil goodwill value allocated to the
Armour segment. This was based on a relative value appreach, which
attributed no value to Armour given trading losses forecast to closure
lurther details o the impairment arc included in note 3 1.

The Adjusted Performance Measures section contains a full brezkdown
and explanation of adjustments

2023 2022

$m $m

Statutory operating (loss)/profit {12.6} 11.0

Amortisation of acquired intaﬁéib\os 6.3 6.8

Imparreent of goodwill and other 24.6 4.0
non-current assets

Ecs-tructuring costs 1.4 16

Transaction costs 1.5 —

Adjusted operating profit 212 234

Adjusted net finance costs increased to §/7.2 million (2027 $3.7 milfion) due
to higher net debt and variable interest charges.

After an adjusted tax charge of 1.9 million {2022: $3.1 million), the Group
recorded an adjusted proft for the period after tax of $12.1 million (2022:
516.6 million)

Adjusted basic earnings per sharc ‘ell to 40.3 cents (2022: 54.7 cents).

Return on invested capital, calculated on a reifing 12-montk basis, foll to
8.7% (2022: 9.0%), re‘lecting lower adjusled operat ng profit.

Statutory net finance costs of $7.6 millior (2022 $5.0 million} ‘nclude
$0.4 million (2022° $1.3 milion) net interest experse on the UK, defined
henefit pension scherme hability.

RESPIRATORY PROTECTION
EXPENDITURE HAS PRIMARILY FOCUSED
ON COMPLETING THE DEVELOPMENT
OF THE EXOSKIN LINE OF BOOTS AND
GLOVES, WHILST HEAD PROTECTION
EXPENDITURE CONTINUED TO CENTRE
AROUND NG IHPS AND ACH GEN ||
HELMET DEVELOPMENT.
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GOVERNANCE

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statutory loss before tax from continuing operatiuns was $20.2 imillion 2022; profit o $6 0 milhon) and, after 2 Lax aedil of $3 8 milhon (2022: charge of
50.3 milhory, the loss for the penod frem continuing operations was $16.4 rmillien (2022 prolit of $5./ million),

Segmental Performance

2023 2022
Respiratory Head Respiratory Head

Protection Protection Total Protection Protection Total

$m $m $m $m $m Sm

Revenue 156.9 869 2438 1930 705 2635
Adusted LBIIDA 366 09) 357 424 46) 8y
Adjasted EBITDA margin 23?3% {1.01% 14.6% 22 0% {5.10% 14.7%
;ajﬁsted operating profit 29.3 7 8.1) 212 - 135 (101 N _25?
Adjusted aperating ;gﬂt margin 18.7% (9.3)% 8.7% 17 4% (14.31% 8.9%

Adjusted operating profit margin within the Respirazory Protection business improved despize the fall in revenue, growing from 174% in =¥22 tc 18.7%
in FY23. This was Que ta a product mix shift away from lower margin sales on the NSPA framework ir the prior periad, and repricing on a couple of key
preducts. Beyond these mix effects, rapid act'on to nght size the cost base was taken in I'ght of the weaker demand ernvironment.

The Head Protection business has continued to make a loss as we wark thraough the production ramp-up for the NG IHPS and AC-- GEN Il programmies,

although we have seen reduced losses vath the operational gearing tzilwinds from the increased revenue, resulting in an adjusted operating prof't

margin of (3.3%), Up “rom {14.3%) in FY22. We cantinue ta believe that the transformational initiatives within the STAR straregy will bring this business to

acceptable levels of profitabil ty.

Research and development expenditure

Total investment in research and development {capitalised and expensed) was $10.2 million (2022, $10.9 million). in line w th the prior perod as a
percentage of revenye. Exd.ding amortisation and impairment, we have seen an increase in costs expensed to the &L ‘ollowing lower lovels of

capitalisation,

2023 2022
Continuing operations Sm Sm
Total expenditure 10.2 109
Less customer funded T o (1.2 (14
Group exgenditure 9.0 9.5
Capitalised (3.1) (58
Income s:atement Impac: o - 58 37
Amartisation and impairment of development expenditure 4.3 65
Total income statement impact 10.2 152
Revenue 2438 263.-5-)_
R&Dspend as a % of revenue 4.2% 41%

Respiratory Protection expenditure has primanly focused an completing the development af the EXOSKIN line of boots and gloves, whilst Head Protection
exocnditure comtinued to centre around NG [HRS a~d ACH GEN Il helmel development.

in FY23 research and development costs have been reclassified as a separate line item below gross prefitin the Corsolidated Statement of Comprehensive

incorre, with comparatives restated accordingly
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CCONTINULD

Net debt and cash flow
2023 2022
m $m
Adjusted continuing EBITDA 357 383
Share-based payments and defined benefit pension scheme costs 17 18
Working capital {34.9) 181
Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items 2.5 587
Restructuring and transactien costs paid (2.3) .0
Cash flows from continuing operations 0.2 507
Cash flows from discontinued operations 3.2 24.2)
Cash flows from operations 3.4 335
Payments to pension plan — (8.5}
Net finance costs —(6:6]_ (34
Net repayment of leases (3.0) (3‘2_)
Tax received 37 3.7
Capital expenditure {1.0) B9
Discontinued operation disposals, investing and financing cash flows 6.6 a4
Purchase of own shares — share buyback — (12.4)
Dividends to shareholders - (13.4) {13.4)
Foreign exchange on cash ’ — [(oF:3]
Change in net debt, excluding lease liabilities (20.3) (174
Opening net debt, excluding lease liabilities {44.2) (26.8)
Closing net debt, excluding lease liabilities {64.5) 442

Cash flows frorm continuing operations before exceptional items were
$2.5 million (2022: $58.7 million) with the movement principally due to
working capital outflows of $34.9 million, compared to inflows of $18.1
million in the pricr vear. Working capital outflows were driven by a $26.2
million increase in recervables due to sales phasing (2022: $12.2 nillion
reduction in recervables).

Dividends and purchase of own shares were $134 million (2022: $25 & millien},

wilh the change reflecting the buyback prograrmme in the prior year,
whith has now been fonmally cancelled.

Tax was an inflow of $3.7 milllion (20227 inflow of $3.7 million), due to
historical amounts owed being settled in the period.

Net debt was $85 4 million (2022 net debr $&8 0 millinn), which includes
lease liabilit es of $20.9 million (2022; $23 8 million). Excludi~g lease
liabilities, net debt was $64.5 million (2022: net debtt $44.2 million),

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operated a contributory defined benefits plan to provide
oension and death benefits for the employees of Avon Protection pic and
its Group undertakings in the U.<. employed prior to 31 January 2003, The
plan was closed to future accrual of benefit on 1 October 2009 and has
aweighted average maturity of approximately 13 years. The net pension
liability for the scheme amounted to $40.2 milllon as at 30 September
2023 (2022- 563 million). The increase is mainly due to adverse actuarial
experience adjustments.

There were no centributions in respect of scheme expenses and deficit
recovery plan payments in the period as these were fully prepa d for
FY23in the previous year In accordance with the deficit recovery plan
agreed following the 31 March 2022 actuarial valuation, the Group will
make payments in FY24 of £6.95 millien, FY25 of £4.30 million and FY26 of
£4 70 mill'on in respect of deficit recovery and scheme expenses.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to translational foreign exchange nsk ansing when
the results of sterhing denominated companics are consolidated into the
Group presentational currency, U.S. dallars Group policy 1s not to hedge
translational foreign exchange risk. Due to the translational effect, o

1 cent ircrease in the value of the U S, dollar against sterling would have
decredsed ievenue by approximately $0.2 million and indeased operating
profit by approximately $0 2 millon ‘or FY23,

RUF borrowings are {loating rate priced using the US. Secured Overnight
+ niancing Rate (SOFR). In 2022 the Group implemented a hedging policy
using interest rate swaps ta fix a portion of SOFR fleating rate interest

The notional value of active irterest rate swaps at 30 Septerber 2023

was $30.0 million (2022: $30.0 million), expining on 8 September 2025,

The Group alsc has additional interest rate swaps In place with a notional
value of $20.0 million starting on 8 Seprember 2025 and exprring cn 8
September 2026 (7022: $nil). The financial vaiue of interest rate swaps at 30
September 2023 was $0.9 mitlion (2022: 50.5 million), an asset position as
hedged fixed rates are lower than current market forecasts for SOFR.

Dividends

In iine with the revised capital allocation policy, the Board has proposed a
final dividend of 15 3 cents per share (2022: 30.6 cents). The final dividend
will be paid in pounds sterling on 8 March 2024 to sharehalders on the
requister at 9 February 2024. The final divicend will be converted into
pounds sterling for payment at the prevailing exchange rate which will be
announced priot 1o payment

We expect tre =1 2024 dividend 1o be sirnilarly rebased, resulting in the
custormary one-third to two-thirds distribution for the Tull year next year.

Rich Cashin
Chief Financial Officer

21 November 2023
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

REVOLUTIONISING TOGETHER

PARTNERING FOR INNOVATION ‘ ‘

Revolutionise focuses on a longer-term horizon and we have

continued to work hand in hand with our customers on research and BY ACTIVELY ENGAGING WITH
development programmes, ensuring our products align perfectly with OUR CUSTOME Rs’ WE NOT ONLY

their unique requirements. DESIGN PRODUCTS THAT MEET THEIR
In Respiratory Protection, we began funded initiatives on pioneering IMMEDIATE NEEDS BUT ALSO PIONEER
the next generation of filters and diving masks, expanding our TECHNOLOGIES THAT SHAPE THE

underwater portfolio. In Head Protection, we stand at the forefront of
traumnatic brain injury mitigation, harnessing funding to continue our FUTURE’ DRIVING THE INDUSTRY

vital research in this critical area. FORWARD THROUGH |NN°VAT|VE,
CUSTOMER-FOCUSED SOLUTIONS.

Ron Szalkowski, VP Engineering, Head Protection
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RISK MANAGEMENT

HOW WE IDENTIFY
AND MANAGE RISK

Assessing risk is an essential element of the management
of our organisation, and risk management is embedded

within the business units and functional teams.

Our Group risk management framework

Ihe Board has overall responsibil-ty for the Group's risk management
framewsrk and ensuring the nisk managemert process is robust and
cortnuously improved. The Board's role includes prormrating a culture
that emphasises integtity at all levels 0° business cperations and setung
the overall policies for risk management and centrol. This year the
Board also sel its overall 1'sk appelite considering the balance between
nsk and reward. "he Board has deiegated the responsibility for certain
risk management activities to the Audit Commitzee.

The Audit Committee supports the Board by maonitoring the
effectiveness of tne Group's risk maragement and irternal contral
systems “our times each year.

The Risk Comm'ttee, which is not 2 Committee of the Board, is the
owner of the Group's risk management process, acting as an interface
between the Audit Committee, business units and functional teams.
The Risk Commttee facilitates the risk reviews conducted by the
business units and other teams and reviews and challenges tne results
where necessary Through this process the Audit Committee idertfies
the principal and emerging risks at a Group level.

Our approach

Businass unit leadership is responsible for implementing the Group's
risk management proccss at a~ ooerational level. It aversees the
identification, assessment and reporting of risks in a risk register and is
responsible for identifying and implementing activities to mitigate risk
and the integration of these irto strategy where appropriate.

Each nisk in the risk register is assessec using likehood and impact
Scoring takes account of the reitigations in place and represents a ne:
r sk position, Supporting narnative indudes any emerging tisks, [he risk
registers are updated and then reviewed py the Risk Commuittee every
six months,

The measwement of lkelimood and impact uses bespoeke impact
assessment measures based on both financial and non-financial
impacts which are set relative to the size of the business unit.

Likelinood  High (>50%) Impact {revenue, High
Medium (a0-60%) oI DA cost, Medium
—— - -~ --— employee impact, ——MM—
Low to repuational Low to medium

medium (20-40%}  impach)

Low [<20%) | o

The Risk Commuttee reports the outcome of the six-rmonthly sk reviews
al a Group tevel to the Audit Committee twice a year Updates onrisk

riit gation actions are provided guarterly and all tisks contained ir the risk
registers are reviewed annually lo ensure they remain current.

Assurance

We apply the 'three lines of defence’ model to managing risk where the
first lime is management cortral and is represented by business unit and
functional leadershus, wh'ch owns and manages risk an a day to-day basis
within the Group's internal consrol framewark,

The Risk Comiritiee, alongside t~e [xecutive Committee, monitors and
oversees these activities as a governance and compliance function. This
internal assurance is our second line of defence.

The third line 1s incependent assurance, which has been supported by
Deloitte quring the period, We have recruited an Interral Audit Manager
to fulfil this role in FY24.

Annual review of internal controls and risk management
We have made the following enhancements ta our risk
managoment process:

Risk registers have been aligned to reflect the new organ 'sation
structure of two Strategic Busingss wnits

The Group's principal risks were specifically cons dered as part o the
strategy process which established our STAR strategy and each of the
strategic priorities contains a risk assessment which is upcated quarterly.
An Internal Aud't Manager was recruited to provide assurance to the
Executive Committee and Audit Committee, replacing Delaitte,

Risk appetite was reviewed and agreed at Board level for the Group.
The Audit Committes reviewed the ciimate risk reister and the Board
reviewed the TCFD disclosures.

Cutputs from the business urit risk registers and STAR strategy process
wore used to igentify matenal climate-related risks and opportun ties,

Commertary on the review of the Group's systern of intemal control 1s
contained in the Aud't Cammitee Repurl on page 84

62 Avon Protection plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2023



OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

Principal risks

Principal risks are those that would threaten the Group's business
meael o future performance and have bee™ identified based on
likelihood of occurerce and the potential impact on the Group.,

The principal nsk chart below summarises the Group's principal ris<s
for 2023 going into 2024 by likelihoad and impact. The chart has been
populated by reference to the year end risk assessment. The following
pages show each risk and the mitigations in place and contain a
commentary on how the risk has played aut curing the peried. Overall
risk appetite is also shown,

Emerging risks

Cmerging risks, which are classed as risks which could impact beyond
the next review point, are noted during each risk review and sresented
to the Audit Committes,

The Risk Committee has identified the emerging risks expected to
Inzrease 2cross the Grous In the coming year The most prominent aie
summarised below

Bid and contract risk resulling from the growing focus on
international markets, which nherently have lower visioillity and
higher comgetition and de nands greater resources fiom our
bidding and complhance tearns.

Resourcing of internatioral sales efforts and the likelhood of success

tor Head Protection in ‘nternational terfitories as a new market
entrant in mzany regions.
+ Competition or new mask and helmaet programmes,

» Compliarce and reputational risk arou=d the current net zero plan
which does not currently extend to the stated net zerg ceadline.

1. Bid and contract risk

2. Stralegy execution risk

3. Manufaclunny risk

4. Recruiling and releming Lalenl
5

6

. minancal contrels end repotting
Defivery of new product programmes
7. Geopolitical risk

8. Security ang cyber risk

9. Zompliance and internal cortrol

10. Sustainatility

11, Deferce sector concentration/cycle risk

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Risk appetite

Low — we are cauiious and often accept as little sk as possitls; risk
response actions are tzken even though prevention costs are greater than
expected Incident costs.

Medium - we take a balarced approach to risk taking; risk response
actions are made nased on cost effectivencss, managerent priorities and
potential outcome.

High —we are willing to take greater than normal risks; response act ons
are taken only when a strong case can be made for the cos: effectiveness
of potential outcomes.

2023 PRINCIPAL RISKS

LIKELIHOOD

1

2
3

7 5 4

6
8 9
1
10
IMPACT

7
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Links
Trend Strategy Sustainability
= Nochange S Strengther Qur planet
'T‘ {ncreasing T Transform Our supply chain
N Deaeasing A Advance Qur customers
R Revoluliomse Ourcolleagues and cormmurat es
.I Bid and contract risk Trend Strategy Sustainability
Risk appetite: Medium T T A R
Business risk Mitigation Comment and outlook

+ Sales targets not delivered + Product portfolio and certificaticns meet

Loss of major bids/tenders Customer requiremerits

Market and channel strategies agreed

Competitars increase
and in place

market share at Avon
Protection's expense Capabte and professional sales team, carrectly

remunerated and engaged

Competitive pricn
Impacton P prieng

o + Robust bid approval process and well resourced
Sales and profitability

bid programme teams

+ Strateqy delivery Intimate custorner relationships with regular

contact and programmes of recard/multi-year
commitments agreed where possible

+ Competitor monitoring and
counter-competor strategies

2 Strategy execution risk Trend
Risk appetite: Medium -

Sales are reliant on delivering the order pipel ne
wh ¢ch contains competitorn and Liming nsk.
Management of inlernal and supply chain costs

Is required to keers pricing competitive and
suppott stromg margins, A switch oF focus to the
international market to mitigate reduced J.S. DOD
volumes, and in support of rebreather tenders, has
increased the velume of bids ana put pressure on
the bid teams, creating risk of pricing error or lost
bids Competitor activity can slow the progress of
government procurements, We expect both the
UK. GSR programme and future IHPS opportunities
to be competitively bid, which could lead to lower
revanue gnd/er margins.

Strategy Sustainability

5 T A R

Business risk Mitigation

+ Strategy model and approach defined, agreed
and communicated

- Strategy execution risk
« Execution of transformation

programmes + Strategic projects clearly identified, agreed and
resourced for delivery
0 t + Hlfective programme managernent team, 1ools
mpact on and reporting to ensure urojects are delivered on

« Slrategy delivery time and benefits are realised
Sales, costs and protitability

Employee recruitment, setention
and morale

Comment and gutlook

This risk relates to our ability ta deliver the
transformation pregrammes defined under the STAR
strateqy in 2023 across both business units and the
central functions. Significant progress was made in
2023 in defining and planning these pragrammes
and some oenefits have already been delivered.
Both business units are targeting improved
manufacturing and footprint efficiency alongside
the introduction of rew products into manu‘acture
(ACH GIN Y, boots and gloves and rebireathers).
Wwithin rhe central functions the forus is setting cost
at an aporopriate level and :mproving reparting
based on the revised organisational structure.
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3 Manufacturing risk
Risk appetite: Low

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE

Trend

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Strategy

- 5 T

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sustainability

Business risk

Supply chain shocks impact our
ability to source key materials
and the cast of manufacturing

{due to soic source dependency,

pricing, availability, quality or
cfficiency)

« Poor quality and late delivery
Frviranmental or health
ard safety incident results in
employee injury, plant clusure
and prosecution/fines

« Inventory locks up
working capital

Impacton
Sales, costs and profitability

4 Recruiting and retaining talent
Risk appetite: Medium

Mitigation

Supply chan strategy targets improvements

Rabxust supplier audit and relationshiz
rmanagernent, with aiternative sources identiied

Robust manufacturing/quality processes
ard effective Fnteroiise resource planring
(FRP} systems

Strong site leadership and engaged and
mativated preduction workforce

Insurance and effective business continuity
planning in place

Prioritisation of wor<force health and safoty

Trend

Comment and outlook

Dunng the ceriod we introduced NG IHPS into

full preduction at Irvine but have vet to deliver
targeted cost saving appaortunities anthis product,
particularly scrap reduction and productivity
improvement. The other majar helmet programme,
ACH GV L, 15 yet to move into full rate production
At Cleveiand we successfully insourced eallistic shell
production

Supply cham improvement targets are starting

to be set, with part cular focus on the rebreatrer
supply chain, which contams same long lesd time
1isk fwhicr drives purchasing commitments before
custorner orders gie received).

We have hited a President of Operational Excellence
and Continuous improvermnent to lead the
implementat on of 3 continuous Improvement
culture aceoss aur facteries, which is ultimately
expected to improve risk m-tigation in many areas.
Improvemrent aclivities have already accurred as a
result of multiple kaizens.

Strategy
T

Sustainability

Business risk

+ Inability to recruit and
retain employees

Impacton
< Strategy del very
Sales, costs and profitabiity

« Employee marale and culture

Mitigation

Robust succession planning and effective
performance management processes
Fffective training and development straregy
and activitigs

Appropriate organ sationdl stiuctune wath cear
hnes of autharity and carmmunmcation
Maintaining a positive and supportive Avon
Protection culture, sucported by values,
employee engagement activity and initatives
Retention thiough competitive remu~eration
a~d benefits structure and eutzemes

Comment and outlook

Acrass Both business units contiruing inflatizn
and economic uncertainty have mairtained

focus on remuneration and bencfits to ensure we
remnain competitive. During t~e pericd we have
approved enhanced pay ircreases designed 1o
ensure employee pay semains broadly in | ne wite
inflzt'on, and have completed a pay and benus
benchmarking project. Employee engagement
has been high on t~e agenda as usual, whether
throughk our annual empioyee cuinion survey and
fellowe up actions, the consultation on cur new
emplayee values or direct engagement oim the
newe leadership team. We also undertook a series
of engagement aCTivities in connection with the
creation and faunch of The new STAR strategy Two
new HR Directars have been recruited 1o support
the business units and 5TAR contains an r R 'Winming
Team' strateqy which addresses this nisk area with
addrmienal mitigation.
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RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Links
Trend Strategy
9 N change S Strengther
’I\ Increasing T  Transform
-.l/ Decreasirg A Advance

R Revolutionise

5

Risk appetite: Low

Financial controls and reporting

Sustainability
Cur planet
Our supply chain
Cur customers

Qur colleagues ard cormmunities

Trend

Strategy Sustainability

S T A R

Business risk

- Poor quality f nancial reporung
and business information

Insufficient overhead controls

- Tax cxposure not mingated

- DB pension furding
requirement restricticns

Currency fluctuations reduce
the value of receipts or
increase costs

»nsuthicient deb: capadity

Impacton
« Costs and profitability

- Reputational damaage

6

Delivery of new product programmaes
Risk appetite: Medium

Mitigation

- Robust internal finarcial cantrol and reporting
procedures {monthly reporting, business reviaws,
slrategy/budgeting process) supported by robusl
internal audit funcuion

+ Appropriate overhead structure

« Bankfacilities committed and of sufficient
duration with altermative providers scoped and
ready to step in.

« Bank covenant compliance and reporting
« Tax sirategy in place with advisor support

< Long-term pension strategy in place witn deficit
recovery plan agreed and reviewed every
three years through triennial valuations, with
professional advice

- Elfeclive cunency hiedging stratcgy

Trend

Comment and outlook

Manufactur ng systems data (e.g bills of materials,
seraz, labour efficiency) can be delayed or
incomplele which has affected the quality of
financial reporting 17 2023 and increases the risk

of bid pricing error. Dunng the peried we have
launched a nurnber of projects to improve our
internal financial contrels. We introduced a new
delegates authorities matrix to reflect the new
arganisation structure anz empower the business
urits and have projects running to introduce a new
internal control manual and new bid and capex
aoproval processes. We have also recruited an
Internal Audit Manager wha is expected t3 improve
the accountability and effectiveness of our internal
control framewark.

Strategy Sustainability

T A R

Business risk

« Failure to identfy and
implement new products

Impacton
Strategy delivery
Sales and profitability
Reputation

Mitigation

- Future produci/technology road mapping and
funding strategy in place

« Fffective new procuct introduction process which
delivers new products into production at factories

+ Sustainng engineering resource al lactories
sufficient to support new product ntroductions

- Intellectual property protection considered ana
implemented where recessary

« Sufficient level of interaction with major
customers and regulatory bodies to anticipate
future product requirements

Comment and cutlook

Limites investment in resairatory product
deveiopment in recen: years has resulted in a
restricted pipeline of new products and currently
no new respirator to generate renewed customer
interest or demand. Thisis corrected under STAR
with the rapid progress on the assault respirator
ard a number of new funded pioduct/technology
development programmes. Respiratory focus in
2024 is on CBRN ooots and gloves and the newly
NFPA-certified 5T54. In Head Protection improved
programme leadership has strengthened our ability
te zet the new products into full production and
LA DOD funding for fraumatic brain injury research
has been extended.
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7 Geopolitical risk Trend Strategy Sustainability
Risk appetite: Medium - T
Business risk Mitigation Comment and outlook
» Geopoltical factors result in an « Close manitonng of the political environment and We maintain a close watch on the poltical
unfavourable business cimate federal funding and budget posiion landscape in our key mdrkels, particularly the LS.
for defence spending or restirict - Lobbyist/gavernment advisors and key The U5 goverrment shuldowns do cany iming risk
decess to nationdl markets influencers aligned to Avan Pratection’s interests around order processing, 1ot Lasting and our ability
hip, but havi rogra es of rec rovide a
- U5 BOD budgets/ . Diversified global customer base to ship, But faving programm ord p

funding withoiawn -
- Mul-year military contracts n place

+ Conflict triggers surge in {programmes of record)

dermand that cannot be met by

production capacity Manufzctunng surge capacity planin place

Impacton

+ Sales ard profitandity

- Ability to ship products
- Financial foss

Repatatinnal damane

sign ficant degree of Gusiness pratection generatly.

For example the order pipeline for US, DOD helmets

is confirmea for next year. With the currently soft
US. DOD respirazory demand, tre strategy to

diversfy the custemer base internationally is already

mitigating the risk of a U.S. Government shutdown.
Conflict and the changing threat envirgnment ca~
also create the nsk of a surge in demand which
canmot be met by the curient produchion Capadity,
resulting in lost sales.

8 Security and cyber Trend Strategy Sustainability
Risk appetite: Low to medium - 5
Business risk Mitigation Comment and outlook
- Bus nessirtenuption/cash cost - 1T strategy articipares forthcoming sequirernents Strong and effective managernent of our secunty

of cyberZnme and fraud « T sufficiently resourced with specialists to

Compliance with U5 DOD and ensute compliance

LK. MOD secunty requiremeants Robust network AT contrals and secunty

= 1T systemn conbingy event protoculs/policy

- Cyberinsurance and T disaster recovery plan
and backup

Impacton
+ Ability to ship products
Mnancal loss

Recutational damage

and T systems s necessary to prevent the
compramise of secure infarmation, intellectual
property and data relating to our personne!
and customers.

During the period we conducted an independent
assessent on our information security control
architecture and cybDessecunty Dusiness
continuity plan as part of cans dering whether

to purchase cyberinsurance.

we launr-ed mandatory cybersecusity raining
campaigns in support of CMMC 2.0 comphance and
we remarn on track to be compliant wath CAMC 2.0
requirements when they become mandaory.

We have campleted the transfer of the Cleveland
site onto the Avon Protect.on [T systems.
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Links
Trend Strategy Sustainability
= Ncchange § Strengthen Our planet
’r‘ Increasing T Transform Our supply chair
\l/ Decreasing A Advance QU customers
R Rewlutionie Our colleagues and commnurities
9 Compliance and internal control Trend
Risk appetite: Low -

Strategy Sustainability

]

Business risk
Failure ta comply with
export controls
Bribery and corruption r'sk
Breach of contract/law leads
to investigation, prosecution,
litigation or fines

- Defence contract compliance

- Fallure to comply with the
reguiremerts of the Special
Security Agreerment

Impacton
« Ability to ship products
I nancial loss

+ Reputational damage

'I o Sustainability

Mitigation

« Effective export control policy supported
by training

. Effective anti-bribery and corruption policy
supported by training

« Embedded and effective Code of Conduct

Fffective internal legal anga internal contral/
audit function

+ Effective government contract
specalist knowledge

- (lear policies defining and understancing of
waorking practices between Avon and the security
clearea ent'ty Avon Protection Ceradyne

Trend

Risk appetite: Medium -

Comment and outlook

Warking within the defence sector requires us 1o
maintain strong compliance controls.

We have launched mandatory annual Code of
Conduct training to all employees, & project is
underway to reduce the risk that a partner pays a
bribe to secure business for Avon. This will include
cnhancements to the currert diligence process, a
review of our partner remuneration policy and a
tharaugh review of our partner network, with the
introduct on of addit onal checks and assurance.

Deloitte continued its FY23 internal audit work
programme. We have strengthenea our day-to-

day oversig~t of ‘nternal centrols through t-e
recraitment of an Internal Audit Manager to fulfil tris
role in FY24.

Strategy Sustainability

T

Business risk

- Costand delay in implementing
net zero plan and progressing

the sustainability agenda

« Custorner requirements shift to
more sustainable products that

we do not offer

Impacton
+ BReputational damage
Sales, cast and profitability

Mitigation
+ Maintain strong relationships with custorrers,
supply chain and technology partners

+ Sufficient focus on sustainability at all levels of the
business and within key processes

+ Suslainability plan and targets agreed

Sufficiently resourced operations ta complete
necessary projects

Comment and outlook

We have set a sustainabilty strategy which is
designed to complement and be delivered througk
our STAR strategy by being ahgned to certain

key pricrities, e.g. ope-ational excellence and site
optimisatior, So as we fund the delivery STAR,

we can ce configent we are also delivering our
sustainability agenda.

As explained in the sustainability report, during the
per od we established cross-functional net zero
teams at each of the sites to dentify opportunities
to reduce energy usage and emissions. These teams
will be ritical in supporting the bus ness to review
and deliver cur net 7ero plar at each s te

Purchase of renewable and low emission electricity
has been rev ewed and implemented at our
factories where practicable.
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'I II Defence sector concentration/cycle risk Trend Strategy Sustainability
Risk appetite: Madium - A R
Business risk Mitigation Comment and outlook
U.5. DOD customer - 5trong US DOD/customer relationshins Ol primary market Is the defence sector which
canceEntralon risk and insight 18 subject o deferce spending cyde nsk. Military

Governme

cyclical fluctuation

nt defence spending - Understand future capability requirements and
investment in technelogy to deliver the products

the customer requires

Impact on

Sales and profitability

Maintain dversificatior v a other markets e.g the
U5, first responder market and geograohies

- Strateqgy targets diversification of global military
custormer base

budyets remain stiong in the current heightened
threat environment and the rmulitary order book

far helmets is confirmed for 2024, with some risk
mitigation achieved from the diversif cation of the
customer base within the U.S. COD. The Respiratory
Protection business is already mitigating its risk

in this area through expanding its product and
market focus away from e o S DOD due to the
current slow demand. That business has also further
mitigated its concentration nsk by launching a new
e-commerce business selling 50 series respiratars to
a e customer base, the LIS civilizn market.

g
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WE HAVE MAINTAINED HIGH LEVELS

OF ENERGY THROUGH THE CONTINUVED
EXECUTION OF OUR STAR STRATEGY AND
WE HAVE MADE SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS
IN EACH OF THE KEY AREAS, WHICH IS

A TESTAMENT TO THE DEDICATION AND
INNOVATION OF OUR TEAM.
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CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

A STRONG
TEAM

The Board is committed to achieving high
standards of governance designed to protect
the long-term interests of all other stakeholders,
while promoting the highest standards of
integrity, transparency and accountability.

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present aur Corporate Governance Report, This report
describes our governance structures and procedures, and summarises

the work of the Board and 'ts Commitiees and how the Board evaluated
its effectiveness in 2023. As a Board we recognise the fundamental
importance of ensuring rabust governance practices are implemented
and followed in order to promate te leng-term sustainable success of the
Company, generate value for shareholders and contribute to w'der saciety.

Stakeholder engagement

The 3oard recognises its obligation to ensure effective engagerment wit™ ‘ts
stakeholzers. to understand their different perspectives and to ensure their
interests are considered in Board discussions and dec'sion making. While
we understand the importance of balancing all stakeholder views, this year
we have soughs to increase the mechanisms under which we cngage with
ard receve foedback from our emoloyees, including additional in-person
townhall meetirgs and site visits. Details of stzkeholder engagernent
activities during the period are outlined on pages 36 1o 39,

Purpose and culture

We are an organisation made up of over 900 people, in five main locations
araund the UK and North America. Cur people comie from awide vanety of
backgrounds and work un d daverse iange of producs ina number of different
markets. The thing we all have in common — the golden thread that binds us
together — 15 our shared purpose: Protecting Lives.This underpins everything
we do, including our culture and values, The Board understands the
importance of its role in setting the right tone from the top and erbedding
it throughout the Group. In addition to the Board, the Executive Committee
has responsibility to ensure the pelicies and benaviaurs set at Board level are
effectively communicated and implemented throughcut the Group.

Our refreshed Code of Conduct, which was approved by the Board during
the period, reflects our purpose and our values, ard sets out the standards
of behaviour and business conduct expected from anycne waorking for or

on behalf of the Group,

Board and Committee evaluation

During the penod we completed an evaluation of the Board and

its Committees. The 2023 evaluation was internaity fac litated using
guesticnnaires, led by the Company Secrctary and me, It concluded

that the Board, its Committees, t~e individual Dircciors and the Chair
performed effectively during 2023, botn individually and as a collective
unit. The significant improvement in this year's strategy process was
commented on by several Board members and although it was noted that
the nsk management process had improved, it was felt there was further
work to do. There was agreement that the Board nad improved following
the appointment of the new CEC, that the Board had a strong sense of
collective responsibility and the individual roles were working effectively
together In addition the introduction of the new simplified organisation

structure was a clear improvement which had provided increased clarity
on performance drivers. Further details can be found on page 78.

Sustainability

Giver its significance, “he Board has retained responsibility for the
development and oversight of our sustainability agenda directly, rather
than establishing a specific Board-level conmittee. During tre period the
Board has approved our sustainability targets for the next five-years. At
the management level, Rich Cashin, our CFO, is the Executive Director with
respansibility for oversceing our sustainability agenda across the business
and chairs our Sustainability Steernng Committee, Tris Committec reports
to the Board on progress. lurther details on the remit of the Sustainability
Steering Committee can be found on page 57.

[
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS A BOARD WE RECOGNISE THE FUNDAMENTAL IMPORTANCE OF
ENSURING ROBUST GOVERNANCE PRACTICES ARE IMPLEMENTED
AND FOLLOWED IN ORDER TO PROMOTE THE LONG-TERM
SUSTAINABLE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY, GENERATE VALUE

FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTE TO WIDER SOCIETY.

Annual General Meeting

The 2024 AGM of Avon Protection plc will be held at Hampton Park West,
Sern ngtan Road, Melksham, Wiltshire SN17 5NB, at 11130 am on Frday

26 Jan.ary 2024 Further details, including the resolutions to be proposed
ta our shareholders, can be found in the Notice of Mesting on pages 174
to 178 The result of the votes an the resolutions put forward at the AGM
will be publicly announced to the stock excmange anc puolished on our
website as soon as possible following the conclusion of the meeting. | will
be in attendance at the AGM and will be very happy to take any questions
you may have regarding the operation of the Board during the penad,
We look forward 1o secing you there.

B
e

oo

A

-
o

Bruce Thompson
Chair

21 November 2023

Compliance with the U.K. Corporate Governance Code
The Company reports against the Finzncial Reporting Council's (FRC s5)
UK. Corporate Governance Code 208 {'the Code”), which 1s available at
www.frc.org.uk. The Board has applied all principles and complied with
all provisions in the Code for the year ended 30 September 202 3, with
the exception of Prov sion §, that the role of Chair and CEQ should not be
exercised by the same person. For a fimited period Bruce Thompson was
appointed as Executive Crair As explained on page /6, we were in full
compliance with this provision foliowing the appointment of Jos Sclater
as CFO an 16 Jlanuary 20723, Further details on how the Company applied
the principles of the Code during the peried can be found as follows;

See page
Board Ieadership};nd Company purpose
Long-term value andrsrustamabil'\ty 24
C_Jt[ﬂe 76
Shareholder engagement o 33
Employee engagement - 6
S{E Vm;L;F-hnlrder engagernrent 36
Canflicts of interest o 105
Division of responsibilities
Role of the Chair B B 76
Division of rcspéﬁsubilitlcs 76
Nen-Cxecutive Directors 7 JZ
Compaosition, succession and evaluation
Appaintments and succession planning 81
Skills, experience and knowledg_e 74, 7
Lcrrg:tf'-ol service /4, /4
Evaluation h 78
Diversity BO
Audit, risk and internal control
Audit Comrrittes 8Z
Integrity of financial statements 7 83
Fair, balanced and understandable 82
Int;_mal controls and nisk management N 24
External auditor - 24
Principal and emerging r sks ) o7
Remuneration
Podicies and practices - B S0
Alignment with purpese, values and !C,-ﬁgite;m strategy 50
\ndependenrtijurldgément and = scretion &/
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A BOARD

WITH

EXPERIENCE

Our business is led by our experienced Board of Directors, which focuses on developing

the Group's strategy and supporting management to execute against it.

Bruce Thompson
Chair

First appointed:
March 2020
Appointed Chair:
December 2020

5kills and experience:

Eruce joined the Board in March
2020, During his executive career,
Bruce was CEO of Diploma

PLC, the FISE 250 spec al sed
technical products and services
business, tor over 20 years. Prior
to join ng Diploma, Bruce was

a Director with the technology
and mznagement consulting
firm Arthur D Little Inc, both in
the UK and the US He s alsa an
Independent Non-Executive Chair
of discoverle Group plc.

Committee membership:

Jos Sclater
Chief Executive Officer

First appointed:
January 2073

Skills and experience:

Prior o jeining Avon Protection,
Jos spent three years as Group CFO
at Ultra Electronics plc, utllis ng ris
skills and experience from his tirme
gy Group CHO at Castrol Lubricants
Jos has also spent sever years at
GKN plom various roles induding
Group CFO and Director of
Corporate Finance & Strategy

Jos started his career as a qualfied
solicitor and ~eld in-house

legal and M&A rales at ICl ple,
AlkzoMobel NV, and GKN plc,

Rich Cashin
Chief Financial Officer

First appointed:
April 2022

5kills and experience:

Before Jaining Avon Pratection,
Rich was President, Strazegy

and Corporate Development

for Ulta Electionics plc from
June 2009, Pror to this, he was
Group Head of Investor Relations
and, subsequently, a divisronal

F nance Director for Meggitt PLC
and held a number o Investment
and finance -oles at Rolls-Royce plc
and UBS5 AG.

Chlce Ponsonby
Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent Director

First appointed:
March 2016

Skills and experience:

Chloe has spent her career in
financial services, first in equity
fund rdnaygernent al Jupiter,

and then in investment banking
at Altium and Criel Securities
fnow owned by Stifel). Chloe

also held the role of Managing
Director in investment banking at
Panmure Gordon and is currently
a Managing Director wit~in the
corporate broking umit at HSBC.
She is a Chartered Financial Analyst
and has a first class Economics
degree from the University

of Manchester.

Committee membership:
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Board gender diversity (%

Bindi Foyle
Non-Executive Director

First appointed:
May 2020

Skills and experience:

Bindi has been Group Finance
Director of Senior plc, a
manufacturer for the aerospace,
defence, land vebide and power
and cnergy markets, smce

July 2017 having served as an
Executive Director since May

2017. Bindi joined Seruor in 2006
as Group Finanaal Controller
betore becoming Director of
Investor Relations and Corperate
Cammunications in 2014, Prior

to joining Senicr, she held senior
finance rales at Amersham plc and
General Electric, having previously
worked with BDO Sioy Hayward.

Committee membership:

STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE
)
Female
Male
Victor Chavez CBE

Non-Executive Director

First appointed:
Decernber 2020

Skills and experience:

Victor has over 30 years of
experience in the defence and
secunty sectors, His early career
fuLusea an telecorrmunications
and software before joiming Thales
UK. in 19499 He was appointed
Chief bxecutive 1n 2017, rel'nng

in 2020 having successfully
integrated and grown tne Business
during this perod. In recognition
of his services to defence and
secunty for the UK. and France,
Victor was appointed g CBF

in 2075 and a Chevalier of the
Légion d'Honneur in 2020,

Committee membership:

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Independence (%)

Miles Ingrey-Counter
General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Firstappointed:
Cctober 200/

Skills and experience: M [cs s
a qualified schicitor; he joined the
Group in January 2004 and has
been a memoer of lhe Execulive
Comimittee sinee 2008, Miles
also has responsibility for all
Group HR matters and is Chan

of the Retirement and Death
Benefits Plan. Pricr te joining Avon
Protection, Miles was a salicitor
with Osbarne Clarke LLP

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executve (including CFQ}

Non-Fxecunive {excluding Chair)

Board membership key

Audit Committee
Nomination Cammittee
Remuneration Committee
Chair

Independent Director
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CORPONRATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE
REPORT

Introduction

This Corporate Governance Report, along with information in the Strategie
and Remuneration Reports, explains how the principles and provisions of
the LK. Corperate Governance Code 2018 ('the Code') have been applied.
A copy of the Code can be found o wwwifrc.orguk.

Statement of compliance with the Code
We are pleased to confirm that the Board has comulied with all provisions
of the Coze throughout 2023, with the exception ¢f the following:

Provision 9, which states t~at the roles of Charr and CFO should not be
exercised by the same individual, Paul Mc Jonald stepped down from
the Board as CFC on 30 September 2022, For an interim period from 1
October 2022 until Jos Sclater joined the Board as CEO on 16 January
2023, the Chair was appainted as Executive Chair.

Board leadership

The Board comprises two Executive Directors ana four Non-Executive
Orrectors (including the Crair, Bruce Thompson). Chlee Pensonby has
anncunced her intention to step down from the Board next year fallowing
an Increase In her executive responsibilities. Detalls about the recruitment
process for her replacement are d sclosed an page 81, The Board reqularly
reviews its compuosition to ersure it has the necessary breadth and depth
of skills to support the development of the Group. We believe the Board
colinues to have a strong mix of experienced indiv duals who provide

a unigue perspective on Company matters and bring specific skills to

the Board,

Bioaraphical details for eac~ member of the Board can be found on pages
74 and 75 of this Annual Report, All Ditectors will stand for re-appointment
by shareholders at the 2024 AGM.

Company purpose

The Company purpase s stated on page 2. The Board recognises its role in
establishing the purpose, values and strategy of the Group and ensuring
these are embedded throughout the business.

Our culture

The Board clearly recognises the impartance of culture and its link to
delivering our purpose and strateay. Assessing and rronitoring our culture
isimportant to ensure we retain a successful culture as we grow. Through
our employee engagement initiatives, explained in more detail cn page
46, the Board has sought to maintain a good level of engagement with
the workforce The Board considers the most effect ve way of achieving
this engagement 15 via a Global Tmployee Advisory Forum, which was
established in 2021

GOVERNANCE

Division of responsibilities

For an interim period fram 1 Octaber 2022 until Jos Sclater jeined the
Board as CEQ on 16 January 2023 the Chair took on the role of Executive
Chair. For the remainder of the financial year there was a clear division
of responsibility between tre running of the Board by the Chairand the
running of the Group's business by the CEO.

The Chair 's responsible for the {eade-ship of tre Board and ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its rale. The C=0 manages the Group and
has the primary role, with the assistance of the Board, of develoning and
implementing business strategy. T~e Chalr ensures that meetings of Non-
Executive Directors take place without the Executive Diractors present.
Whilst the Chair is performing the role of Fxecurive Chair, the Senior
Independent Director assists with these respensikilities

Rules concerning the appointrmert and replacerrant of Directors of the
Company are centained in the Articles of Association. Amendments to the
Articles must be approved by a special resclution of shareholders, One of
the roles of the Non-Execuzive Directors, under the leadersh p of the Chanr,
is to undertake detailed examination and discussion of stratedgies proposed
by the Executive Directors, so as to ensure that decisions are made in the
best long-term interests of sharehalders and take proper account of the
interests of the Group's other stakeholders.

The Non-Executive Directors ave appointed by the Board on terms
which allow for termination on three months' notice, Caples of Executive
Directors’ service contracts ana terms and conditions of appo ntment

for Non-Executive Directors dre davailabie for inspection at the

registered office.

How the Board operates

The Chair ensures, through the Company Secretary, that the Board agenda
and all relevant information are provided sufficiently in advance of
meetings and that adequate t'me is avallable for discussion of all agenda
iterns, in particular strateqic issues. The CEO and the Company Secretary
discuss the agenda ahead of every meeting. At meetings. the Chair
ensures that all Directors are able to make an effective contribution and
every Director is encouraged to participate and provide opin‘ans on each
agenda iterm. The Chair always seeks to achieve Lnanimous decisions of
the Board following due discussion of agenda items.

The Non-Execut ve Directors fully review the Group's operational
performance and the Board as a whale has, with a view to reinforcing its
oversight and control, reserved a list of powers solely to itself which are
not to be delegated to management.
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This list ircludes appropriate strategic, financial, organisational and
compliance issues, including the aporoval of high level announcements,
circulars, the Annual Report and Accounts and certain strategic and
management issues, which include:

+ approval of the annual operating budget and the three-year
strategic plan;
the extension of the Group's activities into new areas of business ardsor
geographical areas (or their cessation);

changes to the corporate or capital structure;

+ financialissues, including changes in accounting policy, the approval
of dividenas, bank facilities and guarantees;

- changes to the constitution of the Board;

+ the approval of budgeted project spend of over $5 million or any capex
or R&D expenditure which exceeds budget by more than 10%;
The aporoval of bid/sales proposals where the estimated total contract
value exceeds $10 million or a duration of five years for fugh risk
proposals (o7 $20 millen for low nsk proposalsy;

- The aperoval of any agency commission whico exceeds 10% on a
custamer contract; and

- consideration and approval of all propasead acquisitions and mergers.

Cach Dircctos has full and tmely access to all relevant information and
the Board meets regularly with appropriate contact between meetings.,
All Directars receive a tallored induction to the Group from the Company
Secietary or joining the Board. When appointed, Non-Execut ve
Directors are rmade aware of and ackr owledge therr ability to meet

the Urne corrmitments necessary 1o fulfil ther Beard and Commiltes
duties. Proceaires are in place, which have been agreed by the Board,
lar Directors, where necessary i the furtherance of their duties, to take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense and all
Directors have access to the Cornpany Secretary.

The Company Secretaryis responsible to the Board for ensurng that all
Board procecdures and goverrance requirements are complied with. The
removal of the Company Secretary is a decision for the Board as a wrole,

Attendance at meetings

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Committees of the Board

Of particular impeortance in a governance contex: are the three
Committees of the Board, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Normination Comrrittee and the Audit Committee, Each Corrmittee
aperates under clear terms of reference, copies of which are available on
our website. Details of the operation of each Committee are provided
within the relevant Commitiee repart.

Bindi Foyle 1s Cair of the Audit Committee The Board 1s satisfied that
Bindi has recent relevant financial experience and her profile apoears
on page 75.

Bruce Thampson 1s Chair of the Nomination Committes but, in accordance
with the Commuttee’s terms of reference, 's not permitted to chair
meetings when the Commttee is dealing with reatters relasing to the
Board Chair's pasition.

Chloe Posonby is Chayr of the Remuneration Conmittee, The
Rer~uneration Committee's principal responsigilities are to decide

on rernuncranon pelicy on behalf of the Board and to dotermine
rermuncration packages and other terrns and conditions of employment,
including appropriate performance-related berefits for the Cxecutive
Directars ard gther senor executives The Remuneration Committee also
has regard to the remuneration of the wider workforce. More detalls of the
acvities of the Remuneration Comrmittee are set out in the Remungration
Reoort an pages 86 to 107

Composition, succession and evaluation

The Norrination Committee is rasponsitle for leading the process

for Board appointments and making recommendations to the Board,
putting in glace plans for succession and regularly reviewang the Board's
structure, size and compaosition. The Committee takes inte account the
challenges and opportun’ties facing the Group and the skills, knowledge
and experierce needed by the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board with regard to any changes. =urther in‘ermation and the activities
of the Nom'nation Committee during the period are detailed on page

a0 and &1

All Cammiztee and Board meetings held in the year were quorate. D rectors’ attendance during the peried ended 30 Septernber 2023 was as follows:

Board Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

(6 scheduled, 1 ad hoc) (3 scheduled) {4 scheduled, 1 ad hoc} (2 scheduled}

Bruce Thompsort 77 - 4(2) 22)
Birid Foyle e 3(3 545 A
Chloe Pansonby A7 7 - 33 - 5’5) 22
Vicor Chavez T 30) 5(5) 22)
05 Sclater &(6) - - -
Ricks Cashin Fie)) T - ’ L S -

The maxirium rumber of meetings which each Director could have attended is shown n brackets,

Aroce Thorp,or rameoranily

DoJesaclater wasaps tirTed e tne Boardon T8 Jzwar, 2023

sesned dowr from e Remunaraner Zamirrze wn bz asee sred ssEeecutvs Crar ot

A Laraary J023

7
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Performance evaluation

The Board continually strives toimprove its effectiveness and conducts
an annual review of 1ts performance and that of its Committees ard the
individdual Directors to enhance overall Board effectliveness. Given the
recent changes to the Board, including the appointment of Jos Sclater
as CEG on 16 January 2023 and prior to th s the appointment of

Rich Cashin as CFO on 31 March 2022, it was agreea that the 2023 Board
evaluation process would be conducted internally using guestionnaires
and interviews led by the Company Secretary. Consideration will be
given ta the 2024 evaluation being externally facilitated.

The Board evaluation guestionnaire, completed by all Board members
and the Cormpany Secretary, was structued to provide Directars with
the opoortunity to express v ews on a variety o° topics includirg Board
remit and responsibilities, skills and dynamics of the Board, meetings and
content, Group strategy, internal control and nsk management, decision
making and communication.

A detailed discussion of the findings fram the performance evaluation
took place at the October 2323 Board meeting. Overall, t~e evaluation
concluded that the Board, its Committees, the individual Oirectors and
the Cnair perfarmed effectively dunng 2023, both indvidually and as a
collective unit. The s'gnificant improvement in this year's strategy process
was comimentes un by several Buard members and although it was
noted that the risk management process had improved, it was felt there
was further work to do It was felt that the Board had improved following
the appointrment of the new CEO and there was a strong sense of
collective respansibility within the Board, with the individual roles working
effectively together In adaition, the introauction of the new simplified
orgarmisat on structure was a clear improvement which had provided
increased clarity on performance drivers.

The followmg areas were 1idemtlied by the Board as areas of focus for 2024
and beyond:

+ Ensuring continued visibilty of and engagement with the US sites and
workforce through g US Board trip, to be ananged e indude Chloe
Ponsonby's successor when identified

- Adeeper understanding of the relationship with the LS DO,
particularly on the Respiratory piotection side of the bus'ness

- Adecper dive into important elements of the strategy including the
transformation vrogram-nes and key vpportunities and technology
developments

Audit, risk and internal control

The Board has an established framewaork of internal controls coverirg
both francial and non-financial controls. In additior, there is a process for
identifying, evaluating and managing significant business risks, including
emerging risks, faced by the Group. This process was in place throughout
the 2023 financial year,

The Code requires that Directors establish procedures to manage risk,
oversee the internal control framework and determine the nature ard
extent of the principal risks the Company is willing to take in order to
achieve ifs long-term strategic oojectives.

The Board, thraugh the Audit Committee, rev ews the effactiveness of

the Groupy's system of intarnal cantrols on a continuing basis. The scope

of this review covers all controls incuding financial, operational and
cormpliance controls, as well as risk managemen:. The Audit Committee
has responsibility to review, menitor and make palicy recommendations to
the Board upon all such matters.

The Audit Committee kaops this systern under continueus revicw and
formally considers its content and its effectiveness on an annual basis.
Such a systern can provide only reasonable, ana not absolute, assurance
aganst material misstaternents or [2sses. The section on internal
control :n the Audit Committee Report on page 84 and the following

paragraphs describe relevant key procedures within the Growp's systems
of intermal control and the process by which the Directors have reviewed
their effectiveness.

Systerns exist throughout the Group which provide for the creation of
three-year plans and annual oudgets, monthly reports enable the Beard
Lo cormpare performance agdinst budget and to take action where
appropr ate. Procedures are in place to identity all major and ernerging
business risks and to evaluate therr cotential impact on the Group. These
risks are described within the Strateg ¢ Repart on pages 62 to 69.

Risk management

Risk is managed by t-e business unit and functional ieadership teams,
supported and overseen by the Risk Committee, whick 1s led by the
Corrpany Secretary and includes other memapers of the finance team.
The nsk management process has remained the same during the

period but the number and structure of the risk registers was changed
ta reflect the new organisational structure. The outputs fram the risk
management pracess are set out in more detailin the Principal Risks and
Risk Management section on pages 62 to 65.

The Audit Committee carmed out quarterly reviews of the «ey risks facing
the Group and 1'sk management activities undertaken during the period,
following the risk reviews conducted by the Risk Committee with the
business leadership. The Audit Commuttee also carried out a robust annual
assessment of the major business risks and errerging risks affecting the
Group, including macro nsks

Internal control

Thete is a clearly defined delegation of authority trom the Boad to the
busingess units, wilh appropriale reporting lines to individual Executive
Drrectors. There are procedures for the authorisation of capital expenditure
and investment, together with procedures for post-completion appraisal.

Internal controls are in existence which provide reasonable assurance

of the mainzenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of
financial information used within the business or for publication. The
Group finance department manages the financial reporting process to
ensure there is appropriate control and review of the financial information
including the production of the consolidated annual accounts. Group
finance is supported by the operational financial managers throughout the
Group. wha have responsibility for providing information in keeping with
the pohcies, procedures and internal best practices as documented in the
internal control manual and are accountable under these.

The Board has issued a Code of Conduct, reviewed annually, which
reinfarces the importance of a robust internal contral framewark
throughout the Group. The 8oard recognises that an cpen and honest
culture is key to understanding concerns within the business and to
uncovering and investigating any potential wrongdoing. The Code of
Conduct sets out the procedure whereby ‘ndividuals may raise concerns
in matters of financial reporting or any other matter of concern with
management or directly with the Chair of the Audit Committec, or
anoryrmously through our “Speak Up' process, to ensure independent
investigation and appropriate follow-up action, All employees camplete
training or the Code of Cenduct to ensure they have read and
understood It

Although the Board ilself retams the ultimate power and authority in
relation ta decision making, the Aucit Committee meets al leas four
trmes a year with management and the external auditor ta review specific
accounting, reportmg and financial control matters,

This Comrnittee also reviews the interirn, preliminary and annual
statements and has primary responsibility for making a recommendation
on the appaintment, re-appeintnent and removal of the external auditor.
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Relations with shareholders

The Directors regard regular communications with shareholders as
extremely mpartant. Al members of the Board receive copies of
analysls' 1eports, of which the Company is tnade aware, and receive

ari investor relations report from tre CFG al every Board meeting. The
Board reports formatly te its shareholders in a number of ways, nclucing
via regulatory news announcemerts, press releases, routine reporting
obl gations, a detailed Annual Report and Accounts and, at the half year,
aninterim report.

Regular dialogue takes place with institut onal shareholders, including
presentations after the Conpany's prelimirary antouncements of the half
ard full year results. The Board recerves camments from analyst meetings
ard shareholder mect ngs a*ter poth inter m and final results and at other
times during the period, The AGM includes a presentation by the CEC on
aspects of the Group's business and sharehalders have the gnportunity

to noth ask questions and to leave wrtten questions with the Company
Secretary for the response of the Directors, Directors also make themselves
available after the AGM to talk informally to shareholders, should they
wish to do s, and 1espond throughout the year to any correspondence
from individual shareholders. This year we have consulted with our major
shareholaers on a revised Remureration Policy.

Special Security Agreement

On 8 December 2020, our U'S. subsidiary Avon Pratoction Ceradyne, LLC
(APC) and the Compary emtered into a Special Secunty Agreement with
the LS Department of Defense, The 55A was entered Into ir sunport

of the U5 DO contracting and product development elements of the
then ballistic protection business and permits APC to perform classified
US defenee contracts, Thers are 4 nurber of speafic protocols that the
Lompany and APC are required 1o comply with under the SSA, ncluding
the apuomliment Lo the APC Board of two ndependent outside US,
Directors approved by the U . Government, The SSA imposes certain
restrictions on the degree of influence the Company can exert over

APC and it is therefore important that the Company maintains a strong
relationship with the APC Board, in order to ensure that we are fulfiling our
own governgrce obhgations. A mer~ber of our Executive Committee is an
inside Director on the APC Board. We anticipate contirued engagement
with APC and the outside Directors in the cormng year undes the
governance of the S$5A to support synergy opportJnities acrass APC's
product portfolio for the bene’it of our Head Protection bus'ness

Disclosure and Transparency Rules {DTR)

Disclasures 'nrespect of the DTR requirements under DR 7.2.6 are given
in the Directors Repaort on pages 108 to 110 and ~ave heer included

by refercnce,

Going concern
The financial slatements nave been prepared on a going concern basis,
which the Directors belicve to be aporepnate for the following reaso™s

The Directors have orepared a geing comcern assessment covering the
17-morth pened from the date of approvai of these financial statements.
The assessment inaicates that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet
its labilities as they fall d.e for that period

As part of their assessmens, the Directors considered a case caseard a
severe downyde scenar o invalving a 21% deding in bank- Jetermined
adjusted =BIT DA against the base case. 1 ~e Dase Lase s the Group's 2024
budget. The severe dovniside scenanic neorporates the curnulative k-
adjusted impact of ndradual nsks identihed 1o the Groue's 2024 budget,
whilst excluding all individual cpportunities. The severe dawnside scenario
also excludes mitigating actions the Duecors could take to reduce future
cas7 outflaws ar experses, The risks align with the Group's prindpal risks
a~d uncertainties and relate crimar ly to cossicle loss of ids and contracts
of lower anticipated volumes of secured work.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Even nthe severe downside scenario, the assessrment indicates that the
Group will have sufficient ‘unds to meetits Labihities as they fall due, and
will Lontinue ta comply with foan covenants, threughout the forecast
period. The Group has committed RCE fadlities o $142 million covering
the 12-mornith going concern pericd, maturing on 8 Seplember 2025
Additional committed RCF facilities of $58 mullion are also available until
8 September 2024 At 30 September 2023 $777 million of the RCF fadility
was drawn (2022 553.7 million),

RCF fpan covenants measured on a bi-annual basis include a maximum
Iimit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease liabilines, to
bank-determined agyusted EBITDA {leverage) 2nd 3 munimurm hroit of 4.6
times for the ratio 0 bank-determined agjusted EBITDA ta interest payable
on bank loans and overdrafts. At 30 September 2023 leverage was 194
times {2022: 199 times). Bank-determined adjusted EBITDA is calculated
on a pre-IFRS 16 leases basis, a~d excludes certain non-cash ilems.

On this basis. the Directors are confident that the Group and Company
will have sufficient funds to continue to meet ther habilities as they fall
due for atleast 17 months from the approval of these finanaial staterments.
Accordingly the Group and Company continue to adopt tne going
concern basis in preparing their financial statements.

Viability statement

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Graup over a f ve-year
period to September 2028, taking account of t~e Group's current position
and patential mpact of the prinaipal nsks docurnenzed in the Strategic
Report Based an this assessment, the Directors have a reascnable
expeclalion that the Group wlf be sble w continue in opergtion and meetl
1ts hatilities as they fall due over the period 1o September 2028,

In makeng this staternent, the Directors have considered the resilience
ot the Graup, taking account of its current position, the princival nisks
fac ng the business in severe but plausible downside scenarios, and the
effectiveness of any mitigating actions, This assessment has considered
the potential impacts of these risks on the business mode), future
performance, solvency and liquidity over the period As set outin the
TCFD section the potential inandial impact of cl'mate change for the
next five years has been assessed as low. w th no material impact on
viability expected.

In making their assessrent, the Directors have taken account of the
Group's RCF facility which provides financing until September 2025

The Directors have ¢ reasonable expectation that broadly similar financing
could be obtained at the end of the curren: RCF facility, supporting
continuing operations. Durnineg the penad the Group has complied with

all covenant requirernents attached to its firancing facilities

The Directors consider the five-year lookout period to be the most
appraznate as this aligns with the Group's own strategic pla=ning period.
T'he Group has an annual business clannirg process, which comprises

a strategic plan, a financial forecast for the current year and a financal
projection for the forthcoming five years. This plan 15 reviewed at least
annually by the Board as part of ts strategy setting process. Once
approved by the Board, the plan prowides a basis for setting all aetaled
financial budgets and strategic actions that are subsequertly used by the
Baoard to monitor performance. Tre farecast performance outlook 1s alse
used by the Rerunerstion Committee to estaolish the targets for both the
arnual and long-termancentie schemes
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

LETTER FROM

THE CHAIR

© Bruce Thompson

Chair of the Nomination
Committee

[

Attendance at Nomination Committee meetings
During the peniod, the Nomination Committee held two scheduled
meenngs. Attendance of the members of the Committee is recorded in
the tzble below:

Eligible
Scheduled meetings Attended to attend
Bruce Thompsan 2 2
Chioe Ponsonby 2 2
Bindi Foyle Z 2
Victor Chaves P /

The Nomination Comrmiltee compises all the Non-Fxecutive Directors.

Main responsibilities
The main respons bilities of the Committee are as follows:

- toregularly review the Board's structure, size and composition, taking
into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Group and
the skills, knowledge and expenence needed by the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board with regard to any change;

- 1o putin place and periodically review succession plans for Directors
and, more generally. senior executives, and

+ tolead the process for Beard appeintrments and make
recommendations to the Board.

The Commitiee’s terms of reference are available within the Corporate
Gavernance section of the Company’s website a~d are reviewed annually.

All Directors are appointed by the Board following a rigorous selection
pracess and subsequent recommendation by the Commitzee.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits of civersity and believes the Board's
perspective and approach are greatly enhanced by gender, age and
cultaral diversity. The Nominat on Commit:ee is responsible for the Board's
policyin this area. Diversity of skills, background, krowledge, international
and industry experience, and gender, amongst many other factors, will

be aken into consideration when seeking to appoint new Directars to

the Board. Notwithstanding the foregeing, all Board appointments will
always be made on merit. The Beard's Diversity Palicy can be found in the
Corporate Governance seciion of the Company's website,

The Balance@Avo initiative, supported by the Cammittee, aims to help
develop and promote our female leadershio, create a forum where we can
identify, nurture and develop the femate leaders of the futurc and ensure
that all women at Avon “rotection thr ve in their careers The in tiat ve

15 driven by a steering group which collaborates on long-term ideas to
help shape the future face of Avon Protection and create an agerda ana
plat‘orn to help buld our future female talent pipeline.

Luning 2023 we have supported ¢ number of Balance@Avon initislives,
including International Women's Day and a Grouo-wide mentoring
progrdmme, We have achieved our minimum target o 33% fermale
representation on tre Beard and continue to work to achieve the same
minimum target representation for the Executive Committee ard its
direct reperts.

Further informat on, including the number of women in senior
managerment and within the organisaticn. is shown in the Sustamabifity
Report on page 47,

Activities during 2023
During the periad, the Commitiee:

- considered and confirmed the appointment of Jos Sclater as CFO,
following the departure of Paul McDonald on 30 September 2022,

- cormmenced the search for a new Non-Executive Direclor 1o replace
Crloe Ponsenby who announced her intention to step down ‘rom the
Board next year following an increase in her executive responsibihties;

- reviewed the composit'on of the 3oard and its successicn plan,

- carmed out an annual review of the Committee’s terms of reference;

- recommendedn re-election of the Board a: the farthcoming Annual
General Meeting; and

- discussed the Board performance evaluation results with the Board
as a whole.
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ADJJSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMMITTEE RETAINS OVERSIGHT OF THE PROGRAMMES
IN PLACE TO ASSESS AND FACILITATE TALENT DEVELOPMENT
AMONGST THE MANAGEMENT TEAMS TO ENSURE THERE IS

A STRUCTURED APPROACH TO GROWING, DEVELOPING AND
RETAINING THE COMPANY’S FUTURE LEADERS.

Board changes

As announced to shareholders on 24 May 2022, after five years as CEO
and 15 years with the Company, Paul McDonald stepped down fram the
Baoard as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2022.

Jos Sclater joined the Group as CEC on 16 Lanuary 2023 The process
followed for Jos' appointment was disclosed in last year’s report. Jos'
biography, together with t~ose of all Board Directors, is includes on pages
74and /5.

Chloe Porsonby has confirmed her intention o step down from the
Board next year following an increase in her executive resporsibilities,
The recruitment process so find Chloe's replacement is beineg led by me as
Char of the Commuittee. Independent executive search consultants Korn
Ferry have been retained and provides with a detailed descnption of the
role and associated skills and experence required. Komn Ferry will compile
a longlist of potertial candidates based on initial interviews, from which a
shartlist of candidates will be selected by the Committee for interview.

The Committee has previousty decided that all Directors should bo put
farward for re-appointment by sharehalders cach year at the AGM Taking
nto account the performance and value that cach Director has brought
to the Board, the Committee confirms the appeintment of cach Nan-
Executive and Exacutive Director should te renewed for a further year,
Accordingly, resalutions to re-appoint each Director for another year are
being put to shareholders at tre ‘orthcoming AGM.

Succession planning

The Committee reviews succession planning for the Board formally at
least once 2 year in order to e~sure the Board is adequately prepered for
potential changes to key Board positions. In addine™, the Committce
reviewed the executive leadership needs of the Group during the period.

Renewing the longer-term succession planning of the Executive
Committee and business unit leadership teams will be a prionty for
the com'ng year now the organisational structure changes have
been completed.

Alongside this, the Committee also retains aversight of the programmes
in place to assess and facilitate talent development amongst the
management teams to ensure there 1s a structured approach to
growing, develnping and retaining the Company’s future leaders.

This year the Comm tree rece ved updates on the Group's Professional
Develepment Programme.

Committee evaluation

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Committee was conducted

as part of this year's Board performance evaluation. T~c outcome of the
2023 Committee review was positive and highlighted the need for the
Committee to ensure it reviews broaded succession plans for the Fxecurive
Committee and senior leadership roles in 2024. Further detall on the result
of the Board evaluation exercise s included on page 78 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

Bruce Thompson
Chair of the Nemination Committee

21 November 2023

g
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© Bindi Foyle

Chair of the Audit
Committee

[

Attendance at Audit Committee meetings

During the period, the Audit Committee held three scheduled meetings.
Attendance of the members of the Committee 15 recorded in the

table below:

Eliyille
Scheduled meetings Attended to attend
Bindi Foyle 3 3
Crloe Ponsarby 3 3
Victar Chavez 3 3

The Commiztee monitors the integrity of the Group's financial statements
and supports the Board with its ongoing menitoring of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

Turing 2023, the Audit Committee continued its key oversight role far
the Board of the Group's financial management and recarting to reassure
sharcrolders that their interests are properly protected.

The Audit Cornmittee has established a set programme of activities, with
agenda iterrs scheduled to coinaide with the annual financial reporting
calendar The Comrnittee reports regularly to the Board on its work,

During the 2023 finanaal year, the Committee has continued to monitos
the integnty of the Group's financial slaterrents and supported the
Board with its ongong menitorning ol the Group’s r sk management

and mternal control systerns, The Committee also determined the

focus of the Group's internal audit activity, reviewed its fingings, and
continues to verify that recommendations and agreed actions are being
appropriately implemented.

In zccordance with the Code, the Committee continued to have oversight
of t~e Group's whistleblowing function, known as 'Speak Up’, together
with the assodiated policies and procedures. The Committee received
reqular updates on the nurmber and types of Speak Up reparts and agreed
follow-up actions throughout the year from the General Counsel.

During 2023 the Audit Committee undertook a full evaluation exercise
of KPMG's audit approach, to ensure the efectiveness of the external
audit function, Reviewing the results of the evaluation of the external
audit process, we are satisfed with both the auditor's independence and
audit approach.

The Audit Committee acts or behalf of the full Board, and tne matters
reviewed and managed by the Cemmittee remai~ the responsibility of the
Directors as a whole,

Main responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has delegated authority from the Board set ootin its
wiritten terms of reference. The terms of reference for the Audir Commiittee are
available for i~spection zt the Company's registeres of ice and on our website.

The key objectives of the Aud t Comnmittee are:

« to provide effective governance and control over the nitegrity of the Group's
financial reporting and rovicw the significant financial reporting judgements;

« to support the Board with its ongo ng meniconng of the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal controls and risk management systermns;

+ to monitor the effect veness of the Group's internal audit function and
review Its material tindings;

+ Lo oversee Lhe relationship with the externadl auditor and make
recommendations to the Board in relation to t~e re-appointment of
the external auditor and monitor the external auditor's objectivizy
and independence;

- toreview the adequacy of the Company’s whistieblowing arrangements
and the pravision of appropnae investigation of any matters raised: and

+ o advise the Board on whether the Commiittee believes the
Annual Report and Accounts, Laken as a whole, 1s fair, balarced,
and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shaeholders to assess the Company's posit'on and performance,
busness model and strategy.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The members of the Committee zre set out on page 77 of the Corparate
Gavernance Regort, The Committee members are all independent
Non-Executive Directors and have the appropriate range of finandial
and commercial expertise necessary 1o fulfll tne Committee’s terms of
reference. The Board considers that as a serving Group Finance Director
of a UK. listed company, | have ooth the current and relevant financial
experience required to chair this Committee.

The Committee typically invites the Board Charr to attend all Committee
meesings together with the Fxecutive Directars and the Group
Financial Controller.
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMMITTEE MONITORS THE INTEGRITY OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPORTS THE BOARD WITHITS
ONGOING MONITORING OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GROUP’S
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS.

2023 Annual Report
The main areas of focus consicered by the Committee during 2023 were
as follows:

- The presentation of the firancial statements and the quality and
acceptallity of accounting policies and pracrces ncluding the
presentation o adjusted perfarmance measures and the adjusting
items, The Commitiee reviewed papers prepared by management,
challenged ma~agement’s judgements and estimates, and reviewed
the cisclosure of adjusted items within the Group's half year and full
year results, agreeing that the pasition taken in the financial staternents
IS appropriate.

The clarity of the disclosures and compliance with finandial

reporting standards and relevant financial and governance -eporting
requircrnents Matenal ateas in which significant judgements have been
auplied are discussed separately in more detail betow.

« At the request of the Board, the Committee considered wnether the
2023 Anmual Repart was fanr, balanced and unzerstandable and whether
it provided the necessary information for shareholdes to assess the
Company’s position and performance, business maodel and strategy.
Hawim gy taken account of the ather information provided to the Board
throughout the year, the Commitiee was satisfied that, taken as a whale,
the Annual Report and Accounts was fair, balanced and understandable

Tne Committee was content, after due challenge and debate, vath the
assumptions made ard the jJucgements applied in the accounts and
agreed with management's recorrmendations. In addiien, the Committee
reviewed and secommended the approval of the statements an carporate
governance, internal control and risk management in the Annual Report
and Accounts and the half year results announcement,

Significant judgements and estimates considered

by the Audit Committee

Afler discussions with management and the external auditor, the
Lommittee determ ned that the key risks of material misstalement of the
Group's 2023 firancial staterrents arose in the following areas:

+ valuation of goodwill allocated to Head Protection;
+ development costs capitalisation and valuation;
- estimation of the defined benefit pension obhgation; and

- the cessat-on of the Armour business satisfying t~e requiremrents
for reporti=g as a discontinued operation.

Goodwill impairment

The Group has a signif cant goodwill balance as a result of legacy
acquisitions, predominantly in relztion to Ceradyre and Team Wendy,
Following the change in operating segments, the Committee canfirmed
management’s assessment that specific impairment reviews for Head
Protection ard Respiratory Protection CGUs were requived, covering
goodwill and other attributable ret assets. In tae prior year, goodwill
was allocated to the single operat'ng segment, Respiratory and

Head Protection,

impairment rev ew of the Head Sratection CGU indicated the carrying
value of gondwill and other attiibutable net assets exceeded future value
in use. The value in use calculation was based an the Bnard approved
five-year plan and whilised discounted cash flow projections, adjusted to
exclude expansionary capital expenditure and linked cash flows.

The Committee considered and challenced the assumptions applied
by management, including consideration of scenaric analysis and
sensitivities, concluding that the proposed impairmaent was reasorable
and appropnate,

Further analysis and detail on gooowallis set outin note 31 of the
financial staternents

Development costs capitalisation and impairment
Fhe Group capitahses development costs and other capilal spend refating
ta rew products,

Expenditure in respect of praduct development is cap tal sed where
management j.dge a pesitive outcome is reasonably certain, ta<ing
accourt of commercial vability and techrical feasibility, inzluding
regulatory approvals required and forecast customer demand.

Capitalised development costs are tested for impairment annually or
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impared. Ary
impairment 1s recognised immediztely in the Consclidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

The keyissues reviewed in the financial year included the valuation

of assets n relation o the categories of escape hoods and boats and
glaves. The Committes concurred with management taat a proposed
impairment relating ta escape hoads and remaining carrying values on
other product qroupings as ncluded in tee 30 Septercher 2023 balance
sheet were appropriate,

Further analysis and dezail on the Group's development costs are set out
in note 3.1 of the financial statements

g
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Estimation of the defined benefit pension assets

and obligations

The Group opetated a contiibutory detined benefit plan to provide
pension and death benefits for the employees of its UK Groap companies
employed before 31 January 2003, The plan was closed to fulure accrual of
benefits on 1 Octaber 2008

The investments held by tre pension scheme include both quoted

and unguoted secunties, the lazter of which by their nature involve
assurnptions and estimates to determine their fair value. Where there

is no active market for the unguoted securities, the fair value of these
assets 15 estimated by the pension trustees based on advice received

from the investment manager whilst also using any availanle market
evidence of any recent transactions for an identical asset. The assumptions
used in valuing unqguoted investrments are affected by current market
conditions and trends which could result in changes in fair value after

the measurement date.

Fstimaticn of the defined benefit pensicn abligation involves sigmificant
judgements concerring futiure changes in inflation, morzality rates and the
selection of a suitable discount rate, as well as the tuture performance and
val.at'on of the scheme's assets. Changes to these actuarial judgements
could have a significant impact on the estimated pension obligation.

An independent actuary is engaged to estimate the defined benefit
pension obligation, undertaking a valuation of the scheme’s assets and
assessmaent of current ana future pension habilities. The Comrmittee
reviewed a report from the independent actuary on the appropriateness
of tre assumptions used N assess ng the assets and liabilities of the
scheme and agreed that the defined cenefit pension abligation was being
est mated appropriately with reasonacle judgements being applied

Further analysis and detail on the Group's defined enefit pension scheme
are set out in note 6.2 of the financial staternents.

External auditor

The Audit Cammuttee considers the appointment of the external auditor
each yea. KPMG LLP (KPMG) was appointed as the Group's external auditor
for the 2019 audit following a tender process in 20018, 2023 is KPMG's fifth
year as the Group's external auditor and Andrew Campbell-Orde has acted
as audiz partner since KPMG's aopointment. In line with practice, 2023 is
the final year that Andrew Campbell-Crde will act as audit partner. The
Committes interviewed a number of prospective partners to assurme
responsibilities for 2024,

The Commistee oversees the relationship with the external auditor, and
monitors all services provided by and fees payable to it, to ensure that
potential conflicts of interest are considered ard that an objective and
professional relationship is maintained.

In particular, the Committee reviews and monitors the independence

and objectivity of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit
process. At the outset of the annual audit process, the Committee receives
a3 detailed audit plan from the auditor, identifying its assessment of the key
risks and ts intended areas of focus. This is agreed with the Commitzee to
ensure coverage is appropriately focused.

The Committee also holds separate discussicns with the external auditor
without Executive management being present. [n addition, I held separate
meerings with the external auditor during the course of the year.

Review of the effectiveness of the external auditor

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the external auditor
annually. This evaluation includes areview of the effectiveress of the
external audil process, consideration of whether management had been
adequately challenged, interaction with the Commitlee and quality of the
audit work. The 2022 review includea reports from the external auditor
and management incorporating feedback against a formal assessment
framewark from key members of the Group's finance team ard those
employees wha had interacted with KPMG during the audit. The Group
reviewed and discussed the overall structure of the audit team to ensure
consisiency and appropriate resourcing in future audits. This report was
reviewed at the Committee’s meeting in March 2023, Overall feedback
was positive and where cpportunities for improvernent were identified in
respect of earlier discussion with management regarding developments
and cranges dunng the penod, KPMG was asked to take account of that
feedback in the planning for fuzure audit activity. KPMG and management
also worked tegether 12 more clearly define the information reguired
from management during the audit to aid increased audit efficiency.

Th s review concluded that the audt was comducted to 2 good standard
with appropnate focus ard challenge an the key audit risks.

KPMG has discussea more generally the firm's orocess for enhancing audit
quality whicr includes internal quality reviews,

Audit fees and auditor re-appointment

During 2023, the Comm.ttee reviewed and aporoved the proposed audit
fees ard terms of engagement for the 2023 aud t and recommended to
the Board that It propaoses to shareholders that KPMG be re-appointed

as the Group's external auditor for 2024 at the AGM to be Peld on

26 lanuary 2024,

Auditor independence

Te ensure the independence ana objectivity of the external auditar and
avoid a situation where the audtar's familiarity witn the Group's affairs
results n excessive trust, the Committee maintairs 3 formal Auditor
independence Pclicy. The policy follows the ethical guidance on auditor
independence issued by the FRC in December 2019 and was reviewed
during the pericd to ensure 't remained appropriate. Under the policy all
non-audit services permitted by the FRC require the specific approval of
the Audit Committee,

The policy elso establishes guidelines for the recruitment of employees or
former employees of the external auditor To ensure compliance with this
policy, the Audit Committee carred out a review dunng the period; this
inchided consiazeration of the remuneration received by KPMG for audit
services, audit-related services and non-audit work.

The breakdown of the fees paid to the external auditor ‘s included in note

2.5 of the financial statements, KPMG also conducted a hal® year review on
the interim financial results of the Group No other non-audit services were
pravided by KPMG during the periad.
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Internal control

The Committee regularly reviews the cffectiveness o the Group's

systern of internal conlrels and sk management the Commitiee regularty
teviews the ellectiveness of the Group's systern of internal contiols and risk
managerment. This involves manitoning dnd teviewing the effectiveness

of internal audit actrilies, whicn includes a review of the audits cared
ou:and the recommendatiors arising I7 also reviews management’s
responses, actions to address recommendations, approving the internal
audit programme and resourcing for 2024.

The internal audit programme for 2023 comprised of nsk-based

audits undertaken by Deloitte. Delcitte reports directly to the Audit
Committee, which considered and approved the scope of the 2023
internal audit pragramme ta oe undertaken. During the period, Deloitte
focused its internal audit work on a review of she planning for rew ER?
impfementation (following prior year ERP reviews), an advisory audit on
Group HR policies around personnel management and a review of the
investment pracess {or intangible and tangible spend.

Ihe 2024 internal audit programme will incorporate changes to resourcing,
with the appointment of an Internal Audit Manager, which is expected to
imprave accountability and effectiveness.

Several improvements were identifica in respect of developing

and enhancing the Group's risk management prazesses, further
documentation around internal controls, increased consistency to suppor:
investment decisions and the design of globally consistent R processes

As part of the internal control framework, site controllers and plant
managers are okliged to pasitrely confirm, on a biannual basis, that
controls documented in the internal contral manual are in place and
are being adherad to. with specific reference to key controls sach as
bank and control account reconciliations. This process has been n place
for the year under review and up to the date of appioval of the Annual
Revott and Accounts, [t has been reviewsd by the Board and continues
1o he monitored by the Committes, which remaging satishiedd weth

the arrangernents.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As part of its work, and in ling with its terms of reference, the Comrmittee
also consigers the discharge of the Board's responsibilities in the areas of
corporate governance, financial reporting and ‘nternal conzral, including
the internal management of rsk, as identified in the Code and the FRC
Guidance on Risk Managerrent, Internzl Contral and Related Financial
Business Reporting. In 2023, the Group continued to strergthen its

risk management procedures and these have beer revewed by the
Committee Risk maragement activities are dealt with in more detail

in the Principal Risks and Risk Management section on pages 62 to 69
and the Corporate Governance Report on page 78,

Audit Committee effectiveness review

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Audit Commiltee was
conducted alongsicde the Board effectiveness review, information on
which is pravided in the Corporate Governarce Report on page 78.
The review concluded that the Audit Cormmittee continued 12 operate
effectively during the pericd,

onali b date

Bindi Foyle
Chair of the Audit Committee

21 November 2023
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Attendance at Remuneration Committee meetings
During the period, the Remuneration Committee held five scheduled
meetings. Attendance of the members of the Committee s recorded in
the table below

Eligible
Srhaduled meetings Artended to attend
Crloe Ponsonby 5 5
Bruce Thompson 4 4
Bindi Foyle 5 5
victor Chavez 5 5

On behal* of the Board, | am pleascd o present the Directars’ Remunerabion
Report for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023, This includes the
following three sections:

this Annual Staterment which summarises the work of the Remuneration
Committee {the Comrmittee }in 2023 dana sets out the context in wnich
pdy decisions were made;

+ the revised Directors’ Remuneration Pol ¢y (‘tre Policy’) which will set
the parameters within which our Directors will be remunerated going
forward and whicr will take effect from the date of our 2024 AGM,
subject to sharenolder approval; and

the Annuzl Report on Remuneration which provides: (1) details of the
rernuneration earned by Directors and the link between Company
performance and pay i FY23; and (1) how we intend to implerment the
riew Policy in FY24,

The Annual Staternert and the Annual Report o Remudneration will,
together, be subject to the usual advisory shareholder vote at the AGM
on 26 January 2024, The revised Policy will e subject to a separate
binding shareholder vote at the same meeting. A separate resolution to
amend the Long-Term Incentive Pla~ to accommodate the ability to make
awards in the first year cf the revised three-year Policy will also be put to
sharenholders for approval.

Policy review

Qur current Polcy was appraved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM, The
Palicy is now reaching the end of its three-year iife and the Commitiee

is seeking approval of a revised Policy. This is timely, as it has provided
the Committee with an opportunity to look afresh and in depth at the
remureration arrangements in light of 3 number of recent developments
at Avon Protection - ot least the recruitment of a new management
team and the recent adoption of the new five-year STAR strategy - and
to respond to the latest remuneration-related governance changes and
investar quidance

As part of t~is pracess, during 2023 we undertaook a comprehensive reviey
of senior execut've pay arrangerents, including a consultation exercise
with awr major shareholders. We were pleased to have spoken to d'rectly
or to have received responses from shareholders covering over 45% of
shares in issue at the time of consulting, as well as from 155, and | would
like to thank all respondents for their constructive comments which have
helped shape the proposed Policy being put forward for approval.

Business context

O 16 January 2023 Jos Sclater became CEC of Avon Protection. Jos has
brougnt with h m a wealth of expenence in leadership roles, ar iImpressive
track record of value creat.on within glozal man.facturing businesses and
deenrexpetience 1 the international defence mdusliy Jos appointrrent
was preceded by the apoontment of Rich Cashin as CHO in March 2022

Under Jos Teadership, and clusely supported by Rich, the management
tearn has undertaken a comprehensive review of the business and
developed the STAR strategy which has been designed to improve
financial performance over the next five-year peried through growing
revenJes, margin expansion and improved return on invested capital
whilst enhancing our ESG prcrities, namely protecting more lives, and
reducing scrap waste and carbon emissions. Full cetails of the STAR
strategy can be found in the Strategic Report on page 22,

After a difficult period under previous management, and as we begin to
pu: the new strategy into effect, the signs of recovery are already clear.
However, achieving the strategic goals and translating these into the
targeted improvement in financial performance will reguire superior
execution, This is what we are aiming to stimulate and reward.

Proposed changes to the Policy

The Committee undertook a comprehensive raview of the pay
arrangements implerrented three years ago and concluded the
current structure — comprising an annual bonus scheme and awards of
performance shares under our UIP - continues to remain appropriate
for Avon Protect-on. Howewer, at this cntical juncture, to incentivise our
new management team 1o continue to bulld on the fo.nzations of
implementing the new strateqic direction, 1t 1s proposed that a one-cff
matching arrangerment replaces the LTIP grant in the first year o our
three-year Policy only,
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WE HAVE UNDERTAKEN A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW OF OUR POLICY WHICH
INCLUDED A WIDE-REACHING SHAREHOLDER CONSULTATION EXERCISE.
THIS EXERCISE WAS A CRITICAL INPUT INTO OUR REVIEW PROCESS AND

HELPED SHAPE OUR FINAL PROPOSALS.

This will raguire aur Executive Directors to purchase oroinary shares with
their cwn funds up to the vaiue of 100% of thei” base salary {Investment
Shares) and in return they will receive a matching award fo the value of
up to four tmes the value of shares purchased ('Matching Shares’). The
purcnase of investment Snares will ensure the interests of the Executive
Directors are immediately aligned w'th shareholders, with their own
capital at risk. This contrasts with traditional Long-Term Incentive Plan
{LTIP) schemes which an not require personal investment, The Matching
Shares will vest subject to continued employment, the retention of
Investment Shares over the performance periad and acrievernent of
ambitious performance targets measured over the three-yedr perica

end ng 30 September 2026, Two-thirds of the awards will be eligible to
vest after three years and “he remainirg one-third after four years, Holding
periods will also apply 1o ensure Executives cannot realise any benefit from
thesr vested awards unib the fifth anniversary of grant

During consaltation, some investors requestes that a £ap on the total
number of rmatcning avvards apply in order to prevent too sigrificant a
number of awards Ceing granted (f the share price at the intended grant
date (February 2024115 Jow (moting hat the number of awards)s a function
of the matched investment value and the share prce at the time o7 grant).
The Commitlee 1ok this feedback on oard and has agreed tat the
Lowal number of matching awards iy agyregate for the CeL and CFO wali
be cappied 2l 450,200 shares, This may resuliin a makimum maich that s
lower than 4:1 but, v any event, the mdximum will not be fugher than this
level. In effect, if the award price at the date of grantis below ¢ £8.22 the
250050 award cap will take effect and the roaximur match will reduce.
Separately, the Board is considering how best to heage vested awards to
reduce te dilutive impact over the next three years

Vasting of the awards will be dependent on two measures, independently
assessed — 70% on ad usted basic earnings per snare (EPS) and 30% on
retlrn on nvested capital (ROIC):

FY26 EP5S FY26 ROIC

[70%) (30%]) Match
Threshold 90¢ 6% 05 fie 12.5% vesting)
Target 125¢ 18% 1751 fie 4275% vesting)
Maximum 150¢ 20% 41 lie, 100% vesting)

Achieving trie FPS and ROIC targets will require a significant recovery
inearnings, optimisation of our capital base and performance well in
excess of current market expectatiors (2026 EPS consensus is ¢, 72¢h The
targets are corsiderad to be particularly stretching and are desiqned to
ensure that particpants will only receive tne full benefit of they deliver
trarsformational rasults or informaticn, delivering the target of 125 {25
and 18% ROIC would result in vesting eruivalert to the current 175% of
salary LTIP award Sareholders felt that the target and upper stretch fevels
were very demanding inlight of cansensus and broader expectations,

The Board believes successful implementation of our STAR strategy will
deliver sigrvficant financial benefits to the Group over the next four years
anc in turn will create suostantial sharebolder value and the Comemittee

is keen to see the incentive arrangements closely linked to the strateqy.
The personal and sianificant investment by our Executive Directors
inherent i~ the proposed one-off matching arrangement demanstrates
their commitment to the successful implementation of the strategy; the
ambitious earnings and ROIC targets are designed to deliver substantial
value creation and a swift turnaround; and the interaction of the phased
vasting and holding perions will ansure Fxecutves are locked i over

the lnnger term In addition, as well as covering the CFO and CFO, other
arrangements will be implermented far other senior executives at Avon
Protaction to ensure tney are motivated and retained at a time when their
existing LTIP awards ~ave little or no value. Retaining the senior team both
at the Board level and below the Board s crtical to the delivery of our new
strategy For these roasens, the Committec belioves that this arrangomaont
is appropriatc and in the bestinterests of the Group and ts sharcholders,

The current LTI rutes will be amended to facilitate the propased one-off
matching arrangement. Following the grant of the matchimg award n the
first year of the three-year Policy period, for the second and third years,
annual LTIP awards will be granted up to the rarmal Policy maximum of
/5% Of salary

The Committee has also considered whether any other elernents of the
Policy require changing to rellecl corporate governance developrmernts
simee il wds last approved but s cornfortable that these have been
previously addressed. A two-year holding pericd applies 1o LTIP awards,
pension is aligned with the workforce contribution rate (7.5% of salary), a
post-cessation holding period applies and malus and clawback provisions
are aligned with market practice @and wafl reflect any changes required -
if necessary —when e ~ew LK, Corporate Governance Code is finalised).
Further detalls of how we intend to implement the new Policy in FY24 are
set out later in this letter.

Remuneration outcomes for FY23

The annual bonus far FY23 was dependent an a scarecard of measures
whchincluded adjusted operating profit (40%), operating cash flow (20%),
reverue (20%) and tne delivery of strategic objectives (20%}.

Joz Sclater joined the Corpany shortly after the financial annual banus
targets were set, Upon joining and as rmentioned earlier, Jos embarked
upon a comprehensive review of the business a~d developed and
implernented a new strategy ana change of direction, T~ anginal
financial targets were largely unachievaole and tis has resulted in no
payour against the revenue, profit and cash objectives The Committee
cauld have amended the targets to align better with the new strategy
but decided aganst this Therefore, in practice, the maximurm banus
opporiLnity was lirnied Lo the strategic objectives whic sucounted for
209 of the maximum bonus Foliowing strong individual performarce
and the accomplishment ol important seon lerm non-fnanaal drivers, the
Committee has detetmined that the Tull 26% out of the 20% ornstrategic
abjectives should be payable The Committee recognises the sensitivities
aound caying & corus based solely on non-financial perfarmance cut oo
this occasion believes it is warranted given the new CEG and targets that
were made on an old strategy and set of assumptions,
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPCORT CONTINUED

Remuneration outcomes for FY23 continued

Vesting of the Long-Term Incentive Plan awards made on 2 February 2021
was based on two measures - relalive 15K and EPS growth — over the
three-year performance period. The Group cid not meet the thresrold
largets and therefore the awards lapsed in {ull. Neither Jos Sclater nor
Rich Cashin held awards under this cycle of the LTIR

Ne discretion was applied in determin-ng the annual bonus and LTIP
vesting cutcomes. “he Committee agreed the final remuneration
cutcomes reflected Group performarce over tre respective performance
periods and was satisfied the Paticy had operated as intended.

Board changes

As setout ir the prior year's report, Jos Sclater joined the Board as CEO
with effect from 16 January 2023, Jos’ base salary on joming was set

af 526,594 p.a. along with bonus opportunity of 125% of base salary
(meo-rated for tirre served in FY23). He also received an [ TIP grant of 175%
of salary on 18 January 2023, shortly after join'ng. Jos did not farfeit any
remuneration upen joiring the Company and therefore there was no ~eed
t0 make buyout awards

During the period between tre previcus CEO, Paul McDonald, stepping
off the Board on 30 Septemnber 2022 and jos Sclater joning in January 2023,
Bruce Thormpson tock on the role of Executive Chair. Bruce agreed with
the Remuneration Committee that he would not receive any additionz|
fees for acting as Executive Chair and continued to receve his Non-Dxecutive
Char fee only over this periad., Bruce reverted to his Dosition as Non-Cxecutive
Chair of the Board following Jos Sclater's joiring. During the penoa of
Bruce's appointment as Executrve Charr, he temporanly stepped down

as 3 member of the Remuneration Committee, but cont nued to be invited
to Commuttee meetings

How the Policy will be applied in FY24
The Committee will seek to implement the revised Policy as follows:

Base salarles

Jos Sclater's salary will increase by 4.5% from £526,594 10 £550,291 and
Rich Cashin's salary will increase by 4.5% from £358,750 to £374,854. These
increases are in line with the average general workforce increase of 4.5%
for FY24. As a reminder, last year the CFO's salary was increased by 2.5%
which compared to a general workfarce increase ranging from 5% o 8%.

Annual bonus

The maximum annual bon.ws opportunity will be 125% of salary, with

25% of any bonus earmed deferred into shares for two years. The bonuses
will be hased on absolute Groun operating profit (50%), average working
capital turns (30%) and strategic objectives (20%) The targets are
commercally sensitive but will be disclosed in full or a retrospective basis
in next year's report,

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Subject ta the approvat of the revised Policy, the Commitiee irtends to
grant awards after the AGM in February 2024 under the one-off share
matching arrangement to both Executive Directors. Details of how this
arrangernent will operate in practice, ncluding the performance measures
and targets, are set out earlier in this letter.

Views of our stakeholders

As mentioned, we have sought to undertake a comprehensive review of
our Policy to include a wide-reaching sharehaider corsultation exercise.
This exercise was a ¢rivical input into our review process and helped

shape our final proposals. We understand the reticence of some investors,
in principle, to the use of one-off incentive arrargements but we are
convinced that the proposed share matching arrangement, under which
awards will be made in 2024 only. is the right approach for Avon Pratection
for the reasons set out earlier in this letter, However, we were pleased

that the majority of those sharehalders we consulted with were broadiy
suppartive of the new Palicy and the one-off share matching arrangement
(subject to the addition of safequards, such as the overall cap on the
number of shares which may be awarded, which we built in} and we were
comforted by this support. | would like to take this opporturity to reiterate
my thanks 1o all sharehclders and proxy voting agencies that participated
in this process and for the constructive fecaback that has contnibuted to
the desgn of the new Policy.,

The Commuttec also takes employees’ views on pay into account and

th's is achieved through a Global Employce Advisory Forum This year
discussions have included the organisatioral restructure and increased
empowerment, togetrer with the autcome from the remuneratior review,
which was aimed at ensuning our pay practices are fair and competitive.
The annual bonus scherne was also Indudedd in this review.

l'would once again like to thank shareholders [or thein input in shaping
over propoesed policy and | hope we will recerve your support fur tre
resolutions relating o remuneration at the forthcoming AGM. | am always
happy to hear from the Company's shareholcers and you can contact me
via the Corrpany Secretary if you have any questions on this report ar
mare generally in relation to the Company's remuneration.

 Po
T

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

21 November 2023

88 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023



QVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE

The key elements of Executive Directors’ remuneration packages and our acproach to 'mplementation in 2624 are surmmmarised below

Remuneration 2023 Remuneration 2024
FIXED PAY Salary CEC: £576,594 [upon Jaining in January 2023) CEC: £550,291 {4 5% increase effective
{annual base] 1 Cetober 7073}

CFO- E35B750
CHO: £374,894 4.5% increase effective
1 Oclober 2023)

Pension A £5% of salary employer contnbution tate Mo change
applies. This is al.gned with the UK. workforce
contribution rate

Benefits Includes car allowance, private health insurance  No change
and life insurance

ANNUAL BONUS Maximum 125% of salary Mg change
opportunity
CEO's banus pro-rated for gerad as a Oiregtor
Award level + Performance measures: revenue {70%), - Performance measures: absalute Group
and operation operating profit (40%), operating cash flow operating prafit (50%), average workiog
(P09%,) and strateqic objectives [P0%) capital turns (30%) and strategic

25% of the overall amaunt deferred into objectives (70%)

shares which vest after two years - 25% of the cverall amount deferred nlo

Malus and clawback provisians aaply shares woich vest afler bwo years

Malus and clawback provisions apply

LONG-TERM Award leve! Normal LTIP One-off share matching
INCENTIVES CEO: '75% of salary grant an appointment arrangement {FY24 only)
N + Upto 1004% of salary investment
CH5150% of salary matched at up to 2times, e wpto

400% of salary

+ Mur~ber of matching awards
deternmined by malching the nwvestment
value and using the share pree at grant
Total awards to the CEQ and CFO
subject to an overall cap of 450,000
shares in aggregate (CED; 267,656 shares,

ard CFO: 182,344 shares)

Operation - Performarce measures: refative TSR (50% + Performance measures: EPS (70% of

of awardj and F25 with a ROCE undernin award) and ROIC (30% of award)

(50% of award) « Perfarmignce medsured over thiee yedrs

Performance measured ovet three years - Vestsin two tranches after three years

+ Two-yaar additiona nolding perod applics {rwo-thirds of the award) and four years

to vested awards {ore-third of the award)

Malus a~d clawback provisions apply - Vesting dependent Lpan retent.on of
Investment shares over t-e cerformarce
perud

« Additonal Falding per.ods apply to
vested awards such that no value car be
realised until after five years from grant

Malus and clawback provisions apply

SHAREHOLDING Inemployment 200% of salary Mo change

GUIDELINES Post-employment 200% of sakary 10 be held for two yoars Mo change
post-amployrment

e
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

1his section of the report sets out our Directors’ Rernuneration Policy
which will be put forward for shareholder approval at the 2024 AGM on
26 January 2024, The Policy will take format effect from the date of the
AGM, subject to sharehelder approval, replacing the one most recently
approved by shareholders at the AGM on 29 January 2621,

Guiding policy

The Company's guiding policy o™ exccutive remuneration is that:

- execUlive remuneration packages should be clear and simple, taking
Into zccount the linkage between pay and performance by both
rewarding effective management and making the enhancernent of
shareholder value a critical success factor in the setting of incentives,
both in the shert and the long termy;

« the overall level of salary, incemtives, pension and cther benefits
should be competitive (but not excessive) when compared with other
companies of a similar size and global spread and should be sufficient
to attract, retain and mativate Fxecu.tive Directors of superior calibre
in order to deliver long-term success; and

« performance-related components should form a significant proportion
of tne overail rermuneration package, wilth maximum total potential
tewards being earnea thiough the achievermnent of challenging
performance targets based on measures that are linked to the
Company's KPls a~d to t~e pestinterests of shareholders

Considerations when determining Remuneration Policy
As described in the letter from the Remuneration Commitzee Cha'r, the
Committee undertook a comprehensive review of the current Directars’
Remuneration Policy during the course of 2023 to ensure, primarily,

that it cont'nues to: {) suppart the strategy ard promote the tong-term
sustainable success of tre Group; {1 align executive remuneration with
Company culture, purpose and values and clearly provide hnkage to the
surcessful delivery of the Campany’s long-term strateny; {iii} attract, retain
ard motivate executive management of the quality required tc run the
Company successfully twithout paying more thanis necessary); and {iv)
have reqard to the views of our sharehalders and otner stakeholaers and
appropriately reflect the best practice expectations of institutional investors.

In reviewing the Policy dunng the course of 2023, and in planning for its
implermenzation, the UK. Corporate Governance Code has continued to
be a key touchstone and we have been careful to take full account of the
remureration-related provisians in our design considerotions. Wth redard
to how we have scught to comply wit~ the six factors outlined in Provision
40 of the Code, far examole, we celieve the following are worth noting

In particutar.

« Clarity — Qur remuneration framewaork is structured to support financial
delivery and the achievernent of strategic objectives, aligning the
interests of Execulive Directors with these of our sharehalders. Cur
Policy is transparent and well understood by our senion executive leamn,
It has been dearty articulated to our shaiehofders and recresentative
badies (both on an angeing basis and during consultaticn when
changes have been proposed).

Simplicity — Our remuneration framework 1s straightforward to
communicate and operate. We have operated the same simple and
transparent overgrching structure for many years and spplied it on a
Cons stent basis across all employees For the first year of the new Policy
anly, oe-off awards will be made under a single matchng arrangement
to the Executive Directorsin lieu of the usual LTIP awards. This s
intended ta be a simple long-term incentive arrangement with clear
alignment to the new STAR strategy and to shareholder interests at its
heart. The measures and targets are indelibly linked to our longer-term
strategic goals and to incentivising superior financial performance.

In the second and third years of the Policy we will return to our
long-standing approach of making our usual LTIP awards only.

Risk — Our ircentives have been structured to ensure that they

are aligned with the Board's system of risk managerment and risk
appetite. Inappropriate ask taking i1s discouraged and m'tigated
through, for cxamgle: () the opcration of arrangements that provide
an appropriate balance of fixed pay to short and long-term incentive
pay and throwgh multiple verfarmance measures based on a blend of
financial and non-financial targets; (n} the deferral of a proportion of
anrual bonus nto shares and the operation of a post-vesting holding
period for the LTIP; (i) the operation of significant in-ermployment
and post-employment sharehalding guidedines; and (iv) the operation
a* robust recovery and withholding provisions.

Predictability — Qur incentive plans are subject to individual caps,
with our share plans also subject to market standard dilution lim'ts,
The Committee has full discretion ta alter the pay-out level or vesting
outcome to ensure payrnents are appropriately aligned with the
underlying performance of the Company.

Proportionality - Ensurng Executive Directors are not rewarded for
failure underscares our appioach to remuneration {e.g. a significant
propart.on of our packages 15 based on long-term performance targets
linked to the KPIs of the Company, our ability to use discretion to
ensure appropriate cutcomes and our apenness to doing so throuwgh
the struclue uf uur Exge Uuve Lirectors’ contracts). There is a clear link
between individual awards, delivery of strategy and our long-term
performance, As ment'oned above, formulaic incentive outcomes are
reviewed by the Committee and may be adjustea having consideration
to overall Group performarce and wider workforce remuneration
policies and practices.

Alignment to culture - Qur Policy is aligned to Avor Protection’s
culture and values The Comumittee stnives toinstil a sustainable
performance and continuous improvement culture at the management
level that can cascade down throughout the Company. The Board sets
the framework of KPIs against which we manitor the performance of
the Cornpany and the Committee links the performance metncs of

our Incentive arrangements to those KPly We are also keen to foster

a culture of share ownership throughoul the Company and cperate
all-employee share arrangements in pursuit of this cbjective.
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORY GOVERNANCE

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committec is committed to an ongoing dialogue w th snareholders
and welcomes feedback on Directors’ remuneration. The Committee seeks
to engage directly with major sharenclders and their representative bodies
an any material changes to the Policy. The Commyttee also considers
shareholder feedback received in relation to tne remuneration-relates
resolutions each year following the AGM. This, plus any additional
feedback received from time to time (including any updates to
sharcholaers' remuneration guidelines), is then considered as part of

the Carmmittee’s annual review of the Policy and its implementation

Invits review of current remuncration and the proposed Policy being

put forward, the Committee conducted a comorehensive consultation
exercise which sought feedback from shareholders holaing over 45%

of snares in issue, as well 3s from the main shareholder representative
bodies. The Commitiee was very grateful for the comments recenved.

The feedbiack, which was largely positive, was used constiuctively Lo shape
out final proposals, Further delails regarding (the consultation exetcise can
be found ir the Remuneration Committee Chair's fetter on page 86,

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group

The Committee closely monitors the pay and conditions of the weder
workforce and the design of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy is
informed by the palicy for employees across the Group.

While employees are not formally consulted or the design of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, the 3oard receives views through ¢ Global Employee
Advisory Forum comprsing representatives frorm aur Culture Champion
netwaork, Another way in which the Board engages with employees acrass
the Graupr on remuneraticn is through the Froployee Cpinion Survay,
which ircludes a section dedicated to pay and benefits, The resulls of this
are shared with the Board.

Differences in pay policy for Executive Directors
compared to employees more generally

As far the Deecutive Directors, general practice across the Group s

to recruit employees at competitve market levels of remuneration,
incentives and berefits to attract and retain employess, accounting for
natignal and regional talen: pools When considering salary Incredses

for Directors, the Commttes will take Intg account salary increases

and pay and employrment conditions across the wider workforce. The
pension cuntnibution for Executive Directors 1s consistent with tal for the
genelal workfolce, 2/4% of employees are able Lo earn annual bonuses
for delivering exceptional performance, with corporae performance
measures aligned to these set for the Executive Diectors. All employees,
including the Executive Directors, have the opportunity to particpate in
the tax-approved share incentive plans

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There are some differences in the structure o the Policy for the Fxecutive
Directors comparen to that for other employees within the organisation,
which the Comimittee believes are necessary to reflect the differing levels
of seriarity and responsibility. At senior levels, remuneration is ircreasingly
long term and ‘at risk’, with an increased emphasis on performance-related
pay and share-pased remuneration. This ensures the remuneration of

the Lxecutives is aligned with both the long-term performance of the
Company and the interests of sharchalders

Further detads of the role of the Committee and its decision-rraking
processes car be found i the Annual Report on Rermuneration
on page 99,

Changes to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

In surmmary, the only malenal chanyge to the Policy elates to the
introducton of 2 ane-off long-term share matchimg anangement

for operazion only in the first year of the three-year Policy. Under this
arrangerent the Exacutive Directors will be required to purchase

shares with a value of up to 100% of salary and to hold them over the

set performance period. Subject to maintaining this holding over the
performance period these Investment Shares may be matched at up to

a ratio of 4 1 {aibeit subject to an overall cap under the arrangement of
450,000 shares in aggregate) dependent on the achievernent of stretching
performance targats and continued employrment. The awards under th's
share matching arrangement will pe made in the first year of the ~ew
Policy anby (in heu of tne usual FTIP awards) after whah it is intended
that normal awards under the I TIP at up to 175% of salary perannum

are mase In years two and three, No further awards will be made under
the share matchi~g arrangement after the 2024 grant. Further details

of this proposed change, along with the rationale, are set out in the
Remwuhneration Committee Cha r's letter on page 86.

7
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Policy table
The table below sets out the main components of the proposed Direclors’ Remuneration Policy. together with further information on how thase aspecis
of remuneration will operate, subject to approval by sharehclders at the 2024 AGM. The existing Policy - approved by sharehalders at the 2027 AGM on
29 January 2021 and set out in the 2020 Annual Report — will remain in effect until shareholders approve the new Policy. The Remuneration Commitee

has discretion to amend remuneration and benefits to the extent described in the table and the writzen sections that follow it.

Element of

remuneration

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance targets

Basic salary

To provide competitive
fixed remuneration.

To attract ana retain
Executive Drectors of
supcrior calibre inorder
to aeliver long-term
business success

Reflects individual
experience and role.

The Committee’s aim is to
position salanes around
the rid-market level of
companies of a similar

size, seale and complexily.

Normally reviewed annually by
the Rermuneration Committee
with increases typically effective
1 Ccrobor,

Individual salary adjustments
take into account each Executive
Director's role, competence

and performance. Sign ficant
adjustments are infrequent and
normally reserved for -natenal
changes in rolc, a sigrificant
increase in the size/complexity of
the Group, or where an inderidual
has been appointed on 2 low
salaty with an intention to bnng
thern to mar<et levels over time
and subject to perflomnance.

Qther factors which will be taken
into accaunt will include pay

a~d conditions elsewhere in the
Group, progression within the
cle, and competitive salary levels
in companies of a brozdly similar
size and complexity.

Mo prescribed maximum or
maximum ‘ncrease,

The normal appraach will be to
limit increases to the average
level across the wider workforce,
thoush increases above this

level may be awarded subject

to Committee discretion to take
account of certain circumstances,
such as those stated under the
‘Operation’ column of this table

On recraitment ar promaotion,
the Committec will consider
previous remuneratior and pay
levels for comparable companies
tfor example, companies of
similar size and complexity,
industry sector or location,
wheri sett'ng sdlary levels. This
may lead to salary being set at a
lower or higher level than for the
previcus incumbent.

Although there are no
formal performance
conditions, any increase
In base salary is only
implemented after
careful consideration of
individual contributicn
and performance and
having due regard to
the factors set out in the
‘Operation’ colurmn of
this table.

Benefits

To provide competitive
fixed remuneration,

To attract and retain
Executive Diteclors of
superivr calibre in order
te delver lonig-lesn
business success,

Executive Directors are entrtled
to benefits such as travel-related
benelits induding a car or car
allowance, medical assessments,
private hedlth insurance and lile
assutance. bxecutive Direclors
will e eligible for any other
benefits which are introduced for
the wider warkforce on broadly
sivnilar terms.

Any reasonable business-related
expenses {and any tax thereon)
can be re'mbursed if determined
to be a taxable benefit,

Executive Directors will be eligiole
t2 participate in any all-employee
share plan operated hy the
Company. on the same terms

as other ehgible employees.

For external a~d internal
appointments or relzcations,
the Company may pay
certain relocation and/or
related incidental expenses
as appropriate.

As it s rot possible to calculate in
advance the cost of all benefits, a
maximum 15 not pre-determined

The maxirturm level of
participation i all-employee

share plans is subject to the lirmils

impused by the relevant tax
authority from tme to time

Not applicazle,
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QVERVIEW

Element of
remunheration

STRATEGIC REPORT

Purpase and link
to strategy

GOVERNANCE

Gperation

Pension

To reward sustained
contributions by providing
retirernent benefits

The Company funds
contnibutions to a Director’s
pension as appropriate through
contnbution to the Company’s
money purchiase scherme

or thiough the provison

of salary supplements or a
cormbinanon of these,

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Maximum potential value

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Performance targets

Company contnbuticr up to
the prevailing rate offered 1o
the workforce inthe country
witere they dre based dt the
tirne {currently 5% of salary
inthe UK),

Annual honus

Rewards the achievement
of annual finandial and
business targets aligned
with the Group's KPls,

Maximum bonus only
payable for achieving
dernanding targets.

Deferred clement
encourages long-torm
sharehaldings and
discourages excessive
fisk taking

Bonus is based on performance in
the relevant financial period. Any
payment 1s aiscretionary and will
he subject ta the achieverment of
strelching performance fargets.

Bonus is normally paid in cash,
except 25% of any bonus which s
deferred into shares for two years.

Bonuses are not contractual
and arc not eligible for inclusion
in the calculation of pension
arrangements,

Recovery and withhalding
pravisions apply in cases of
misconduszt, corparate fallure,
1eputational damage, eror

in caleulation of g bonus and
miaterial misstatement of
finarcraf results.

Dividenos or avidend equivalents
May accrue on aeferred shares,

Capped at 125% of salary.

Not applicable

The Committes sets
perfarmance measures
and targets that are
appropriately stretch ng
earh year, taking into
account key strategic
and financial priorities
and ensuring there is
an appropriate balance
between incentivising
Executive Directors

o meet targets, while
ensunng they do not
drive unaceeptable
levels of risk or
nappropriate behaviours.

The majority of the
bonus will normally

be based on financial
megstres and the
balance could be

hased on non-inancal,
strategic, persenal and/or
ESG related objectives

A graduated scale of
targets 1s narmally set for
each measure, with no
pay-out far performance
below a thresnald level
of petformance

The Committee has
discretion to amend
the pay-nut should any
farenulaic curcome not
reflect the Committee's
assessent of overall
business performance
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Policy table continued

Element of
remuneration

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance targets

Long-Term
Incentive
Plan

Designed to align
Executive Drectors’
interests with those of
shareholders and to
incentivise the delivery
of sustainable earmings
growth and superior
shareholder returns,

Awaras of conditional shares or
nil cost option awards which
normally vest after shree years
subject to the achievernent

of performance targets and
continued service.

An additional two-year hold ng
perod applies after the end of
the three-year vesting period.

Recovery and withholding
pravisions apply in cases of
misconduct, corporate failure,
reputational damage, errcrin
calculation of award and rmaterial
misstatement of financial results.

Dividend equivalents may be paid
for awards to the extent they vest.

The Commrittec retains discretion
to adjust vesting levels in
exceptional circumstances,
including but not hmited to
regard of the overall performance
of the Company or the gra~tee’s
persanal perfarmance

Executive Directors may receive
an award of up Lo 175% of basic
salary per annum.

The Comrrittee will consider

the prevailing share price when
deciding on the number of shares
to be awarded as part of any

LTIP grant.

A10% in ten years dilution hrmit
governing the issue of new
shares to satisfy all share schemes
cperated by the Company

will apply

Performance medsures
may include, and
are not hmited to,
relative TSR, ROIC, EPS,
strateqic measures and
ESG-related objecrives.

The Committee retains
discretion to ses
alternative weightings or
performance measures
for awards over the life
of the Policy.

100% oF awards vest

for stretch performance,
un to 20% of an award
walld normaily vest for
threshold performance
and no awards vest
below this, Underpins
may appiy.

One-off share
matching
arrangement
under the
Long-Term
Incentive
Planin FY24

Designed to be retentive
over the longer term,

o ncentivise the new
management team o
deliver a turnaround and
a significant improvement
infinancial performance,
a~d to closely align
Executive Directars’
interests with those of
shareholgers.

To particioate in the arrangement,
the Fxecutive Directors will be
required to purcnase ordinary
shares with their own funds
{'Investrment Shares’) and in return
they will -eceive a matchirg award
('Matching Shares).

Awards of Matching Shares will be
made as conditional shares or nil
cost options which will normally
vest in two tranches afte three
years {2/3 of the award) and four
years {173 of the award) subject to
retention of the Investment Shares
over Lhe performarce period,
achievernent of performance
targets and continued service.

Additional two-year and one-year
holding periods apply after the
end of the three-year and four-
year vesting periods respectively.

Failure to retain the investment
Shares over the full performance
period will normalky result in a
pro-rata reduction in Matching
Shares under award.

Recovery and withholding
provisions apply in cases of
muscanduct, corporate failure,
reputational damage, error in
calculation of award and material
misstaternent of financial results.

Investment Shares

Fxecutive D rectors may invest up
to an overall maximum of 100% of
arnual salary.

Matching Shares

Cxecutive Directors may receive
an award equal to up to four times
the value of Investment Shares
purcnased i.e. up to 400% of
sdlary The number of awards will
be based on the share price at the
time of grant

Avvaras to Execulive Lireclors
are subject to an overall cap
ol 450,000 shares in aggregate
{CEO: 267656 shares, and CFO:
182,344 shares).

No further awards under the
Long-Term Incentive Plan may be
made in addition to the Matching
Shares in the same financial year.

A 10% in ten years dilution limit
goverring the 1ssue of new
shares 1o satisfy all share schemes
aperated by the Camrpany

will apply

Not applicable.
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REFORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Element of Purpose and link
remuneration to strategy Operation Maximum potential value Performance targets
One-off share Didend equivalerts may be pa d
matching for awards to the extent they vest.
arrangement The Committee reains d-scretion
under the to adjust vesling levels in
Long-'l:erm exceplional circamstances,
Incentive including but not limited to
PlaninFY24 regard of the overall performance
continued of the Compary or the grantee’s
personal performance.
Share To increase alignment Fxecutive Directors are requrred Fxpcutive Directors are required Not applicable,
ownership between Executives to retain at least 50% of their net to build up and maintain an
guidelines and shareholders. of tax vested awards until the in-employment sharcholding
in-employrment shareholding warth 2009 of salary (100% for
guiceline is ma: other scnior management).
NIl cost options which have Cxecative Directors are normally
vested but are yet to be excrased  required to hold shares at a
and deferred bonus awards level equal to the lower of thair
subyect to a hime condition anly snareholding at cessation and
may be considered to count 200% of salary for two years
towards the in-employment post-emplayment (excluoing
snarehelding o a notional shares purchased with own funds
post-lax basis, atud any shares from share plan
awards made tetare Ue adoplion
of the previous Policy (approved
on 29 January 20211
Chair and To provide compensation  Fees are normally reviewed No prescribed max mum fee Not appl cable.
Non-Executive Mnlinewiththedemands  annually taking into account or Maximurn fee increase.

Directors’ fees
and benefits

of the roles at alevel
that attracts high-
calibre individuals and

reflects their experience

and knowledge.

factors such as the time
commitment a~d contribution
of the role and market levels in
companies of comparable size
and complexity.

The Chair 1s paid an all-inclusive
fee for all Board respansibilities.

Fees for the other Non-Executive
Directars may include a base fee
and addit.onal fees for further
responsblities (for example, to
chairing Board tLommittees or
tor hulding the office of benio
Independent Director}

The Campany repays any
reascnable expenses that a
Non-Executive Director Incurs
incarrying out their dubies as

a Director, including travel,
haspitality-related and other
modest benefts and any tax
lizbilities therezn, if appropriate.

i there is a temporary yet matenal
increase in the rime commutrnents
for Non-Executive Directors, the
Board may pay exira feeson a

pro rata basis to recognise the
additional warkload,

Increases will ne informed by
taking into account iInternal
henchmarks such as the salary
increase for the general workforce
and will have due regard to the
factors set aut 'n the Operation’
colurnr of this table.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

lllustration of the application of the Policy

The balance between fixed and vanable ‘at nsk’ elements of remuneration changes with performance. Our policy results in a significant proportion of
remuneration received by Executive Directors teirg depenaent on performance. The charts below illustrate how the Palicy would function for minimum,
on target and maximum perfermance in the first year of the new Policy (FY24). Note that the long-term incentive element of remuneration will be lower in
years two and threc of the policy as the one-cff matching award will be granted ir the first year anly and then will return to the normal 175% of salary limit,

Toral fixed remuneraticn Annual bonus Lmip Share pnce growth
£000 CEO CFO
£5,000 —— -
£4,598
24%
£4,000
£3,498
63% 48% £3,135
£3,000 e e e e e A0
£2,385
63% 48%
£2000 £1.915
50%
£1,307
9 o
£1000 20% 15% . 50%
£609 18% 0%, 15%
£417 18%
100% 32% 17% 13%
100% 32% 17% 13%
10
Min On-target Max Max with Min On-target Max Max with
growth grewth

Assumptnons for the chart above
Minimum: comprises fixed pay for the year made up of base salary
(applying from 1 Qctober 20733, the value of pension at 75% of anrual
bass salary and the estimated value of benefits using FY23 values
(annualised for the CEQ).

Cn-target: bonws achieved at 50% of the maximum oppotiunity, ie,
62.5% of salary and with the on-target level of vesting under the share
madlching arrangerment taken to be 43.75% of the face value of the
award at grant, ie 175% of salary.

Maximurm: full henus achieved and the share matching dirdngement
vesting in full, i.e. 175% of salary bonus pay-ouf and a share match to the
value of 400% of salary.

Shdre puce apprevation of 50% has been assurned for the LEP awards
under the final ‘Max with growth’ scenario.

Amounts relating to all-employee share schemes have, for simphicity,
been excluded from the charts,

Selection of performance measures and targets

Annual bonus

The Fxecutive Directors’ annual bonus arrangements are focused o

the achievernent of the Company's short and medwum-term financial
objectives, with financial measures selected to clasely align the
performance of the Executive Drectors with the strategy of the business
and with shareholder value creaticn. Where non-financial objectives are
set, these are chosen to support the delivery of the longer-term strategic
m'lestones ana which ling to those KPIs of most relevance to cach
Director's individual responsibilitics.

Details of the measures used for the annual bonus are provided in the
Annual Report on Remuneration

Long-Term Incentive Plan

One of the primary aims of the share matching arrangement 's to motivate
participants to achieve very stretching adjusted EPS and ROIC growth
targets ahgned to the delivery of the STAR strategy. This is reflected in the
ambitious target ranges set for the FY24 EPS and ROIC measures, details

of which are provided in the Annual Repart on Remuneration.

The share matching arrangement will aperate for the firs: year of the
new Policy period enly after which, in future years, we will return to
making a=nual awards under our normal LTiP. The Committee wil]
review the choice of performance measures and the appropriateness
of the perfarmance targets prior to each LTIP grant. The target ranges
for ITIP awards will be set as sliding scales which will be calibrated at
the tire of award taking account of internal and external forecasts, 1o
encourage continucus improvemert and incentivise the delivery of
stretch performance.
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Flexibility, discretion and judgement

The Remuneration Committee cperates the annual bonus and LTIP
according Lo the tules of each respective plan which, consistent with
rrarket pract ce, Indlude discretion in o number ol respects in relation
to the operauon of each plan. Discretions include:

- wha participates in the plan, the guanium of an award and/or payment
ard the timing of awards and/or payments;

determimng the extent of vesting,

treatment of awards and/or payments on a change of control or
restructuring of the Croup;

+ whether an Executive Director or a senior manager is a good/bad leaver
for incentive plan purposes and whether the proportion of awards that
vest do so at the time of leaving or at the normal vesting date(s)

how and whether an award may O¢ adjustod i Certan circumstances
{e g, for 3 rights issue, a corporate restructunng or special div dendsy,

what the weighting, measares and targets should be for the annual
bonus plan and LIIP awards from year to year;

+ the Committee also retains the ahility, within the policy, if events accur
that cause it o determine thal the conditions se! in relation o an
annual bonus plan or a granted LTI award are no longer appropriate
or unable to hulfil their original intended purpose, fo adjust targets and/
or set cifferent measures or we.ghtings for the apphicable annual bonus
plan anaz LTIP awards. Any such changes would be explained in the
subsequent Directors’ Rermuneration Report and, if appropriate, be Lhe
subject of consultation wth the Company's major sharehalders, and

+ the ability to override formulaic outcomes in line with policy.

All assessments of performance a-e ultimately subject ta the Committee's
judgement and giscretion s retained to adiust payments in appropriate
circumstances as outhined in this Policy. Any o scretion exercised (and the
ratronaie) will be disclosed.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, 'n approvineg tus Directors’ Rer~uneration
Palicy, authority is given to tne Caompany to honour any previous
commitments entered into w.ith carrent or former Directors (such as
the payment of a pens on or the unwinding of legacy srare schemcs of
historical share awarsis granted hefore the approval of ts policy) that
remain outstanding.

Approach to recruitment remuneration

News Dxecutive Directors wall be offered a Base salary in lime with tre Toiicy.

Thisw ll take into consideration 3 namber of factors including external
market farces, tre exoertise, experience and calibre of the individual and
cutrent level of pay. Where the Committee has set the salary of a new
appointment at a aiscount to the market level mitially until proven, an
uphit or aseres of planned increases rmay te applied in order to bring
Lhe salary to the appropriate market sosition over ume For extermnal and
internal appointments, the Commitlee may agree that the Company
will meet appropriate relocatio™ and/or related incidental expenses

as anpropriate,

Annual bonus awards. LTIP awards 2nd pension contributions would
nat be nexcess of the levels stated in the Poficy and, if appropriate, may
include partcipation in the matching arrangemrent n Fyz4

Depending on the tim ng of the appointment, the Comrittes may deem
it gppropnae to set different annual bonus performance conditicng

for the first performance year of appointment. An LTIP award can be
rnade shortly following an appointment (ass.mi~g the Company s nct
in a close period). In the ¢ase of an nternal appaintment, any vanaole
pay element awarded in respect of the prios role would be aliowad 0
pay out according to its terms, adjusted as relevant o fake info account
fhe aprointment.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In additio, the Commuittee may offer additional cash and/or share-based
buyout awards when it considers these 10 be in the best nterests of the
Company (and therelore shareholders) to take account af remunerdtion
given up at the individual's lormer employer. [his includes the use

of awards made under 94.7 of the Listng Rules. Such awards waould

be capped at a reasenable estimate of the value forgone and would
reflect, as far as possible, the delivery mechanism, time harizons and
whether performance requirements are attached o that remuneration.
Shareholders will be informed of any such payments at tne tme of
appointment and/orin the next published Annual Resorr,

For the appointment of a new Chair or Non-Executive Director, the
fee arrangement would pe set in accordance with the approved
Rermuneration Policy.

Service contracts, letters of appointment and policy on
payments for loss of office

Executive Directors

The Cornpany's policy is that Executive Directors skould normally be
ermployed under a contract which may be terminated by either t-e
Company or the Executive Girector givimg no more than 12 months notice,

The Company rmay terminate the contract with imrmediate effect wath or
without cause by making a paymaent in lieu of notice by monthly instalments
of salary and benefits, with reductions for any amounts received from
providing services to others dur ng this pentod. There are no obligations

to make payments beyond those disclosed elsewhere in this report.

The Remuneration Cormmittee strongly endorses the obligation on an
Executive Dinector Lo miligate any foss on edrly tetrningtion and will seek
Lo reduge the amount payable on ermingtion where it 1s appropridle (o
do so. The Cammillee will also take Care to ensire that, while meeting its
contractual ooligations, poar perfarmance 1s not rewarded. The Executive
Directors’ contracts contain early terrmination provisions consistent with
the Policy outlined above

The Group may pay outplacement and professional legal fees incurred by

Executives in finalising their termination arangements, where considered

appropriate, and may pay any statutory entitlermnent s or settle compromise

claims in connection with a termination of employment, where considered

In the best interests of the Company. Outstanding savings/snares under '
all-employee share plans would be trarsfered in accordance with the

terrns of the plans.

A pro-rated banus may be paid subyect to perfarmance, for the periad of
active service only Qutstanding share awards may vest in daccordance with
the prav sions of the varous scheme rules

Under the Deferred Borus Plan, the default treatment is that any
outstanding awards will cortinue on the normal tirmetable, save for
forfeiture for serious misconduct. Clawback and malus provisions will also
appthy. O a change of cantral, awards will generally vest an the date of &
change of contral, unless the Committes sermits {or requiresy awards 1o
roll over intg cquivalent shares n the acqurrer

Under the LTIR any outstanding awards will osdinanly lapsc; however, in
'good leaver' cases the default treatrment is that awards will vest subject to
the onginal performance condiion ang ime pro-rabion and the holding
penod will normally conunue to apply.

For added lexizility, the rules allow for the Committee to deaide not to
pro-rate (o1 pro-rate Lo a lesser extent) [itdecaides 1Ls appropricle 1o do
s0, and w allow vesting Lo Be Inggered ot the puint of leaving by reference
13 pertorrmance W thdl date, mather than waltmg unt) the end of the
perforrance period Or a change of contral, ary vesting of awards will ze
subject to assessmert of performanze agamst the performance conditions
ard normally be cro-rated. The Committee has the flexibility to decide not
13 erg-rate [or o pro-rate to g lesser extent) if £ deqides it is appropriate
tedoso.

Where g buy-out award s made under the Listing Rules then the lzaver
provisions would se determined as part of te terms of the award,
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Service contracts, letters of appointment and policy
on payments for loss of office continued

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Cxecutive Directors have letters of appointment rather than
service centracts and are appointed on a rolling annual basis, which
may Be terminated on giving up to three months’ notice at any time by
either party

Chair and Non-Executive Director appointnents are subject to Board
approval and election by shareholders a1 each Annual General Meeti~g.

Key delails of the service contracts and letters of appointment of the
current Direclors can be found in the Annual Report on Rermuneration and
all service contracts and letters af appemtment are available [or inspecuon
al the Company’s registered office.

External appointments

The Company recognises that its Executive Directors may be invited to
beacome Non-Executive Directors of other companies. Such Non-Executive
duties can broaden a Directer's experience and knowledage which can
benefit Aven Protection. Subject to approval by the Board, Executive
Directors are allowed to accept Non-Executive appointments, provided
that these appoirtments are not likely to lead to conflicts of interest,

and the Cormmmittee will consider its approach to the treatment of any

fees received by Fxecutive Directors in respect of Non-Fxacutive roles

as they anse
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Role and composition of the Remuneration Committee
The Board is ultimately accountanle for executive remuneration and
delegates this respoansibifity to the Remuneration Committee, The
Rerruneration Committee is responsiple for develooing and implemneanting
a remuneration policy that supports the Crowp's strategy and for
determining the Executive Directors’ indmidual packages and terms

of service together with thase of the other members of the Cxecutive
Committee. When setting the rermnuneratior terms for Executive Directors,
the Committes reviews ana has regard to workforce remuneration and
related policies and takes close account of the UK, Corporate Goverrance
Code requirernents for clanty, simplicry, risk mitigation, predictability,
proporttionality and aligniment to cufture

{he Remunetation Committee’s tenms of referernce ars availatie orithe
Company's website and include:

- determining and agrecing with the Board the policy for the
reruneration of the Company’s CEC, CFO, Char and Comoany
Secrelary and such other members of the serior management team
as it chooses to consider or is designated to consider {currertly the
Executive Committee), having regard to remuneration trends across
the Group;

putting in place a remuneration structure that supports strategy and
promotes long-term sustainable success — veth exeoutive remuneration
aligned to Company purpose and values and clearly Inked to the
successful delivery of the Company's long-term strategy — and
which attracts, -efains and mot vates executive management of Lhe
quality reguired to run the Company successfully without paying
more than s necessary, having regard 1o views of shareholders and
other stakerolders;
- reviewing the pay arrangements put in place for the broader workforce;
- within the terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual
remuneration package of cach Executive Director ncluding, where

acprogriate, bonuses, incentive payments, share options and
pensian ar.’angcments,

determin ng the targets for the performance-related bonus schemes for
the Executive Directors and the Group Executive management teamy

- reviewing the design of all share incentive glans far approval by the
Beard and shareholders;

+ for any such discietionary plans, deterenining each year whether awards
will be made, the averall amount of sucn awards, the individual awards
to Executive Direczors and the Group Fxecutive management team (and
others) anc the performance targets to be vsed, and

«agreaind terminalion arranagements for seniar executives,

The Comrittee currently comprises Chloe Ponsonby (Chair), Bruce
Thomoson, Bindi Foyfe and Victor Chavez

By invitat on of the Committee, meetings are also attended by the CEG
CFO and Compary Secretary (who acts as secretary to the Committog),
who are consulted on matters discussed by the Cormittes, unless those
matters relate to ther own rermuneration. Advice or information s also
sought girectly from ather employess where the Comrittee feels that
such adaitional contrizutions will ass st the decisien-making process

The Committee is authorised t2 take such internal and external advice a5 1
considers appropriate in cannection with Larying out 1ts duties including
the appaintment of ity owh extermal rtermuneralion advisors, During the
penod, the Comttes was assisted 1nits work by HIT Bernuncration
Consultants LLP UFITE HIT was dppoimted m December 2019 and hds

prov ded advice in relation to general remuneration ~atters and the
revievs of the remunération policy. Fees naid to HT in relation to advice
provided o the Cormmittee 2uming the curre=t penod were £43277
{excluding VAT), charges on a time/cost basis. FIT also provided advice to
the Company in relation ta Non-Executive Director fees and on technical
share olan implementstion mat:ers out other than thiv did not provice any
other services to the Company.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FIT 1s a memaoer of the Remuneration Consultants Group and, as such,
voluntarily operates under the Code of Conduct in relation to executive
remurieration cansulting in the UK. The Committee is satiskiea that the
advice it received from FIT was object ve and independent.

The Committee addressed the followang main topics during the
financial period:

urdertaok a comprehensive revicw of the [xecutive Directors’
remuneration arrangements which culminated in the preparatien
of a revised Directors’ Remuneration Policy which vl be put to
sharshiclaers for approval at the 2024 AGM,

+ seeking the vews of our major shareholaers and the main voting
agencies as part of a comprehensive corsultation exercise 1o in‘orm the
design process for the revised Policy, Feedoack was received from 1SS
and shareholders Molding c.45% of our1ssued share capital and this has
helped shape the new Policy,

«assessed whether our rerruneration framework is appropriately aligned
with our rulture and values and motivates our leaders 1o achieve the
Group's strategic chjectves;

reviewed guidance from investor bodies and institutional sharepcldears;

reviewes and approved the remuneration packages for our current
[xecutive Directors;

determined the terms of the incomirg CeO's package;

acproved the annual bonus outcorne for the 2077/23 financial period;

. reviewed and confirmed the vesting of the LTI™ awards granted in
March 2020 and

reviewad ard approved the terms of the 2023 LTIP awards and
mign'tored the performange of the outstancing awards against then
performance targets.

Since the end of the 2022/23 financial period, the Zommittée has:

« concluded the consultation exercise on the new Dreciors’
Rernuneration Policy and written to our largest shareholkders with detals
of the Committes's concusians;

« made preparatiors for tne ane-off share matching awards to be rrade
shartly after the AGM n February 2u24;

» approved annual bonus outcomes to the Fxecutive Directors and
the Executive Boarg, following completion of the externai aodit in
Movernber 2023 and underzaken a final assessment of the performance
conditons attached to the February 23211 119 awards (based on
performance to 30 September 2043),;
approved restricted stock awards to LTIP participants (excluding
Executive Directors) as a swap for tve EPS element of the 2021 and 2022
LHP awaids (wehiich wall ngt vesty;

« approved restricted stock awards for a select group of key emplovecs
as aretention tool; ana

¢ agreed the annudl bonus structure ‘or the year ending
28 September 2034

Thenformation that follows has been audized (where indicated) by the
Company’s auditor KPMG LLP

g
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Single total figure of remuneration for Directors for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 (audited)
Directors’ single total figures of remuneration far the 52 weeks ended 30 Septemnber 2023 were as follows:

Basic Fixed Variable
salary Other remuneration Annual remuneration Total
andfees Pension? benefits® sub-total bonus LTIP sub-total remuneration
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Current Executive Directors
Jos Sclater 2023 N 376 29 12 417 o 93 - 93 - —E
o 2022 - - - - _ 7 -
Rich Cashin' 2023 o 359 27 14 405 B 90 - 50 490
- 2022 139 15 5 219 106 - 106 325
Former Executive Directors
Paul McDonald? 2023 342 26 15 383 - _ - -
2022 513 58 17 588 285 - 285 S
Nic< Keveth’ 2023 - — - - - _ _
2022 180 27 10 h 217 39 - 9‘;' 376
;n-Executive Directars
Bruce Thormpson® 2023 175 - - 175 - - - - 175
s - - s - - - 175
E;\:se Pansonby 2023 65 = - 65 - B - - 6?»
- 2022 65 - - 65 - - B - a5
Bindi Fayle 2023 T &0 - - &0 - - - 60
B 2022 o - - 60 - - - 0
Victor Chavez 2023 50 - - 50 - __ - 50
- 2022 50 - - 50 - - - 50

Notes to total figure of remuneration table

.25 Sclater cined te Boarz o- 18 January 1073 ard Rick Casn o jaired the Baard or 31 March 2022

R ch Cashin wis a —emcer of the Graup’s money su-chase schems n ©Y22 Coptnbutions o the seheme were £5k Rera ning nersicn contribut ans far Rick and Jas were paid 25 3 s2lary suoplement

i
2
2 BeneftsfcrFY23 ncl.ded a car allowarce the cost of p vate ~ealt~ ins_rance, cotcal Jb-ess caver and gxec 1 ve ~ed cal
a

Paul McZenala ard Mick <evel stepped of 7 "he 2pard on 30 Septe~ber 2022 arz

31 March 2022 reszect vely

S Bruce Tnomasor temzoranly ingcon therale 2¥ feer tve Tnar from 1 Oztooer 2022 t5 15 January 2023 after waicn ~e resumed biz hon-Executive Cnav role No addimonal fees 2 any athar

paymentswere mace t¢ Bruce ~var e per od Ne termnporanly 1o« an the Zssuls

ve Chair rale

Annual bonus for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 (audited)
The annual bonus opoortunity for Executive Directors for FY23 was 125% of salary and this was based on financial targets, inclusive of Armour, relating to
revenue (20%), adjustec operating profit (40%), operating cash flow (209} and the achievernent of strategic objectives (20%).

The targets applying to each measure and performance against them are set out in the table pelow:

Threshold Stretch Actual/ % Bonus payable
Including Armour (0% payable)  (100% payable} reported achievement  {% of maximum)
Revenue (20%; $290.0m $3300m 52743m 0.0% 00%
Adjusted operating profit (40%) $21.0m $26.8m Below threshold 0.0% 2.0%
Operating cash flow (20%) T $296m $354m Below thresheld 0.0% o CE%_

Strategic objectives (20}

Set out in more detail below

Operating cash “low is defined as cashi flaws from operations before exceptionat items, fess net repayments of leases and capital expenditure.
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Ihe strategic eletnent of the bonus fur FY23 was based on the tollowing broad categornies with objeclives assigned Lo gach. The talegories ard

achievements are set oul inine table below:

Head Protection: Fsiablish leading position

in Head Pratection by securing and delivering
contracts and approvals (o suppart short and long
term growth of business.

well on track to become largest supplier of helmets to the U5 DOD Successful production
ramp-up of NG [HPS heimet, well ahead of competition. FAT approval for ACH GENIlin final stages.
Strong demand for newly launched ERIC helmet, targeted at commaercial market worldwide.
Medium term cperational sirategy developed to structurally improve margins,

Respiratory Protection: Maintain leading global
position in Respiratory Pratection,

Leading supplier of CBRN respirators to U S, and UK. military with rig- levels of collabaration
on future product development, NSPA FME0D programme extended to new NATO countries.
NSPA contract won for boots and gloves. Strang pipel ne for technology leading rebreathers.

Body and flat armour: Manage the arderly wind
down and closure of the Armour bus ness.

Operations. | pgrade operational capability
toncrease efficiency and to s gruficantly
improve canversion of arders into revenue on a
consistent basis.

Armour business fully exited by end of financial year as planned. Qutstanding body and fiat armour
contraciual obligations fulfilled. Assets sold and te Lexington facility sub-leased. Armour s row a
discontinued business.

Cont'nuous impravement culture and methodology intraduced, with pragress now visible through
nevy operational metrics. Respiratory Business right-sized 1o reflect lower revenue hase. Jeduced
levels of scrap and reworkin Head Protection as procuct on ramps-up,

Strategy & Organisation: Review Group strategy
in core Respiratory and Head Protection businesses
and implorrent new organisat.on structure to
support strategy.

Organisation re-structured Jnto twa Strategic Business Units (Respiratory ard Head Protection) with
focused leadership teams and designed Lo improve delivery, focus and accountability. New STAR
strategy developed by the teams and transtated into objactives and key rasults (OKRs).

ESG: Finalise the £5G policy, strategy and
implementation plary, agree with oard and
communicate with shareholders

Newly formed Sustainability Committece determined level of ambition, agreed on prionity
objectives aligned with STAR strategy and set stretching targets to be delvered over next five years
with focus on reducing scrap in operators, energy usage and carbon ernissions.

Jos Sclater jomned the Company shortly alter the T narcial annual benus targets were set Upon juining and as menbioned earlier, Jos, with Rich Cashin the
CHO, embarked upon a comprehensive review o the business and developed and implerented a new strategy ard change of direction. 1 ne onginal
firancral targets were largely Unactrevale and this has tesulted o na payoat agamnst the revenue, profit and cash objectives The Commiltiee could

have amended the targets to align better with the new strategy but decided against ths. Therefore, in practice, the maximum ponus opporunity was
limited to the strategic objectives wh.ch accounted for 20% o* the maximum bonus. Following strong individual performance and the accomplishment
of impartant short term non-iinancial drivers, the Committee has determined that 20% cut of the 20% on strategic objectives should be payable. The
Committee recognises Lhe sensitivities around paying 4 bonus based solely on no~-financial perfarmance but on this occasion believes it is warranted
given the new CEQ and targets that were made on an old strategy and set of assumptians.

Incentive awards vesting (audited)

Awards were granted on 2 February 2021 under the LTIP to the former CEC and former CFO and these were based on three-year performance targets.
Half of the award was subjeci to a *elative TSR condition (measuning performance against the constituents of the FTSE 250 excluding investment trusts}

and the other half was subject to EPS growth targets.

The TSR measurement period ended on 30 September 2023 The Corrpany’s TSR aver Lhis periad was confirmed as {78./1% which ranked the Company
below the median of the peer group ann therefare this part of the award will lapse fLIL The Company delivered an adjusted basic FPS of 40.3¢, which was
helow the threshold growth target. Therefore, th s alemen: of the award will also lapse.

Actual
Weighting Threshold Maximum performance % Vesting
ISR 90% Meaan Upper guintife Below median 0%
% 1SR
Adjusted basic EPS 50% 155.5¢ 199¢ 40.3¢ 0%
LTIP awards granted in the 52 weeks ended 3¢ September 2023 {audited)
The table below provices details 6f share awards made to Jos Sclater on 18 lanuary 2023 a~d Rich Cashin o 21 December 7077
Number of shares Face value of % vesting End of
Typeofaward  Basis of award under award’ award (£°000} at threshold performance peried
Jos Sclater Nil cost option 175% of salary 84,607 G923 20% (TSR} 18 January 2026 (TSR)
0% (EPS) S September 2025 {EPS)
Rich Castin Nil cost getion 1508 of salary 49406 538 20M (TSR) 20 Decemiber 2025 (TSR,
09 [(FP5} 30 Septembar 2005 (FPS,
Tne Terber oF 3was was tased on s shdepr ZE ol £ 783w or wat e Corpan sfao-day avenage sngtg arce mar f Zecemcer 202010 M0 Teavien 200D

e
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LTIP awards granted in the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 (audited) continued
The performance conditions for this award will be measured over a three-year performance period and are as follows:

The first performance conditicn for 50% of the award compares the Company’s total shareholder return (TSR) performance over the performance period
relative to a comparator group. The comparator group for the TSR element is the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment trusts) as at the
start of the performance period. Na portion of the TSR elerent mmay vest unless the Compary's TSR performance aver the performance period af least
equals the median TSR performance within the comparator group, for which 20% o* the TSR element may vest, rising on a straight-inc basis to full vesting
of the TSR element for upper guintile or better relative TSR performance.

The second performance condition for the other 50% of the award is based on the Company's adjusted basic earnings per share (EPS) over the three-year
performance penod commencing on 1 Gcteber 2022, No portion of the EPS elernent may vest uniess the adjusted EPS for the 2025 financial perod 1s

at teast 100 US. cents, for which 0% of the EPS element may vest, rising or a straight-ine basts to full vesting of the EPS element for EPS o 150 U5, cents
of better The EPS elernent of the awards is subjec: to a return on capital employed underpin in respect of which the Remuneration Committae retains
discretion Lo reduce the extent of vestirg of the EPS element by regard to the Company'’s RCCE perfonmance over the performance period

The Remuneration Committee also relains a general discretion (o reduce the extent of vesling of the awards generally if it considers that tne undetlying
business performance of the Lompany does not justify vestirg.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests and position under shareholding guidelines (audited)
Beneficial interests of Directors, their families and trusts in ordinary shares of the Company at 30 September 2023 were:

Number of Unvested shares
shares owned subject to Shareholdingasa Shareholding
outright {including performance % of salary as at guidelines
cannected persons) conditions' 30 September2023 (200% of salary) met?
Jos Sclater 24,130 84,607 14% No
Rich Cashin 11,1857 82,092 10% NG
Bruce Thomgson 31,000 - N/A N/A
Chloe Ponso-by 4,550 - N/A N/A
Bindi Foyle 2,000 - N/A NAA
Victar Chavez 1,015 - NAA N/A
Urwasted LTIF sluies
2 Includes 185 2022 deferred bo-us shares
3 Betwes- the yearerd and the st ofibe close anad gn 22 Out=ber 2023 Jos Sclazer ara Rich Cas~ir curchzsed 32,350 3-d 20,000 »~aresreipectively
Outstanding LTIP awards (audited)
Qutstanding
Award held at Granted Vested Lapsed awards at
Award date 1 Octoher 2022 in the period in the period inthe period 30 September 2023
Jos Sclater 18.01.23 - 24,607 - - 84,607
Rich Cashin 211222 - 44106 - - 49,406
08.03.22 32,686 - - - 32,686

The outstanding awards are subjec to two performance criteria. Half the awards are subject to a relative TSR measure and the other half are subject to an

EPS growth condit on.

Total Directors’ remuneration for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 under Schedule 5 (audited)

2023 2022

£000 £000
Aggregate remunearation, excluding gains on exercise of share options 1,350 1,864
Aggregate gains on the exercise of SEI’Q options' - - 386
@;g;e contribution to defined contribution pension scheme” - 5 - Rig

1 Gansor egercise 0 share opr or. are s1ow™ 3t the actualval.e of vested shares using t-e wvesting cate sha-e price

2 Ounpgtneper oo pension contr ootions were paid to defrred cort buticr schemes “erong Jracrar (3722 two Drettors
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Dilution

The Company revicws the awards of shares made under the all-employee and executive share plans in terms of their effect on dilution lirits inany rolling
ten-year penod, inrespect of the 5% and 10% fimits recormimended Gy (he nvestment Association, nv the penod of 10 years ending on 30 Sepfember
2023, we dssued 300,000 shares i1 2003 o satisly awards under all our stare plans, which 1epresents D.96% of pur issued cidingry share copital al

30 Septermber 2003,

it rermaing the Cormpany's gractice to use an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) in order to meet its liabikty for shares awarded under the {1IR,

At 30 September 2023 there were 261,714 shares held 1n the ESCT whicn w Il either be used to satisfy awards granted under t~e _TIP to date, or in
connection with “uture awards. A Pedging committee ensuras that the ESOT holds sufficient snares to satisfy existing and future awards mdade under the

LTIP by buying shares i the market of recommending tre Company issues new shares. Shares eld in the ZSOT da not receive divicends

As at 30 Septernber 2023, the market price of Avon Protection olc shares was £6.18 (2022: £11.24). Ourng the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 the

highest and lowest daily closing market prices were £12.00 and £6.17 1espectively,

Share Incentive Plan

The Company curiently operates the Avon Rubbier ple_Share incentive Plan (SIP), approved by shareholders at the AGM in February 2012, All UK tax
1esident ermployees of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled (o participate. Under the SIP, participants purchase shares in the Company manthly
using deductions from their pre-tax pay. .05 Sclater and Rich Cashin were nat members of the SIP during the pariod The maximum contribution each

manth under the SIP s currently £150, a sum which is set by the Government

Payments to past Directors, including payments for loss of office {audited)

Nick Keveth steppea down from the Board and his role as €O on 31 March 2022 and Paul McDonald stepped aown from the Board and hus <ale as CLO
on 30 Septemiber 7022, Wick received no further remuncration during Y23, Paul cantinued (o recarnve his salary and coneractual benefits (ncluding
pension allowance/centnbunans) up until the end of his contractual notice period on 31 May 2023, Paul did not receive a bonus for Y23 For the peniod

Cctober 2027 to 31 May 2023, Paul was paid £312,00C in base salary, £15008 in benefits and £26.000 in pension benefits

As good leavers, both Nick 2and Paul were allowed to keep their unvestea LTIP awards subyect to achievement of performance ¢r tena and a bme pro rata
reduction The LTIP awards grantea to Nick and Paul on 17 March 2020 faled to meet the threshald performance condiions and thus lapsedin full Asa

result, 18,383 and 31,734 awards lapsed for Nick and Paul respeactively dunng FY23

Service contracts and [etters of appointment
The table below summanses key details in respect of each Executrve Director's contact

Company Executive

Contract date notice period notice period

Jos Sclater 17 October 2072 12 months 12 months

Rich Cashin & January 2022 12 monihs 12 months
The date of each Non-txecutive appomitment s sel oul Below, together with the date of their last re-clection by shareholders.

Date of initial Date of last

appointment re-election

Chlce Pansonby

1 March 2016

27 Janwary 2023

Bruce Thompson 1 March 2020 27 January 2023
Bindi Foyle 1 May 2020 27 January 2023
Victar Chavez 1 December 2020 27 January 2023

Al service Ccontracts and letters of appomtment are gvalable fonnspeciion at the Companyy registered office

Other appointments

Rich Cashin is not crrently apgointed as a Non-Executive Director of any company outside the Group. Jos Sclater “emains a Director of two secure
companies withi~ the Ultra Group which were establishes to safeguard technelogy crinical to UK, naticnal security as cart of the acquisition by Coc~am

in 2021, fos Sclater does Not releive any rermunearation far these services.

S
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Total shareholder return performance graph

The follawing graph illustrates the total return, in terms of share price growth and dividends on a notional investment of £100in the Company over the
last wen years relative to the F7SE Small Cap Index (excluding irvestment trusts), the FTSE 250 index (excluding investment trusts) and the FTSE All-Share
Inaex {excluding irvestment trusts), These indices were chosen by the Remuneration Committee as a competitive indicater of general UK. market

parformance for companies of a broadly similar current and past size.
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Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration

The total rermuneration figures, includ ng annual bonus and vested LTIP awards {shown a5 a percentage of the maximum that could have been achieved),

for the CEO for each of the last ten financial pencds are shown in the table below.

Peter Slabbert retired on 30 Septeriber 2015 Rob Rennie stood down from the Board and was replaced by Paul McDonald 2n 15 February 2017 Paul
MiDonald stepped down as CEO on 30 Septernber 2022 and was replaced by Jos Sclater on 16 January 2023

CEOQ single figure Annual bonus

of total pay-out against Long-term

remuneration maximum incentive

Financial period CEO £'000 opportunity vesting

2023 Jos Sclater 510 20% -

2022 Paul McDonald ) 873 T 2%

2021 Paul McDonald ' 819 0% 50%

2020 Paul McDonald ' - 656 £5% 100%
2019 Paul McDonald 7 928 55% 80%-

2018 FadMcDonald 734 80% 84%

2017 Paul McDonald : 663 81% B
2017 Rob Rennie 7 n 57% s

2016 RobRennie 484 s B

2015 ' Peter Slabbert ‘ 1676 91% 100%

2014 Peter Slabbert - :;29 1% 96%

Includes remurerzien rece ved In the cenoc onz--a his appointmert as Jirz =tor 10 20°7
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Percentage change in remuneration of Directors compared with other employees

The folleweng table shows the percentage change In pach Executive and Non-Exccutive Drector's remaneration compared vath the averzge change for |
all emplayees of the Company for the 52 weeks ended 30 Septemnoer 2623, Changes for prior periods are also shown which are building up over time to

cover arolling fivo-year period.

Salary/fee Pension and other benefits Annual bonus
2023 2022 2021 2020 2023 2022 2021 2020 2023 2022™ 2021 2020

Current Directors
R
RT(h Cashin? - ﬁOA% - ﬁos,o% - o - (151% - - -
m&\ Thompson”——o.d% 136%  541.7% ~ I o .
EiMIr 0.0%—73.0)% ?9.6—%—_?S% —;-—hghhf T hv _-— nﬂhj
Bindi Foylr—;r 0.0% ?3? 735 3% ~ - _;; _;; - _;—_;—_;_; -~ -

victor Chavez® 00% 19 0% - - - - - - - - - -

Past Directors

Paul McDonald (33.3)% 2.8% 22.0% 51%  (45.3% (176)% 153% 549% (100 0% - 0000% 25.7%
Nick Keveth’ - [486)% 22.8% 56% - (4488 13.5% 372% - - (100 0% 26.4%
Pim Vervaa'® - - (589)% 0% - - - - - - - -
Davicl Evans® - - (B2Y91% Q0% - - - (100019 - - - -
All employees® 5.3% 3.2% 4. 7% 60% 1.2% 19% £ 8% 63%  {36.8)% N (100.0¥% 38.2%

1 Lo 5clatere jomed the Brard 20 16 sanwary 2023

2 Aich Cask njc ned the Baasd en 21 Marc- 2022

3 Bruze Thampwsr was appoint=d a3 Char or 2 Zecemzer 2020

4 Bindirovle wisapooicied o the 3oacd as Non-Execotve Jrectorw t~ affect frum |ty 2020 and toak zvera- Thar ~ree Aust Cometree 90 29.a%.ary 2021
5 Wictor Chavez was appoinied fo e 3aary wth eftect from 0 Jerember 2020

& Pan! Welorale steoped of* the Seqrd on 30 Seprember 2022

N ch Keveth stepped off the 3caz o~ 31 Mach 2722

o

2 mvarvast 303 Cavd Evars steape 3 0f tne 3oard or 29 :aneary 321 ang 2 Deember 2020 resgectively
9 Asrthe orly Avor Eratecticn pl @rrplcyeas sre the LED and the C°0, comoaratlhe F gures for all UK amployees o he Zrov Pave beon szt out gn avolartary basis 7o a.d wompar som, the grous o
employeas selected are those ull ime U < ercloyees wio wero erloyed cver tng Zumalate penos

10 In 2021 ne benuses wes pay Jble 1o Direciors ar employess, meaning cersertage cnanges 312 no. apehcabls for 2022

Chief Executive Officer to employee pay ratio
The table below sets out the ratie between the total pay of the CLO and the total pay of the employees at the 25th, 50th (median} and 75th percentiles of
the UK. workforce.

Financial period Method 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
2023 A 261 11 131
o e e |

Tre 25th, 80th and 75th pereentiie ranked imdivideals have been identified using Option A 1N accordance with the reporting reguiations, selected on

e pasis that this provides the =ost robust and stazistically accurate means of identifying ta relevant emplayees. The day by reference to which the
25th, 50th and 75th percentile employees were deterined was 30 Septemiber 2023, The CED pay figure s the total remungratian figure s set aut in the
single figure table 2nd then annualises and cquivalent figures (on a full-time equivalent besisy have been caleulated for the relevant 25th, 50tk and 75th
percentile emplayees.

Tre total pay and banefiss figuras used to caloulate the ratios for each of the 25th percentile, median and 75th percentide emplayees are set aut aelow:

Financial period 25th percentile Median 75th percentile

2023 £26,080 £32,535 £50,435

The salary clement for each of these figures is set aut bolow:

Financial period 25th percentile Median 75th percentile

2073 4,819 £30,300 £45,800

7

The Committee is satisfied that CFO reruneranion s reasonable and consistent with ske Company's wider palicies on employee pay, reward and
progression; see page 3! for furtrer getails.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The following table shows the change in Group expenaziture between the curent and prev ous financial periods on remuneration and associated costs
for all emplayees globally, set against distributions to shareholders and other uses of profit or cash flow, being profits retained within the business,
investrents in research and development and other capital expenditure,

2023 2022

(restated)’
sm $m % change
Overall expenditure on pay (note 6.1) 83.2 87.2 (4.6%)
Divdends paid 13.4 13.4 0.0%
Lass retained {loss for the penod less dividends and share buyback} (27.8) (33.9) {(16.8%)
R&D expenditare (ncluding capilalised developrment costs) 10.2 109 (6 4%)
Other capital expenditate (excluding capitalised developrment costs) 79 31 153.8%

1 Co~parat ve overall axpe-citute 2n pay has aee~ ircreases by $4 5 m llan, with e restatenenr reflecting a corection te excense alloczuions Thisis a d sclovure restatement anz dees not nave an

1—pacionthe Growp s o mary statererts

implementation of policy for the 52 weeks ended 28 September 2024

Basic salary
Salaries have been increased by 4 5% to £550,291 and £374,894 for Jos Sclater and Rich Cashin respectively. This 15 in line with the average increase across

the wider UK. workforce of 4.5%.

2024 2023

£ £

Jos Sclater 550,291 526,594
Rich Cashin 374,894 358,750

Non-Executive Director fees
Fees have been incraased by 2.5% for the Non-Executive Directors, in line with the average increase across t~e wider UK. workforce of 4.5%.,

2023 2023

£ £

Chair 182,875 175,000
Ngn-Lxecutive Director T 52,250 50,000
Committee Chair - 10,450 10,000
Senior Independent Director - 10,450° 10,000

*  [he-e samax mam add. onal fee 2f £75,675 fthe Semiori-degendent Directgr also chars a Corvmitiee

Benefits
Benefits remain unchanged and include a car allowance, the cost of private Pealth insurance, life insurance, critical iliness insurance and executive medical,

Pension
The Executive Directors receive a contrnbution towards pensior of 7.5% of basic salary, paid e'ther as a non-pensionable salary supplement ot delivered
through the Group’s money purchase scheme. This contrbut’on rate is in line with the UK. workfarce rate.

Annual bonus
For the 2024 financial period, the maximum opportunity under she annual bonus plan will be 125% of base salary for both Execurive Directors. 25% of the

total bonus payment will be deferred into shares for two years.

Bonuses will be based on absolute Group aperating profit (50%), average working capital turns {(30%) and strategic objectives (20%) The actual targets are
commercially sensitive and will be disclosed an a retrospective hasis.

2024 LTIP awards
The Committee expects to make awards under the one-off share matching arrangement to Jos Sclater and Rich Cashin in February 2024. Full details of the

performance conditions and targets are set out in the Remuneration Cemmittee Chair’s letter on page 89.
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Statement of shareholder voting on the Remuneration Report
The shareholder vote on the Remuneration Repaort for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 at the AGM which took place on 27 January 2023 was

as lollows:

Votes for Total {ex¢luding
{intluding Votes against withheld and third
Resolution discretionary) % for [excluding withheld) % against  party discretionary  Withheld
Approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report 17,756,155 8371 3150535 16.23% 21212691 6,134

This Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on 1ts behalf by:

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Commiittee

21 November 2023

S
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit the Annual Recort and audited financ al slaterments
of Avon Pratection plc (the Company’} and the Avon Protection group
of cormnpanies (‘tne Group’) for the year ended 30 September 2023,

The Company is a pubiic imited company incorperated and domicied

in England and Wales with company registration numzer 32965. The
Company’s subsidiary undertakings, including those located cutside

the UK, are hsted in note 7.3 of the financial statements.

Strategic Report

The Strategic Regort, which contains a review of the Group's business
{including by reference to key performance indicators), a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, and commentary
on likely future developments, is set out on pages 62 to 69 and is
incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Financial results and dividend

The Group statutory loss for the period after taxation amounts to
$14.4 million (2022: 1oss $7.6 million}. Full details are set cut in the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive income on page "29.

An interim dividend of 4.3 U S. cents per share {converted tc 71.25p) was
paid in respect of the penod ended 30 September 2023 (2022:14.3¢).

The Drrectors recommend a final dividend of 15.3 U 5. cents per share,
which will be converted into GBP priar to payment to sharerolders

{2022: 30.60), resulting in 4 total d'vidend distribution per share for the 52
weels ended 30 Seoternber 2023 of 29.6 U5 cents per share (2022- 44.9¢)

Share capital

The Company only has one class of share capital, which cornprises
ordirary shares of £1 each. On 28 January 2022, the Company announced
a Share Buyback Programme, which cancluced on 13 April 2022 following
the purchase of 765,098 shares. The buyback programme was formally
cancelled on 23 May 2023, As at 21 November 2023 the Company has
30,258,194 shares in issue, with 765,098 held in treasury, and no shares
were issued during the period. All shares forming part of the ordinary share
capital have tne same rights and carry one vore each. There are no unusual
restrictions on the tra~sfer of a share. Further details of the shares in issue
dur ng the financial year are set outin note 5.5 of the financial statements.

The full rights and obligations attaching to the Company’s shaies as

well as the powers of Directors are set out in the Company's Articles

of Association (tre Articles’), copies of which ¢zn be cbtained from
Companies House or by writing to the Company Secretary. Shasenolders
are entitled to receive the Company's reports and accounts, to attend
and speak at generzl meetings, to exercise voting rights in person or by
appointing a oroxy and to receive a dividend where declared or paid
out of profits available for that purpase. There arc no restrictions on the
transfer of issued shares or on the exercise of voting rights attachcd to
them, except where the Company has suspended treir veting nghts

or prohibited their transfer following a fa lure to respord to a notice to
shareholders under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006, or where the
holder is precluded from transferring or voting by the Finarcial Services
Autherity's Listing Rules or the City Code on Takeavers and Mergers.

The 261,/14 shares reld in the narne of Lhe Lirployer Share Cwnership
Irust are held as a hedge agairst awards previously made or 1o be made
pursigns to the Long-Term Incentive Plan and are held on terms which
previde voting rights Lo the trustee,

The Company is not aware of any agreements between its sharehelders
which may restrict the trans‘er of their shares or the exercise of thefr vating
nghts, the only exception 1o this being that the trustee of the Employee
Share Gwnership Trust have waived their rights to dividends.

At the Company's last AGM held on 27 January 2023, sharehalders
authotised the Company o make matkel purchases of up to 3,025,879 of
the Company's issued erdingdry shares. No shares were purchased under
th's authority during the period. A resolution will be put o shareholders
at the ferthcom ng AGM to renew this authority.

The Directors require authority to allot unissued share capital of the
Company ana to disapply shareholders’ statutory pre-emption rights.
Such authorities were granted at the 2023 AGM and resclutions to renew
these authorities will be proposed at the 2024 AGM; see explanatory notes
on pages 176 to 178. No shares were allotted under this authority during
the period.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 30 Septemnber 2073 the following sharekolders held 3% or more of
the Company’s issued share capital:

Alantra EQMC Asset Management SGIIC 54 14.93%
Kempen Capital Management Ny - 11.00%
Aberforth Partners LLP 8.3()9-/:
Ancara Advisars LLC 556%
Schroder Investment Management Lim:ted 4.98%
E;)ya\ I ondon Asset Management Limited 3.83%
NFU Mutual 35?&1_
Hargreaves Lansdown Stockbrokers o 3.35%
Invesco Asset Managerrent Limited 313%

Significant agreements - change of control

The only significant agreements 1o which the Company 1s a party which
take effect, alter or terminate wpon a change of control of the Corrpany
following a takeover bia are the Comgany's:

revalving credit facility agreement, and
Long-Term Incentive Plan ('the Plan’).

The unsecured revolving credi facility of $200 million prov'ded by Barclays
Bank PLC, Comerica Bank Inc, Fifth Third Bank NA, National Westminster
Bank plc, CIC and Bank of Ixeland contai~s a provision which, in the event
of a change of control of the Company, gives each lending bank the

rght to cancelits commitments (o the Company and to declare all the
outstanding amounls ad accrued Interest owed to sucn lending bank
immediately due and payable If a lending bank does not exercise this righ:
within 15 business days of heing notified of the change of control. it shall
not be akle 1o cancel its commitments or require repayrnent of its share

of tne amounts cutstanding under the facility in respect of such change
of control.

A chanae of control will be deerned to have occurred if ary persan
or group of persons acting in concert (a5 defined in <he City Code on
Takeovers and Mergars) gains direct or indirect cortrol of the Company.

Under the rules of the Plan, on a takeover a proportion of each
outstanaing grant will vest. The number of shares that vestis tc be
determined by the Remuneratian Committee, including by reference to
the extent to which the performance conditions have been satisted and
the amount of time that has passed since the award was made.

Itis also possible that the Lrustee of the pension plan would seek to review
the currert funding anangements and deficit recovery plan as part of o
{oliowing a charge of control, particularly f that resulted in a wegkening
of t~e employer covena™t

The Company does nat have agreements with any Director or emplayee
that weuld provide compensation for 1oss of office or employment
resuiting from a change o contral, exceptin relation ta the Long-Term
Incentive Plan as described above.
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Directors

The current Directors as at 27 Noverniser 2023 and ther bicgraphies are
shown o pages /4 dnd /5. Jos Sclater was appointed o 1he Board on
16 January 2023,

According to the Articles of Assaciation, alt Directors die subject to
election by shareholders at the first AGM following ther appoimtment, ana
to re-glection thereafter at intervals of no more than three years Inline
with best practice reflected in *he LK. Corporate Gevernance Code, all
current Directors will be standing for re-appointrment at the forthcoming
AGM to be held on 26 January 2024,

The remuneration of the Directors inciuding their respective sharehold ngs
in the Company is set cut In the Remuneration Report on pages 94 10 107,

The Company's rules about the appointment ard replacernent of
Directors, together with the powers of Directors, are contained in the
Artides. Changes to the Articles must be approved by soecial resolution
of the shareholders.

Directors’ and Officers’ indemnity insurance

In accordance with the Company’s Articles and subject to the provsions of
the Comganies Act 2006 ('the Acr'), the Company maintains, at its expense,
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability insurance to provide cover in respect of
logal action against its Directors. This was in force throughout the financial
yzar and remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Company’s Articles allow the Company to provide the Directors with
funds to cover the costs incurred in defending legal proceedings The
Company s therefore treated as providing an indermnnity for its Directors
and Company Secretary which s a quahfying tnird-party indermimty
Erovslon for the purposes of the Act

Conflicts of interest

During the pernod no Director held any beneficial interest in any

contract significant to the Company's business, ¢ther than a contract o
ermployment. The Company has procedures set out in the Articles for
managing conflicts of interes:. Should a Director became aware that they,
or their connected parties, have zn interest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Group, they are required to notify the Board as saon
as reascnably practicable.

Research and development

The Group continues to utilise its techmcal and materjals pxpertise to
rermain at the forefront of innovative technolagy a~d produce specialist
praducts and services to maximise the performance and capatilities of its
customers, The Group maintains its links to key universities in tre LS. and
LK. and continues to work with new and existing customers and supp! ers
to develop its knowledge and product range Total Group expenditure

an research and development in the year was $15.2 milhon (2022: $10%
million), further details of which are contained in the Strategic Report

on page 59,

Corporate governance

The Company’s staternent on corporate governance can be found m

the Corporate Gavernance Reporl on pages /6 Lo /9, The Corpoiate
Governance Repertforms part of this Directors’ Report and is m.orporated
into it oy wruss-reference

Stakeholder engagement

The Board faztors stakeholder opinions and feedback nto its decisons to
ensure the impact on key stakeholders' needs ana concerrs is considered
Mare informat on on haw the Soard engages with stakeholders can be
found in the Section 172 Statement cn p3iges 36 to 39,

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Employee share schemes and plans

The Group encourages its employees to share in the “uture s.ccess of the
Lroup 2nc operates thice share-based incentive plans. The Avon Ruboes
Share Incentive Plan (SIF) is open to all eligible UK. employees. under

the SIP partic pants are able to pdichase shares in the Company monthly
using deductions from thewr pre-tax pay, The Avon Rubber Employee
Stack Purchase Plan (ESPF) is open to all eligible U.S. employees. Under
the ESPE participants arc acle to purchase shares n the Company at a
discouted rate from payroll deductions, The Avon Ruboer Long-Term
Incentive Plan { TIP} is designed to align Executive O rectars’ and scriar
employees’ interssts with those of shareholders and to incentivise the
delivery of sustainable earmings growth and superior shareholder seturns.
Discretionary awards are granted under the LTI® over a fxed number of
sharas by reference to salary, with awards ordinanly vesting, subyect to
mecting perfarmance criteria, on the third anniversary of the grant date.

Environmental and corporate social responsibility
Matters relating to epvironmental and corporate soc 3l resoons bility
including refererce 1o our policy on diversily are set out in the
Sustainability Report an pages 41 to 49,

Greenhouse gas emissions
The disclosdres cancerning greenhouse gas emissions reguired by law are
included in the Sustainability Report on page 45,

Political and charitable contributions

Mo political contr butions were made during the perod or the prior
penod. Cortiputions for char table purposes amounted to §7 24,706
{2022: 5108,203) consistirg aof rumerous srmall donations Lo vanous
community charities in Wiltshite, Maryland, Michigan, New Hampshire,
California and Otio,

Policy on employee disability

Avon Pratection provides support, traning a~d development
opportunities to all aur emplayees rrespective of any disabilities they
may have. We give full and fair consideration to disabled apphcants, and
where an existing emoloyee becomes aisabled qunng therr emoloyment,
we will make every effort ta enable them to continue their e mployment
with Avon Proiection in their original or an alternative role.

Financial instruments

An explanation of the Groun policies on the use of financial i=struments
and financ’al risk management abiectives s contained in note 54 of the
financial staternents

Independent auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’
Report conf'rm that, so far as tney are cach aware, therg is ~o relavant
audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, ans cach
Dircctor has taken all the stops that they ought to have taken 45 a = rector
to mMake themselves aware of any relevant acdit in“orrration and to
establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that i~formaton,

Auditor

KPMG LLE has expressedits wallingriess to continue in office gy
independet audilur ard g resolubion to re-appoimb it and auth o sing
the Brard to agree ts iemunerat on will be propesed at the AGM,

Annual General Meeting

The Comeany's AGM will be held at our Hampton Park Wes: fac | ty,
Serm ngton Road, Melksham, Wilts~ire SNI2 NB, on 26 January 2024 at
10.30 am. Registraticn will be from 1000 am. T-e Notice of the AGM ard
a~ explanatior of the resolutions to be put to the meeting are set out

in the Notice of Meeting and can be fou~d on pages 74 to 172

S

Annual Report and Accounts 2023 Avon Protection plc 109



DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

Ihe Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
Group and Patent Company financial stalernents in accorcance with
applicable law and regulations.

Campany law reguires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company firancial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
UK. azopted International Accounting Standards.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true ana tfair view of
the state of affairs and profit or loss of tre Group and Parent Company.

In prepar ng each of the Group anc Parent Compary firancial statements,
the Directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistetly;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant
and reliable;

state whether they have been prepared ir accardance with UK,
adopted International Accounting Standards;

assess the Group and Parent Company’s akility to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going cancern; and

«use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend
to liguidate tre Group or the Parent Compary Of to cease operations,
or have ro realistic alterrative but to do so.

Ihe Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recards
that are sufficient to show and explain the Pzarent Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positior
of the Pare~t Company ana enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006

They are "esparsible far such internal cortrol as hey determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatemens, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonatly open to them
to sateqguard the assets of the Group ana to prevert and detect fraud and
ather irregularities

Under azplicable law and regulations, the Directors are alse respensitle for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration
Report and Corporate Governance Statermnent that complies with that law
and those regulations, The Directors are resoons ble for the maintenance
and integrity of t~e corperate and financial infermation included on the
Corrpany's website. Legislat’'on in the UK. gqoverning the preparation

and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

In accordance with Osclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (DTR")
4116R, the finandial statements will form part of the annual Anancial report
prepated under Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (DIR) 4.1.17R8
and 4,1.18R. The Auditor’s Report on these financial siaterments provides no
assurance over whether the annudl inanciat report has been prepared in
accordance with those requirernents.

Directors’ confirmations
Each of the Directars, whose names and functiors are listed on pages 74
and /5, conl.rms thal to the best of Lheir knowledye:

- lhe hinanal stalements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
sel of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of tre assets,
|'abilities, financial pasition and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consalidation taken as a whole; and

- the Strategic Report and (irectars’ Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the pasition of
the issuer and the undertakings included in the consol‘dation taken
as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face

We consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
sharcholders 12 assess the Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy.

The Directors’ Report and Responsikilities Staternent were approved
by the Board of Directors on 21 November 2023 and are signed on 1ts
behalf by:

N s SLbs.

Jos Sclater
Chief Executive Officer

21 November 2023
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- THE GROUP HAS DILIGENTLY WORKED TO
IMPLEMENT THE NEW OPERATING MODEL,
WITH THE CREATION OF TWO STRATEGIC
BUSINESS UNITS FOR RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION AND HEAD PROTECTION, EACH
WITH FOCUSED LEADERSHIP TEAMS WHO
ARE EMPOWERED AND ACCOUNTABLE FOR
DELIVERING OUR STAR STRATEGY.
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

The Directors assess the operating perfarmance of the Group based on adjusted measures of EBI DA, operating profit, net firance costs, taxation and
earnings per share, as well as other measures not defined under IFRS including orders received, closing order book, EBITDA margin, operating profit
margin, return on invested capital, cash convers on, net debt excluding lease liabilities, average working capital turns, and constant currency equivalents
for relevant metr ¢s. These measures are collectively described as Adusted Performance Measures {APMs} in this Annual Report

The Dircctors believe that the APMs provide a useful comparison of business trends ard perforrrance. The APMs exclude exceptional items considered
unrelates to the ungerlying trading performance of the Groun. The term adjusted 1s not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable with similarly
titled measures used by other companies.

The Group Uses these measures ‘or planning, budgezing and reporting purposes and for its internal assessment of the operational performance.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The following table summarises the statutory and adjusted profiz and loss account measures for the penod together with the adjustments made to each
I'ne item.

52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (restated)’

Adjusted Adjustments Total Adjusted Adjustments Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Continuing operations
Revenue o 243.8 - 243.8 263.5 - 263.5‘
Cost of sales o (157.9) - (157.9) e - (174.6)
Gross profit 859 - 859 88.9 - 839
Sales and marketing expenses {14.9) - (14.9) {15.04 - {15.0)
Rescarch and development costs {10.0) (0.2} {10.2)-_- 8.8} (1.4) (10.2)
General and administrative experses o (39.8) {33.6) (73.4) 4.7) o {11.0) (52.7)
Operating profit/{loss) 21.2 (33.8) (12.6) 234 {12.9) 1.0
EBITDA 35.7 (2.9} 328 338 (1.6) 372
—Depreciatlon, amortisation and impairment (14.;) {30.9 (45.4) (15.4} (10.8) (26.2)
Operating profitf{loss) (note 1} 21.2 (33.8;“ 12.6) 234 {12.4) 11.0
Net finance costs {note 5) {7.2) (0.4} (7.6) 3.7) (1.3 (5.00
Profit/{loss) before taxation 14.0 (34.2) (20.2) 19.7 {13.7) 6.0
Taxation (note 3) 19 5.7 3.8 (3.1} 2.8 {0.3)
Srofit/loss) for the pernind from
continuing cperations 121 (28.5) {16.4) 16.6 {10.9) 57
Discontinued operations — profit/(loss) -
from discentinucd operations (note A} - 2.0 2.0 - (13.3) {13.3)
Profit/({loss} for the period (notc &) 121 (26.5) {14.4) 16.6 {24.2) (7.6)
Basic earnings/{loss) per share 40.3¢ (88.3)c (48.0)c 54.7¢ (79.8)c (25.1)c
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share 40.3c (88.3)c 48.0)c 54.4¢ (79.3)c (24.9)c

' Camparatves for the 52 weeks ended 1 Octoser 2022 hove bee- iestated toreflect reclassifizat o of research ane 2evelepment casts, «2classficazion of selling anz distriout on costs, ard e
discamtinuation of ke Arrra.r bus ness These 37e d sclzsed 1n AFMs note 3
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OVERVIEW STRATEGI|C REFORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Adjustments to operating loss

Adjusted operating profit excludes discontinued operations and exceptional items considered unrelated to the underlying trad.ng performance of the
Group hansactions are classified as exceptional where they relate Lo an event Ihat falls outside of the underlying tading aclvities of the business aned
where individually, or 1n aggregate, they have a malerial imgact on the finandial statermentls.

2023 2022

{restated)’

$m sm

Operating {loss)/profit (12.6) 14
Amartisation of acquired intangibles 6.3 6.8
l?e?tr_ucturing rosts T - —17_—_ 1.6_
@tructuringﬁgmaw?trﬁwﬂurremt asseg_‘ o - _—im(}?i‘_ o 54_
ir&%ﬁ(ﬂ‘rj ;nﬁcuirrem assers {echJdang:structungr—eJ;emmT@T T 0.5 ig
mpirmemtoigonmal .
T_ransit\m Costs T - - ﬁrk s
Adjusted operating profit 21.2 234
Depreciation - 9.2 g1
aher lmpa\m—we;m—ch;évg—e?—;—;—;&l—;*& - o \-—‘\\\a
Cther dmortmaﬁchdrgea T ;* - 558
Adjusted EBITDA 357 88

1 Comozratyes for the 52 weeks erded 1 Uctone 2027 ~ave beep resiated To reflect the o scont nuztion of e Anma, 7 bus ness

Amortisation of acquired intangibles
Amaortisation charges for acquired intangible assets of 36.3 million (2022: $6.8 mullion) are considered exceptional 4s they do not change each period
based on underlying business trading and performance,

Restructuring costs
Restractuning costs refated to the rignt-sizing of opetations were $i.4 million (2022:51.6 mthon). These costs are considerad exceptional as they reflate
ta specific programmes which do not form part of the underlying business trading and performance.

Restructuring-related impairment of non-current assets

Restructuring-related impaitment of non-current assets was $0 7 milhan. This related to the closure of one of our LS offices, with a $0.5 million
impairment ta nght of use assets {2027: 504 million impairmert), and $0.7 millan impairment to plant and machinery (2022 5nil) These costs are
considered exceptional as they relate to a specific office closure which does not form part of the underlying business trading and performance,

Impairment of other non-current assets

Reviews of the Group's non-current assets resulted in 50,5 million exceptional imaairment lasses (2022, $3.6 million) 25 the carrying value of certain
product group level COUs excoeded estimated recoverable amounts. Further details are provided in note 3.1, The impairment Josses are significant
items resulting from changes in assumpt ons for future recoverable amounts, As such they are considered unrelated to Current or priof year
trading performance

in the prior peniod the Group also recogmised 304 million other non-current asset impairments that were not considered exceptional (note 3.1)

impairment of goodwill

Review of the Head Prorecton CGU resulted inimpaitment 10 goodwll of $23.4 million (2027 $nil) as the carmying value of the COU exceeded ity estimated
1ecoverable arrount. Further delails are provided n rote 3.1, The impaiiment is g significent tem based on {orecast assurnptions for future cash flows

As such it is considered unirefated ta cunent yeaar trading performarrce

Transition costs

Trarsition costs of $1.5 mill on (2022: $nil) relates to the transter ot legacy Team Wendy operations in Head Protection onto a Group controlled ERP systemn.
These costs gare cansidered transiton-related and exceptional as they relate to a specific programme for Team Wendy operations that was only required as
a result of acquisition in November 2020.

e
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

2 Adjustments to net finance costs
Adjusted net finance costs exclude exceptional ;tems cons dered unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group.

2023 2022

{restated)’

$m Sm

Net finance costs 7.6 50
Def.ned benefit pension unwind discount (0.4} 3
Adjusted net finance costs 7.2 37

1 Corpa-at vas for tne 52 weeks ended 1 Cotozer 2027 bayve bae- restated to rsflect tne o scent nuarien of the Ar~our business

$C.4 million (2022: 51.3 million) unwind of discounting on the UK. defined benefit pension scheme liability is treated as exceptional giver the scheme
relates to employees employed prior to 31 Jan.ary 2003 and was closed to future accrual of benetits on 1 October 2009 (notc 6.2),

3 Adjustments to taxation
Adjustments to taxation represent the tax effects of the adjustments to operating profit and net fi~ance costs. Except for the impairmert to goodwaill,
adjusting iterns do not have significa~tly different effective tax rates compared to statutory rates, with an cverall effective rate of 17% (2022 20%).

The $23.4 million impairmen: of goodwill resulted n a tax credit of $3.4 million (effective tax rate 14.5%), which explains the lower overall rate compared

to statutory rates on the total level of adjustments

4 Profit from discontinued operations
The adjusted profit measures exclude the resdlt from discontinued operations relating to the divestrrent of mlkrite | InterPuls and closure of the Armour
business (noze 2.2)

During the period, total profit after tax from discontinued operations was $2.0 million (2022: loss after tax of $13.3 million)

5 Adjustments to loss for the period

2023 2022
{restated)’
$m $m
Loss for the period {14.4) (78}
Amaortisation of acquired intangioles 76.3 ) o 6.8
Restructunng costs B 1.4' 16
Restructuring-related impairment of ncn:(_l}rem assets 0.7 c4
Impa rment of ather non-current assets (excluding restructurmg-relat;imi;n;);'nents) 0.5 36
Imparrment of goodwill 234 -
Transition costs T 1.5 -
Defined benefit pension unwird discount - 0.4 13
Tax on exZeptional items {5.7) m(zg)_
(Profit)/loss from discontinued operations o (2.0) 13.3
Adjusted profit for the period 121 16.6
1 Compacanves “orf 1e 52 weeks ended * Getoser 2022 hawe beer (251ated to re“lact the Siscont nuat.on of the Armour zus ness
6 Adjusted earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares 2023 2022
Waighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue used in basic calculation thousards) 29,996 30,308
Potentially dilutive shares fweightled average) {thousands) o 263 221
Diluted number of ordinary sares fweighted average) (thcusands) 30,259 o 30,525
2023 2022
{restated)’
Adjusted continuing earnings per share $ cents $ cents
Basic 40.3¢c 54.7C
Diluted B B 40.3¢c s44c

Corparatives for the 52 weeks erded ' Coiozer 2022 have bee- restated to reflsct the ziscant Avatton of the Ar—our ous n2ss

[+
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 Net debt
2023 2022
Sm $m
Cash and cash equivalents 13.2 9.5
éank loans - - (77.7) _(;3?;
Net debt excluding lease liabilities (64.5) 44.2)
| ease liabilities 20.9) (238)
Net debt including lease liabilities {85.4) 68.0)
8 Adjusted dividend cover ratio
2023 2022
{restated)’
$cents $ cents
Interirmn dividend 14.3¢ 14 3¢
;r{al dividerd 15.3¢ 3@_
Total dividend 29.6¢ 449¢
Adjusted basic earnings per share 40.3¢ 54.7¢
Adjusted dividend cover ratio 1.4 times 1.2 times
' Corrparatives for the 52 weess snged 1 Geraber 2022 ~ave been r2,1aed 10 reflect tne 0 scortinuzlion of toe Arma.r busiiess
9 Return on invested capital
Returr oninvester] capital (ROIC) is calculated as adjusted operating profit over average invested capital relating to continuing operations.
2023 2022
$m $m
Net assets 159.4 2105
Net assets associated with discontinued operations (5.6) B
Net assets associated with continuing operations 153.8 202
Net debt excluding lcase liakbilities 64.5 447
L ease liabilities (mnMwes associatedm discontinued opetations)—;k - 20.9 - 14.5_-
Pension - 40.2 - 03
Eenvdtives 0.9 7 T a
Nettax S T 32 @s.)
Total invested capital 245.3 2415
Average invested capital 243.4 2613
Adjusted operating profit 21.2 234
ROIC 8.7% 9.0%
2023 2022
Average invested capital $m $m
Cunert penod invesied capitdl 2453 290Y
Prior period invested capntal S 241..5‘_- o 2810
A 243.4 o iﬁ

Average invested capital

S
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

10 Average working capital turn (AWCT)
AWCT 15 the -atio of the 12 rmanth average manth end working capital (defined as the total of inventory, receivables and payables exciuding lease
labilities] 1o reveniue, based on conlinuing operatians.

2023 2022
Continuing operations $m $m
12 manth average month end working capital 65.7 48.2
Reveriue 243.8 7635
AWCT 3.7 5.5
11 Cash conversion
Cash conversion exclydes tre ‘mpact of exceptional items frem operating cash flows and FBITDA.
2023 2022
(restated)’
$m im
Cash flows from Cont nuing operations before excepticnal items 2.5 587
Adjusted EBITDA 35.7 388
Cash conversion 70% 151.3%
1 Comparatwve: for the 52 weeks erded 1 Coloser 2022 have bee~ restated to reflact the zscont nuat on of the Armaur Dus rness
2023 2022
{restated)’
$m $m
Cash flows from continuing aperations 0.2 377
Restructuring and transitinn costs pata 2.3 10
Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items 25 587
Comparaties for the 52 weeks erded | Ccrazer 2022 have beer restated o relect the 3 5cart ruat or of the Armour pusneis
12 Constant currency reporting
Corstant currency measures are calculated by transtating the prior perod at current per.od exchange rates.
2023 2022
(restated)’
Continuing operations $m $m
Orders received 258.7 266.3
Closing order book 135.8 122.5
Revenue 2438 263.5
Adjusted C3ITDA 35.7 41.3
Adjusted operating profit 21.2 26.0
Adjusted profit before tax 14.0 224
Adjusted basic earnings per share 40.3c 62.2c

1 Caemparatives fortne 52 weeks ended 1 Octozer 2022 havs kee~ restated to reflect the 2cantauanon of the Ar~~cur business
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Restatement of adjusted performance measures
As per statutory equivalents recondled in nate 7.5, prior period comparatives for adjusted performar.ce measures have been restated to present the
Armour business as a d scontinued operalion, and to reclassify cerlain expenses ir the Conselidated Statement of Cornprehensive Income,

Expense recassifications malude disclostre of researct and develonmient costs ds a secdrate fine iterm beluw gross profit, and recategorisation of sefling
ard distribution costs, The change in accounting policy provides visibility of research and developiment costs on the face of the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehiensive Income when it was previously anly reparted in the Financal Review. Selling and distributian costs have been disaggregated nto sales
and marketing expenses, presented in a separate fine below gross profit, and fre ght and distr'bution costs which have been reclassified into cost of sales.

this presentation reflects the way the business performance will be monitored in future, vatn separate disclosure of research and development
aoprogriate as an integral part of operations. It is also consistert and comparable with common market practice and therefore provides reliable and maore
relevant informaticn to the reader. Overall operating loss figures for the previous period remair unchanged as thisis only a presentaticnal restaternen:.

A reconciliation of reported prior period to restated figures is preserted below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022

Adjusted
Previously Remove Research and Selling and

reported Armour development  distribution Restated

Continuing operations $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue 2719 &84 - - 263.5
Costofsales  _qg@n  ms gs  ©® (M8
Grossprofit s w88 0w 889
Selling and d'mUi:JuUuH costs / Sales and markeling expenses o 7_(2%).;? o ‘I.Z— —*— - I— —&15.02
Resewrcand developmen: cots o e - ey
Generaﬂd admmtive expenses—— T (43.7)7 - 2.0 . I (417
Operating profit 101 133 - - 234
Ne* finance costs {4.0) 03 - - 13.7)
Profit before tax a1 135 - - 19.7

Adjustments
Remove
Previously Armour Researchand

reported adjustments development Restated

Continuing operations $m Sm Sm $m
Revenue - - ~ -
Cost of sales - T e e o
érass profit - (1.6 ‘? .
gel\ing and disterTosts / Sales and markoﬁexpenses [ D
E&ar?an@elopmem costs S - *T4T— W
General and admin(m@emes S {10.5) - \’iAS)\\ 7\4\ ‘(ﬁ
Operating (loss)/profit {127 02 - (124
Net finance cnsts 74 11 - 1.3
Profit before tax (14.6) 09 - (13.7)

S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC

1 Our opinion is unmodified

We Fave audited the financial statements of Avon Protection plc (‘the
Company’) for Uie 52 weeks ended 30 Septemnber 2023 which comprse
the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorme, the Consolidated
and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, and the Consolidated and “arent Company Statements of
Changes in Equity, and the related notes, including the accounting policies
sections in both the Group and Parent Company financial statemenits.

In cur apinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2023
and of the Group’s loss for the period then ended;

the Group finandial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with internzational accounting standards in conformity with
U K-adopted international accounting standards;

Overview

the Patent Company inandal stalements have been proverly prepared
in accordance with UK, accounting standards incloding FRS 101
Reduces Disclosure Framework; and

the financial stateme~ts have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted owr audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK.} (15As (UK)) and applicable law. Our rasponsibilities are
described below. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our augit opinion is
cansistent with our report ta the Audit Committee.

We were frst appointed as auditor by the sharcholders on 1 February 2019
The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for tre & finarcial periods
ended 30 September 2023. We rave fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and we remain indeperdent of the Group in accardance with, UK,
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied o listed
publicintarest entities. No non-audil services probibited by that standerd
were provided

Materiality: Group financizl §2.05m 2022 $1.8m)

staternents as a whole

0.84% (2022: 0.6C%) of revenue from continuing operations

Coverage 100% (2022: 100%) of revenue from continuing operations

Key audit matters 2023 vs 2022

New risks Goodwill impairment - Head Protection NEW
Recurring risks Recoverability of capritalised development expenditure J
Parent Company Recoverability of Parent Company's investment in subsidiaries rd

2. Key audit matters: cur assessment of risks of
material misstatement

Key audit matters are thase matters that, in our professional judgerment,
were of most significa~ce in the audit of the financial statements and
include the maost significant assessed risks of material misstaternent
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, ncluding those whicn

had the greatest effect an: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing tne efforts of the engagement team.

We summarise below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of

audil significanice, in atriving at our audit opinion azove, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters a~d, as required for
public interest entities, our results rom those procedures, These matters
were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken,

in the context of, and solely for the purpase of, our aucit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in formirg our opinion thereon, and
consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement continued
Qur response

The risk

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill Impairment -
Head Protection

FHezd Protection Goodwaill
of £62.9 mllion.

Impairmert charges
of 5234 million.

Refer to page 82 {Audit
Cammittee Repart), pages

135 and 137 {accounting
palicy) and pages 145, and 146
(financ'al d sclosures)

Forecast-based assessment:

Coodwill s significant 3and at risk of
irrecoverability due to the level of revenue
and margin growth recured to support
the carry'ng amount allocated to Head
Protection segment, which has been tesled
at Lhis level for the first time this pericd
following tne Group's restructure of its
Ccpeialng segments.

« The estirated recoverable amount is
subjective due ta the Inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting and discounting
futtine cdsh flows.

- The effectof theso matters |s that, as part
of our nsk assessment, we determined that
the value in use of gooawill in respect of
the Head Protection CGU has a high degree
of estimation uncertanty, with a cotential
range of leasonable outcomes grealer than
our maeriality for the financial statemerts
as a whale, and possibly many times that
amount. Tre financial statements (page
146} disclose the sensitivity estirnated by
the Group

Our procedures includec:

We performed the tests above rather than seek ng to rely on any of
the Group's controls becalse tre nature of the balance is such that we
would expeci to obtain audit evidence primarily through the detailed

Historical comparison: We asscssed the accuracy of the Group's
forecasting by companng actual cash flows in the period to the prior
pernod foretasts
Our sector experience: \We evajLated the assumptions used, in
particular 110se relating to forecast revenue growth, gross profit marging
and long-term growth rate tased on our knowledge of the Group

procedures described

Our results

We fourd the Head Pratection Goodwill balinece and the related
impanment chargge to be acceptable,

Benchmarking assumptions: e compared the Group’s assumptiors
to externally cerived data in relatior to key nputs such as revenue
growth rates, long-term growth rate and discouns rates. us ng our awn
valuatior speciiiist
Comparing valuations: We rompared the sum of the discounted
cash flows {including rhe respiratory and head protection segments)

10 the Group's market capitalisaion to assess the reasonableness of the
assumpticns used
Assessing transparency: We assessed whether the Group's disclosures
about the sensitivity of the outcome of the imparment assessment to
changes in key assumptions reflect the risks inherent n the estimation

of the recoverable amourt of goodwill, includ ng an assessment of
whether the dearee of aggregation in the disclosure of key assumptions
was materially acceprable.

Therisk

Our response

Recoverability of
capitalised development
expenditure

Included within capiralised
developmen: expenditi.re

of §20 2 mullon (2022:

5211 mullion)

Impairment charges of
30.2 milllon (2022, 42 & milhon)

Risk vs 2022 Jr

Refor to page 83 (Audit
Cormnmittee Repart). pages 135
and 13/ (@ccounting policy}
and pages 145, 147 and 148
{financial cisclosures)

Subjective Estimate:

+ Within the capitalised development
expend ture we identified a number of
prac s with a higher degree of nsk around
recoverability, ncluding those which have
no prior ttack record of reven.ae ana margin
generation, have low neadroom™, and these
awaiting regulatory approval.
The estimated recoverable amount of these
intang-ble assets is supported by forecast ng
anidd descaunting futire cash flows (hased
on assamptions sucn as d scount rates and
rovene grawth rawes), which arg inherently
highly judgemental. These uncertainties,
combined with the quantum of the
develepment Losts balance for the higher
tisk produc s, means thal the recoverable
amoeunt of these development costs is
subject to significant estimation uncerta nty

- The entical issue 13 fo ostablish whether

there 1s sufficient demand for the products
which genetate these cash flows ard
whether the preduct will meet the
requirements cf the customer or reg. red
regulatory approva, and the timing of this
approval, which is InFerently subjective

as this involves an assessme~t of the
probability of futiure zucomes,

Our procedures includeo.

We performed the fests sbove rather than seetng fo rely on ary of
the Group's controls because the nature of the balance 1s such that we
weolld expect to obtain ad it evidence primar ly throagh the detaled

Historical comparison: We assessed the accuracy of the groun’s
forecasting by comparning actual cash flows for products in the period to
the prior period forecasts.

For a risk-hased selection of products our procedures included:

Qur sector experience: We challenged the detailed forecasts

wh'ch support the estimated recaverable amount by reference to
discusstans with project managers on the likelihood and timing o*
when new products ave expec:ed 1o receive customer of regulatory
clearance as compared to what was assumoed in the forecasts and

the size of the potential market

Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the Group's

assumptions to externally derived data In relation to key inputs such

as revemue growth rates and discount rates,

Sensitivity analysis: We performed sensitivity analys s to

determine if reasonably possicle changes in discount rates, product
margins, and growth ates woald rosultin additonal impa‘rments

boing recogrused.

about the sensitivity of the cutcome of the iImpa-rment assess~entto
changes In key assumptions re‘lect the risks inherent in the 25t matior of
the recoverarle amaourt of the developrment asts,

procodures described.

Ourresults

We found the dovelopent costs balance, and the related impairment
charge to co accepiabla (2072 We found the developricnt casts balance,
and the related Impairment charge to be accertable)

Assessing transparency: We asscssed whether the Group's disclasures
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2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement continued

The risk

Qurresponse

Recoverability of Parent
Company’s investmeants
in subsidiaries

{£212.7 million; 2022:

£191.0 millizn)

Low risk, high value

The carrying amount of the Paven® company’s
Investments in subsidiancs represents 96.7%
(2022, 95%) of the company's total assets Theur
recoverabillity is not at a high risk of s'gnificant
misstalement o subject Lo significant
judgerrent, However, due to thelr matenal ty
in the context of the Parent company financial
statements, this is considered to be the area
that had the greatest effect or our ovarall
Parent company audit,

R'sk vs 2022:—>

Refer 1o page 162 laccounting
policy; and page 171 {financial
disclosures).

Qur pracedures mcluded.

- Tests of detail: We compared the carrying amount of 100% of
Investments with the relevant subsidiaries’ draft balance skeet toidentify
whether thair net assets, being an approximation of their minimum
recaverable amount, were in excess of their carry-ng amount and assessing
whether those subsidiar es have nistorically been profit-making

+ Assessing subsidiary audits: We assessed the work performed by the
subsidiary audit tearn and the group weam on all of those subsidiaries and
consider ng the results of that work, on those subsid.aries’ profits and
net assets.

Where the net assets of a subs.aiary were below the investment's carrying
amount, our procedures also included.

+ Our sector experience: Fvaluating the current level of the subsidiary’s
trading, including identifying any indications of a downturnin activity,
by examining the post year end rranagement accounts and consider ng
our knowledge of the Grouo and the market.

We pertarmed the tests above rather than seeking to rely an any of the
company’s controls because the nature of the balance is such that we
woula expect to obtain audit evidence primarily through the detailed
procedures described.

Our results
we found the company's conclusion that there is ne imparrment of 1ts
investmaents in subsidiaries to be acceptable (2022: acceptable),

3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set

at $2.05 million (2022: $1.8 million), determuned vath reference to a

benchmark of revenue from continuing operations, of which it represents

0.84% (2C22: 0.68% of revenue). We consider revenue from continuing

gperations t¢ be the mast appropriate benchmark as it better reflects

the size of the business compared to the loss before tax

Materiality far the Parent Company financial statements as a whaole was set
at £1.1 milien (2022- £1 0 million), which is the component matenality for
the Parent Company determined by the Group audit engagement tearm.
Th sis lower than the matenality we would olherwise have determined
with reference to 4 benchmark of Parent Company total assets, of which
iLrepresents 0.5% (2022 0.5%)

In l.ne with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual

account balances and disclosures were performed to a lower threshold,
performance materiality, so as to reduce to an accentable level the risk that
individually immaterial misstatements in irdividual account bzlances add
up 1o a material amount across the financial statements as a whole,

Performance materiaiity was set at 75% (2022 65%) of materiality for the
Group financial statements as a whole, which equates to $1.6 million

(2022: $1.17 million). We applied this percentage in cur determination of
performance materiality because we did not identify any factors ndicating
an elevated level of risk.

Performance materiality was set at 75% (2027: 75%) of materiality for
the Parent Company financial statements as a whole which equates to
£0.825 millior {2022, £0.75 million). We applied this percentage ir our
deterrmination of performance mater al'ty because we did not identify
any factors indicating an elevated level of risk,

We agreed to report to the Audit Commrittec any corrected or uncorrected
identificd misstatements exceeding $100,000 (2021: $30,0C0), in addit’'on
te other identified misstatemenis that warranted repart ng on

gualitative grounds.

Of the Croup's eight {2022 eight) reparting components, we subjected
five (2022: five) to full scope audits for Group purpases ard ane (2022 one)
Lo specified tisk-focused audit procedures over cash & cash equivalents
{2022 cash & cash eguivalents). 1re lalter was not individually financially
sigrif canl encugh to require g full scope audit for group puiposes, bul
did present speufic individual risks that needed Lo be addiessed. The
corrponents within the scope of our work accaunted for the percentages
illustrated opposite. For the residual two components, we performed
analysis at an aggregated Group level to re-examing our assessment that
thare were no significant risks of matenial misstatement. The remaining 2%
(2022: nil%) of total Croup assets 1S represented by 1 (2022: nil) reporting
cormponent, none of which individually represented more than 2% (2022:
nil%) of tatal Grouw assets.
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3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit continued

The Group leam instructed component auditors 2s to the signi‘icant

areas Lo be covered, including the relevant risks detailed above and

the information 1o be repotted back. The Group leam approved the

comparnient materialities, which ranged from $0.15 miflion to $1.55 millian

(2022 $0.15 million to $*.35 million), having regard to the mix of size and

nsk prof le of the Group across the components. [he work cn one of

the componients (2022: ane of the compenents) included procedures

performed by component auditors and the rest, including the audit of the

Parent Company, was performed salely by the Group team. The Group

team visited five (2022: five) component locations in the UK. and US,

to assess the audit risk and strategy. Vigeo and telephone conference

meetings were also held with the component audizers during which the

findings reported 1o the Group team were discussed in more detall, and

any further work required by the Group team was then performed by the

rompenent aaditor

The scope of the audit work performed was predominately substantive
as we placed imiteq reliance upor the Group's internal control over
financial reportirg.

Revenue from continuing operations
$243.8m {2022: $263.5m Revenue)

Total Revenue

revenue S243_8m

Group revenue from

continuing operations before tax

100%

(2022 100%*}

100
100

Full scope for Group audi: purpuses 2u24
Spec.fied r sk-focusec audit procedyre, 2023
Full sccpe for Group audit purposes 2022
Specihed rsk-focusens au-di procedures 022
Resudual components

Group
materiality

Group loss (2022: profit)

100%

(2522 100"}

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 The impact of climate change on our audit
In planring our audit we have considered the potential impacts of chmate
change on the Group's business and 1ts financial staterments.

With the support of our dirrdgle professionals we performed a risk
assessment of the impact of cimate change on the financial stalements
and our audit approach.

Climate change impacts the Group in a vaviety of ways mcluding the
impac: of climate nisk on manafacturing and procurement, potential
reputational risk associated with the Groups's delivery of its climate related
initiatives, and greater emphasis on climate related narrative and disclosure
in the Annual Report.

The Group's expasure to climate change is primar Ty through the
acquisition of matenals in its supply chain and increased costs in relation to
manufacturing end pracucts. As part of our audit we have mace enguiries
of maragerment to understand the extent of tne potentialimpact of
chimate change risk on the Group's financial statements and the Group's
preparedness tor this.

Group Materiality
$2.05m {2022: $1.8m}

$2.05m
Whole ‘inancial staterients materiality
(2022, 51.8m)

$1.53m
whole financial staterrents performance
mateniality (2027: 51 /m)

$1.8m
Range of mazeriality at six components
(50.15m=51.55m) (2022: $3.15m to $1.35m)

$0.01m
Misstatements reported to the Audic Committee
12022 50.09m)

Group total assets

100%

(202210057

W
-~
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4 The impact of climate change on our audit continued
We have zlsa read the Group's and the Parent Company’s disclosure of
climate related informat on in the front nalt of the Annual Report as set
out on pages 5010 56, On the basis of the procedures performed above,
we concluded that the nsk of climate charge was not significant when we
considered tre nature of the assets and relevant contractual terms As a
result, there was no material impact from this on our key audit matters.

5 Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis as they do not intend to fiquidate the Group or the Company
or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Group's
and the Cornpany's financial position means that this is realistic. They have
alsa concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have
cast significant doubst over therr abii'ty to continue as a going concern for
at least a year from the date of aporoval of the financial statements {the
qgoing concern period’).

We .sed our knowledge of the Group, its ingustry, and the general
econamic environment to ictentify the inherent risks to its business model
and analysed how those risks might affect the Group’s and Company's
financial resources or ability to continue ogerations over the going
concern period. The ris<s that we considered most likely to adversely
affect the Croup’s and Company's availatle financial resources and metrics
relevant to debit covenants over this penod were:

« disruption to the Group's supply chain,

- nflationary pressures on the Group's cost base;
- corrpetition Inwinning new bids; and

- dependence on a la'ge customer or markelt.

We considered whether these 1 sks could plausibly affect the hguidity o
covenant comoliance in the going concern petiod by assessing the degree
of downside assumption that, ndividually end collectively, could resull in a
| quidity issue, takirg into account the Group’s current a~d projected cash
and facilities {a reverse stress test).

Our procedures also included:

« comrparing past budgets to actual results to assess the Drectors' track
record of budgeting accurately;

« inspecting the confirmation from the lender of the level of committed
financing including re-financing of ex’sting facilities, ar o the associated
covenant requirements and

- assessing the completeness of tne going cancern disclosure.
Qur conclusions based on this work:

We consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting ir the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

+ We have not identified, and concur with the Directors' assessment that
there is not, a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
or Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going
concern pernod.

We have rothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to the
Directors’ statemen: an page 133 to the financial statements on the use
of te aoing concern basis of accounting with no matenal uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt over tne Group and Company's use

of that basis for the going concern peried, and we found the going
corcern disclosure on page "33 to be acceptable,

« Therclated staterent under the Listing Rules set out on page
7915 materially consistent w'th the financial staterments and our
audit knowledge

However, as we cannot predict all futuie evenils or conditions and as
subsequent events may result in oulcemes thal are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they weie made, the abuove
cenclusions are not & guarantee thal the Group o the Comuany will
cont nue in operation.

6 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations —

ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to fraud
To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (‘fraud risks’) we
assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive ar pressure
to commit fraud or provide ar opportunity to commit fraud. Gur risk
assessment proceaures included:

+ enquiring of Directars, the Audit Committee, internal a.dit and
inspection of policy documentation as to the Group's high-level policies
and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal
audiz function, and the Group's channel for 'whistleblowing’, as well as
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

« reading Board and Audit Committes rinutes;

- considering remuneration incentive schemes (annual bonus scheme &
performance share plan) and performance tarqgets for management and
Directars including the total shareholder return target and FRS target for
management remuneration; and

+using andlylical procedures to ident fy any unusual or
unexpected relatienships,

We communicated dentified fraud ris<s throughout the audil team and
remained alert to any indications of frzud throughout the audit. This
incl.ded communication from the Group to the component audit team of
relevant frzaud nsks identifies at the Group level and request to compenent
audit teams to report to the Group audit team any 'nstances of fraud that
could give risc to a material misstaterent at the Group level.

As required by audining standards, and taking into account possible
pressures to meet profit targets and our overall knowledge of the cantrol
environment, we perfarm procedures to address the risk of managenrent
override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recogrition, in
particular the ris< that revenue is recorded in the wrong penod and the risk
that Group and component management may be in a position to make
inapprapriate accounting entries.

We also identified a fraud risk reiated ta gooadwill impairment — Head
Protection. Further detalin respect of goodwill impairment - Head
Protectian is set outin the key audit matter in secsion 2 of this report.

We also performed procedures includirg:

- Identifying journal entries and other agjustments to test for all full scope
components based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation, These included those posted to unusual
OF unCxpected accounts,

- Fora sample of revenue recognised pre penod end date, assessing
whether revenue had been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing to dispatch notes or terms of specific sale agreements.

- Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.
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6 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -

ability to detect continued
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to non-compliance with laws and regulations
We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonabiy be
expected to have a mazerial effect on the financial statements frem our
general commerdial and sector experience and threugh discussion with
the Directors (as reguired by auditing standards), and from insoecticn of
the Group's regulatory and legal carrespondence and discussed with the
Directors the pohcies and nrocedures regarding compliance with laws
ard regulations.

As the Group Is regulated, our assessmen: of risks involved gaining

an understanding of the cortrol environment includirg the ertity's
procedures for complying with regulatory requirerments. We communicated
identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert
ta any indications of non-compliance thraughout the audit, The patential
effect of these laws and reqgulations on the financial statements varies
considerably. This included communication from the Group audit team to
comporent audit teams of relevant laws and requlaticns ident fied af the
Group tevel, and a request for component auditors to report to the Group
audit tearm any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that could give rise to a matenial isstaternent at the Groug: level

Firstly, the Group 1s subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the
financial statcrrants including financial reporting legslatior (induding
related companies legistat on), distributatle profits lcgslation, tazation
leguslation, and pensions regutation and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws ard regulations as part of our procedures an
the related finandal statement iterms

Secondly, the Group s subject to many other laws and regulations where
the conseqguences of non-compliance could have a matenal effect un
arnounts or discusures in the ‘inancial statements, for instance through
the impositicn of fnes o itigation We dentified the following areas

as those most hkely to have such an effect export contral legislation
recognising the Governmental nature of mary of the Group's customers,
product regulation, health and safety, employrmeant law, environmental
legistation and anti-bnbery & corruption legislation recogn’sing the
nature of the Group's activities. Auditing standards jimit the required audit
procedures to identfy non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the Girectors and mspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any, Thercfore 1 a breach of operational regulations is
not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will
not detect that treach,

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches
of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent imitaticns of an audit, there 1s an unavoidable

risk that we may not Fave detected sorne material misstatements n

the financial statermnents, even though we have properly plannc s and
performed our audit In accardance with auditing standards. For example,
the further rernoved non-comphance wath laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions refiected in the financial starements, the less lkely
the inherently imited procedures required by audit:ng standards would
idantify it

In addition, as with any audit, there remaimed a bughe risk of nen-
detection of raud, as these may mvolve cellusicn, fergery, intentional
OMIsyIONS, mistepresentdaions, o the overtide of intemal controls Gt
audit procedur=s are des gned 1o detect material misstaterment. We die
not respansible for preventing non-complance or frauc and carnot be
expected to gatect non-cempliance with all laws and regulations,

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report

I'he Directorn are responsible fon the other information presented in

the Annual Repor together wilh the financial statements, Qur opieon

on the [inanaidl stalements does not cover the other information and,

accordingly, we do not exoress an audit opnion or, except as explicitly

stated below, any form of asswance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing so,
consiger whether, based on our financial staternents audit work, the
informaticn there n 1s materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we
have not identified material misstatements in the ather information.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
Based sclely on our work on the other information:

we have not -dentified matenial misstatements in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report;

inour opinian the information given in those repotts for the finznaial
period is consistent w th the financial staternents, and

+Inour opinicn those reports nave been pregared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006,

Directors’ Remuneration Report
In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Reruneration Report 1o be aud'ted
hasbeen propenly prepared in accordance with tre Companies Act 2006,

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and

longer-term viability

We are required to perform procedures to idertify whether there is a
material inconsistency between tre Jnectors’ disclosures in respect of
emerging and zrincipal risks and the viability statement, and the financial
stacements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to n relation ta:

the Directors’ conf rmanicn wathin the viebility stater-ent on page 79
that tney have carnea out arobust assessment of the energing and
principal nsks facing the Group, .nclug ng thase that would threaten
its bus ness model, future performance, solvency and liguidity;

the Principal nsks disclosures describing these tisks and how emerging
nsks are identified, and explaining how they are being managed and
mitigated; and

- the Directors’ explznation in the viabllity staternent of how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group, over wha? penad they have done
so and wny they considered that penod 1o be appropnate, and ther
statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in ope-ation and meet iLs liakal Les
a5 they fall due over the penod of their zssessnent, including any
related disclosures drawing altenlion to any necessary gualifl cztions
or assumpticns,

We are also required to review the vizbil ty staterrent, set cat on page
73 under the Listng Jules Bases on the above procedures, we have
concluded that the above disclosures are materially consistent with the
financiat staterents snd our audic knowdedge.

Ourwor<istimited to assessing these macters in the context of only

the knowledge acquited during cur financial statements audit As we
cannot precict zll future events or canditions and as subsequent avents
may resaltin outcomes that are - consistent with judgements tha were
reasonable at toe time they were made, the absence of anything to report
Gn these statements Is not a quarantes as 19 the Group's and Company s
lonaer-term viability

S

Annual Report and Accounts 2023 Avon Protection pl¢ 127



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

7 We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report continued

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to performn pracedares Lo igentfy whether therels a

rmalenal nconsislency netween the Direclors’ corporate governance

disclosures and the financial statements and our augit knowledge,

Based an those procedures, we have concluded that each of the
following is materially consistent with the financial statements and our
audit knowledge

the Directors’ statement that they consider that the Annual

Report and financial staternents taken as a whole is fair, bala~ced

and understandable, and prov'des the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business
moadel and stratecy;

the section of the Anmual Report describirg the work of the Audit
Corrmittee, including the significant issues that the Auwdit Committee
considered in relation to the financial statements, and how these issues
were addressed; and

the section of the Annual Report that describes the review of

the efectiveness of the Group's nisk management and internal

control systems.

We are required to review the part of the Carporate Governance Staterrent
relating to the Group's compliance wth the provisions of the UK.
Corporate Governa~ce Coae specified by the Listing Rules far our review.
We have ~nthing to report in this respect,

8 We have nothing to report on the other matters on
which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if,

inour apin'on:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, o7 returns adequate for ur audit have not been rece vea
from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial statements and the pa“t of the Birectors’
Rernuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

certar disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are

not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

We have ~othing to repart in these respects.

9 Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explaned mote fully in then staterment set out on page 114, the
Liteclors are responsible for: the preparation of the finandial statements
including being satisfied that they give & tue and fait view; such inlernal
control as tney determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of
financizl statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether
due to fraud or ertor; assessing the Group and Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidzate the Group or the Parent Company orto
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free frorm material misstaterrent,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditar’s
report. Reasonzble assurance s a high level of assurance, but doss not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (LK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists Misstaternents can
arise from fraud or error and are considerec material if, individually or ir
aggregase, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website
at www frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

The Company 15 required to include these financial statements in

an annual financial report prepared under Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule {DTR’) 4 1.17R and 4 1.18R. This Audito~'s Report provides
no assurance over whether the annual financial repor: has been prepared
In gccordance with those reguirernen:s,

10 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body. in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Par: 15 of the Campanies Act 2006, Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those masters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s members, as a ocdy, for our audit work, for this repart,
ar for the opinions we nave formed.

A ot

Andrew Campbell-Orde (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on kehalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor Chartered
Accountants

66 Queen Square

Bristol

BS1 4BE

21 November 2023
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

30 September 1 October
2023 2022
{restated)’
Note $m $m
Continuing eperations
Reven:e i 21 ‘ 2438 . 7635
Cos: of ssles . (157.9) (174.6)
Gross profit i 859 889
Sales and marketing expenses w 04.9) (150)
Research and devélobment costs (10.2) (162
General and administrative expenses N (73.4) {(52.7)
Operating (loss)/profit 21 (12.6) 10
Net finarice costs N - vy (76) .0
(Loss)/profit before taxation 25 (20.2) &0
Taxation - 26 38 {03
(Loss)/proﬁt for the peried from continuing operations ) (16.4) 5‘1
Ei-scontinued operations 7 ] )
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations B 22 20 f13.3)
{Loss)/profit for the period (14.4) )
Other comprehensive {(expense)/income
items tha::;;norsubsequent!y reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurerment (\oss)f;gam recognised on retirernent benefit scheme 6.2 {31.8) 501
Deferrr'ii tax refating to ret rern-ent benefit scneme - 26 o 6.9 6.6}
-[_J-Cfé.rred tax relating to change in tax rates 26 11 (3-4)
Deferre_c-l-“tm; relating to other temperary ditferences 26 0.2 0N
Itemns that may be sugsequenrl y reclassified n; _r.;'ne income statement )
Deferred tax exchange differences offsel in reserves - 46 08 ] (2.7}
E)ther exchange differences offset iﬁ—;eserves N (0.5) 35
Cash flow neages 04 05
Current tax relating o cash flow hadges - [}
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the period (23.3) 382
Total comprehensive (expense}/income for the period (37.7) 306
Earnings per share 23
Basic - (48.0¢) B {25.1c)
Diluted (48.0c) {24.9¢)
Earnings per share from continuing operations 23
Basic 7 (54.7¢) 18 8¢
Diluted (54.7¢) 18./7¢
1 Cempanarnos for the 32 wrcks srdad 1 0eTabee 1073 7a 0 baar resated ma el T igl35s 4rar an of resazreh 3ag eeeloprert o5, gl 23t om of sell g and zienbanian maeks ana e

Farorhrna or of e Armaar onsinass Trase are i

7
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

At 30 September At 1 October
2023 2022
Note 5m Sm
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangizle assets ) 31 ) 139.2 171.0
;c;-bérty, plant and equipment 3.2 358 V39.9
linance leases 33 '76.2 -
Deferred tax assets 26 40.1 267
Derivative financial instrumaents 5.4 0.6 0.
2219 2379
Current assets
Inventones 41 54.4 656
Trade and other receivables 4.2 58.3 306
Derivative fina~cial instruments o 54 0.3 0.2
Current tax re{.ew-dbles - 42
Cash and cash equivalents 4.4 13.2 o 9.5
126.2 1101
Liabilities
Current liabilities -
Borrowi~gs 5.1 ) 4.3 4.
Current tax payables Q0.7 o -
Trade and other payables 4.3 34.6 423
Pravisions for liabilities and charges - Al 0.4 0.7
40.0 471
Net current assets 86.2 63.0
Non-current liabilities .
Borrowings 51 94.3 734
Deferred tax liatiltics 26 6.2 58
Retirement benefit obhgations 6.2_ 402 6.3
Provisions for habilities and charges 71 8.0 49
148.7 S0.4
Net assets 159.4 2105
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares 55 50.3 50.3
Share prermium account 55 54.3 343
Other reserves - (13.9) 114.2)
Cash flow hedging reserve B 0.8 04
Retaned earnings 67.-9 119.7
Total equity 1594 2105

These finang al statements on pages 129 to 165 were approved Dy the Board of Directors on 21 November 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

N fos Shls LA

Rich Cashin

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying accounting policies amd notes form part of these financial statements.

Company number 0032965

ey,
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPCRT GOVERNANCE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52 weeksended 52 weeksended
30 September 10ctober
2023 2022
[restated)
Note $m $m
Cash flows from operating activities ) )
Casn flows from continuing operations 44 0.2 577
Casn flows fram d\S(éntinuod operations A 3.2 (24.2)
Casn flows from operations ) A4 34 335
Retirement bonefit defict recovery contributions 6.2 - i8.5)
Tax recejved h - 37 37
Net cash flows from operating activities 71 8.7
Cash flows used in investing activities ) ~
Proceeds from dispasal of discontinued operations 22 79 -
Costs of disposal 7 2.2 {04 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3.2 {74 (249
Czprialised deve\opmen_t costs and purchased softwarge 31 (3.6} (6@
Cther nance incore 5.2 0.4 -
Finance lease capital receipts 33 0.5 -
Investing cash flows used in discantinued operations 71 - (3.2)
Net cash flows used in investing activities 2.6 (12.n
Ca{llflows used in financing activities
“roceeds from loan drawdowns 5.3 48.0 429
!_Oanffpaymem‘:s ~ 5.3 (24.0) Ei)
Finance costs paid in respect of-bam loans and overdrafts 52 6.3) (2.7}
Finance costs paid in respect of leases 5.2 0.7 0.7
Repayiment of lease Hability B (3.5) - (320
[3 viderds paid to shareholders 5.6 3.4 {1341
Purchase of own shares — Share Bu-ybar_k Programme ) 95 - {1724
Financing cash flows used in discontinuad operations 0.9 0.2)
Net cash flows used in financing activities {0.8) (708
Net increase/idecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 37 (2.2}
ash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the period ) 9.5 14.1
Ufccts_gxch_gimrge rate changes 7 7 - 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period AA 13.2 9.5

1 Tomhsratiesforthe 37 weeks =ade e | Detrbes 2027 ~ave beentsyated o ceflet the d seantin v

Sor Tf e AT L D ness

g
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CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Share Share Hedging Other Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserves earnings equity
Note $m $m $m $m $m Sm
At 2 October 2021 503 543 - {15.0) 1158 2054
Loss for the period - - - - (76} {7.6)
MNet exchange differences alfsel in reserves - - - U8 - 08
Deferred tax relating to other termporaty differences 26 - - - - 0.n “ [OA]
Rerreasurement gain recognised on retiremant benefit B
scheme &2 - - - - 501 501
Deferred tax relating to change in tax rates 26 - - - - (34} (?—‘E
Deferred tax relating to retirement benefit schemer 26 - - - - ©.6) 9.6)
ﬁérest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 54 - o 0.5 - - 0.5
Current tax on imterest rate swaps — cash flow he(-jé?ﬂ 26 - o - - .n
“otal comprehensive income for the per'od - - 0.4 0.8 264 306
Dividends paid ) 5.6 - - - - (134} (134}
Own shares acquired 5.5 - o - - - {124) 074
Fair value of share-based paymernrt:—- - &3 - - - - 10 1.0
Deferred tax relating to employee share schemes
charged directly to equ'ty 25 - - - - ©.7) 0.7
A1 Cctober 2022 50.3 54.3 0.4 (142} 1197 210.5
Loss for the period - - - - {14.4) (14.4)
Net excrange differences offset in rescrves - - - 0.3 - 03 -
Deferred tax relating to other temporary differences 2.(;W - - - - (0.2} (0.2}
;’;measurement loss recognised on retirement benefit
scheme 6.2 - - - - {31.8) (31.8}
Deferred tax relating to retirement benefit scherme 2.6 - - - - 6.9 6.9
Deferred tax ra;;gigichange in fax rates 2.6 - - - - 1.1 1.1
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hadge 54 - - 0.4 - - G.4
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 0.4 0.3 {38.4) 37.7)
Dividends paid 56 - - o - - {13.4) n3.4
Fair value of share-based payments 6.3 - - - - 0.7 0.7
Deferred tax relating to employee share schemes T -
charged directly to equity 26 - - - - (.7} 0.7
At 30 5eptember 2023 50.3 543 08 {13.9) 679 159.4

Other reserves consist of the capital recemption reserve of $0.6 million (2022 $0.6 milliony and the translation reserve of $(14.5) million 2022: 5(14.8) mllion).

All moverrents in ather reserves relate to the translation reserve.
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Section 1 - Accounting policies

The principal accounti~g policies adopted in the preparation of these
Tmancial stelerments are sel out below, These policies have been
cansistently applied to all the periods presented, unless olherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Avon Protect'on plcis a public limited company incorparated and
domiciled in Frngland and Wales and its ordinary shares are traded on the
London Stock Exchange.

The firancial period presents the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023
{prior financial period 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022).

The financial staterrents have been prepared in accordance wth UK.
adopted Internat onal Accounting Standards. The financal statements
have been prepared under the histoncal cost convertion except for
derivative instrumenis which are held at faic value througn profit ar loss.

Going concern
The financial stater~ents have been preparsd on a going concern basis,
which the Oireclors believe to be appropriate for the following reascors

The Directors have prepared a going corcern assessment Covering the
12-month petiod from the date of approval of these financial statements
The assessment inaicates that the Croup will have suffioert funds to moct
its habilitics as they fall due for that period.

As part of their assessment, the Directors cons dered @ base case and a
severe downside scenar o involving a 219 decl ne in bank-determined
adjusted EBITDA against the base case. The base case 1s the Group's 2024
budget. The severe downside scenario incorporates the cumulative nisk-
adjusted impact of ndividual nsks identified to the Groun's 2024 budyel,
wh Ist excluding ali individual opportunities. The severe downside scenanio
also excludes mitigating actions the Directors could take 1o reduce fulure
cash outflows or expenises, The risks align with the Croup’s poncioal tisks
ard uncertainties and relate primarily to possiole loss of bids and contracts
or lower than anticipated volumes of secured work.

Even in the severe downside scenario, the assessment indicates that t-e
Group will have sufficient funds to meet its | abilities as they tall due, and
wilk continue t comply with loan covenants, througnout the forecast
period. The Group has committed RCE facilities of 5142 millicn covering
the 12 month going cancern period, maturing on 8 September 2025.
Additional committed RCF facilities of $58 mitlion are also available until
& Septembaer 2024, At 30 September 2023 $77.7 million of the RCF facility
was drawn (2022: $53.7 million)

RCF loan cavenants meas.red on a bi-annual Bas s include a maximum
limit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net dapt, excluding lease liabilities, to
bank-determined anjusted FBITDA (leverage), and a rminimum imi: of 4.0
times for the ratio o bank-determined adjusted FRITDA to interest payable
on ba~k loans and averdrafts, At 36 Sepzember 2023 leverage was 1.94
times (2022: 199 times). Bank-dete'mined adjusted EBITDA is calculated
on a pre-IFRS 16 [eases basis, and excludes ceriain non-cash jtems

On this basis, the Directors are confident that the Group and Company
will have sufficient funds to continue to meet thair liabilizies as they fall
due for at least 12 manths from the approval of thase financeal staterments.
Accordingly the Group and Company cantinue t adoot the going
concerr bass in preparing their financial statements.

Basis of consolidation
The consohidated financial statermnents incorporate the inancial results
ard position of the Group and i3 subsiciaries.

Subsidiaries are those entinies over whic the Group has cower, exposure
or rights to vanable returns from its involverment with the entity and

the ab hty to use its power ta affect the amount of the Group's returrs.
Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date orowhich contiolis
transferred to the Group until re cate that control ceases. Inter-group
transactions balances and unrealised gains and Josses on transactions
between Group compamigs are eliminated.

Revision to IFRS not applicable in 2023

Standards and iIrterpretat ons issued by the IASE are only apphcable if endorsec
by the LK. The Group does not consider that eny of the below standards,
drnendments orinterpretations 1ssaed by the 1ASB, but not yel applicable, will
have a matenalimpact or the consolidated finandial statements. Eeclive dates
ate for annual periods beginning on or after the dates stated,

IFRS 1/ Insurance Contracts {effect ve 1 ,anuary 2023)

« Amendments t2 1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements:
- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current with coverants
{effective 1 January 2024)
~ Making materiality judgements and disclosure of material accounting
policies (effective 1 January 2023)
- Amendments ta IFRS 16 Leases, lease hability in sale and leasebzck
teffective 1 January 2024}

- Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Pelicies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, helps distinguish between accounting estimates
and accounting policies (effective 1 fanuary 2023)

+ Amendments o 1AS 12 Income Taxes:

— Delerred tax related 1o assets and labilities ansng from a single
tansaction {effective 1 January 2023)

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules {etfective 23 May 2023}

+ Amendments to 1AS 7 Starement of Cash flows and IFRS 7 Financial :
Instruments, supplier finance arrangerrents {effective 1 January 2024}

- Amendments to 1AS 21 Effects of changes in foreign currency, lack of
exCchangeabilily {effective 1 January 2025)

Foreign currencies

The results and financial pasition of all subsidiaries and associates that |
have a*unctional currency different from LS, dollars are translated into '
U5 dollars as foliows:

asscts and habilities are translated at the closing rate at the balance .
sheet date; and !

« income and expenses are translated at an average exchange rate for the
month where the relevant rate approximates to the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

All resulting exchange differences are recagnised as a separate component
of equity,

On cansohdation, exchange difterences ansing frorm the translation of the
netinvestmertin entilies w th a functional currency other than U'S. dollars,
and of borrewings and other cutrency insteuments cesignaled as hedges
of such investments, arg laken to sharebolderns” eguity. When an entity with
a functional currency other than U S. dollars is sold. the cumutative amoun:
of such exchange difference 15 recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income as part of the gain or [0ss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are initially reczroed in an entity's functional
cufrency accounts at the exchange rate ruling at the date of tre transaction,
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from settlement of such
transactions and from the transiation at exchange rates ruling at the
batance sheet date of monetary assets or hacilities denomi-ated in foreign
currencies are recogrised i the Consol dated Statement of Carmprehesive
Income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying hedges.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acawsit on accounting
methoc. ldent Fable assels and abihities acquired are megsured at fair value at
acquisition date. Costs celated to the acguisition, other than those associate:d
with the issue of debt or equity securnties, are expensed as incaned, Any
contingent consideration payable 1s recagrised a- far value at the acquisiien
date. I the continge~1 consideration s classified as equity, it is nat rermeasured
and settler~ent is accourted forw thin equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes
to tre fair value of t~e cortingent corsideranon are recogrisad in proft or
less, Unwinding of discount on contingent consideratio is ircluded within
finance costs. Changes to the fair value ansing frer changes in the contingent

element, for example, expected cash to be paid, or iming of when payrments
will be made, zre included in gereral and adminisirative expenses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUCD

Revenue

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration which is
expecled to be received in exchange (o1 goods and services provided, net
of trade discourts and sales-1elated Laxes. The Group acts as a principal in
all sales of goods and services,

Revenue is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

a contractexists with a customrer;
- the performance obligations withir the contract have been identified;
- the transaction price has been determirea;

+ the transaction price has been allacated to the performance obligations
within the contract; and

- roven.e is recognised as or when a performance obligation is satisfied

Sale of goods — point in time

Revenuc from the sale of goods ‘s recognised at a peint in time when
control of the geods has ransferred to the customer, usually when
the goods have been shippea 12 the customer in accordance with the
contracted shipping terms.

Sale of goods — over time

The Group has determined that for cerlain made-to-order mihtary
contracls performance obligations are satisficd aver tme, depiciing the
transfer of goads to the custorrer.

Th sis because under those contracts products are made to a customer’s
specification with no alternative use and if a contract is terminated by the
customer, then the Greup is entitled to reirmbursement of costs incurred to
date plus a reasanable profit margin.

A single method of measuning orogress is selected for each related
performance obligation and applied consistertly, with a~ output based
methcd used to measure progress based on units certified by the end
customer as & proportion of fotal units.

Provision of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services, including customer funded
research and development and training, is recognised over time as those
services are provided The Group recognises the amount of revenue fiom
the services provided under a cantract with reference to the costs incurred
as a proportion of total expectad costs

Contract assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities ansing from contracts with custormers are separately
identifiea. Contract assets relate to consideration recagnised for work completed
out nat billed at the balance sheet date. Contract liabiities relate to consideration
received but not recagnised as revenue at the balance sheet date.

Segment reporting
segments are identified based on how management reonitors the
bus ness An operating segment s a companent of an entity:

+ that engages in business activities from whuch it may earn revenues
and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions w'th other compaonents of the same entity);

+ whose aperating results are reqularly reviewed by the entity’s chief
operating decision maker to make decis’'ons about resgurces to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performarce; and

« forwhich discrete finarcal infarmation 1s available.

Operating segrments are aggregated into a single reportable segment
only when the segmen's have similar economic characteristics, and the
segments are similar in each of the following respects

- the nature of the products and services,

« the nature of the production processes;

« the lype or dass of cuslormer Tor their products and services;

« the methods used to distribute thelr products or provide therr servizes; and
- the nzture of the regulatory environment.

The Group Executive team, eing Lhe Chiet Gperating Deasion Maker,
assesses the performance of operativg segments based on adjusted
measures of EBITDA, operating profil, net finance costs, Laxalion and
earnings per share, as well as other measures not defined under IFRS
including orders received, closing order book, EBITDA margin, operating
profit margin, return on invested capital, net detxt excluding lease liabilities,
average working capital turns, and constant currency equivalents for
relevant metrics. Further details on these measures can be found in the
Adjusted Performance Measures section.

In the prior period the Group had two continuing operati~g and
repartable segments, Respiratory and Head Protection, and Armour.
The Armour business was formally closed in the second half of the 2023
financial period a~d has therefore been reclassified as o discontinued
aperafion, with comparatives restated accordingly.

The continuing business has implemen:ed a new model splitting
operations into two operating and reportable segments, Respiratory
Protection and Head Protection. These have responsibility and
empowerment to deliver their own specific strategic ctjectives, with
resourcing, internal performance management and CODM recorting
structures fully in place.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations and post-retirement benefits

The Group has both cefined benefit and cefined contribution plans.
The defined benefit plan’s asset or liabil ty is the present value of the
detined berefit obligation at the balarce sheel date less the Tair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually

by independent actuanes using the projected unit credit metmod.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1s determined by
discounting the estimated cash outflows using irterest rates of high-
guality corporate bonds tnat are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
to the Lerns of the related pension hability, Actuarial gains and losses
arising fram experience adjustments and changes in actuansl assumptians
are recognised in full ir the period in which they occur, as part of other
comprehensive income. Costs associated with investment management
are deducted frorr the return on plan assets. Other experses are
recognised n the ncome statement as incurred.

For the defined contribution plans, the Graup pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatary,
contractual or voluntary basis Contributions are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settied, share-based
compensation plans, under wh'ch the ettty receives servce from
employees as consideration for equity instrumnents (options) of the
Group. The fair value of the employee serv ce received in exchange for
the grant of the options 15 recognised as an expense. The total anount
to be expensed i1s determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

including any rmarket-based performance conditions;

excluding the impact of any service a~d non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time penod); and

+ including the impact of any ncn-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirermnoent for employees to save).

Norn-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions azout

the nurrber of options that are expected to vest The total expense is
recognised over the vesting peniod, which is the pencd over which ali

uf the speufied vesling conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting petiod. the entity revises its estimates of the number of ptions
that are expected to vest basec on the non-market vesting conditions, It
recognises the impact of the revision o ongmal est mates, f any, in the
Conseldated Statement of Comprehersive Income, with a corresponding
adjustmert to equity.
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OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPCRT GOVERNANCE

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodw Il represents the excess of the cost of an acquistion aver the fair
value of the Group's share of the idenufiable net assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Identiligble net assets indude
intangible assets otner than goedwill. Any such intang ble assets are
anortised over the'r expected future Yives unless they are regarded

as having an indefinite life, in which case they are net amortised, but
subjected to annual 'mpairment testing in a similar manner to goodwill,

Since the transition ta IFRS, gandwill arising from acquisinons of
subsidiaries after 3 October 1998 is included in intangible assets. It is not
amortised but is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment kosses Gains and losses on the disposal of an
eniity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the antity sold.

Gaodwill arising frorn acguisitions of subsidiaties before 3 Oclober 1998,
wihich was set aga nst reserves in the period of acquisiton undar UK.
GAA3 has not been reinstated and is not included in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on d'sposal of the refated entity.

Goodwillis tested for impairment at least annually aorwhenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated ta cash-
generating units for the purpose of Impairment testing, The allocaz.on is
macdle Lo those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which

the goodwill arose. Ay impairment is recognised immediately in the
Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Incomae. subseguent reversals
of impairment losses far goodwill are not recognised.

Development expenditure

Expenditure n respect of product development is capitalised where a
positive outcormne is assessed as being resscnably certam, taking account
ol commercial viability and technical feas bility, subseguently capitalised
Loals are amorlsed over the expected wselul e of the related products
trypically between five and ten years), representing the est mated penod
of sales. Amorusation begirs when a development project is substantively
complete and the related product is avalable for sale Expendiure trat
does not meet these criteria is expensed as incurred. Developrrent costs
capizalised are tested for impairment annually or whenever there 15 an
indication that the asset may be impaired. Any imparment 15 iecognised
immediately 'n the Consclizated Statement of Comprehensive Incame.

LK. development costs have not een treated as a realised loss by the
Directars as they relate to specific R&D projects fram which the Group s
cxpecied to aotan sigmificant ccongmic benefit in the future,

External customer contributions to development priyects are net with
urderly ng expenses.

Computer software

Computer software camprises costs that are directly associated with the
productian of identifiable software products controlled by the Group,
and are probable of preducing future economic benefits. Capitalised
coits include emoloyes costs and directly attr butable overheads.

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised

as an expense when they are incurred. Amortisation s charged to the
Consnlidated Statemen: of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life fram the date the software is available for
use, generally berween three and ten years,

Other intangible assets

Otherintangible assets that are acquired by the Group as part of business
compinations are stated at cost less accum.lated a~ortisation and
impairment losses. The useful lves take account of the differirg natures
of each of t~e assets acquired The lives used are

brands and trade™marks — four to fifteen years;
customer relanionships — three to fourteen years, and
technology and licence agreements - (wa 1o ten years

Amoartisation s charged on a strazght-ine basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets through general and administrative exgenses.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at histerical cost or deerned
coslwhere [F3S 1 exemptions have been apphed, less accurnulated
depreciation and any recognised irmpairment [osses,

Costs nclude the original purchase orce of the gsset and Lhe
costs attributable 1o bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use including any qualfying finance expenses.

Land is not depreciated, Depreciation is provided on other assets
estimated to write down the depreciable amount of relevant
assets by equal annual instalments gver the'r estimated useful lives.

In general, the lives used are:

freehold — forty yvears,;
+ Leasehold property ~ over the period of the lease; and
+ plant dnd machimery:

- computer harchware - three years,

~ presses - fifteen years, and

- other olant and machmery ~five to ten years.

Residual values and useful fives of the assets are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date,

An asset’s carrying amount 1s written down immediztely to its recoverable
amount If its carrying amount is greater than its estimatec net realisable
value, Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amaounts. These are included in the Consolidated
Staternent of Cormarehensive Income

Leases

Right of use assets and lease liab lities are recognised at the
commencement date of the contract for all leases corveying theright to
control the associated asset for a period of time.

The right of use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial measurement of the lease liability plus an estirrate of dilapization
provisions where required. Supseq.ently the right of use assets are
rmeasured at cos: bess accumulated deprediation and any accumulated
impairmentlosses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease lability

Depreciat-on s calculated ona straight-line basis over the lile of the lease

I he lease hability is ntially measured at the presen: value of the lease
peyments due over the | fe of the lease. Ledse payments are discounled at
the rate impiicit in trie fease o if that s not readify determired using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The lzase term s determined with reference to any non-cancellable ceriod
of lease contracts plus any pernods coverad by an opt'on to extend/
terminate the lease it it is considered reasanably certain that the option
willswill not be exercised. In concluding whether or not it is reasonabdly
certa n an option will be exercised management has consicered the
strateqic outlook for the Group and other operatioal factors.

Subiseguently the lease liabidity is measured by ncreasing the carrying
value to refloct mterest on the liability and reducing the carrying value to
reflect lease payments made.

Exceptional items

Transactions are classificd as except:onal where they relate to an event
that falls outside of the underlying trading activitics of the Gasiness and
where indvidually or in aggregate they have a matenal impact on the
financial staterments
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Finance leases

The Group acts as an intermediate lessor for certain legacy commercial
premises where they are no longer required for operations, and accounts
forits interests in corresponding head leases and subleases separately.

Lease classification of the sublease between finance and operating 15
assessed with reference to the nght of use asset arising from the head lease.

Fallowing the sublet of additional progerties in the period, finance
lease assets have teen transferrea from right of use assets to a specific
finance lease balance sheet classification as they are now considered
collectively material,

F nance lease assets are initially measured at the present value of the lease
receipts due over the life of the lease. Receipts are discounted at the rate
impl cit in the sublease, or the corresponding head lease hability if the
implicit rate cannot be readily determined.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, incluz'ng alf relevant averhead
axpenditure, and net realisable value, Inventory cost 's valued using the

most appropriate method based on the business use of inventory. In the
majority of cases this is standarg cost. The cost of firished goods and work in
pragress comprises aw materials, direct labowr, other direct costs and related
praduction overheads (basced on nermal operating capacity} It excludes
berrowang costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ardinary course of business, less applicable incremental selli~g expenses.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are nitially recognised when they are originated and
measured al the Lransaction price.

Trade payables are abligations @ pay for goods or services that have beer
acguairadhin the ordinary course of business trom supphers and are initially
recognised at fair value. All other firancial assets and ‘inancial lizbilities
are initally recognised when the Company becomes a garty to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and measured at fair value,

Classification and subsequent measurement

Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are class fied
as measured at amortised cost. The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised
cost and contract assets (as defined in IFRS 15). 1 oss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal
to Iifetime ECL.

Accounts payable are classif'ed as current fiabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operat ng cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

(ash and cask equivalents include cash at ba~k and in hand and highly
hquid interest-beaning securitios with maturitics of tree months 2rfess.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group classifies outstand ng forward exchange contiacts, intelest rale
swaps and carresponding hedged items as cash flow hedges and states
thermn at fair value Lthroagh the Consolidated staterment of Comprehensive
Incorme. Any ineffective partion of the hedge is recogmsed immediately in
the income staternent,

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets
carred at amortised cost are credit imparred. A financial asset is ‘credi:
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The gross carrying armrount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or in full} to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Provisions

Praovisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligalion as 4 result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required o selte the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estirmated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, for example where a
waranty has been given, the likelihoad trat an outflow will be regquired
in setilement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect te any one item included in the same class of obligation may be
small. Provisions zre measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to pe required to settle the obligation.

Restructuring provisions are recagnised when the Group has developed

a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation In those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implernent the plan or announcing its main features to those
affected by it. The measurerment of a restructuring provision includes only
the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those
amounts that are both necessarily entailea by the restructuning and not
associated with the ongging activities of the entity.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurrec, and subseguently stated at amartised cost. Borrowing costs are
expensed using the effective interest method

Taxation
Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and
deferred tax.

Taxable profit differs from accounting proft because it excludes certain
items of income and cxpersc that are recognised in the financial
statements but are treated differently for tax purposcs. Current taxis

the amount of tax expected to be payable or receivable on the taxakle
profit or loss for tne current peniod This amount 1s then amended for any
adjustments in respect of prior pericds.

Current tax s calculated using tax rates that have been written into

law ('enacted’) or irrevocably a~nouncec/committed by t~e respeciive
government {substantively enacted?) at the perod end date. Current
tax receivable (assets) and payaole {liabilities) ave of*set only when there
1s a legal nght to settle themnet and the entity intends to do so. 17is s
generally sue when the taxes are levied by the same tax authority.

Because of the differences between accounting and taxable profits and
losses reported in each period, temporary differences arise on the amaunt
certain assets and liabilities are carried at for accounting purposes and
their respective tax values. Deferred tax is the amount of tax payable or
recoverable on these temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities arise where the carrying ameunt of an assetis
higher than the tax value {more tax deduction has been taken). This can
happen where the Group invests in capital assets, as governments often
encourage nvestment by allowing tax depreciation to be recognised
faster than accounting depreciation. Th s reduces the tax value of the
asset relative to its accounting carrying amount. Deferred tax liab hties are
generally mrovided on all taxable temporary differences. Tnae pericds over
which such tempaorary differences reverse will vary depending o™ the life
of the related asset or liability

Deferred tax assets arise where the carrying amount of an asset is lower
than the tax value. This can happen where the Group has trading losses,
which cannot be offset in the current vericd but can be carried forward.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only where t~c Group considers it
probable that it will be able to use such losses by offsctting them against
future taxable profits,

However, the deferred incorre tax is mot accounted for f 1t anises frome
initial recognitian of an asset or liablity n a transaction other than a
business combiration that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable orofit or loss.
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Taxation continued

Taxable temparary aifferences can also arise on investments in forerg~
subsidiaries and associates, and mterests injoint vertues. Where the
Group s able Lo cortiol the reversal of these differences and it 1s probable
that these will not reverse in the foreseeable future, then no delerred tax
is provided. Deferred tax is calCulated using the enacted or substantively
enacted rates that are expected 1o apply when the asset 15 realised or

the liability is settled. Similarly to current taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset only when there ’s a legal rign: to settle trem net and
the entity Intends to da so. This normally reguires both assets and liabilities
T2 nave arisen In the same country.

Incaome tax expense reparted 0 the financal statements comorses
current tax as well as the effects of charges in deferred tax assels and
liabilities, Tax expense/credits are generally recogrused in the same place
as the itemns to which they relate. For example, the tax associated with
aga'n on dispasal is recognised In the income statemert, in line with
the gain on disposal. Fqually, the tax associated witn pension obligation
artuar af gains and lnsses is rerognised in other comarehensive income,
in line with the actuarial gams and losses,

Dividends

lNnal cvidends are recog-ised a3 aliakility in the Group's financial
stazements ir the period 10 which the dividends are approved by
shareholaers, while interim dividends are recognised in the period in
which the dividends are zaid

Share capital
Ordinary shares are Classified as equity

Incrernental costs directly attiibutable to the issue of new shares or
OELONS dre stown in equily as a deduction, nel of tax, from the proceeds,

Where any Grour: cumpany purchases Lhe Company equity share

capital {treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attnibutable incremental costs (net of Incorme taxes), is deducted frorm
equity attrioutable to the Comizany’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or dispased of. Where such shares are subsequently
sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attrbutable
incremental transaction ¢osts and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable Lo the Corrpany's equity holders.

Consideration of climate change

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have considered
the impact of climate change, particularly in context of tha risks and
opportunities identified n the TCFD disclosures. There has been no
material impact identified on the financial reporting Judgements and
estimates In particular, the Dyrectors considered the impact of climate
change in respect of the following areas.

- going concern and viability of the Group: ard
- cash flow forecasts used in the impairment assessments of non-current
assets including goedwall and development costs.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and
assurnptions thal affect the reporied amounts of assets and latail ties,
irrcome and expenses. [t also requites management o exercise its
Judgerent in the process of applying the Group's accountung policies.

The key areas where assumptions and estimates are sigmficant to the
fanciat statements are disclosed below,

Goodwill - impairment

Goedwill is tested for impairment at least annually or whenever there s an
ind cation that the asset may be irrpaired. Goodwill is allocated to CGUs
for the purpose of i palrment testing.

Dhiscounted cash flow projections and related assumptions for impairment
testing of goodwill and related CGU asset groupings are a significant
eshimate that could result in future maseral adjustments to asset carrying
amounts. Sensitivities are provided in note 3.1

Development costs — capitalisation and impairment

The Group capitalises the developrment costs of new products and
processes as intangible assets ar property, plant and equiprrent.

Initial capitalisation and any subsequent impa-rment are Lased on
management’s judgement of technological and eccnomic feasibil ty,
including regulatory approvals required and torecast customer demand,
In deterrining tre amaounts to be capitalised the Group makes estimates
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount
rates to be applied anc the expected penod of benehts If either
technological or econom.C feasibility 1s nat dernanstrated then the
capitalised costs will be crarged to the incame statement.

Intangible assets are testad forimpairment by grouping develooment
assels o the sreallest idertitiable group of assets generating futare case
Meywws largely independent from other assels, Included in these UGUs are
development expenditure, tang ble assels refated to the procuct group,
inventory relazed to the product grous and acquired intangitles where
associated with the development project

Inventory related to the product group 1epresents working capital
included in the carrying value of the CGU dnventory 15 not tested for
impairment alongside intangible assets and 15 constdered in line witn
the inventory policy, whereby it is state at the lower of cost and net
realisable value,

Discounted cash flow projections and relateg assumgptions for impairment
testing of CGU asset groupings are a significant estimate that could result
in future material adjustments to asset carrying amounts Sensitivities zre
provided in note 30

Estimating the defined benefit pension scheme assets

and obligations

Measurerment of defined benefit pension obl gations requires estirmation
of future changes in nflation and mortality rates, and the selection of 2
suitatle discaunt rate.

The investments held by the pens on schere Include bath quoted

a~d unguoted securtlies, the latter of which by their nature involve
assumptions and estimates to determine the rfar value, Where there s not
an active market for the unguoted secunties the fair value of these assets
15 estimaied by the pension trustees based on advice received from the
investrment mandger woilst also using any available market evidence ol any
recent transactions f2 an :dentical asset, The gxsumplions used invaluing
urguoted iInvestments are affected by current market cond tons and
ta~ds which could result in changes in fair value after the measurement
date Sensitivities are provided in note 6.2,

e
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 3& SEPTEMBER 2023

Section 2 - Results for the period

This section cantains disclosures explaining the Group's results for the per od, segmental information, earnings per share and taxation, and details of

discortinued opetations.

2.1 Operating segments

The Group Executive team is responsible “or allocating rescurces and assessing performance of the operating segments Operating segments ave

therefore reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group Executive team.

The Group has, following a rearganisation, two different continuing operating and reportakle segments, these be ng Zead Protection and Respiratory
Protection. In the prior pericd the Group had two continuing eperating and reportable segments, Respiratary and Head Protectior, and Armour. The
Armour business was formally closed in the second half of the 2023 finandial pericd and has t~erefore been reclassified as inzo discontinued operations,

with comparatives restated accordirgly.

52 weeks ended 30 September 2023

Adjustments
Respiratory Head and
Protection Protection Total discontinued' Total
$m $m $m $m Sm
Revenue 156.9 86.9 2438 - 243.8
Adjusted EBITDA 366 0.9) 35.7 (2.9} 328
Depreciation and amuot lisalion (7.3) (7.2) (14.5) - {14.5)
Impairment charges - - B - (24.6} (24.6)
Amortisation of acquired Intangibies - - - 6.3} 6.3)
Cperating profit/f{lass) 293 8.7) 21.2 (33.8} (12.6)
Finance costs {7.2) 0.4} {7.6)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 14.0 (34.2} (20.2)
Taxation (1.9) 57 38
Profit/{loss) for the period from continuing operations 121 (28.5} (16.4)
Discontinued cperati-o_rrs — profit for the year - 20 2.0
Profit/{loss} for the year 121 (26.5) (14.4)
Basic earn:ngs per share {cen:s) m 40.3¢ {88.30) (48.00)
Diluted earnings ner share (cents) 40,3¢ {éS.Sc} (48.0¢)
52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (restated)’
Adjustments
Respiratory Head and
Protection Protection Total discontinued’ Total
$m $m S$m $m $m
Revenue 1930 705 2635 - 2635
Adjusted EBITDA 424 (3.6) 388 1.6 372
Depreciation and ameortisation 18.5) 6.5) (150) - (15.0)
Impairment charges 04 - 04 4.0 44
Amortisation of acquired intangibles - - - 6.8 6.8)
Operating profit/(loss) 335 (10.0) 234 {12.4) 1o
Finance costs (37 {13) (5.0)
Profit Alossy before taxation 197 {13.7) a0
Taxation [ER)] 28 0.3)
ProfitAlass) for the period from continuing operations 166 (10.9) 5.7
Discontinued operatiors — loss for the vear - 3.3 (13.3)-
{Loss)/profit for the year 16.6 (21.2) (7.6
Basic earnings per share (cents! - 54.7¢ 179.80) (25.1¢)
Diluted earnings per share {cents) 54.4¢ {79 3¢} (24 9c)

il anagjasted EZITZA sthe §° ¢ ~iliantra~sit on zosts and $74m llizr o' resteacuning costs (2322 312 =ulhior of restrustur ng costs

o

Compzrat ves for the 52 weeks ended 1 Octocer 2022 have beer restated to revlect the 2iscont nuaticr of the Ar—gu- busingss

Refer 1o Ad) .stet Z=rformance Measures sechian for a fuil breasdowr o7 2d) smed ~easures, rcl.iing a seconal asion setwesr asjusted FBIDA a~d stami=ry oreran-a prof r oy hre ife~ The (32 3)
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued
2.1 Operating segments cont nued
Revenue analysed by geographic origin

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022
(restated)’
$m Sm
Eurcpe 38.2 730
us 205.6 1605
Tatal 243.8 2635
I Cormplatvesforthe 52 waeks snded * Cotober 2022 ~ave been exlaeg "oreflect the d scontinuzuor o t~2 Armo.- bus nes.
Revenue by line of business
52 weeks ended 30 September 2023 52 weeks ended 1 Qctober 2022
Respiratory Head Respiratory Head
Protection Protection Total Protection Protection Total
$m sm $m Sm im $m
U5 000 671 42,5 109.6 63.2 355 987
Commercial Amer cas 305 270 57.5 405 252 857
UK &lInternatioral 59.3 17.4 76.7 B9 3 9.8 9971
156.9 86.9 2438 193.0 705 2535

L 5. DOD revenues, sola directly and through indirect channels, represent the orly customer which individually ¢ontributes more than (0% o Group revenues.

Revenue by nature of performance obligation

2023 2022

{restated)’

$m sm

Sale of goods— point in time recognition 219.7 2623
Sale of goods - over time recognition 20.4 -
Provision of services — over time recognition 37 1.2
2438 2535

Companatiees for the 30 wocks crded e the s 7077 cave been rsitazen to retlest bo d srart st on ~FEep Areag

T osIn s

Revenue from the sale of goods 1s recognised at a paint in tirme when control of the goods ~as transferred to the custormer, usually when the gooas have

been shipped to the customet inaccordance with Lhe contracted shipping terms.

the Group has determined that for certain made-to-urder military good contracts perdonmance obligations are satisfied over Urne, depicting the transfer
ol goods 1o the customer. A single method of measunng progess s selected ‘o each related performance obligation and applied consislently, In the
current finandial penod over time recoygmtion applied 1o & single contract, with an outpul-based method used Lo mezsure progress basea on custorner

acceptance of product.

Rewvenue from pravision of services is recogrised aver time as those services ale provided.
P

7
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 2 — Results for the period continued
2.2 Discontinued operations

Al 30 September 2023 all outstanding Armour arders have been delivered Lo customets, and Arrmoeur operations have fully closed. As such tne Armour

business has been dassified as discontinued, including restatement of prior period comparatives. The closure of Armour ncduded the sale of assets

relating to the Lexinglon facility as turther described in the gain on disposal section below.

In September 2020 the Group divested of the milkrite | InterPuls business, resultirg in its classification as discontinued. As part of the divestment, the
Group entered into a Manufacturing Service Agreement with the purchasers to provide manufacturing suppoert, which was extended to 30 September
2023 during the peniod. As the activity under this agreement is not part of the cortinuing operations of the Group, related revenue and costs have been

classified as discontinued operations.

milkrite | milkrite |

Armour InterPuls 2023 Armour interPuls 2022
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Rovenue 30.5 6.2 36.7 84 32 16
Cost of sales (36.5) 4.0) (40.5) eE (5.8) 277)
Grass (loss)/profit (6.0) 2.2 (3.8) (123 26) (5.5)
Research and development costs - - - 0.2 - 0.2)
General and administrative expenses (2.8) - 2.8 39 (3.3}
Release of contingen: consideration’ - - - 39 35
Operating luss {8.8) 22 (6.6) (131 2.6} {5.0)
Finance costs ©.2) - 0.2) 4 (1.4}
{Loss)/profit before taxation (9.0 22 (6.8) (14.5) (26) 71
Taxation 1.8 {0.5) 13 3.2 06 38
(Lassy/profit from discontinued operations related 1o trading {7.2) 1.7 (5.5) 13) (2.0} {13.3)
Gain on disposal before tax 2.1 - 91 - -
Tax on disposal (1.6} - (1.6) - - -
Gainon disposal after tax 7.5 - i3 - - -
Total profit/loss) frorn discontnued operdtions 0.3 1.7 2.0 {"1.3) (2.0} (13.3)
Basic earnings per share 1.0c 5.7¢ 68./¢c 373¢) [GRsl] 439c)
Diluted earnings p;r -;Hare 1.0¢ 5.7c 6.7¢ (3700 (560} 4360

1IN 20i2 revene swpectations fa~ the DLAE2AZ budy st aur convaziwere ‘educed rescllingina gun ef $28eallion on serease 3 e net pressertvalue ef corimgent Lons dergt on payable

Gain on disposal — Armour

in the second hal® of the financial period the Group completed the sale of Armour assets at the Lexington facility for cash consideration of $74 million. The
sale agreement also included a sublease of the Lexirgton facility to tre purchaser. The Group has retained its lease liabilities relating to the Lexington head

lease. The Group also separately dispesed of ather Armour assets for cash consideraticn of 305 million.

The total gain on disposal relating to Armour operations is reconciled below:

2023

$m

Cash consideration receved - Lexington 74
Cash consideration received — other assets 0.5
Inventories disnosed 2.00
Plant and machinery disposed v 0.5
Finance fease adjustmert ;T
Transaction costs {0.4)

Gain on disposal before tax 9.1
Tax on disposal (1.6)
Gain on disposal after tax 7.5

The finance lease adjustment recognises the present vatue of the finance lease receipts over the sublease term. The r ght of use tease asset for the

Lexington site was previously impaired to $nil in the 2021 financial period, Cash corsideration was fully paid in the current period.
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued
2.2 Discontinued operations continued

Cash {lows from discontinued apergtions included in the cash {low statement are as {ollows:

2023 2022

(restated)’

$m sm

Cash flows from discontinued operating activities 3.2 24 2}
Investing cash flows used in discontinued operations - (3.2)
Financing ¢ash flows used in discontinued operations 0.9 {1.7)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations 2.3 (286)

Comparatiens for the b2 woogs cnded 1 Octonor 2002 ravo beanrestazed "o reflect the, doscor e Sston U o Armu, Busireas

2.3 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earmings attributable to ordinary sharcholders by the weighted average number of ordinary s~ares in
issue during the penod, excluding those held in the employee share ownership trust. The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of the

Performance Share Plan

Reconciliations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares usedin the calculations are set out below. As the Group was lass making on a
statutory basis in the pricr period, basic and diluted earmings per share are equivalert

Weighted average number of shares 2023 2022
Weighted average number o ordinary shares in issue Lsed in basic calculations (300) 29,996 30.308
Potentially dilutive shares {weighted average) ('000) o 263 221
Diluted number of ordinary shares {weighted average) (000) 30,259 0529
2023 2022
{restated)’
Earnings $m $m
Basic {14.4) (76}
Basie — continung operations 7 o (16.4} 5./
Basic - discominued operations B 2.0 {13.3)
I Comomatives for e 32 weaxs enaed | Oclzoer 262 ~ave bean estaied 0 retlect the d scantin. 3007 2f tre Armo s bosiness
2023 2022
(restated)'
Earnings per share $cents $ cents
Basic (48.0¢) (25.1¢)
Basic - continuing operations (54.7¢) 18 8¢
Basic - discontinued operations - 6.7¢ {13.0c}
Diluted (48.00) {2490)
med; continuing operations _ (54.7¢) 18.7c
Ciluted — discontirued operatiors - 6.7c 43.60)

Compzratves orthe 32 wesks enden 1 Dorzher 3072 mave geenresiated woreflest tre TsLent nozt or 29l e ArmicL s ress

S
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 2 - Results for the period continued
2.4 Expenses by nature

2023 2022
{restated)?
Continuing operations $m $m
Employee and other staff costs' 75.6 770
tegal and professional fees o 9.1 96
Depreciation and amortisation charges (notes 3.1 and 3.2) 208 1.8
Impairment charges — non;currentﬁéssets 24.6 46
Fareign exchange (gains)/losses (1.03 03
Transportation expenses - 5.2 86
Matcrial costs 84.1 1014
Restructuning costs {excluding restructuring-related impairments) 1.4 16
Transition costs - 1.5 -
Other expenses 351 276
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses, researcn and development costs ard general and
adrministiative expenses 256.4 2525

1 Emplovee costs disclosed 1~ rote 24 2'e presencee 21 3 centinuing basis for staff-relzted costs expe-szd @ tne Consolicater d12e~entof Comprehensr e Irco~e Tney do not i-e-e“ze "eccnc e to

rowe 6 whick roduzes aiscortin.ed costs

2 Comparat ves “orihe 52 weass erged * Cctoger 2022 bave oge mstated o reflect the 2iscont rustion cf the Ar~our business

2.5 (Loss)/profit before taxation

2023 2022
(restated)’
{Loss)/profit before taxation is shown after charging/{crediting}: $m $m
Loss on dispasal of property, plant and equipment {excluding assets refated to Armour disposal, note 2.2) 0.3 -
Repairs and man:enance of property, plant and ecupment 4.0 35
lipaient of trade receivables (note 5.4 - 01
I Comparatives for the 52 weess ended | Getoze 3037 haye bhre- resrates fo roloc the mizcont nuation af tne Ar-one busirsss
2023 2022
Services provided to the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) by the Company's auditor: $m $m
Aud't fees in respect of the audit of the accounts of the Group including subsidiaries 0.9 10
Audt feesin respect of the audit of?ﬁe accounts of the Parent Company 0.2 0.2
Total audit fees 1.1 1.2
2.6 Taxation
2023 2022
{restated)’
Sm $m
UK. current tax 1.1 07
UK adjustrment in respect o p:cvi-ous perlods o 0.6 {0 6)
Overseas current tax ) 0.4 33
Ovetseas adjustment inrespect of previous penods - Q.1
Total current tax charge/fcredit) 13 35
Deferred tax — current per od (4,4) 4N
Deferred tax — adjustment in respect of previous periodsr 7 : 7(0.?) 05
Total deferred tax charge {5.1) (3.2)
Total tax credit (3.8) 03

The overseas curren: tax credit of $0.4 million (2022: charge of $3.3 million) includes a 30.3 million credi: in connecton with the resolution of a number of

prior periad uncertain tax positions (2022: 50.3 mullion}.

The above table excludes tax on discontinued nperations (incluting gisposals) which amou~ted ta a charge of $0.3 million in the current period (2022

credit of 53.8 rrill an).
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued
2.6 Taxation continuead

The tex on the Gioup's fossi/prolit beloie taxation differs frorm e themeucal amoan: thatwould anse using the standaig UK Lax rate apphcable to

profits of the consoliddled entities as “‘ollows:

The standard rale of corporation tax i the UK mcreased lrom 19% 10 25% from 1 April 2023, The average rale of UK Lax for this pericd 1s therefone 2.2%.

2023 2022
{restated)’
Sm Sm
il oss)/profit before taxation (20.2) 6.0
Taxation at the average standard rate of 22.0% (2022, 19.0%) 4.4) 12
Tax allowances (UK. and LS} - 0.7
Mon-deductible expenses 0.4 0.2
Changaes i tax rates - (C 8}
Differences in overscas tax rates 0.3 0.3)
Adjustment in respect of previous penods {0.1) 04
Total tax credit {3.8) 03
The deferred lax credited ditectly to other comprehensive incarme during the petiod was S8.8 i llion (2022: credit of $15.7 million). The defened tax
charged directly to equity dunng the pernod was S0.7 milion (2022 50.7 milion}.
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated
capital allowances Total
$m im

At 2 Oclober 24121 6 Al
Charged to profit for the period 03 a3
At 1 October 2022 5.8 58
Credited to profit for the period 04 0.4 i
At 30 September 2023 6.2 6.2

The closing UK. deferred tax assels and liabilites have alf been calculated using the 25% tax rate now in force.

i
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 2 - Results for the period continued

2,6 Taxation cont'nued

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have been recognised In respect of temporary differences giving rise Lo deferted tax assets where it is probaple thal these assets will
be recovered.

Retirement Right Other
benefit Share Tax  Pension of use temporary
obligation  options losses spreading Intangibles assets Interest differences Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
At 2 October 2021 171 13 5.1 2.8 75 3.4 - 30 40.2
({Charged)/credited against
profit for the pericd (1.2) 0.2 1.9 {0.4) (16) 0.2) 18 26 3.1
Impact of change i tax
1ates credited to profit for
the period - - - C.2) - - - - 0.2
Charged to other
comprehensive income 9.6) - - - - - - - 9.6}
Impac: of change in tax
rates credited to other
comprehensive income {3.4) - - - - - - - {3.4}
Exchange crtferences
offset in reserves 1.3 {0.2) {C.6) {0.1) - - - 0.5) 2.7)
Charged to equity - 0.7) - - - - - - 0.7}
At 1 October 2022 1.6 0.6 6.4 21 59 32 1.5 51 26.7
Credited/charged) agairst
profit for the pericd 0.3 0.2 ¢4 (1.4) 2.3 {0.3) 39 (0.1} 53
Credited te other
comprehensive income 6.9 - - - - - - - 69
Impact of change In tax
rates credited to other
comprehensive ircome 1.1 - - - - - - - 1.1
Exchange diferences
offset in reserves 02 a1 0.1 - - - - 0.4 0.8
Charged Lo equity - 0.7) - - - - - - (0.7)
At 30 September 2023 101 0.2 6.9 0.7 8.2 29 5.7 54 401

The Group has unrccagnised deferred tax assers of $4.2 million (2022: $3.8 million] in respect of capital [osses where it 1s not considered that there will be
sufficient available future profits to utilise these losses. The gross amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets s $16.9 million and has nu expiry date.

Recognition of deferred tax assets in the current period is in the context of improved expected performance of the Group. Under the new STAR strategy
a sustained return to prof tability is expected which will enable accumulated tax losses and other temporary differences to be utilised. In FY24 this will be
driven by a strong exoected recovery In Head Protection, with growing commercial helmet sales, a full year of NG IHPS. ramp up of ACH GEN I dediveries
and efficiency improvements increasing both overall profitability and profit margins. A significant portion of losses in the current and prior period are
also a result of the wind down of the Armour business and are therefore not expected to recur with the Armour business being discontinued - the
current period.

Deferred tax on pensicn spreading relates to excess pensicn contributions made in the previous periods and in the current period for which tax reliefis
spread across four years.

547 million (2022: 52.8 million) of the deferred tax asset within other temporary differences relates to inventory reserves and differing cost capitalisation
rules for accourting and tax purposes, with the remainder of other temporary differences relating to a number of smaller timing differences between the
tax and accounting treatment
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Saection 3 - Non-current assets
3.1 Intangible assets

Acquired  Development Computer
Goodwill intangibles expenditure software Total
Sm $m Sm $m $m

At 2 October 2021
Cos: - 88.8 - EEA tS'Fgg 15 266.7
Accumulated amortisation a-nd \mpaumm T 4“—4—4—?9—3)4—7 (411} o {5.0 7.7(85 7)
Net book amount 88.8 589 232 10.1 181.0
52 weeks ended 1 October 2022
Cpening net book amount T {_88,8 4—;? - 42—324— - WQQ—H—E
bxhangedileences gy Ty T iy
Acdilions Ty T T T e
mpeuments - e - o
Aortsaton T T ew T wn T T an T amn
Closing net book amount 88.7 521 210 31 1710
At 1 October 2022
Cot S 87 92 692 153 274
?ﬁumulated ar;tgsanon and impai;ﬁznT - - )4—(@) 4—?5;4—4— 2?2)227007\)
Net book amount 88.7 521 211 91 70
52 weeks ended 30 September 2023
Openingnetbookamoun: sz s a1 a1 1710
;xr,hamqe dltfeTn;7¥ kk? - 0.3 - —}))40—4
Agdiions T T T Ty T T s s
moauments . I )
Amorsavon gy @ay a2 mie
Closing net book amount 65.4 45.8 20.2 7.8 139.2
At 30 September 2023
Cot ey Tesn " ees 150 s
anwulalegmortisaﬁ 4naimparment T {E))) 4(—5;J—4—¥ E?T—i*ai 7-(173’2?)
Netbook amount 65.4 458 20.2 78 139.2

I'he remaining uselul economic life of the development expenditure is up to ten years,

Impairment review of goodwill
Goodw i is tested for impairment arnually and whenever there 1s an mdication of impairment at the evel of the CGU to which 1t is allocated

In tine with the charge in operating segments set out ninote 2.1, goodwill has beer aliocated 10 Head Protection and Respiratary Protectio CGUs.
Head Protection neludes goadwill from the Ceradyne and Team Wendy acqu sitiors, which are now part of a fully integrated business segment
Respiratory goodwill 1s related to three legacy acquisitions that completed in 2015 and earlier financial periods.

Goodw ' has been aliocated 10 TGUS on the baws of historic acquisitions. which pravides a more accurate basis than allacating by refative value given
each of the acquisitions related fully to Head Protectior or Respiratory products individually.

Netbook

Cost Impairment amount

2023 allocation of goodwill by CGU $m Sm $m
Resniratory Protection 2.5 - 25
Head Protection 86.3 {23.4) 62.9
Total goodwill 838 {23.4) 65.4

In the prior periad goodwill was entirely allocated to the provious single operating segment and COU, Respiratory and Head Protection,
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 3 - Non-current assets continued

3.1 Intangible assets contirued

Impairment review of goodwill continued

Ihe total carrying value of each CGU is lesled for impairment dagaimst corresponding recoverable amounts. CGU cairying values include associated
goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and egu pmen, and dltibutable working capital.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined based on value in use calculations, using discounted cash flow projections far a five-year
period plus a terminal value based upon a long-term peroetuity growth rate of 1.5% (2022: 2.0%). The growth rate was selected as specifically appropriate
for the Head Protection review censidered further below. Any reasonable adjustment to the growth rate that could be made for the Respiratory protection
review would still leave substantial headroom.

Value i~ use calculations are based on the Group's Boare approved five-year plan which has been adjusred to exclude the impact of capital expenditure
considered expansionary and certain linked earnings and cash flows. Excluded expansionary items relate ta new helmet programmes which, although
specifically identifiec ard planned, have yet to incur significant capital expenditure. Central costs in the five-year plan are allocated to Respiratary
Protection and Head Protect’'on CGUs based on an average of relative net assets, payroll costs and revenues. Central costs include Board, Finance, IT, HR,
Legal and Comrmunications, where these are not d'rectly attributable to an individual CGU.

Itis considered appropriate to extrapolate cash flows nto perpetuity as the fifth year represents a reasonable estimate of steady state business operations,
excluding exparsionary items. Long-term growth has been agjusted to a slightly lower level this year, accounting for the risk of slower incremental
progress once the significant opporturities in the five-year plan have been delivered without further expansionary expenditure. The post-tax discount
rates applied were 10.4% (Respiratary Protection) and 109% (Head Protection) (2072: 3.9%, sale Respiratory and Head Protection CGL). Fguvalent pre-tax
rates were 14.29% and 14.9% (2022: 14.3%). Post-tax discount rates were derived by external experts taking into consiceration cusrent market conditions.

The Group's Board-approved five-year plan includes management’s estimate of revenue, gross margin and cther financial assumptions that will be
achieved unzer the new STAR strategy. These consalidate risk-adjusted grandlar forecasts far indivigual products or initiatives that consider market
opportunit'es, execution risk, past expenience and other relevart factors.

As set out in the TCFD section the Group has assessed the potential impact of climate change for the next five years to be low, and have therefore not
included dimate related impacts in the value in use calcalation. Beyond 2028 although there arc potential costs assoclated with climate charge, trese are
balanced with significart opportunity for increased demand for protective progducts in a changirg global security environmrent Given this palanced view
no climate related rs< adjustments have been madce to lomg-term prajecticns beyond five years.

Head Protection CGU
The recoverable amount of the Head Protection CGU of $182.1 mullion, determined based on value in use calculatiors, is iess than the carrying amount of
the associated CGU net assets and has therefare resulted n an imzairment to goodwill of $23.4 million,

Animpairment has ansen due 1o a Head Protection level CGU test being performed for the first time whic~ includes all goodwill asseciated with the
2020 Ceradyne acguisition of $78.0 million and 2021 Team Wendy acguisition of $58.3 million. [~ 2021, goodwill related to the Ceradyne acquisition was
allocated in full to the sale Respratory and Head protection operating segment, and as such was unaffected by the 2021 Armowr-related impairmencs.
I 2022, the decision to present Armour as a separate operating segment was taken, with nil goodwill value allocated to the Armour segment, This was
based on a relative value approach, which attributed no value to Armour given trading losses forecast to closue,

The exclusion of cash flows considered expans:onary, which form a part of the Group's long-term forecasts, have afso contributed to the impairment,

Ihe calculation of the recoverable amount for the Head Pratection CGU s highly sensitive to small changes in key assumpt'ons, considered to be revenue
growtn, gross profit margins, the discount rate and the perpetuity growth rate. The Group has carried out sensitivity a—alysis on the Head Protection CGU
impairment test, using reasenably plausible scenarios focused on changes to key assumptions applied in the value in use calculations. The tacle below
provides the expected revenue and gross margin growth rates included in the calculation. Arnual growth is expected to he higher in earlier years of the
five-year plan.

Annual growth in revenue from 2024725 to 2027/28 5to 18%
Annual growth in gross margin from 2024/25 ta 2027/28 8to 31%

If the compound annual revenue growth rate over the first five years of the forecast was reduced by 1.0%, with the impact on the fifth year extrapolated
in calculazing terminal value, the impairment to Head Protection CGo goodwill would be increased by $22.0 million. There are many revenue assumptions
which are included in the forecast, with the impact a 1.0% change in revenue growth rate disclosed Small changes in other aspects of the revenue
assumptions would have material impact on the value in use which we have not disclosed. A 1.0% change in the revenue growth rate demonstrates the
sighificant impact an a wide range of these 1evenue assamplions.

Sensitivity to other key assumplions 1s as {follows:

Increase to Head

CGU impairment

$m

Gross margin for all products reduced by 10% 13.8
Post-tax discount rate increased by 0.5% 9.5
Perpetuity growth rate reduced by 0.5% 6.3

Respiratory Protection CGL

Value in use for the Respiratary Pratection CGU is substantially greater than it's carrying amount, Sensitivity analys.s has been performed which shows
there are no reasonable changes in assumptions that would result in an impairment to goodwill ana other net assets associated with the Respiratory
Protection CGU

o
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Section 3 - Non-current assets continued

3.1 Intangible assets continued

Impairment review of development costs

Developrnent assels are grouped into the smallestidentiliable graup of assets generating future cash flows largely independent fror other assets,
known as cash-generating units (CGU). Induded in CGUs e development expenditure, Langible assets and inventory related to the product group. £ls
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indicat on of impaiment. The CGUs have been tested against therr recoverable amount
deemed to be their value in use. Cash flows were discounted using a post-tax rate of 10.9% (2022: 9.9%). Equivalent pre-tax rates were 14.9% (2022: 14.3%).
Cask flows were adjusted to incorporate risks specific to each CGU. Sensitivity analysis demanstrated any reasonably possible change in discount rate to
incorporate an uplift to the size premium for smaller CGUs would not result in any additional impairments

As g result of the review the following impairment charges were identified.

Current period:

- Assets relating 1o one of the products in the Group's escape hood range fully exceptionally impaired by $0.5 millizn due to its discontinuation
($0.2 million development expenditure, $0.3 million plant and machinery).

Prior period:

- General Service Respirator [GSR) fully exceptionally impaired by $2.9 million due to a change made on costing assamptions and forecast €ash flow
periods, driven by changes in market factors ($0.7 million development expenditure, $2.2 mithion plant and machinery).

- Other respiratory asset developrrent expenditure irpaired by 1.1 million due to a change in expected forecast cash flows and market factors.
$0.7 millio~ of these impairments were considered exceptional.

« Armour-speatic development expenditure impaired by $0.2 million for g small number of reclassified assets
Following the impairment charges recognised, recaverable amounts were equal to carrying amounts,

Developrment costs indude $1.2 million relal ng Lo the bools and gloves product range, which was awaided an NSPA framework contiact durng the
period. Given reliance on forecast future NSPA revenues and ather upcoming commercial opportunities impairment sensicivity for the boots and gloves
G has been disclosed below. The carrying amoun: of the CGU includes attributable fixed assets and inventory. Given the need to secure profitable
future orders the changes in revenue and gross margin to the breakeven position disclosed in <he table below are considered ressonably possible.
Afurther recuction of 50% in forecast revenues would lead to an ‘mpairment of $11rm and a 1500bps reduction in gross margin would leac to an
impairment of $C.7m.
Individual assumptions required for the estimated
recoverable amount to equal to the carrying amount

Carrying Value Post-tax Forecast
amount inuse discount revenue Changein
$m $m rate reduction gross margin
Boots and gloves CGJ 3.0 5.7 27.0% (35.0%) {1200bps)

At the perind end 52 6 million of development costs relate to technclogy under development {2022: $12.2 million), including $2.6 million relating to ACH
GEN I First Article Testing approval (2022: 51.5 millior). Farmal ACH GEN I Tirst Article Testing approval was received post period ond

Acquired intangibles

At At At

2 October 1 October 30 September

2021 2022 2023

Met book amount  Amortisation Nethook amount Amortisation Net book amount

sm $m $m sm $m

Brand .5 (1.1) 10.4 (1.1) 9.3
Customner relationships 284 3.0) 254 (3.0) 224
Ctherintangibles 1940 2.7 16.3 (2.2} 14.1
Total acquired infang bles 5839 6.8) 52 {6.3) 45.8

The valuation of acguired assets is determined at point of acquistion, using complex valuation techniques including forecasting and discounting of future
cash flows, Tris includes assumptions such as discount rates, royalty rates and estimates for growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and useful lives,

Customer relationships

The net book value of custorer relstionships includes one separately identifiacle individually material contract with the Mational tndustres for the
Blind (NIB). The NIB contract was acquired through the acquisition of Team Wendy at a fair value of 5149 m.llicn. As at 30 September 2023, this acquired
intangicle had a carrying value of 311.0 million and a remaining amertisation perod of eight years, Otrer custamer relatiznships also included other
Tearn Wendy custamer relationships acquirad at fair value of $13.3 million. As at 30 Septerrber 2023, these acquired intangizles had a carrying value

of $10.5 million and a remaining amortisation pericd of 11 years

Other customer relatiorships include those assoc ated w'th the acquisition of the 3M kallistic protecticn business originally recognised at a fair value of
$5.9 rmilhon amort sed over five years. Tne remaining carrying value of these assets s $0.2 milhon, after amortisation and histerical impairment charges

Computer software
Computer software associated with Armour was impaired by $0 6 million 'n the period, follcwing the closure of tis business
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINULD

Section 3 - Non-current assets continued
3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Right of use Plantand Leasehold
Freeholds lease assets machinery improvements Total
$m $m $m $m $m

At 2 October 2021
Cost 30 _fEF’ 947 39 1443
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (i.2) (27.7) 66.4) - 04 95.7)
Net book amount 1.8 15.0 283 35 485
52 weeks ended 1 October 2022
Opening net bock armount o 18 S 1-5_,0_- 283 3.5 . L48.6
Exchange differences - (.7 09 - 7 (ZT)
Addit ons - B Y P - 51
Impairments’ - (.4} (2.2) - 2.6
Devreciation charge 0.1} o (3.0 o “ESJ 0.9) ©.1)
Closing net book amount 1.7 126 224 30 399
At 1 October 2022
Cost 30 232 95.8 38 146.9
Accumula;dm(gpmciation and impairment (1.3} (30.6) 742} 0.5 HSZ0
Net book amount 1.7 176 276 3.0 399
52 weeks ended 30 September 2023
Opening net book ameunt 1.7 12.6 226 3.0 399
Exchange ditferences ST - o 0.5 0.5 - 1.0
Addinons - 1.1 74 - 8.5
Disposals’ - - (0.8) - (0.8)
impairments’ - ©.5) (0.5) - (1.0)
Transfer of finance leases - (2.6) - - __(lz_.g)
Depreciation charge A(O‘;} kw(ﬁ T (5—-;)“ 0.7) 9.2)
Closing net book amount 1.5 85 235 23 358
At 30 September 2023
Cost 3.0 N7 6.0 37 134.4
Accumulated depreciation and imparrment S {1.5) {33.2) {62.5) 1.4} (98.6}
Net book amount 1.5 8.5 235 23 358

1505 il or of d sposals -elared wa the d vestment of Armo.r ineme 3 2)

2 The 325 m lhon nght af use assel ~pairmrent, anz $3 2 milion of the clant a~d mackinesy mparment relates 1o ne closure of ore of our U5 o-fices (2022 504 =illo~ impairment to nght of Lse
assel) The rema norg 30 3 itlion clart a- g mach ageyrmparrrent s detaled naote 212022 52 Tomillen)

Property, plant and equipment with a net book amaeunt of 528.2 million is located within the Urited States of Amenca (2022: $22.4 million). The balance is
locatad in the United Kingdom.

$5.3 million (2027, $3.7 million) of expenditure included in the carrying value of plant and machinery relates to assets under construction,

3.3 Finance leases
Finance leases

$m
At 1 Qctober 2022 -
Transter fram property, plant and equipment 26
Additions S o o 47
Payments receivex [(¢F)]
At 30 September 2023 6.2

The Group subleases legacy commardial premises where they are no longer required for operations, resultirg i~ lease assets being held on the balance
sheet. Tollowing the sublet of an additional property in the period, these assets have been transferred from nigit of use asscts to a specific finance lease
balance sheet classification as they are now considered collectively maternial. Payments reccived include $6.0m of interest income, presented as part of
ather finance incore. Expected credit losses on finance fease assets are less than $0.1m, and have been considered immaterial.
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Section 4 - Working capital
4.1 Inventories

2023 2022

$m 5m

Rawy materials 301 366
Q\furk in progress - - - 223 T 210
?nished goods S 14.3 7 18.2
Inventory - gross 66.7 758
Inventory provisions (12.3) {10.2)
Inventory — net 544 616

The costof inventories recognised as an expense andinciuded in cost of sales amounted to 5840 million (3027. 51004 milfion restateg to exclude Armour).
The amount of inventory carifed as fair value less costs to sell is Sl (2027 $nil),

4.2 Trade and other receivables

2023 2022

$m $m

Trade reccivables 54.4 266
Icss* prrovis‘\on for \mpairmmmc-ccnvaoles - r—(gﬁ);i T @ r~)

Trade receivables — net 519 261
prepayments T e s
Other receivables e kﬁa T —7—07
583 30.6

The Group has no contract assels ir the current o1 priur penod

Seenote 5.4 (1 Credit nsk for further details in relation to the Group provision for impairment of receivables. Changes in pravisions for imparred receivables
are included within general and administrative expenses in the Consahdated Staternent ¢f Comprehensive imcome.

4.3 Trade and other payables

2023 2022

$m $m

Trade payaoles 173 200
Conractlabhtes T T Ty T Ty
Other taxation and secialsecunty T T g g
Other payﬂ;—— e k—_———————?
Accruals S - kﬁT ///1;
346 23

Contract fiabil ties represent amounts invaiced under contracts with customers but not recognised as revenue at the balance sheet date and cash
received in advance. $1.7 million {2022 $3.3 mill'on) of the balance in contract habilines at the start of the perod was recognised as revenue 1n the current
pertod. The outstanching calznce at the end of the period 1s expected to be recogrised within the next 12 months. Other payables comprise sundry items
wh ch are not indivecdually sigmificant for disclosure,

7
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 4 - Working capital continued
4.4 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
$m $m
Cash and cask equivalents 13.2 9.5

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated ir U.S. doltars, pounds sterling and eures and earn interest based on central bank rates.

The Group generates cash from its operating activities as fallows:

2023 2022
{restated)’
$m $m
Continuing operations
(fos—s}_/-;;rc;;f—g)r;)e period (16.4} 57
Taxation (3.8} .
Depreciation 9.2 E1_
Amortisation of intanaible assets 1ne B 12.7
Loss on 4 sposal (excluding Armour sale transaction) ST —(7).; -
Restructuring-related impatrmert of ~on-current assets T 0.7 04
Irmpairment of other non-currert assets (exctuding restructuring-related im;:;ir.?ne;ts)_ 0.5 40
Impairent of goodw.I I 234 -
Defined benefit pensicn scheme co;ﬁri ST 1.0 08
Net finance costs ﬁiﬁf T _‘-_-_7-.6 50
Fair vaiue of share-based payments T MO.? 1.0
Transiticn costs expensed o T 75 -
Restructuring Costs expensed o *1_2 T s
lIncrease)/decrease ininventores (6.8)— B 17
lIncrease)/decrease in receivables (26.2) S 1;2_
{Decrease)/increase in payables and provisions (2.2) 3.2
Cash flows from continuing operations before restructuring and transition costs 2.5 58.7
Restructuring and transition costs paid (2.3) (1.0}
Cash flows from continuing operations 0.2 57.7
Discontinued operations .
Profit/tloss) for the pernod 2.0 —(]3“5
Taxalion 0.3 (3.—8)—
Imparrmern:s 0.6 CI;
Net finance costs 0.2 1.4
Change in contingent consideration - (3.9)
Gain on disposal before tax G.n -
Decreaseflincrease) in inventories 16.7 6.6)
Inrreas:ir‘_r'eceivables (1.3} (1.4)
{Decrpase)iincr;;e‘m—ﬁ;;ﬁles and}@ﬁﬁf T 6.2} 3.2
Cash flows from discontinued operations 3.2 (24.2)
Cash flows from operations 3.4 335
1 Compsatives for the 52 weeks erded 1 Octozer 2021 have bee- restated to reflect the Zizcont ruaticn of the Ar—our cusinzss
Fhe balance sheet change ininvenitories is reconciled as follows:
2023 2022
$m $m
Change in inventories — continuing operaticns cash flows 6.8 .7
Crange in inventories - discontinued operati;m:«:;shifilotf\-:sm o {16.7) 6.6
Inverteries discosed (note 2.2) 2.00 -
Non-cash foreign exchange tra;slarion 0.7 (1L.6)
Balance sheetinventories movement {note 4.1) (11.2) 33
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Section 5 - Funding
The following section prowdes disclosuies about the Group's funding position, iIncluding borrowings, finance costs, exposure 10 financial risks and cepital
management policies

5.1 Borrowings

2023 2022
$m $m
Current
e e
Non-current - -
Bank Inans S T T 777 53_?_
leaseliapilties T T e Ter
94.3 734
Total Group borrowings 98.6 775
Bank loans comprise drawings under the revolving credit facility.
Tre Group has the following undrawn committed faclives:
2023 2022
$m $m .
Expinng beyona one year
Total undrawn commitied borownng facites 3 1513
Bank loans and ovardrafts utlsed gy ey
Total Group facilities 205.0 2050

The Group nas a revalving credit facility (RCF) with a total commitrrer of $200 miliion ecross s.x lenders with an accordion option of an additonai
550 el $144 mlbon of the tadllly matures on 8 September 2025 The remarmung $5% mudlan matuies oo 8 September 2024,

Ihe RUE is sebject 1o finandal covenants measured on a biannual basis these indude alirmit of 3.0 trnes for the ratio of net debt, excluding tease labsibilies,
to pank-defined adjusted EBITDA (leverage). he Group was in compliance with alt inancial covenants dupng the current and prior lirancial periads.

The RUCE 1s dtawn in short Lo rmediurn-ter tanches of debt which ate repayable within 12 months of draw-dowr, These tranches of debt can be rofled over
provided cértam conditions are mat, mcluding covenant cornol ance. The Graup cans'ders that it s highly unt kely it would be unable to exercise its right to
roll over the debt pased on forecast covenant compliance. [ven in a severe downsiae scenanio there are mitigating acuons (withi= the conticl of the Groug)
that could be taken to maintain compliance with these conditens, including future covenant requirements. The Direczors thercfore believe that the Group
hashe abdity and the intent 1o rofl over the drawn BRCE amounts when due and consequently has presemted the BCE as a non-cunent hizbility.

The RCF is floating rate priced on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR; clus a margin of 1.45- 2.35% depending on leverage. The Group has
provided the lenders with a negative pledge in respect of cestan shares in Group companies

In addition to the RCF our .S, operations have access to 3 550 million overdraft facility, used to manzge short-term liquidity requirernents.

S
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued
5.1 Borrowings continued
The table below presents the maturity analysis in respect of lease Latbylities and bank loans:

2023 2022

$m $m

Inore year o less, o on dermand 4.3 41
Two to five years T 86.8 65.5
More than five years 75 /9
Total Group borrowings 98.6 775

Lease liabilities relate to land and buildings (Fght of use assets) leased by the Group for its oftice space and manufacturing facilities. The leases typically
run for a perod of 5-15 years. Most leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period of 3-13 years after the end of the contract
term. Where practicable, the Group seeks to Include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension cptions held

are exercisable only by the Group and not by the iessars. The Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options It reassesses whether itis reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant change in circumstances within its contraol
and discloses ary potentiat future lease payments not includea in lease liab lities where 1t is reasonably certan extension optians will be exercised.

Payments assaciated with short-term leases a~d leases of low value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense ini the income statement,
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 172 months ar less, | ow value assets comprise IT and other equipment.

5.2 Net finance costs

2023 2022
{restated)’
$m $m
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (6.3} (2.5}
Interest pavable im respect of leases (0.7} 0.7y
Amortisation of finance fees {0.6) (5]
Net interest cost: UK. defined benefit pension scheme {(note 6.2) (0.4} {13}
Othed finarce income 0.4 -
Net finance cos:s (7.6 150
1 Cormgarat ves for tne 52 wesks endec 1 Octozer 2022 have beer restated to reflect the 2iscort ruator of the A-~our pusiness
Other finance income comprises 01 million finance lease interest anc $0.3 millien bank interest on casr balances.
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows:
2023 2022
Sterling Dollar Sterling Dollar
% % % %
Bank loans {interest payable on drawn facl ties) - 7.76% - 4.75%
Lease habilities 7.70% 2.80% 7.70% 280%
Floating interest on bank loans has been hedged using interest rate swaps as descnbed in note 54 (iv),
Movement analysis for interest due on bank loans
At At
1 October Non-cash Exchange 30 September
2022 Cash flow movements movements 2023
$m $m $m Sm $m
Interest due on bank loans - 6.3) 6.3 - -
At At
2 October Non-cash Exchange 1 October
2021 Cash flow movements movements 2022
$m $m $m $m $m
Inerest due on bark loans - (2.5) 25 - -

I addition to cash flows disclosed above for interest, in the prier period the Group paid $2.2 million relating to RCT extension opticns.
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Section 5 - Funding continued
5.3 Analysis of net cash/{debt)
At At
1 October Non-cash Exchanga 30 September
2022 Cash flow movements movements 2023
$m $m $m $m $m
Cash and cash equwalents 9.5 37 - - 13.2
Bank loans {53.7) {240} - - {(71.7}
Met debt excluding lease liabilities 44,2 20,3} - - 64.5}
Lease habilities (23.8) A {1.5) (0.7 {20.9)
et dett (68.0) {15.2) (1.5) 0.7 {85.49)
AL At
2 October Non-cash Exchange 1 October
2021 Cash flow movements movements 2022
$m $m $m S$m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 41 (42} - (G4} 35
Bank loans (403 (12.8 - (53.7)
Nel debt excluding lease liabilities {26.8) (120 104) {(44.2)
Lease liacilities (29.1) 51 14 16 (23.8)
Net debt (55.9) ms {1.4} 1.2 ©8.0)
Cash flows agamst tease liahilities were as follows:
2023 2022
5m $m
Repay~ent of lease liability — continuing operations 35 32
Finance costs paid in respect of leases - continuing operations 0.7 0.7
L.ease cash flows relared to discontinucd operations 0.9 12
Toral lease cash flows 5.1 5

5.4 Financial instruments
Financial instruments by categary

Trade and ather receivables (excluding prepayments) and cash and cash equivalents are classified as ‘financial assets’. Borrowirgs ¢nd trzde and other
payables are classified as ‘other fingnaal iabilities at amortisea cost’ Both categories are indiglly measuied at fan valug and subsequently held al

arortised Cost,

Denvalives (Interest rale swapsh ore classified as 'derivatives used for hedging’ and accounied for at fair value with gains and losses taken 1o reserves
througr the Consohidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial risk and treasury policies

The Group's finance team maintains liquidity, manages relat ons vat~ the Group's bankers, identifies and rmanages risk and provides a treasury service
to the Group’s businesses. freasury deahngs such as investmenis, boriowings and foretgn exchange are conducted onty 1o supuort undetiying

business transactions

iy Cred'trsk

Craaut risk is the nsk of financial loss to the Graup f a cusTomear or counterparty ta a finandal instrument fails to meet its cantractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group's receivables fram custorners ard monies on deposit with financial institutions,

The Group recognises [oss allowances for expected credit lnsses (ETL ) on financial ascets measured at amortised cost and contract assets (3s defined

1IN IFRS 15). FCt s are a probabilty-weinhted estimate of credit losses, Credit lossas are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i e, the diffarence
berween the cash flows due ta the entity in accordance wath the cortract a~dd the cash flows thar the Company exrects to receive) FCLs are discounted
at the effective interest rate of tre financial asset, Loss aliowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured 4t an amount equal to

lifetinre ECL

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased signif cantly since initial -ecognition and when estimating CL. the Compary
considers reasonable and supportable information that s relevant and avalacle without undue cost or effort This includes both quantitative and qual tative
information ard analysis, based on the Cempany § histonical exper ence and infermced crodit assessment and including forward-locxing informazian

Lifetime LOLs zre the ECLs that result from all possible default cvents ower the expected bfe of 4 financral instrument,

7
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NOTES TO |HE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMFNTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk and treasury policies continued

{iy Credit risk continued

The carrying amount of financizl assets represents the maximum ciedit exposue, The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2023 2022
Carrying amount of financial assets $m $m
Trade receivables - net 539 261
Qther receivatles S 0.8 o Lia;
Cash and cash equivalents 13.2 9.5
67.9 358
The maximum expasure o credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by currency was:
2023 2022
Carrying amount of financial assets $m S$m
Pound sterling 6.0 2.2
LS. dallar T h 56.1 o 319
Euro 1.7 12
Otrer currencies 0.1 k-k——()g
679 358
The ageing of trade recewvables and associated provision for irmpairment at the reporting date was
Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
$m $m $m $m Sm $m
Nt past due 48.8 - 48.8 183 - 188
Past due 0-30 days 5.0 - 5.0 69 - 64
Past due 31-60 days 02 o Y 03 0.2) 01
Past due 61-50 days - - - - - -
Past 2ue more than 51 days 0.4 (0.4) - 0.6 0.3) 0.3
54.4 (0.5} 539 266 0.5) 261

The total pas: due receivables, net of provisions, is $5.1 million (2022; $7.3 m’llion).

Individually impaired receivables relate to a small number of specific customers. Provisions tor impairmenl a-€ based on expected credit losses and are
estimated based on knowledge of customers and historical experience of losses. A porticn of these receivables is expected to be recovered.

Movements on the Group prevision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

Sm m

At the begirning of the period 0.5 04
Provision for impairment of trade recevables - o
At the end of the period 0.5 G5

The only significant concentration of credit rskis with the U.S, Governmen: Department of Defense. AT the balance sheot date outstanding trade
receivables for this custamer were $13.7 million (2022, $3.0 million).

The credit r sk inrelation to trade recevables 1s managed via credit evafuations for all non-Government customers requining credit above a certain
threshold, with required approval levels dependent on the value of sales. Where paossible, letters of cradit or payments in advance are recerved for
significant export sales,
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Section 5 - Funding contirtued

5.4 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk and treasury policies continued

(i) Liquid ty sk

Liquidity nsk s Lre risk thal the Group will nol be eble 1o meel tsimancal ebligations as they fall due, The Group's zpproach o manadging liquidity s to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will ahways have sufficient liquia'ty to meet its lisbilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceplable losses or risking aamage to the Group's reputatior,

The Group uses weekly cash flow forecasts to monitor cash requirements and to optimise 1ts borrowing positien. Typically the Group ensures that if has
surficient borrowing facilities to meet foreseeable operatioral expenses

The follawrng shows the contractual maturitics of financial labilities, including interest payments, where appl.cable, ano excluding the impact of netticg
agreements and on an undiscounted basis:

Carrying Contractual Less than After
amount cash flows 12 months 2-5years 5years
Analysis of contractual cash flow maturities Sm Sm $m $m Sm
30 September 2023
Bank laans and overdrafrs D R
Tadeandotherpayables 24 34 34 - 1
lessefiabiies g 268 52 om3 103
Dedvaives  _ga  qaa o3 a8 -
1318 1471 426 942 103
Carrying Contractual Lessthan After
amount cash flows 12 months 1-5 years 5years
Analysis of contractual cash flow maturities sm $m $m $m m
1 October 2022 o
Bankloansandoverdralis ey gyean o wa
Trade and other dedElT:‘T {i T T —iE? o )i(;g o 396 -
lexselabiioes g e a9 a1 1w0s
Dervatives g5 oy or a3
e 1333 489 738 106

iy Cureency risk
The Group is exposed to transactional foreign exchange nsk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the cuirences in which sles and purchases
are denominated and tne respective functional currencies of Group companies 7The functional currencies of Group companies are sterling and U.S. dollars.

Transactional sisk is mrinimised through natural hedging of sales and purchase turrencies at a Company teval. The Group monitors net trasactionat
expasure and can utilise forward ‘oreign exchange conttacts to hedge the remzinng currency nsk. These contracts are generally designated as cash flaw
hedqges, At the end of the reparting period there were no forward contiacts outstanding (2077: $nil,

The Group s also exposed to tanslational foregn exchange risk ansing when the resuits of sterling denominated companies are consalicated into the
Group presentaiional cusrency, U S, dollars. Group policy 18 not 1o hedge translational foreign exchange sk,

Inrespect of manetary assets and liahulities that are not denaminated in Campany functional currencies, the Group regularly reviews net exposure a~d
ensures this is kept ta an acceptable level by monitoring intercorrpany fundirg structures and buying or selling foreign currencies where necessary to
address snort-termn imbalances,

7
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk and treasury poelicies continued

(i) Currercy risk continued

Sensitivity analysis

[t i estimated that, witr all other variables ~eld equal (in particular other exchange rates), a 1 cent increase in the value of the LS. dollar against sterling
would have increased the Group's profit before interest and tax by $0.2 million (2022: $0.2 million}, increased the Group's profit after tax oy $0.2 million
(2022 50.2 million} and increased shareholders’ funds by $0.2 million (2022: 50.2 million),

The following significant exchange rates applied during the period:

Average rate Closing rate Average rate Closing rate

2023 2023 2022 2022

Pound sterling 0.8163 0.8161 C.7841 09058
{iv) Interest rate risk

2023 2022

Derivative financial instruments - interast rate swaps $m $m

Current 0.3 0.2

MNon-current 0.6 03

0.9 05

At At

1 October MNon-cash 30 September

2022 Cash flow movements 2023

sm Sm 5m Sm

Interest rate swaps 0.5 (0.3) 0.7 09

At At

2 October Non-cash 30 September

2021 Cash flow movements 2022

$m $m $m $m

Interest rate swaps - - 0.5 0.5

The RCF is flaating rate priced using the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). In 2022 the Group implemented 2 hedging policy using interest rate
swaps tofix a portion of SOFR floating rate imterest. The notionzl value of active interest rate swaps at 30 September 2023 was $30.0 million (2022: 5300
million), expiing on & September 2025 (2022: $30.0 million). “hre Group also has additional mterest rate swaps in place with a notional value of $20.0 mithon
starting on 8 September 2025 and expiring on 8 Septemier 2026 (2022 $nil}.

After 1aking account of hedging, a 1.0% increase in SOFR would have increased interest payable on bank loans by $0.5 million (2022: $0.2 million).

(v} Capital risk management
The Group's objectives whern managing capitai are to safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
sharerolders and benefits for other stakehaolders, whilst maintaining an eptimal capital structure,

In arder to maintain or adjust tne capital structure the Groun may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, calculated as net debt excluding lease liablities divided by capital, and leverage (mote 5.1).
The Group's gearing ratio at the balance sheet date was:

2023 2022

$m $m

Net debt exclud'ng lease liabilities {64.5) 14.2)
Group market capitalisat on o 235.0 3—8;0_
Gearng rallo 0.27 on
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Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments ccntinued

Financial risk and treasury palicies continued

(vi) Fair values

The fa'r values of linancial assels and liabhtfes, together with the cantying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as follows:

Carrying amount Fairvalue Carrying amount Fair value

2023 2023 2022 2022

$m $m $m $m

frade receivables - net 539 539 260 251
Otherreceivables - I )
Dewvatms T e a9 s o5
Cashandcashequalens w2 wp2  ss s
Banicloans - ms awm e e
Fade and other payabl_;sk__'—ii - {{‘_(‘;3(7){ rﬁkrd{?}?)ﬁkgiga1?)gll‘?\?)

Basis for determining fair value
The following summanses the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fsir values of financial nstruments reflectea in the table above.

Derivatives
The Group's interest rate swaps are not traded in active markets. These have been fair valued using observable interest rates, The effects of non-otservable
inputs are not signifcant for interest rate swaps.

Countorpartly banks perform valuations of interestrate swaps for fimancisl repaorting purooses, deterrrinad by discounting the future cash flows at rates
determined by yoar end yold curves

Secused loans
As the loans are floating rate borrowings, amortised cost1s deerned to reflect fair value

Trade and other raceivables/payables
s the majonty of teceivables/payables have a remamning He of less tharone year, the nolional amount is deemed to reflect the far value

5.5 Equity
Share capital
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
Number shares premium Number shares premium
of shares 2023 2023 of shares 2022 2022
2023 $m sm 2022 sm $m
Called up allotted and fully
paid ordinary shares of £1 each
At the begnning of the period 31,023,292 503 543 31523292 503 54.3
At the end of the period 31,023,292 50.3 54.3 31,023,292 503 543

Crdinary shareholders are entitled to receive dividends and to vote 2t meetings of the Company.

7
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUZD

Section 5 - Funding continued
5.5 Equity continued
QOwn shares held - Long-Term Incentive Plan

2023 2022

Number of shares Number of shares

Opening balance 261,714 334933
Acquired in the period T - -
Dispased of an exercise of options - B 173219
Closing balance 261,714 261714

These shares are held in trust in respect of awards made under the Avon Protection ploc. Long-Term Incentive Plan. Dividends on the shares have been
waived. Tre market value of shares held in trust at 30 Segtember 2023 was $2.0 million (1 October 2022: $3.2 millicn). The srares are held at cost as treasury
shares and deducted from shareholders’ equity. In December 2021 73,219 shares vested and were distributed to employees.

Own shares held - Share Buyback Programme

2022 2022

Number of shares Number of shares

Opening balance 765,098 -
Acquired in the perio:i T - —?S,OQS
Closing balance 765,098 765,098

In the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 the Group completed a £9.25 million (812, millicn) Share Buyback Programme, purcrasing 765,098 ordinary
shares, Dividends on the snares have been waived Purchased shares under the programme are held at cost es treasury shares and deducted from
sharcholders’ equity.

5.6 Dividends
On 27 January 2823, the shareholders approved a fimal dividend of 30.6¢ per qualifyi~g ordinary share in respect of the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022,
IThiswas pa d on 10 March 2023 utlising 591 million of shareholders’ funds.

Ihe Board of Directars dedlared an intenm dividend of 14,30 (2022: 14,30 per qualifying otdinary share in respect of the 52 weeks ended 30 September
2023, Ihus was paid un 8 Sepdernber 2023 atilising $4 2 million (2022: $4.3 million) of shareholzers’ funds.

I he Board is recornmending a final dividend of 15.3¢ per share (2022 3060) which together with the 14.3¢ nter m dividend gives a tolal dividend
of 296¢ (2022 44.5¢) The final d vidend wiil be paid on 8 March 2824 to shareholders on the req ster at & February 2024 with an ex-div'dend date of
8 February 2024,

Dividend cover

2023 2022

$ cents 4 cents

Imterim dividend 14.3¢ 14.3c
Final dividend - 15.3c 30.6c
Total dividend 29.6¢ 44 9¢
Basic earnings per share - continuing operations (54.7¢) 18.8¢C
Dividend cover ratio (1.8) times 04 umes
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Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits

6.1 Employees
Jutal ternunenation and assoliated costs fon the penod, m retation w buth contmving ana discontinued operalions, weie:

2023 2022

{restated)’

sm $m

Wages and salares 66,8 708
Socwlsecuitycosts o 65 60
6;; pension costs{{ 0 ));) o yil—
U.S. healthcare costs - o 6.1 6‘4’7
Share-bssed payments ote 53 T T T T T T T T
83.2 372

ard s3lanes” and total “erunecat ans Mive oa er rcreased oy 54 5 mulhign, with the restate e reflect ng a forecien o expence allocano-s Thissadisclos.re

Wt nave an 1 pact 20 the Croun's sretary statements

1 Comozatne“wa
reslaternant ana o

Detailed disclosures of Directors” temunerat'on and share options, including disclosure of the highest paid Director, are given on page 105,

The average monthly nurmoer of employees (including Executive Direztars) duing the periad was:

2023 2022
number number
Respiratory Protection - 544 603
ficod Protection T
T e
Darry - 7J41111444¥JJ44T7*J737
968 1,024

ihe total number of employees (incuding Executive Diectons) al the end of the reporting perot wads.
2023 2022
number number
Respiratory Protection M 603
MeadProtecton T ay 3y
amowr - )
pary sy
928 1,007

Centrat ernptoyees that are not spedifically 1elated to an ‘ndindual business have been aliocated to Sesprratory Pratection and Head Pratect.on based on
an averane of relative net assets, payroll ensts and revenues.

Key management compensation
The key management compensation below inctudes the Executive Directors plus five (2022 five) others wro were active members of tne Sroup Executive
during the period. k does not include Non-Executive Dirertors

2023 2022

$m $m

Salaries and other ernployece benefits 2.7 18
Post-cmployment bencits e T
2.9 4.0

The value of LTIF share awards held by key managernent that vested during the periad was Sl (2022 50.7 rmillton),

e
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONIINUED

Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued

6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits

Defined contribution pension scheme

The charge i respect of defined contnbution pension schemes was $3.7 millizn (2022: 53.0 mulhion).

Defined benefit pension scheme
Retirement benefi: assets and l.abilities can ce analysed as follows:

2023 2022
$m $m
Net pension kability 40.2 6.3

The Group operated a contributary defined benefit plan to provide pension and death benefits for the employees of Avor Protection plc and its Group
undertakings in the UK. employed prior to 31 Jaruary 2003. The plan was closea to future accrual of benefit on 1 Octaber 2009 and has a weighted
average matunty of appraximately 11 years. The assets of the plan are held in separate trustee administered funds and are invested by professional
investrrent managers. The trustee is Avon Rubber Pension Trus: Limited, the Directors of whic~ are members of the plan. Three of the Directors are
appointed by the Company and two are elected by the members, The defined penefit plan exposes the Group 1o actuarial risks such as longevity risk,
inflaticn risk and investment risk.

The funding of the plan 1s based on regular actuarial valuations, The most recent full actuarial valuation of t~e plan was carried out at 31 March 2022 when
the market value of the plan’s assets was £337.5 miflion. The fa 't value of those assets represented 91% of the value of the bensfits which had accrued to
members, after allowing for future increase in pensions

The net pensicn liability “or the scheme amounted to $40.2 million as at 30 September 2023 (2022: $6.3 millien). The increase is mai~ly due to adverse
actuarnial expenence adjustments.

During the period the Group made ng payments to the plan {2022: $8.5 million} in respect of scheme expenses and deficit recovery plan payments

as prior perfed payments included $4.0 million to cover all contributions due in FY23. In accordance with the deficit recovery plan agreed following tre
31 Maren 2022 actuarial valuation, the Group will make payments in 1Y24 of £70 million, TY25 of £4 3 million and FY26 of £4.7 million in respect of deficit
recovery and scheme expenses.

The Directors have confirmed no additional laoility 15 required to be recognised as a consequence of minimum funding requirements. The trustees have
ro nghts to wind up the scheme orimprove benefits without Company consent.

An updated actuanal valuaton fur 1AS 19 revised) purposes was caried out by an indenendent actuary for period end using the projected unit
credit method.

Movement in net defined benefit liability

Defined benefit obligation Defined benefit asset Net defined benefit liability
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
$m $m $m $m sm $m
At the beginning of the period (284.9) (534.7) 278.6 664 (6.3} (68.3)
I;cluded in prefit or loss T
Administrative cxpcnsesﬂ o (1.0} {0.8) - _ (1.0} 0.8
Net interest cost (16.2) {103 15.8 é.O 0.4) (1.3)
{17.2} o 15.8 a0 (1.4} 2.0
Included in other comprehensive income
Remeasuremert (loss)/gain. -
- Actuanial (Io?s)%aw’n arising from: T
- Demographic assumptions T (2.6} 0.2} - - (2.6} (o3
- Financial assumptions B 1—53 754 - - 15.0 175A4w
— Expeilence adjustmen: (24.4} 13 L - (24.4} 11.3)
jReturn ;aa_n avsszts excluding interest incorne - - (19.8) {113.8) ) {19.8} (138
(12.0) 1639 (19.8) (113.8) (31.8} 50.1
Other
Contr‘\k:;ti_ons by the employer - - - 8.5 - 85
Net henefits paid out T 237 215 {23.7) (21.5) - ;
FX {loss)/gain (31.3) 755 B:BE (70.0) 0.7} 55
At the end of the period (321.7) (7849 281.5 2786 40.2) 63
=5
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Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued
6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Plan assets
The farr vahue of the assets of the pension scheme anatysed by asset Category is shown below;

2023 2022
sm $m

Equrties and other securities 832 105
L_\'ability Drven Irvestment I ;?:_g_y _Fstij[
Secwedincomefund oy
Infrastructure fund - e 64,0-__7 T 552 .
Cashond cash equivalents T ees e
Total fair value of assets 2815 2786

Fquity securities are valued using quoted prices in active markets where available, The §iacility Driven Investment {{ Bl comprises an invesimentin a
level 2 pooled investment vehicle which combines a series of variable interest-earning cash deposits combined with cantracts to hedqge interest rate and
inflation risk, The | Dlis valued using a net asset value published an the Insh Stock Fxchanage

512640 milion (7072 51699 million) of the remainng nvestments are cdassified as tevel 3within the fair value hierarchy, Holdings in unouoted secutites are
valued at fair value which is typically the net asset value provided by the fund administrator at the most recent gquarter end. Holdings in the infrastructure
fund are vaiued by an indeperdent valuer using a model-based valuation such as a discounted cash flow approach.

The signiticant assumptions used in the valuation are the discount rate and the expected cash flows, both of which are sulect to estimation unceriainty.
Changes in assumptions relating to these variables could pasitively of negatively impact the seported far valus of these instruments.,

The Avon Rubber defined benefit penision scheme has an investeient strateay wiich s targeted at maximising investmaent returns with a low nsk strategy
which stilt represents a prudent spproach 1o mceting the plan's fisbit ties and orsunng that members' bendfits ere protected. Yhe strategy cons.dors e need
for appropriate asset class diversification to balance the nsks and rowards acrass arange of alternative asset classes. " b investments held by the nession
scheme include both quoted and unquoted securnities, the latter of whizr by the r nature involve assurnptions and estimales to determine therr fair value,
Where there 15 not an active market for the unquoted secunities the fair value of these assets 1s estimated by the pension trustees based on advice received
from the nvestment manager whilst alsc using any avallable market evidence of any recen transactions for an identical asset. The target weightings under
the current assel diiucalion stratedy dare 40% 1o matching nvestments, 50% 1o case Slow drven nvestrments and 10% to relurn-seek ng investinents

Actuarial assumptions
The main finzncial assumptiors used by the independent qualifieq actuanes o calculate the liabilities under IAS 19 (revised) are set out below:

2023 2022

% p.a. % p.a.

Inflation (AP} 3.30 3.60
MfsonCR) T e T T T T g
F_emsion increases pEbTugust 2005_— S gizﬁy - )23?
Persion increases pre-August 2005 zig T T T g
R )

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Deferred members: 114% of S3PA tables
Pensioners: 104% of S3PA tables

Base mortal'ty based on members’ year of birth  100% of S2NA tables, based on merrbers year of birth

CMI 2022 projections with a long-term
Future improvements in longewty trendof 1.50% p.a.  CMI2021 projections with 2 lang-term trend of 150% pa.

RPHinflation has been set - line with market break oven excectatonsiess aninflation nsk premiurm of 0.3% (2022: 0.3%) Senstivity analys's for inflaton
15 disclosea on the following page.

Mortality rate
Assurnplions regarding future mortal Ly experence are se: based on ddvice, published statistics and experivnce.

Ihe average e exgeciancy in yesrs of ¢ penstoner retlinng at age £5 on the tialance sheet date is 4y tollows:

2023 2022
Male 21.3 218
Female 237 238
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued
6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Mortality rate continued
The avetage life expectancy in years of a pensioner retlr ng al age 65, 20 years aller the balance sheet date, 15 as follows

2023 2022
Male 221 234
Female 24.8 256

Core CMI 2022 mortality assumptions have been adooted which include an adjustment for tre mpact of COVID-19. This 1s based on 25% of the higher
mortality rates experienced in Englard and Wales in calendar year 2022, Core CMI 2022 assumptions do not include an adjusiment for mortality rates
experienced in 2020 or 2021,

Sensitivity analysis
Defined benefit obligation Defined benefit obligation

increase/{decrease) increase/(decrease)

2023 2022

Sm $m

Inflation {1 (9% increase) 219 21.4
Inflation {1.0% decrease) {21.2} (22.0)
Discount rate for scheme Lakilities {1.0% increase} (32.1} (30.1
Mhscount rate for scheme liakilities (1.09% decrease) 383 37.2
Future mortality {one-year increase) 10.5 109

The above sensitivity analysis shows the impact o the defined beneft obligation only, not the net pension lisbility, as it does not take inta account any
impact on the asset valuation Each sersitivity analysis disclosed in this note is cased on changing one assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant In practice, this is unlkely to occur,

6.3 Share-based payments
The Group operates an eguily-seltled share-based Performance Share Plan (PSP). Detalls of the plar are set out in the Remuneration Report, ‘Long-Term
[ngentive Blan’ section on page 101 An expense of $0.7 million (2022: 57 millicn) was recogrised in the period relating 1o share-based payments.

The table below summarises the movements in the number of share optio=s autstanding for tve Graup, all of wnich are nil cost options:

Number of Number of

options options

2023 2022

‘000 ‘000

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 418 372
Forferted during the period (222 {165)
Exercised during the perod - (74)
Granted during the period 337 785
Outstanding at the end of the period 533 418

The weighted average remaining contractual I'fe of outstanding share optionsis 18 months (2022, 17 months). All the share options that were exercised
in the prior period vested on 20 December 2021 at a share price of £11.57.

A Marte Carlg simulation was used to calculate the fair value of awards granted that are subject to a total shareholder return performance condizion.

The fair value of other awards was calculated as the market price of the shares at the date of grant reduced by the present value of the dividends expected
to be paid over the vesti~g period. Volatility 1s estimmaied bascd on experience over the last three years, Principal assumptions used to value awards cach
perod were an average:

Key assumptions 2023 2022
Weighted average fair value (£} 8.83 907
Closing shate price at Jate of grant (£) o 10.63 H;Wm
Expecled volalility (Y%) o 54,0 439
Risk-fren interest rate (%) T o 3_:; o 1.1
Expected option term {years) o 3.0 3.0
Drv'dend yield (96! o - -
&
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Section 7 - Other
7.1 Provisions for lizbilities and charges i
Warranty Property Contingent Offset
provisions obligations consideration provisions Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Balance at 2 October 2021 - 29 60 - 8.9
?rﬁferr;:d from acaruarls during the pernod - 15 - o _4— _ 15
fovision created dufing theperod 23 08 T
Cash payments T ey 6y - @.5)
R_c‘rease of cantingent c-ons|derat\'on - —4— - - (3.9)4— 4—4—— }(E
Unwind of discount on provisions - - D 11 - 11
Forwign exchange movernents ey wes - - w03
Balance at 1 Cctober 2022 2.3 33 - - 5.6
Transferred from accruals during the period - - - 1.0 1.0
;owson (released)/createc during the period" - T 0.4) 0.6 - —4—4— 1.4 o ?
Cash paryrnents - 0.2 o - T - ©.2)
;?e;m—:mh;r@Tmc=vements T —OJid (T‘ o ~ 04
Balance at 30 September 2023 1.8 4.2 - 24 8.4
2023 2022
Analysis of total provisions $m Sm
Current 0.4 0.7
Non—currs\n; - /)8.0/ - 7r£
84 56

Warranty provisions cover expected casts under guarantees provided witn certain products. Warranty provisions were previously included within accruals
In the prior period warranty provis ons were transferred from accruals to provisions for habilities and charges, this being consiaered a more appropriate
rategarisation, Property abligations relate to leased prermises of the Group which are subject to dilapidation risks and arc expected to be utilised within
the next 15 years.

The purchase consideratior 10 relation to the 3M balhstic protection business acquisition ingluded contingent consideration up to a maxmum of $250
million depending on the outcome of cevta n tenaers which were pending at the acqurs tion date and the level of sales which were generated o these
contracts If secured, At acquisition the fair value of the contingent consideration was recogmised as $20.0 million based on the expected value and fiming
of those payments after applying a discount rate of 12% to reflect the nskin the cash flows &t that date,

ihe contract that thggered the contingent consideration was awarded shartly aller the acouisiion dete wilh subseguert orders "esulling n payraents
of 334 millionin 2020 and $3 2 million in 2022, In 2022 the contractual order penod closed wit~ no further orders, As a result the rermain ng $3 9 million
was 1eleased.

Offsel pravisions reldale to the Group's estimated obhgations under programmie Lo generate ceoneric value for a specife countries 1he obligalions are d
direct result of specific sales and are expecied (o be vhlised in the next thiee years Offset provisions were prewiogsly induded within accruals, Dunng the
period offset provisions were transferred fiom accruals to provisiors ‘or liabilites and charges, this being considered a mare appropriate categorisation.

Property obligations and affset provisions are not subyect to d scoanting as the impact would be imimarer al,

7.2 Other financial commitments

2023 2022
$m $m
Capital expenditure committed 2.4 17

Capital expenditure commited represents the amount canfracted in respect of property, plant and equipment at the end of the financial perian far
which no provision has been mado in the financial statements,

S
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FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 COUNTINUZD

Section 7 - Other continued
7.3 Group undertakings

Registered office address

Country in which

Held by Parent Company

Avon Polymer Products Limited

Hampton Park West, Melksham SN12 6NB, UK.

Avon Protection Holdings Limited

Hampton Park West, Melksham SN12 GNB, UK

Avon Rubber Pension Trust Limited

Hampton Park West, Melksham SN12 6MB, UK.

Activity incorporated
The manufacture and distribution (VA
of respiratory protection systems

Investrment holding company UK.
Pension fund trustee UK.

Held by Group undertakings

Avon Protection Systerrs, Inc,

503 Bth 8L Cadillac, Mi 49601, United States

The manufacture and distribution of respiratory Us.

and ballistic protection systems

Avon Rubber & Plastics, Inc.

503 8th St Cadillac, M1 45601, United Slales

Investrnent holding company LS.

Avon Protection Ceradyne, LLC

4000 Sarranca “arkway, Suite 100, Irvine,
CA 92604, United States

The manufacture and distributicn us.
of balbstic protecticn systems

Team Wendy L1C

17000 5t Clair Ave, Cleveland, OH 44110,
United States

The manufacture and distribution us.
of helmet systerns

Avon Technolcgies Limited

Harmpton Park Wes:, Melksham SN12 6NEB, UK.

Dormant company LK.

Avon Protection UK, Limited

Hampton Park Wes:, Mel<sham SN12 6MB, UK.

Dormant company UK.

Shareholdings are ovdinary shares and all undertakings are wholty owned by the Group and operate primarily in their country of incorporation. All
companies have the same financial year end. Avon Palymer Products |irmited and Avor Pratection Holaings limited are exempt from the regu rement to
file audited accaunts by virtue of section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 {'the Act) All remaining UK. subsidiaries are exempt from the requirement to
file zudited accounts by virtue of section 480 of the Act.

7.4 Related party transactions

Except in respect o the defined benefit pension scheme, internal transactions betweer Group companies and compensation of key management
personnel, there were no related party transactions during the period or outstanding at the end of the period (2022 $nil). Transactions wit~ the defined
benefit pension scheme are disciosed in note 6.2, Koy management compensation s disclosed in note 6.1
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Section 7 - Other continued

7.5 Restatements

Prior period compadratives have been restated (o present the Armour business ds o discontinued operation, and Lo reclassify cerla nexpenses in the
Consplidated Staternent of Cemprehensive Income

Expense reclassifications 'nclude disclosure of research and development costs as a separate line lerm below gross profit, and recalegorisation of selling
and distiibution costs. The change in accounting pohey provides vistlity of research a~d development costs on the face of the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income when it was previously only reported in the Financial Review. Selling and distribution costs have been disaggregared into sales
and mar<efing expenses, presented in a separate line below gross profit, and fieight and distribution costs which have been reclassified into cost of sales,

This presentation reflects the way the business performar ce will be monitared in future, with separate disclosure of research and development aprropriate
as anintegral part of operations. It is also consistent and comparable with commaon market practice and trerefore provides reliable and more relevant
information to the reader. Overall cperating 1oss figures for the previous period rerrain unchanged as this is only a presentational restatement. A recondiliation
of reported pnor perod to restated tigures is presented below, Cquvalent raconciliations for restaternent of adjusted performance mietrics are provided
on page 119,

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 52 weeks ended 1 Cctober 2022

Statutory total
Previously Remove Researchand Sellingand

repotted Armour development  distribution Restated
Continuing operations Sm $m $m $m $m
Revenue AR @4 - - 2635
Ecgof—sg-rr T - (193.7) T 201 T 88 T 5.8) {174.6;
Grossproft sy m7 8y @y 889
Seiling and distrm costs / Sales and marketing expenses - (260 T .2 o 4—49?5 4—4—(15?]
Respé;ch and deploromem Cos's T 7———— I m-i - - (0%
ggﬁ@ral and adm'\mstrar‘rvé expenfos ) i%ﬁ— 4—40.?—_4—’1.4 - 570
Operating profit/(loss) .0 137 - - 1o
Net finance costs (G4) 14 - - 5.0}
Profit/(loss) hefore tax 8.5} 45 - ~ 60
Armour discontinued operations {note 2.2)

Armour

Previously Research and Selling and

reported development  distribution Restated

Sm S$m Sm $m

Revenue 84 - - 34
Zost bfsales T T {200) O ——(1—2)7 r—aﬂ
Grossprofit amn - an a9
;ng and distribution costs / Sales and marketing experses - (1.2) S 1‘27 -
Research and developmoent costs ) T T :7_77 {0.2 T - 7 on
General and admlmstrét\ve expenses MHQ release of contingent consideration} ——-(0—2)7 T 02 - T
Operating loss (13.1) - - {30
Net finance costs (1.4) - - (1.4)
Loss before tax (145} - - 14.5)

Employee costs (note 6.1)
Comparative "wages and salaries” and total temunerat ons have each been ‘noreased ay $4.5 m lkon, wih the restaternent reflecting a correction ta
expense allocations. Teis is a disclosure restaternent and does not have an imgact on tae Sroup's primary statements

Previously Allocation
reported correction Restated
sm Sm $m
Wages and salaries 643 4.5 708
Total remunerat on 827 45 872

7
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2023 2022
Note £m £m
Assets N
Non-current assets
langible assets o 4 o 38 44
Finance leases 5 09 -
Investments in subsidianes - 6 ;1;;" 1910
Eeferred tax assets o a 7 1.2 25
218.6 1979
Current assets -
Tradde and other receivables 8 07 20
Cash ana cash equivalents o 0.7 0.2
1.4 27
Liabilities
Current liabilities - _
Borrowings il 0.; N 05
Trace and other payables 9 42.2 213
42,7 2.8
Net current liabilities (41.3) 9.6}
Non-current liabilities
BOHOWngSi—i o 1 50 51
Provisions for liablities ana charges 1B 26 2.2
76 73
Net assets 169.7 1710
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares - 12 31.0 o 310
Share premium account T 34.7 347
Capital redemption reserve_ o 0.57 05
Retained earnings o 103.5 o 1048
169.7 1710

Total equity

The Company has elected to take the exempticn under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Compary profit and |oss account

The profit for the Company for the period was £9 5 million (2072: profit of £15.3 million).

These financial statemerts on pages 166 to 173 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 Novernber 2023 and signed on its benalf by:

N s S LS.

Jos Sclater
Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying accounting pedicies and notes form part of these financial statements.

Rich Cashin
Chief Financial Officer
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Capital

Share Share  redemption Retained Total

capital premium reserves earnings equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m

At 2 October 2021 ) 310 347 0.5 107 1753
;rof'ilfortlﬁe yeaf_— T T - L 15.3 T;
Mnds par T 2 - T 110.5) (IO?
Cwn shares acquired - 12 I o 9.3 —ji
an value of share-based payments 13 I 40?4— 07
Deferred tax relating ta rmaolayes share schemes T ———?7 —,—F‘F —-F o (OT— K;
At 1 October 2022 30 347 0.5 104.8 170
Profit for the year - ;—7 - .o 9.5 9.5
ai—dends pad - 2 S - - ),(10/9}—) ?};}
Eair value of sharc—basc?mvmcnts 13 - o gm E
Dof?cdﬁ rdﬁg@mployee sharcsﬁemcs - 7 oD o (0.5) - (0.5)-
At 30 September 2023 N0 347 0.5 103.5 169.7

e
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PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial staternents are set oul below. These policies have been
consistently applied 1o all lhe years presented, unless otherwise staled.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Mramework (FRS 101},

in prepanng these financial statements, the Company applies tre
recognition, measurement and disclesure requirements of Internatioral
Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Corrpanies Act 2006 (Adopted IFRSs’), bbut makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set
out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has
been taken:

- presentation of a cash flow statement and related notes (AS 7);

« comparative period recenciliaticns for share capital and intangible
and tangible fixed assets (paragraph 38, 1A5 1),

« transactions wth wholly owned subsidiares (IAS 24);

+ capital management (paragraphs 134-136, 1AS 1),

- share-based payments {(paragraphs 45{0) and 46-52, [FRS )
financial instruments (IFRS 73;

+ corrpensation of key management personnel (paragraph 17, 1A5 24),

« fair value measuremen: {paragraphs 91-99, IFRS 13},

- leases {paragraphs 90-93,1FRS 16);

- the requirernenits of paragraphs 30 and 31 of [AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting stirnates and Errors; and

- therequirements of paragraph 18A of |AS 24 Related Party (hsclosures,

Where required, equivalent disclosares are giver in the Group financial
statements

Foreign currencies

The Compary’s functional currency is sterling as tnis is the currency of the
peimary economic envirorment in which the Company operates. Foreign
currency transact ons are recorded at the exchange rate ruling on the
date of transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the retranslation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign
currenaics are recognised in the profit and loss ateount,

Pensions

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide
pension and death benefits for the employees of Aven Protection plc and
its Group undertakings in the UK. employed prior to 31 January 2003

Ihe scheme s closed Lo new entrants and was closed to future accrual of
benefits from 1 Gctober 2009, Scheme assels are measured using markel
values, while liabilities are measured using the projected unit method,
One of the Company's subsid aries, Avon Palymer Products Limited, 1s
the employer that is legally responsible for the scheme and the pension
obligations are included in full in its accounts. No asset or provision has
been reflected n the Company's balance sheet for any surplus or defiot
ansing in respect of pension obligations.

The Company also provides pens’ons by contributing to defined
cantnibution schemes The charge in the profit and loss account reflects
the contributions oaid and payakble to these schemes during the period.
Full disclosures of the UK. pension schemes have been provided in the
Group financial statermenss.

Share-based payments

The Cormpary operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. Toe fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. [he
total amount to be expensed over the vesting penod is deterrnined by
reference to the fa'r value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vasting conditions (for example, profitability and

sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the nurmber of options that are expected to vest. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are cxpected to vest. It recognises the imnact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the profit and lass account. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited

to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Plant and equipment
Praperty, plant and equipment 1s stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised tmpairment losses.

Costs include tne or'ginal purchase price of the asset and the costs
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use including any cualifying finance expenses,

Depreciation is provided to write down the deprediable amount of relevant
assets by equal annual instalments over thair estimated uscful lives

In gereral, the lives used are:
leaschold property — period of lease agreement.

The residual values and useful | ves of the assets are reviewed,
and adjusted If appropniate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is wr tten down immediately to its recoverable
armount if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated nel realisable
value. Gans and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with Larrying amounts

Leases

Rigrt of .se assets and lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying
the nght to control the associated asset for a period of time.

The nght of use assets are initially measnred at cost, which comprises the
initial measuement of the lease liahility plus an estimate of dilapidation
provisions where required. Subsequently the night of use assets are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the

lease liability.

Depreciatior is calculated on 2 straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
In general the lives used are:

« leaseheold property - period of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the [ease
payments due over the life of Lthe lease. The lease payments are discounted
at the rate implicit in the lease or if that is not readily determined using the
Company's incremental borrowing rate
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Leases continued

The lease term 5 determined wath reference to any non-cancellable
penod ol lease contracts plus any periods covered by an oplion to
extend/Aenminate the lease i7 it 1s considered reasenably certain that
the opt o will/will net e exercised. (= conduding whether e not

it is reasonably certain an option will be exercised for new leases
management has considered the strateqic cutlook for the Group and
ather operational factors

Subsequently the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying
value to reflect interest on the ligbility and reducing the carry'ng value
to reflect lease payments made.

Finance leases

The Company acts as an insermediate lessor for certain legacy commercial
premises where they are nolonger required for operations, and accounts
for its interests in carrespand ng head leases and subleases separately.

Lease classification of the sublease between finance and operating
is assessed with reference to the nght of use asset arising from the
head lease.

Finance lease assets are initially measured at the present value of the lease
receipts due over the term of the fease. Receipts are discounted at the
rate implicit in the sublease, or the corresponding head leasc liabil'ty if the
imphcit rate cannot be readily determined.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recarded at cost plus inciden:al
expenses [ess any provision for impanment Impaiimment reviews dre
petfarred by the Directors when there has been anindication of
potentidlimpairment.

Deferred taxation

Because of the differences between accaunting and taxable profits and
losses reported in cach period, temporary differences ar.se on the amount
certain assets and habiiities are carried at for accounting purcoses and
ther respective tax values. Deferred tax s the amount of “ax payable or
recoverable on these temporary differences

Deferred tax liabilities arise where the carrying amount of an asset s h gher
than the tax value (more tax deduction has been taken). This can happen
where the Company invests 1n capetal assets, as governments often
encouyrage investment by allowing tax depreciation to be recognised
faster than accounting depreciation This reduces the tax value of the

asset relative to its accounuing carrying amount, Deferred tax liabilities are
qenerally provided on all taxable temporary differences. The periods over
which such temparary differences reverse will vary depending on the life
of the related asset or lability.

Deferred Tax assets arise where the carrying amount of an asset is lower
than the tax value (less tax benefit which has boen taken). Ceforred tax
assets are recognised anly where the Company cons.ders it probablc
that .t will be able to use such losses by offsetting them against future
taxable profits,

However, the defarred income tax s nat accaunted forf i+ arises from
initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction ather than a
business comnbination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax 15 calculated using the enacted or substartively enacted
tdles that are exnected to apply when the asset 13 realsed o the hatulty
15 settled

ADBJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are classified as meas.red at amartised cost.
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected Credit losses (ECLs)
on tinancial assets measuted at ametised cost, Loss dllowances for trade
receivables are always measured al an amount egual to lifetime ECL,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,

highly ligu'd interest-bearing secusities with maturities of three months
orless, and bank overdrafts. Benk overarafts are shown within borrowings
i current liabilities o the balance sheet.

Trade payables
Trade payables are obligstions to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.

Accounts payable are classified as current liablities if payment is cue
within one year or 135 {or in the norrral onerating cycle of the business if
longer), If not, they are presented as non-curient liabilities. They are initially
recognised at fain value and subsequently held at amortiseq cost.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has @ legal or constructive
obl gation as a result of a past cvent, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be reguired to settle the obligation and tne amount can ba
been reliably estimated

Provisians are measured at the present valle o the exoenditures expected
e be required 1o settle the obliganon,

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised inmiakly at fa value, net of transzcuon costs
ncurred and subsequently stated at arrortised cost. Borrowing costs are
expensed Using the effechive interest method.

Dividends

Final cividends are recognised as a lianility in the Company’s financial
stazerments in the period in which the dividends are approved by
shareholders, while interim dividends are recognised in tne periodin
which the diviaends are paid.

Share capital

Oirdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
artributable to the 1s5Le of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction. net of tax, from the proceeds,

Where the Company purchases its own share capital (treasury shares)
through emgloyee share ownesship trusts, the consideration paid,
including any d rectly attributable incremaental costs (net of income
taxcs), 1s aeducted fram sharchaolders' funds until the s~ares are ca~cellod,
reissued or disposced of Where such snares are subseguertly sold ar
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributasle
Incremensal transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in shareholders’ funds,
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

1 Parent Company
As a Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is putlished, a separate profit and loss account for the Parent Company is omitted from the
accounts by victue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, The Parent Company's profit far the financial year was £9.5 million (2022: £15.3 million).

The audi: tee inrespect of the Parent Company is set out innole 25 to the Group finangial staterments,

2 Dividends

Details of the Company's dividends are set out in note 5.6 to the Group financial statements.

3 Employees
The only ernplayees of the Company during the current pericd were the CEO and the CFG to the Gro.p. Detailed disclosures of the Executive Directors’
remureration packages are provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 86 to 107,

4 Tangible assets

Right of use
lease assets
£m
Cost
AL T October 2022 - 7 1.3
Additons - -
At 30 September 2023 1.3
Depreciation charge
AL T Oclober 2022 ) 64
lianster to finance leases _ {0.5)
Ardrd\'tions T 05
Charge for the pericd 06
At 30 September 2023 7.5
Net book value
At 30 September 2023 38
At 1 October 2022 44

| ease assels relate to the Cormrpany's leased properties. Dunng the perod one of the Company's properties was sub-let, resulting in the related right of use
asset being reclassed ta finance leases.

5 Finance leases
Finance leases

$m
At 1 October 2022 -
Additions 09
;’aymcnts recoived 7 ' -
At 30 September 2023 09

The Company subleases legacy commercial premises where they are no longer required for cperations, resulting 1n lease assets being held on the
balance sheet, A propetty was sublet in the pernod. Additons incorporale a £0.5 million transfer frem tangible fease assets related Lo the property, plus a
£0.4 million tue up to the present value of the sub-lease receipts due over the terrm of the lease

Expected credit losses on nance lease assets are less than £0.1m, and have been considered immaterial,
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6 Investments in subsidiaries

2023 2022

£Em £m

Opening net book value 191.0 19140
@lum 7 217 -
Clasing net bouok value 2127 1910

D.ur~gthe penod, the Company made an additional nvestmentin Avon Prorection Holdings Linuted of £21.7 millon.

Treinvestments cons'st of @ 100% (unless indicated otherwise) interest in the following subs diaries;

Country in which

Principal activity Registered office incorporated
Avon Pelymer Products Limited The manufacture and distribution Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB, UK. UK

of respirazory protection systems
Avon Prmtectzon Holdings Lim ted lnvestment compary ) Hampton Parkr\v’\.’es;t= Melksharn, SN12 6NB, oK. U,;<‘ -
Avon Rub-ber Pension Trust Limited Pension fund trustee Harnpton Park West, Melksham, SN17 6NB, UK. LK i

Detalls of inyestments held by these subsidiaries are £ ven in nate 7.3 to the Group financial statements,

The impairment of the Head Protection CGU cetailed further in note 31, was consiaered a potential indicator of impairment for tee Company's investment
in subsidiaties. A full impa rment test was therefore gerfarmed, comparing the carrying value of investeoents in subsidiaries ta recoverable amounts. The
recoverable aount was determined based on val.ein use calculations for subsiciary groups, under an approach consistent with that detailed in note 31

This analysis demonstrated the value In use of investments in subsidiaries are substantially greater than carrying arrounts Sensitivity analysis has been
performaed which shows there are no reasenabie changes ir assumptions that waould result in a» impairment

7 Deferred tax assets

Other

Share temporary
options differences Total
£m £m £m
At 2 October 2021 1.0 [ 25
Cradited —o profit for tre year 0.1 04 0.5
Charged to eguity (@.5) - 0.5
At 1 October 2022 ] 0.6 19 25
Crecuted to profit for the year .1 09 {0.8)
Charged to equity 0.5) - 0.5}
At 30 September 2023 02 1.0 1.2

8 Trade and other receivables

2023 2022
£m £m
Other receivables 0.1 02
Prepayments 0.5 10
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 0.1 08
0.7 20

Amounts duc to Group undertakings arc unsceurea are nterest frec, have no fixed date of repayment znd are repayabla on demand.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 CONTINUED

9 Trade and other payables

2023 2022

£m £m

Irade payables 0.4 0.3
Accruals o 22 A 30
Amourls due Lo Group unde_rt;ak\'ngs 7 396 7 8.0
422 213

Amounts due to Group undertakinrgs are unsecured, ae inzerest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demard. The increase during
the pericd was mainly due to receipts from the Group's subsidiary Aven Polyreer Products Limited.

10 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Property

obligations

£m

Balance at 2 October 2021 15
Addition during the period Q7
Balance at 1 October 2022 2.2
Addition during the period 0.4
Balance at 30 September 2023 26
2023 2022

Analysis of total provisions £m £m
Non-current 2.6 272

Provisions relate to oroverty ooligations ansing in relation to leased premises of the Company which are subject to dilapidation risks and are expected to
b utilised within the next ten years Praperty provisions are subyiect to uncertainty in respect of any final negouated settlement of any dilapidation claims
with landlords.
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11 Borrowings
The Group has a revolving credit faciity (RCF with a total commitrrent of 200 milhon across six lenders with an gccordion option of an additional
$50 rillan. $142 radhan of the RCE fadlity reatures on 8 Septemoer 2025, The remaminig $58 rullion matuies on 8 September 2024,

Further detsils regarding bortowings and credit nsks are distlused in note 5.4 W the Group financial stalements.

2023 2022
£m £m
Current
Lease liakilities 05 O,?
Non-current
roase Iiabrilmos 7 - - 5.0 ) 5.17
Total borrowings 5.5 5.6
Tre tabzle below presents the contractual matunity analysis in respect of lease labilities:
2023 2022
£m £m
im one year of less, o1 on demand 0.5 0.5
Two to five years ‘ T { - o o o 72.6 o 26
b—Ame than five years o 24 2.5_
Total lease liabilities 5.5 5.6

Lease liabilities relate to land and buildings (lease assets) leased oy the Company for its office space and manufacturing facilities of UK. trading subsidiaries.

12 Share capital
Cerzils of the Company’s share capital are set out in nate 5.5 to the Group financal starernents,

13 Share-based payments
The Company operates an equity-settied share-based Long-Term Incentive Plan (L TIP), details of which are disclosed in note 6.3 to the Group finanzial
statements.

The Company recognises share-based payment charges for awards held oy the CEO and the CFO. Share-based payment charges for other employees
are recharged to tne relevant subs diary where material

S
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND IEQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION
if you are in any doulst as to what action you should take, you are recommended to seek your own financial advice frem your bank manager,
stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial advisor autharised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. If you nave
sald or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Avon Protection ple, please forward this document, together with the accomoanying dacuments,
as soon as possible either to the parchaser or transferee or to the person who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents
to the person who now holds the shares,

Notice of Annual General Meeting for the year ended
30 September 2023

Notice is hereby given that the AGM of shareholders of Avon Protection ple
('the Company’) will be held at Hampton Park West, Semington Road,
Melksham, Wiltshire SN2 6NB on 26 January 2024 at 10:30am for the
purposes set out below.

You will not receive a form of proxy for the AGM in the post. Instead,

you will recerve instructions to enable you to vote electronically

and outlining how to register ta do so. You may request a hard copy

form of proxy directly from the Registrar, Link Group, wa ernail at
sharerolderenguines@inkgroup.co uk, 4t Central Square, 29 Wellington
Street, Leeds LST 400 or o 0371 664 0300 o1 +44 371 664 03001f overseas.

Ordinary business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass resolutions 1-14 {inclusive) as ordinary
resolutions:

Resolution 1
Ta receive the Company's accounts and the reports of the Directors ard
the audr:or for the year ended 30 September 2023,

Resolution 2

To approvve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the part
cortaining the Directors’ Remuneration Policy) far the financial year endea
30 Seprember 2023,

Resclution 3
T apprave the Directors’ Remuneration Policy set out cn pages 90 to 93
of the 2023 Annual Report,

Resolution 4
To declare a final dividerd of 35,3 US. ce~ts per erdinary share as
recommended by the Directors.

Resolution 5
To re-elect Jos Sclater as a Directar of the Cermpany.

Resolution 6
To re-elect Rich Cashiry as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 7
To re-elect Bruce Thompson as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 8
To re-elect Chloe Ponsonby as a Cirector of the Company.

Resolution 9
Ta re-elect B'ndi Foyle as a Director of the Zompany

Resolution 10
To re-efect Victor Chavez CBF as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 11

To re-appoint KPMG TP as auditor of the Campany, to hald office until the
conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are laia before
the Company

Resolution 12
To autharise the Directors to determine the aud tar's remuneration

Resolution 13

That, in accordance with sections 366 and 357 of the Companies Act 2006
('the Act’), the Company and all its subsidiaries during the period for which
this resolution ~as effect be and are hereby authorised, in aggregate, to.

(a} make political donations to political parties or to independent
election candidates not exceeding £100000 in total;

() make political donations to political organisations {other tha~ palit'cal
parties) not exceeding F100,000 in tozal; and

) incur any political expenditure not exceeding £100,000 in total,
during the pericd beginn'ng with the date of the passing of this
resolution and ending at the close of business on 27 December 2024
or, if sconer, the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. For
the purpose of this resolution ‘political donation), ‘pelitical party’,
‘political organisation’, Independent election candidate’ and ‘coltical
expenditure’ are 1o be construcd in accardance with sections 3673, 3641
ana 365 of the Act,

Resolution 14

I'hat in accordance with section 551 of the Act, Lthe Direclors be generally
and unconditionally authornsed to aliot Relevanrt Securities {as defined 1n
the notes to this resolution):

(3} uptoan 2ggregate nominal amount of £'0,086,064 (such amount to
be reduced by any allotments or grants made under paragraph (b))
below); and

(o} comprising equity secunties {as defined by section 560 of the Act) up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £20,172,129 (such amount to be
reduced by any allotments or grants made under paragraph {3} above)
in connection with a pre-emptive offer (including an offer by way of a
rights issue or open cffer):

(i} tohalders of ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as
practicablel) to their existing holdings; and

(il to holders of ather equity shares as required by the rig~ts of those
securities or as the Directors otherwise cons der necessary,

but suzject to such limits, restriczions, exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedien:
‘nrelation to treasury shares, fracticnal entitlements, record dates,
regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of, any territory
or any other matter,

such authority to expire on the date 15 morths after the date of this
resolution ar, if earlicr, the date of the next AGM of the Company (unless
renewed, varied or revoked by the Company prior o or or that date), save
tha: the Company may, before such expiry, ma<e coffers or agreements
which would or migrt reguire Relevant Securities to be allotted and

the Directors may allol Relevant Securities i pursuance of such offer or
agreement notwithstanding thal the authority conferred by this resclution
has expred,

This resolution revokes and replaces all unexercised authorities previousty
granted to the Directors to allot Relevant Securities but without prejudice
ta any allotment of shares or grant of rights already made, offered or
agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities,
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Special business
Ta consider and if thaught fit, pass resolut ons 15-18 inclusive) as special
resolutions and resclution 12 as an ordinary resolution:

Resolution 15

That, subject 1o the passing of resolutior 14, the Ditectors be authorised o
allot equity securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act) for cash under
the autharity conferred by that resolution and/or Lo sell ordinary shares
held by the Company as treasury shares for cash, as if section 561 of the
Act cd not appty 10 any such allotment or sale, provided Trat this power
shall be limited to:

(ay the allotment of equity securities and sale of treasury shares in
connection with an offer of, or invitation to apply for, equity securities
(but in the case of the authonty granted under paragraph (b) of
iesolution 14, by way of a pre-emptive offer (inclucing a rights issue
or open offer)):

13 roholders of ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as
practicable) to ther existing hoidings, and

(i} toholders of ather equity securizies, as required py the naghts
attaching thereto, or as the Directors otherwise consider
NEcessary,

and so that the Directors may impose such limits, restrictions or
exclusions and make any arrangements which they deem necessary o
expeagiont in relaton 10 treasury shares, fracuonal entilements, record
dates or legal, regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of,
Ay TErtory of any other matter, and

b

in the rase of the autharity granted under paragraph (ay of resolution
14, the allotment of equity secunties and/or sale of treasury shares
(otherwise than under paragraph (a} above) up to a neminal amaount
of £3.025,819, and

(1) the allotment of equity secunties ot sdle of treasury seares (olherwise
than under paragraphs (8} or () above} up to g nommal amount equal
w 20% of any allotment of eguity secuiities or sale of treasury shaies
from tme to time under paragraph (b) above, suck aulnor'ty to be
used anly for the purposes of making a followe-on offar which the
Directors dezermine 1o be of a kind contemplatea by paragraph 3 of
Section 2B of the Staternent of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emptio
Rights most recently puclished tiy the Pre-Emption Group prior to the
date of this Notice,

such authority to expire on the date 15 months after the date of this
resolution cr, if earlier, the date of tne next AGM of the Company unless
renewed, varied or revcked by the Company prior to ar on that date) save
tniat the Company may, before such expiry, make an oifer or agreement
which would or might require enu ty securines to be allotted (or treasury
shares tobe sold) a‘ter such expiry and the Directors may allot equity
secunties (or sell rreasury shares) in pursuance of any such offer or
agreement notvetnstanding thar the power conferred by this easolutiar
~as expired.

Resolution 16

That, subject to the passing of resolution 14, the Directors be authorised,
inaddivon Lo any authenty granzed under resolution 15, 1o aliol equity
securibies fas defined Dy section 560 of the Ay for cash under the
aulhority conferred oy that resolution a=d/or to sell ordinary shares held
by the Campany as treasury shares for cash, asif section 561 of the Act did
not apply 1o any such allotment of saie, such authority 10 be;

fa) limited to the allotrent of equity secunties or sale of treasury
shares up -0 a neminal amount of £3,025,819, to be used orly for
the purposes of firancing {or refinanci~g, i the authority is to be
used within 12 morths after the oviginal transaction; a transaction
wrich the Directars determine to ce an acquisition or ather capital
investmen: of a kind contemplated by the Statement of Prinziples
on Dsapply ng Pre-Emption Rights mast recently published by the
Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of thes Notice; and

ADJUSTED PERFORMAMNCE MEASURES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iy hmited to the allotrent of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
tolherwise than under paragraph (@) up (o 2 norminal armoun: equal
1o 20% of any zllcument of equily securilies o sale of lredsury shares
frorn time 1o time under paragraph ), such authority Lo be used only
Tor the purposes of making a lollow-on offer whice: the Direciors of
the Company determine to be of a kind contemplated by paragraph
3 of Section 2B of the Staternent of Princ ples on Disapplyirg Pre-
Emption Rights mast recently published by the Pre-Emption Group
prior to the date of this Notice,

such authority to expire on the date 15 months after the date of this resolution
ar,if earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company (unless tenewed, varied
of revoied by the Company prior to or on that date) save that the Company
may. before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might
reqjuire equity securizies to be allotted (or treasury shares to be sold) after such
expry a~d the Directors rmay allot equity securities {or seli treasury sharesy in
pursuance of any such offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power
conferred by this resclution has expireq.

Resolution 17

That tre Company be and is hercby unconditionally and gencrally
authorised for the purpose of section 701 of the Act to make maiket
purchases (withimn <he meaning of secthion 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary
shares of £1 cach in the capital of the Company pravided that

{(a) the maxmum number of shares which may be purchased 15 3,025,819,

{b) the minimum price {excluding expenses) wh ch may be paid for eac
share s £1;

(0} the maximum price {excludmg experses) which rmay be paid for each
urdinary shate is an armount egual to the bigher of:

i} 105% of the average of the middle market quotations of e
Cormpany’s ordinary shares as denved from the Daily Official
List o the London Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which such share is contracted
to be purchased, and

(i) the value of an ordinary share calculated on the pasis of the
tigher of the price quoted for the last independent trade of
and the highest current ingependent bid *or any number of
the Company’s ordinary shares on the trading venue wrere the
purchase is ta be carried out, including when the shares are
traded on different trading venues.

such autharity ko expire on the date 15 months after the date of tis
reselution or, it earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company {except

n relation to tre nurchase of shaies the contract for which was concluded
before the expity of such authority and which maght be execwten wholly or
nartly after sich expiry) unless such aushority 1s renewed prior to such time,

Resolution 18
That a general meeting of the Company {other than an AGM) may be
czlled on not less than 14 clear days’' notice.

Resolution 19

ihat the sroposed gmendment to the rules of the Avon Pratecton plo
Long Term Incentive Plan ffonmerly Zalled tre Avon Rubber ol Long
Term incentive Plan) (the LTIP in connection with a preposed one-off
rmatching award arrangerment, im the form presenied 1o the AGM and as
sumimarised I the explanatery notes sect on of this Notce, be approved
and the Orectors be author sed 1o adopt the amendment wnto the rules
of the LTIP and 7o do all such atmer acts and t+ings as ~hey may consider
appeacriate tomplemeat the amendment,

8y order of the Board

Miles Ingrey-Counter
General Counsel and Company Secretary
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Explanatory notes relating to the resolutions

The Board believes that the adoption of resolutions 1 to 19 will promote
Lhe success of the Company and s in the best interests of the Compary
and its shareholders as a whole. [he Board unanimaeusly recomrnends that
all shareholders sheuld vole in favour of all the resoiutions to be proposed
at the AGM. Each of the Directors of the Company intends ta vote in favour
of all resolutions :n respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Resolution 1 - Reports and accounts

The Directors are required by law to present to the AGM the accounts, and
the reports of the Directors and auditor, for the year ended 30 September
2023. These are contained 'n the Company's 2023 Annual Report.

Resolution 2 — Directors’ Remuneration Report

This resolution seeks shareholders approval of the Directors’
Rernuneration Regort for the year ended 30 Septernber 2023 contained
on pages 99 1o 107 of the 2023 Annual Report. As in nrevious years, the
yote is advisory only and the Directors’ entitlernent to remuneration is not
conditional on it being passed.

Resolution 3 — Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This resciution seeks srareholders’ aporoval for the new Directars’
Remuneration Policy which is contained on pages 90 tc 98 of the 2023
Arnual Report.

Itismtended toat the Directars’ Remuneration Policy will take offect
immediately a®ter the AGM and will replace the existing policy that was
approved by shareholders in 2021. The vote 1S 3 binding vote and, subject
to Iimited exceptions, no remuneration payment or loss of office payment
may be made to a prospective, current or former Director urless consistent
with the approved remunerabion policy (ur otherwise specifically aoproved
by shareholders). It 1y ant cipated that the Directors’ Rernuneration “olicy
will be in foree for three years, dlthough the Board will dlosely mornitor
regulatary changes and market trends ard, if necessary, may present a
revised policy withint tha, Buee-year period.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been developed taking inte
account the prircioles of the UK. Corporate Governance Code and the
views of the Company's major shareholders.

Resolution 4 - Declaration of final dividend

Afiral dividend can only pe paid after the sharehalders have approved it
at a general meeting. The Directors recormerd that a final dividend in
respect of the financ al year ended 30 September 2023 of 153 US cents be
paid Subjec: Lo zpproval, the final dividend will be paid on 8 March 2024
to eligible shareholders on the Company's Register of Members at dose of
business on 9 February 2024. The dividend w [l be converted inta pound
sterling for payment at the prevaling exchange rate prior to payment. The
exchange rate will be natified to shareholders through a Regulatory News
Service i advance of the dividend payment date.

Resolutions 5 to 10 - Re-appointment of Directors

Lach member of the Board has offered himselffherself for clection or
re-election in accordance with bes: practice corporate governance
standards. The Board unanimously recammends trat they each be elected
or re-elected as Directors of the Company. Chloe Ponsonby will step down
from the Bozrd in 2024 when her replacement has been identified The
Chair conlirms Lhat each of the Non-txecutive Direclors who are seeking
re-electizn at the AGM continues to be an eftective member of the Board
and to demuonstrate their commitrment e their role. Chloe Ponsonby, in
her capacity as Senior Independen: Director, has confirmed that Bruce
Thompson is an effective Chair and demonstrates commitment to his

role as Char.

Biographical details for each Director are set out on pages 74 and 75 of the
2023 Annual Repert

Resolutions 11 and 12 — Re-appointment of auditor and
authorisation for the Directors to set the auditor’s remuneration
The Company is required to appoint an auditor at each generzl mesting

at which its accounts are presented. The Board 1s recormmending to
shareholders the re-appoirtment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s auditor
for the financial year commencing on 1 October 2023,

Resolution 13 - Authority to make political donations

The Act reguires companies to obtain sharsholders” authorizy before they
can make donations to political arganisations or incur pelitical expenses,
Itis 1ot proposed or intended ta alter the Company's policy of not making
political denations, within the narmal meaning of that expression,

However, this resolution is proposed to ensure that the Company and

its subsidiaries do not, because of any uncertainty as to the bodies or
activities covared by the Act, unintentionally commit any technical oreach
of the Act by making political donations. Resolution 13, if passed, will give
the Board authatity Lo make political donalions until the close of business
on 27 December 2023 or, if saoner, the next AGM of the Company {when
the Board intends to renew this author ty), up to an aggregate of F100,000
far the Company and its subsidiary companies,

Resolution 14 - Directors’ authority to allot

This resolution deals with the Directors' authority 10 allot Relevan:
Securities in accordance with section 551 of the Act. Tre authority granted
at the last ACMIs due to expire ot the conclusion of this year’s AGM and
accordingly itis proposed to renew this authority.

This resclution will, if passed, autharise the Directors to ailot Relevant Securities:

(2} up toa maximum naminal amount of £10,086,064 (such amount to
be reduced by any allotrments or grants made under paragraph (B
below), which 1s equal to approxirrately one-third of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company as at 21 Novernber 2023 and

g

comprising cq.ity securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act) up
Lo d Tnaknnur morminal amount of £20172129 (such amonnt tn he
reduced by any allotments or grants made under paragraph (a) above)
in cornection with a pre-emptive offer {including an offer by way of &
rights issue or ogen offer), which is equal to approximately two-thirds
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 21 Novernber 2023,

The praposals in Resalution 14 are in line with the Investment Association
(147) guidance, which confirms that an authonty to allot up to two-

thiras of t~e existing issued share capital continues to be regarded as
routine business, The Directors consider it prudent to be aligned with

the 1A guidende o ensure that the Corrpany has maxirmur flexibility in
managing the Company’s capital resources.

The Girectors have na present intention of exercising this authority. The
autherity grantec by this resolution will expire on the date 15 months after the
dale of this resolution o, ifearhier, the date of the next AGM of the Corpany

In this rescluticn, ‘Relevant Securities’ means:
@ sharesin the Company other than shares allotted pursuant to:

a~ employee share scheme (a5 defined by section 1166 of the Act);

a right to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of
the right itself constituted a Relevant Security; or

a right to convert securities inta shares in the Company where the
grant of the rigrt itself constituted a Relevant Security; and

(b} any right to subscribe far or to convert any security into shares in the
Cormpany othor than rights to subscribe for or convert ary security
inta shares allotted pursuant to an employee share scherne {as
defined by section 1166 of the Act) References to the allotment of
Relevant Securties in this ~esclution nclude the grant of s.ch rghts.

As az 21 Novernber 2023 {being the latest practicable business day prior to
the publication of this Notice), the Company held /65,088 crdinary shares
as treasury shares, representing 2.5% of the Company's issued share capital
at that date.
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Resolutions 15 and 16 — Disapplication of pre-emption rights
Resolutions 15 and 16 will, if passed, give the Directors power, pursuant to
the authority to allot granted by resolution 14, to aliot equity secunties (as
defined by section 560 of the Act} or sell treasury shares for cash without
first offering them to existing sharenolders in properiion to teir existing
holdings and rencws the authonity given at the AGM in 2023

The authority set outin “eselution 15 would be limited to:

@) pre-emptive offers, including rights issues or open offers and offers
to holders of other equity securities if required by the nghrs of those
secunties, or as the Directors otherwise consider necessary; and

1o}

otherwise, allotments or sales up to an aggregate nomimal amount
of £3,025,819, which represents approxirrately 10% of the Company’s
issutedd share capital as at 21 Novermber 2023,

(0} allotments or sales up Lo an additional aggregate nominal amount
equal to 20% of any allotments or sales made under paragraph (b)
sucn power to be used only for the purposes o° making a follow-on
offer of a kind contemplated by Section 28 of the Pre-emption Growp
2072 Staterment of Principles {‘the Stazement of Principles?).

Resolution 1618 intended to give the Company flexibility tc make non-
pre-emptive issaes of ordinary shares in connection with acgussitions
and specified capital investments as contemplated by the Statement
of Principles. The authority under Resolution 1615 in addizion to that
propesed by Resclution 15 and would be limited to:

{a) allotments or sales of up to an aggregate nominal amount of
F3,025,819, which represents approximately 10% of the Company's
issued share capital as ar 21 hovermnher 2023, and

b

allotrments or sales up to an additional aggregate nominal amount
equal to 209 of any allotments o sales made under paragraph (b such
power to be used only for the purpases of making a follow-on offer of a
kind conternglated by Section 2B of the Staterment of Pringiples.

The autharity being sought in Resolution 16 will only be used in
connection with such an acquisition o spec.fied capital investment which
is announced contemporaneously with the snnouncement of the issue, or
which has taken place in the preceding 12 month penod and is discased
in the annguncerment of tho ssJe.

The authorities sought i Resolutions 15 ard 16 are in line with the
Stztement of Principles, which were revised in Novernber 2022

The Directors have no present intention (o exercise the authorities
conferred by Resolations 15 and 16, bul will have due regard 1o the
Stalement of Principles in relation t any such exerdise If tre powers
sought by Resolutions 15 or 16 ate used 'nrelation to a non-pre-emptive
offer, the Direclon confirm thelr intention o follow the shareholder
protections in paragraph ' of Part 28 of the Statement of Principles ang,
whero refevant, follow the expecied features of a follow-on offer as sst out
in paragraph 3 of Part ZB of the Statemen: of Pringiples

The authanty granted by Resalutions 15 and 16 wall expice on the date
15 months after the date of this resolution or, f earlier, the date of the next
AGM of the Company.

ADIUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Resolution 17 - Authority to purchase own shares

This resol.tion seeks & renewal of the authority for the Company Lo make
market purchases of its own shares and is proposed as a special resolution.
if passed, the resolution gives authority for the Company to purchase up
tc 3,025,819 ordinary shares of £1 cach, representing approximately 10% of
the Company's issued share capital as at 21 November 2023

The resolution spec fies the mimmum and maximum prices which may
be paid for any ordinary shares purchased under this authority. The
Campany did not purchase any shares in the penicd from the last AGM o
21 Novernber 2023 under the existing authority

The Directors have no present intention of exeidsing the authonty to
make market purchases, however, the authority provides the flexibilily to
allow them to do soin the future.

The Directors will exercise this authority only when, in light of market
conditions prevailing at the time, they believe that the effect of such
purchases will be to increase the earnings per oromary share having
regard to the intent of the guidehnes of Institutional investors and that
such purchases are in the bestinterests o shareholders generally. Other
investment opportunities, appropriate gearing levels and the overall
position af the Company will be taken into account befare deciding upo™
this course af actior. In tre event of any purchase under this authority,
the Ditectors would either hold the purchased ordinary shares in treasury
or cancel them As at 21 November 2023 (being the latest practicabie
pusiriess day pren 1o the pubhcation of ths Motice), the Corrpany held
765,008 ordinary shares in treasury.,

Banus and incentive scheme targets far Executive Directors would not
be affected by any enhancement of sarmings per sharm [ollowing a share
re-purchase,

As of 35 September 2823, there were ootions to subscribe cutstanding
over 532577 shates, represeniing 1.76% of the Company's issued shaie
capizal. If the authorizy given by resolution 17 were to be fully exercised,
these options would represent 134% of the Company’s 1ssucd share
capral after cancellation of the re-purchased shares. As of 21 Novermnber
2023, thore wore no warrants outstanding over shares.,

The authority will expire on the earlicr of the date 15 menths after the date
of this resolunion and the Compary's next AGM.

Resolution 18 - Notice of Meeting
Resolution 18 s a resalution to allow t-e Company to hoid general
meetings (other than AGMs) o~ 14 days” notice.

Before the introductior of the Companies (Shareholders' R'ghts)
Requlations In August 2009, the Company was able to call general
meetings (other thart AGMs) or 14 clear days notice. One of the
amendments that the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights} Regulations 2004
made to the Act was to increase the minimurr notice period ‘or listed
company general meetings ta 21 days, but with an ability for companies to
reduce tus penod back to 14 days fother than for AGM3) provigied that

) the Company offers facilities for shareholders to vote by electronic
means, and

(i) there is an annual reszlution of sharcholders approving the reduction
in the minimum notice period from 27 days to 14 aays

Rescl.tion 181s therefore proposed as a soecial resnlution to approve
14 days as the munimum period of notice t2r all general meetings of

the Company other than AGMs, The acproval will be effective until

the Comeany's next AGM, when it s intendea that the approval be
rencwed Tre Company will usc <his notice pericd only when peritted
12 2o s¢n accerdance wth the Act and when the Directors consicer it
aoprophiate (o 30 0.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Explanatery notes relating to the resolutions continued
Resolution 19 - Amendment to the rules of the LTIP

{he Avon Protection plc Long lenm Incentive Plan (formrery colled the
Avon Rubber ple Long Term Incentive Plan {'the LIPY fs the Company's
long-lermincentive arrangernent for the Company's executive directors
and other selected employees.

Since its anproval by shareholders in January 2019, the {TIP has provided
for annual share-based awards o-dinarily vesting on their third ann‘versary
of grant subject to the particivant's contirued service and the extent to
which performance criteria are met gver a three year measurement period.

The rules of the LTIP include best practice features, including in respect

of its good and bad leaver terms, malus and clawback provisicns and the
reguirement for post vesting holding pericds for awards to the Comoany's
executive directors.

The proposed new Directors’ Remuneration Policy (proposed under
Resolution 3) envisages that the LTI3 will be used to grant one-off
matching awards to the Company's CFO and CFO in respect of the current
financial year within six weeks of the AGM or as soon as reasonably
practicable thereafter, in lieu of the normal LTIP grant reerred o above.

As further explained in the new Directors’ Remunerat on Policy, under trie
terms of the proposed match ng award arrangement:

{a] to be eligible for the grant of any matching award the CEC and CFO
need ta have first acquired shares in the Company with their own
funds and agreed for such shares to be designated as ‘investment
shares’ for the purposes of the matching award arrangement (with
the aggregate purchase cost of such investrrent shares not exceeding
100% of the'r annual salary);

(B) subject to the cap noted below, the number of shares over wh ch
the CEQ and CFO's matching awards would be granted would be
determined by aviding the result of four times the respecitive sums
invested {of no rore than one tirmes their salary) by the marke: value
of shares al the time of the grant of the matching awards {(using 4
short averaging peried),

{C) the matcring awaras to the CEG and CFG may not be granted aver
mare thar 267,656 shares and 182,344 shares respectively;

{d) strerching performance conditions relating to earnings per share
and retirn on invested capital targets set for the financial year
of the Campany ending 30 September 2026 will apply to the
matching awards;

(e} the matching awaras would be “orfeit pro-rata to any disposal of the
grantee’s relevant related shares (the investment shares) prior to the
end of the period in respect of which the parfarmance condit.ons
are assessed;

(fy the matching awards would have associated normal vesting dates
of the third anniversary of their grant in respect of two-thirds of the
each matching award, and an associated normal vesting date of the
fourth anniversary of their grant date in respect of the balance of each
matching award; and

(g) apostvesting holding period (net of safes for zax) would crdinarily
apply through until the fifth anniversary of the grant of the
matching awards.

The LTIP can accommodate tne design of the proposed awards except
that the current terms of the LTIP provide that partic'pants may not receive
awards undcr the LTIP in any financial year over shares having a market
val.e in excess of 175% of ther annual base salary in that financial year,

To facilitate the grant of the proposea matching awards under the [ TIP,
Resolution 19 seeks sharehalder approval to amend the rules of the LTIP
to provide that its normal per participant per financial year award limit
shall not apply to the matching awards; instead, the amended rules of
the LTIP would restrict the number of shares over which such one-off
matching awards may bc granted ta no more than the maximums noted
in paragraph (c) above.

No other changes are proposed to the LTIP.
Nermal LTIP policy is envisaged in respect of subsequent financial years.

The rules of the LTIP in the proposed amended form will be available for
inspection from the date of this Notice on the National Storage Mechanism
taccessible al hitps/Adals fca.orguk/énsm/mationalstoragemechanism)
and will also be avallable for inspection at the place of te AGM for al leas!
15 minutes betore and during the AGM

Notice of Meeting notes

The following notes explain your general rights as a shareholder and your
right to attend and vote at this AGM or to appoint semeone clse 1o vote an
your behalf,

1. To be enutled to vote on the business of the AGM (and for the
purpase of the determination by the Company of the nurrber of
vates they may cast}, shareholders must be registered in the Register
of Members of the Company by close of business on 24 January 2024
Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline shall
be disregarded in deterrmining the nghts of any person o vote on the
busiress of the AGR,

2. Shareholders are entitled o appoint another persen as ¢ proxy Lo
exercise sl or part of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on
their behal® at the AGM. & sharerolder may appoint more than one
proxy in relation to the AGM provided that 2ach proxy is acpointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different ordinary share or ardi~ary
shares held by that shareholder A proxy nesa not be a shareholder of
the Company.

3. inthe case of joint holders, where mare than one of the joint holders
purperts to appoint a proxy. only the appoirtment submitted by
the mast senicr holder will be accepted. Seriority is determined
oy the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the
Company’s Register of Members in respect of the joint holding (the
first named heing the maost seniar),

4. Avote withheld is nat a vote ir law, which means that the vote witl not
be courted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution.
If n¢ voting indication is given, your proxy will vote o1 abstain from
vating at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote {or abstain from
volng} as he or she thinks ftin relation to any other matter wh'ch is
put before the AGM.

You can vote either:

[Sa]

by logging on 1o www signalshares.com and following Lhe
instructions,

you may request a hard cooy form of proxy airectly from the
Registrar, Link Group, on Tel: 0371 664 G300 (+44 371 664 0300

it overseas). Calls are charged at the standard geographical rate
and will vary by provider. Calls outside the United Kingdom will
be charged at the applicable internat’onal rate. | ines are open
between 2:00 am and 5:30 pm, Monday to Friday excluding public
holidays in Englznd and Wales; or

in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST clectronic

proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures set
ou: below

In order for a proxy appointment to be valid, a form of proxy must be
completed In each case the form of proxy must be received by Lirk
Group at 10th Floor, Central Square, 25 Wellinglon Street, Leeds LS1
ADL by 10:30 arm {GMT) en 24 Janudry 2024,
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Ihe return of a completed proxy form, other such nstiument or any
CREST Proxy Instiuction {as descibed in paragraphs 8 and 9 below)
will not preven: d shareholder attending the ALM and vating in
person fhey wish to doso.

If you return more than one proxy appaintment, either by paper or
electronic commurication, the appointment received last oy the
Registrar before the latest tirne for the receipt of proxies will take
precedence You are advised to read the terms and conditions of
use ca-efully. Electronic communication facilities are open to all
shareholders and those wno Jse therm will not te disadvantaged.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through
the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so

for the AGM (and any adjournment of the AGM) by using the
procedures descrbed inthe CREST Manua favailable from
wynw.euroclearcom/ate/public/FUN CREST perional members or
other CRFST sponsared members, and those CREST members who
have appainted a service provider(s), should refer 1o their CRFST
SDOMISOT OF VOring service provider(s), who wall be able 10 take the
apprapriate action an ther behalf. In order for a proxy appeintment
or i=struction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate
CRIST message {3 TREST Proxy Instruction’y must be properly
authenticated . accordance with Turoclear U K. &ircland Limited's
specdicanons and must contan the information required for such
nstructiors, as described 0 the CREST Marual, The message must
be tranismitted so as to oe received by the 1ssuer’s agent (ID RAID)
by 10.30 am (UK. time) on 24 January 2024, For this purpose, the
wrne of receipt will be taken 10 mear the tme (as determined by
the trmestarmp apphed to the message by the CRES] application
host) frorm which the issuer's agenl is azle Lo retneve the moessage
by enguiry Lo LRES T i the mianner prescribed by CREST. After this
urme, any Lhange of mstiuctions to poses apponted threagh CRESI
should be communicated 1o the appaintee through other means,

CREST members and. where applicanie, their CREST sponsars of
voring seryce providers should nate that Euroctear UK & lreland
Limited does nat make available special procedures in CREST for

any particular message, Normal system tinungs and hmitations will,
therefore, apply in relat.on to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions.

1t is the responsibnl ty of the CREST member concerned to take (o5,

if the CRES ™ member is 3 CREST persenal member, or sponsored
member, o has appointed a vating service provider(s), to procure
that their CRLST sponsar or volng service proveder(s) take(s) such
acthion & shall be necessary to ensiie that a message is ransmitied by
means of the CREST system by any particular ime, In this connection,
CREST membiers and, where applicacie, thewr CRFST sponsors ar
voring sysiern providers are referred, in partcular. to those sections
of the CREST Manual cancerning practical limitations of the CREST
system and timings. The Campany may treas as ivakd a TREST Praxy
lnstruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)a) of the
Uncertificated Sccurit es Regulations 2001,

L if you are an instititional Investor you may be asle to appoint a proxy

clectronically via the Proxyrmity platform, a pracess which has been
agreed by the Company and approved by the Registrar. For further
informanon regarding Proxyrnity, please go 10 www.proxyrmity.ao.
Yaur proxy must be lodged by 10.30 am on 24 lanuary 2024 10 order
o be considered vzlhid or of the meeting 1s adjourned, by the time
which 1s 48 hours before tne time of the adjourned meeting. Before
YOL Al appoiit g proxy via this piacess you vl need to have agreed
10 Proxyruty’s assocated terms and cordiians 10s impoetang Lhat
vou read tese carsfully as you well be bound by them ard they wll
gavern the electronc appontment of yodr proxy
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Unless ctherwise indicated an the Form of Praxy, CREST, Proxymity
of any other electronic vating instruction, the proxy will vote as they
think fit or, at their discretion or withhold from voting.

. Any cotperaton which s a sk areholder can dppoinl one o1 more

Corpedate represenlatives who reay exercise onits benall ail of 1y
powers as a shareholder provided that no mmore than one carporate
representative exercises powers in felation to the same shares

As at 21 Novernber 2023 (being the latest practicable business day
prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company's issued share
capital consists of 30,258,194 ardinary shares of £1 each, catrying ane
vote each. 765,098 ordinary shares of £1 each are held in treasury.
These shares are not taken into consideration in relation o the
payment of dividends or vating. Therefare, the total voting rights in
the Company as at 21 Movember 2023 are 30,258,194,

The Company must ca.se Lo be answered at the AGM any guestion
relating to the business being dealt with at the AGM wh.chis put by a
snarehalder atrending the AGM, unlrss nne af the following applies:
(i) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the AGM
or involve the disclosure of confidential information; (i} the answer
has already been given on a website in the form of an arswer to a
guestion; of (i) i is undesuable in the interests of the Company or the
good order of the AGM that the question be answered.

. A opy of this notice, ana other information reguited by section 311A

of the Act, can be found at www.avon-protection-ple.com,

;. Under section 527 of the Act, shareholders meeting the threshold

e qurermenis set oubm that section have the nght to regquire the
Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any

matter relating to: (i) the audit of tne Company’s finanoal statements
(including the Auditer's Repor: ard the conduct of the audit) that are
to be faid before the AGM; o (1) any drcumstances connecied with
ar audier of the Company ceasing 1o hold othice since the previous
meeting at which annual financial staternents and repoi s were Jard
indccordance with section 437 of the Act {in each case) thal the
srareholders propose to rase at the relevant meeting The Cormpany
may nat require the shareholdaes requesting any s.ch website
publication to pay its expenses in complying with seciions 527 or 528
of the Act Where the Company is required to place 3 stalement on a
wehsite under section 527 of the Act, itimust forward the starerment
o the Company's auditor nat later than the time when it makes the
statarment available on the website, The business which may be deait
with at the AGM for the relevant fnancial yedr includes any statement
that the Company has been required under section 527 of the Act to
publish on a welsite,

The following documens are available for mspection at our registered
office frare the date of this Notice until the conclusion of the AGM
and at the place of the meeting fram at least 15 munutes prior 1o and
durimg the meeting until its canclusion:

- copies of the Drrectors fetters of appontment of service contracts,
- copy OF the drafUiules of the LTIP; and
« 2 copy of the current Articles of Assodiation of the Carrpany.

Scanned copies are also be available on request from the
Company Secretary.

You may not use any electronic acdress (within the meaning of
section 333145 of the Act) provided 1m either this Notice or any related
dacuments (including the form of proxy) to corrmunicate with the
Company for ary oorposes ather than those expiessly statea.

The Cornpany may process personal data of attendees at the AGHM.
This may include photos, racardings ard audio and video links. as
weell 3s other forms o personal data The Company shall process s..ch
personal data in accordance wath its privacy policy, which can e
found al www.avon-protection-plc.com.
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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS

Term Explanation

50 series Range of masks based on the proven tech~clogy of the M50 mask system

ACHGENNI - Secand-generation Advanced Combat Helmet

AGM Annual General Meeting

APC Avon Pr:)-tlect\'on Ceradyne I

CBRN ) Chemical, biological, radiological and nuclear o

Gy o Cash-generating J::rt

D_6D Department of Defense o

EMEA turope, M ddle East, and Altica o

ESG 7 Enviranmental, social and carporate governance -

ESPP Ermplaoyee Stock Purchase Plan o

FTSE - Financial Times Stock Fxchange I

FX Foreign exchange i

FY B Financial year o

GHG Greenhouse Gas 7 -

&snﬁ General Service Sespirator -

H1/H2 Fi?;ﬁ;l%f the financial year (October-March)/second half of “inancial year {Aprl-Septemiber) o

ITAR International Traffic in Arms Requlation

KPis o Key Performance Indicators S

LTIP Long-Term |ﬁC€;;tTVE- Plan N

MITR Modula- Integrated lactical Respirator o

MOD ) Ministry of Defence S

NATO North Atla~tic f;c‘ary Organization T

NFPA National Fire ;{;{CCIIOH Associaton T

NG IHPS Next Generation Integrated Hcad;rnotection System

NSPA S The NATO Suppart and Procurement Agency, the executive bocgof the NATD Support and Procurement
Organisabion {NSPO, of which all 30 NATO nations are members)

PAPR Powered Air Purifying Respirator o

PSP - Hmﬂgrfurmaﬁce Shate Plan o

SBU Strategic Busme—ss_LJﬁ

SE!A— Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus_

SIP Share Incentive Plan

SSA Special Security Agreement T

tCOze w!?we armount of greenhouse gases ernitted during a given period, measured in metne ions ol (arbawr dioxide equivalent

TCFD Task Force on Climat;éc—lated Financial Disclosures N

TSR Total shareholder return -

UN 5DGs United MNations Sustainable Develooment Goals o

o
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